
 
 

 

Delegated Decisions by Cabinet Member for Highway 
Management 
 

Thursday, 23 February 2023 at 10.00 am 

Council Chamber - County Hall, New Road, Oxford OX1 1ND 
 
If you wish to view proceedings, please click on this Live Stream Link. 

However, that will not allow you to participate in the meeting. 
 

Items for Decision 
 
The items for decision under individual Cabinet Members’ delegated powers are listed 

overleaf, with indicative timings, and the related reports are attached.  Decisions taken 
will become effective at the end of the working day on Thursday 2nd March              

unless called in by that date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee. 
Copies of the reports are circulated (by e-mail) to all members of the County Council. 
 

These proceedings are open to the public 
 

 
Stephen Chandler 
Interim Chief Executive 

February 2023 
 

Committee Officer: Committees - Democratic Services 

E-Mail: committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

Note:  Date of next meeting: 23 March 2023 
 
 

 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
 

Public Document Pack



Page 2  
 

 

 

Items for Decision 
 

1. Declaration of Interest  

2. Questions from County Councillors  

 
Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am two working 

days before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the Cabinet 
Member’s delegated powers. 
 

The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one meeting is 
limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary question at the meeting) 

and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in total. As with questions at 
Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the end of this item will receive a 
written response. 

 
Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and will be 

the subject of a response from the appropriate Cabinet Member or such other councillor 
or officer as is determined by the Cabinet Member, and shall not be the subject of further 
debate at this meeting. Questions received after the despatch of the agenda, but before 

the deadline, will be shown on the Schedule of Addenda circulated at the meeting, 
together with any written response which is available at that time 

3. Petitions and Public Address  

 

Members of the public who wish to speak at this meeting can attend the meeting in 
person or ‘virtually’ through an online connection. 
 

Requests to speak must be submitted by no later than 9am four working days before the 
meeting.  Requests to speak should be sent to 
committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk . 

 
If you are speaking ‘virtually’, you may submit a written statement of your presentation to 

ensure that if the technology fails, then your views can still be taken into account. A 
written copy of your statement can be provided no later than 9 am 2 working days before 
the meeting. Written submissions should be no longer than 1 A4 sheet.  

4. Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 22) 

 

To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 26 January 2023.  

5. Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) 
(Pages 23 - 142) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2022/142 

Contact: Sam Larkin, Transport Planner. 
 
Report by Director of Transport & Infrastructure (CMDHM 5). 

 
To seek approval for the draft Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan. 

mailto:committeesdemocraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk


Page 3  
 

 

6. Abingdon - B4017 Wootton Road - proposed toucan crossing 

(Pages 143 - 154) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2022/239 

Contact: Jacob Mowlem , Technician Engineer Road Agreements Team. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM  6). 

 
To approve a proposed pedestrian and pedal cycle provision as part of approved retail 

development. 

7. Radley - Kennington Road and Whites Lane - proposed 
pedestrian and cycle crossings and shared use footway / cycle 
track (Pages 155 - 194) 

 

Forward Plan Ref: 2022/183 
Contact: Ryan Moore, Senior Engineer, Road Agreements Team. 

 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 7). 

 

To seek approval of a proposed 20mph speed limit. 
 

To seek approval of proposed crossings and cycle track. 

8. Bicester - Dunkins Close - proposed residents permit parking 
scheme (Pages 195 - 210) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2022/223 

Contact: Jim Whiting, Principal Officer, Parking. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 8). 

 
Proposed traffic measure to facilitate amenity of residents. 

9. Littlemore - Oxford Road - proposed bus stop clearway (Pages 211 

- 218) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2022/224 
Contact: Anthony Kirkwood, Principal Engineer Traffic and Road Safety. 

 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 9). 

 
Proposed traffic measures to facilitate public transport. 

10. Long Hanborough - Regent Drive (Pages 219 - 234) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2022/184 

Contact: Adam Barrett, Senior Engineer, Road Agreements Team. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 10). 

 
To seek approval of proposed waiting restrictions. 



Page 4  
 

 

11. Banbury - Bretch Hill - proposed waiting restrictions and 20mph 
speed limit (Pages 235 - 252) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2022/240 

Contact: Chloe Kirby, Engineer, Road Agreements Team. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 11). 

 
To agree proposed traffic safety measures as part of approved residential development. 

12. Abingdon - proposed 20mph and 30mph speed limits (Pages 253 - 

364) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2022/145 
Contact: Geoff Barrell, Principal Engineer, 20mph speed limit project. 

 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 12). 

 
This report presents responses received to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph and 30mph speed limits in Abingdon. 

13. Chilton: 20mph speed limit (Pages 365 - 374) 

 

Forward Plan Ref: 2022/234 
Contact: Geoff Barrell, Principal Engineer, 20mph speed limit project. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 13). 

 

Decision required on proposed 20mph speed limit. 

14. Cumnor (including Farmoor): proposed 20mph and 30mph speed 
limits (Pages 375 - 430) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2022/233 

Contact: Geoff Barrell, Principal Engineer, 20mph speed limit project. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 14). 

 
Decision required on proposed 20mph and 30mph speed limits. 

15. Faringdon - proposed 20mph speed limit (Pages 431 - 450) 

 

Forward Plan Ref: 2022/232 
Contact: Geoff Barrell, Principal Engineer, 20mph speed limit project. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 15). 

 

A decision is required on a proposed 20mph speed limit. 



Page 5  
 

 

 

16. Hanborough: Church Hanborough - Proposed 20 mph Speed 
Limits (Pages 451 - 458) 

 

Forward Plan Ref: 2022/202 
Contact: Geoff Barrell, 20 Limit Project Manager. 

 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 16). 

 

Decision required on proposed 20mph speed limit. 

17. Kidlington - proposed 20mph speed limit (Pages 459 - 468) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2022/231 
Contact: Geoff Barrell, Principal Engineer, 20mph speed limit project. 

 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 17). 

 
A decision is required on a proposed 20mph speed limit. 

18. Kingston Lisle and Fawler - proposed 20mph speed limit (Pages 

469 - 478) 
 

Forward Plan Ref: 2022/230 
Contact: Geoff Barrell, Principal Engineer, 20mph speed limit project. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 18). 

 

A decision is required on a proposed 20mph speed limit. 

19. Milton under Wychwood - proposed 20mph speed limit (Pages 479 - 

484) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2022/229 

Contact: Geoff Barrell, Principal Engineer, 20mph speed limit project. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 19). 

 
A decision is required on a proposed 20mph speed limit. 

20. North Hinksey - proposed 20mph speed limit (Pages 485 - 536) 

 

Forward Plan Ref: 2022/244 
Contact: Geoff Barrell, Principal Engineer, 20mph speed limit project 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 20). 

 

A decision is required on a proposed 20mph speed limit. 



Page 6  
 

 

 

21. Oxford: Binsey Lane - proposed extension of 20mph speed limit 
(Pages 537 - 562) 

 

Forward Plan Ref: 2022/235 
Contact: Geoff Barrell, Principal Engineer, 20mph speed limit project. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 21). 

 

Decision required on proposed 20mph speed limit. 

22. Shrivenham  - proposed 20mph speed limit (Pages 563 - 580) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2022/245 
Contact: Geoff Barrell, Principal Engineer, 20mph speed limit project. 

 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 22). 

 
A decision is required on a proposed 20mph speed limit. 

23. South Leigh - proposed 20mph speed limit (Pages 581 - 594) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2022/246 

Contact: Geoff Barrell, Principal Engineer, 20mph speed limit project. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 23). 

 
A decision is required on a proposed 20mph speed limit. 

24. South Moreton - proposed 20mph speed limit (Pages 595 - 606) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2022/228 

Contact: Geoff Barrell, Principal Engineer, 20mph speed limit project. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 24). 

 
A decision is required on a proposed 20mph speed limit. 

25. Sparsholt and Westcot - proposed 20mph speed limit (Pages 607 - 

614) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2022/226 
Contact: Geoff Barrell, Principal Engineer, 20mph speed limit project. 

 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 25). 

 
Forms part of Oxfordshire 20mph speed limit project. 



Page 7  
 

 

 

26. Steventon - proposed 20mph speed limit (Pages 615 - 636) 

 
Forward Plan Ref: 2022/225 

Contact: Geoff Barrell, Principal Engineer, 20mph speed limit project. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 26). 

 
Forms part of Oxfordshire 20mph speed limit project. 

27. Stratton Audley - proposed 20mph speed limit (Pages 637 - 642) 

 

Forward Plan Ref: 2022/227 
Contact: Geoff Barrell, Principal Engineer, 20mph speed limit project. 
 
Report by Corporate Director Environment & Place (CMDHM 27). 

 

Forms part of Oxfordshire 20mph speed limit project. 



Page 2  
 

 

 

Councillors declaring interests  
 

General duty  

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item 

on the agenda headed ‘Declarations of Interest’ or as soon as it becomes apparent to 

you.  

 

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest?  

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your employment; sponsorship (i.e. payment for 

expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your 

election expenses); contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the 

Council’s area; corporate tenancies; and securities. These declarations must be 

recorded in each councillor’s Register of Interests which is publicly available on the 

Council’s website.  

 

Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member 

her or himself but also those member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with 

as husband or wife or as if they were civil partners. 

 

Declaring an interest  

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a 

meeting, you must declare that you have an interest. You should also disclose the nature 

as well as the existence of the interest. If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after 

having declared it at the meeting you must not participate in discussion or voting on the 

item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.  

 

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception  

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code 

of Conduct says that a member ‘must serve only the public interest and must never 

improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself’ and 

that ‘you must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be 

questioned’.  

 

Members Code – Other registrable interests  

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or 

wellbeing of one of your other registerable interests then you must declare an  interest. 

You must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and you must withdraw from 

the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.  

 

Wellbeing can be described as a condition of contentedness, healthiness and happiness; 

anything that could be said to affect a person’s quality of life, either positively or 

negatively, is likely to affect their wellbeing. 

Other registrable interests include:  

a) Any unpaid directorships 



Page 3  
 

 

b) Any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or 

management and to which you are nominated or appointed by your authority. 

c) Any body (i) exercising functions of a public nature (ii) directed to charitable 

purposes or (iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public 

opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a 

member or in a position of general control or management. 

 

Members Code – Non-registrable interests  

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or 

wellbeing (and does not fall under disclosable pecuniary interests), or the financial 

interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate, you must declare the interest.  

 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects your own financial interest or wellbeing, 

a financial interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate or a financial interest or 

wellbeing of a body included under other registrable interests, then you must declare the 

interest.  

 

In order to determine whether you can remain in the meeting after disclosing your 

interest the following test should be applied:  

Where a matter affects the financial interest or well-being:  

a) to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of 

inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;  

b) a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it 

would affect your view of the wider public interest. 

 

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at 

the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter 

and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

DELEGATED DECISIONS BY CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY 
MANAGEMENT 

 
MINUTES of the meeting held on Thursday, 26 January 2023 commencing at 10.00 

am and finishing at 2.00 pm 
 

  
Present:   – in the Chair 

 
 Councillor Andrew Gant 

 

 

100/22 DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
(Agenda No. 1) 

 

There were none. 
 

101/22 QUESTIONS FROM COUNTY COUNCILLORS  
(Agenda No. 2) 

 
There were no questions from County Councillors. 

 

102/22 PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS  
(Agenda No. 3) 

 

The following speakers addressed the meeting: 
 
 (All speakers on all the items have 3 minutes except for County Councillors 

representing the relevant division who have 5 minutes). 
 
Statements submitted for 26th January 2023  

 
 

 

Item 
 

 

Speakers  

5. Banbury  - Town Centre - West  - 

proposed residents parking scheme 
 

 Jack Mullins (Written 

Statement) 

 Alexandra Tyson (Written 

Statement)  
 

6. Oxford: Donnington area - 
proposed Controlled Parking Zone 

 

 Cllr Brad Baines (Teams 5 

mins) 

 Danny Yee (3 Mins) 

 Jo Freer (Written Statement) 

 John Marsh (Written 
Statement) 

 

7. Oxford: Lower Wolvercote area - 
proposed Controlled Parking Zone 

 Cllr Jo Sandelson (Oxford 
City) (3 Mins) 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



3 

  

9.  Thame: Central area proposed 
parking measures 

 

 Stuart Blayney (Teams 3 
mins) 

 Cllr Kate Gregory (5 mins) 

12. Woodstock: town centre - 
proposed arrangements for the 

issue of hotel and guest house 
visitor parking permits 
 

 Sharone Parnes (Teams 3 
Mins) 

 Cllr Andy Graham (Teams 5 
Mins) 

 Cllr Julian Cooper (West Ox 
Council) (3 mins) 

13. Chadlington - A361 and 

Chipping Norton Road  
 

 Cllr Liz Leffman (5 mins) 

14. Oxford: St Michael's Street  - 
proposed permanent closure to all  

vehicles of eastern end of road 
 

 Danny Yee (3 Mins) 

16. Berrick Salome: Proposed 20 

mph Speed Limits 
 

 Robin Tucker – CoHSAT (3 

mins) (MS Teams) 

 
 

 

103/22 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS  
(Agenda No. 4) 

 
Cllr Andrew Gant approved the minutes of the meeting from 17 th November 2022 
subject to the following amendments: 

  
61/22 DECLARATION OF INTEREST (Agenda No. 1)  

  
There were no declarations of interest as it was proposed to defer Item 21 to a later 
meeting. Cllr Andrew Gant declared a prejudicial interest on Item 21 (OXFORD- A40 

JUNCTION WITH BLANDFORD AVENUE AND DAVENANT ROAD – PROPOSED 
ACCESS RESTRICTIONS AND TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES) due to his 

involvement with the residents of those roads on the scheme, and the Leader of the 
Council had appointed Councillor and Cabinet Member Duncan Enright to chair that 
item and make the decision. However, Councillor Enright was unwell and unable to 

attend. 
 
81/22 Oxford- A40 junction with Blandford Avenue and Davenant Road – 
proposed access restrictions and traffic calming measures (Agenda No. 21) 

 

The Cabinet Member for Highway Management agreed to defer this item due to his 
involvement with the residents of those roads on the scheme, and he was unable to 

arrange for another member of the Cabinet to take the Chair to make a decision on 
this item. 
 

  

Page 2



3 

Cllr Andrew Gant approved the minutes of the meeting from 8 th December 2022 
subject to the following amendment: 

  
83/22 DECLARATION OF INTEREST (Agenda No. 1)  

  
Cllr Andrew Gant declared a prejudicial interest on Item 21 (OXFORD- A40 
JUNCTION WITH BLANDFORD AVENUE AND DAVENANT ROAD – PROPOSED 

ACCESS RESTRICTIONS AND TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES) due to his 
involvement with the residents of those roads on the scheme, and the Leader of the 

Council had appointed Councillor and Cabinet Member Duncan Enright to chair that 
item and make the decision. 
. 

 

104/22 BANBURY  - TOWN CENTRE - WEST  - PROPOSED RESIDENTS 

PARKING SCHEME  
(Agenda No. 5) 

 

Following the introduction of Civil Parking Enforcement across Cherwell, South 
Oxfordshire and The Vale of the White Horse districts in November 2021, many 

requests have been received to review existing parking restrictions.  One of these 
requests was received from Councillor Reeves, member for Banbury Calthorpe 
division, to cover residential streets to the west of Banbury Town Centre.  Councillor 

Reeves has funded the necessary consultation and advertisement costs to design 
and consult upon these proposals. 

 
This report presents the consultation responses to the advertised Traffic Regulation 
Order (TRO) for a proposed scheme. 

 
Cllr Gant invited speakers to address the meeting and responded to the points made 

in their statements. 
 
Cllr Gant pointed out to officers’ responses to objectors to the scheme (as per report) 

and added that officers had proposed that a review of the scheme could be carried 
out approximately 12 months after implementation of the scheme, should it be 

approved. 
 
Cllr Gant agreed with officers’ view that  the proposals would help facilitate the safe 

movement of traffic and alleviate parking stress in the area, and also would 
encourage the use of sustainable transport modes and help support the delivery of 

wider transport initiatives. 
 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management APPROVED the proposals as 

advertised for parking measures at Beargarden Road, Crouch Street, Monument 

Street, New Road, West Bar Street and Westbeech Court. 
 

105/22 OXFORD: DONNINGTON AREA - PROPOSED CONTROLLED PARKING 

ZONE  
(Agenda No. 6) 

 

Page 3



3 

This report presents the consultation responses to the Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) 
proposals for the Donnington area of Oxford as part of the approved programme for 

introducing CPZs in the city. 
 

Measures to restrict and control car parking availability, including use of Controlled 
Parking Zones (CPZs), form part of the county’s emerging Central Oxfordshire Travel 
Plan (COTP) as well as recently adopted Local Transport and Connectivity Plan 

(adopted in 2022) and also Oxford City Council’s Local Plan (adopted in 2020). Much 
of Oxford is already covered by CPZs, with further CPZs planned and which are 

required to support several local transport and planning objectives. 
 
Cllr Gant invited speakers to address the meeting and responded to the points made 

in their statements. 
 

Cllr Gant welcomed the aims of the scheme in terms of transport management (to 
remove free on-street commuter and other non-residential car parking spaces from 
the city, thereby reducing traffic levels and helping boost use of non-car modes), 

development management (to support the city and county councils’ policies to limit 
the number of car parking spaces provided as part of new developments by ensuring 

restricted off-street provision does not lead to overspill parking in surrounding streets) 
and for protecting residential streets (by removing intrusive or obstructive non-
residential on-street car parking and, where necessary, limiting the number of on-

street spaces occupied per dwelling by residential and visitor parking). 
 

Officers’ suggestion was that a review of the scheme could be carried out 
approximately 12 months after the implementation of the CPZ, should it be approved. 
 

Cllr Gant went through consultation responses and officers’ comments to objections. 
 

Cllr Gant felt that these CPZs would help facilitate the safe movement of traffic and 
alleviate parking stress, with a CPZ in Donnington aimed at tackling existing on street 
parking issues and to also help encourage the use of sustainable transport modes.    

 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to: 

 
1) Approve the proposals as advertised for a Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) in 

the Donnington area. 

 
2) Include Ferry House, Meadow Lane within the list of eligible properties able to 

apply for resident & visitor permits. 
 

3) Include residential moorings on the Oxford Canal in the vicinity of the new 

zone, being included for eligibility for resident and visitor permits.  
 

106/22 OXFORD: LOWER WOLVERCOTE AREA - PROPOSED CONTROLLED 
PARKING ZONE  
(Agenda No. 7) 

 
This report presents the consultation responses to the CPZ proposals for the Lower 

Wolvercote area of Oxford as part of the approved programme for introducing CPZs 

Page 4



3 

in the city.  Measures to restrict and control car parking availability, including use of 
Controlled Parking Zones (CPZs), form part of the county’s emerging Central 

Oxfordshire Travel Plan (COTP) as well as recently adopted Local Transport and 
Connectivity Plan (adopted in 2022) and also Oxford City Council’s Local Plan 

(adopted in 2020). Much of Oxford is already covered by CPZs, with further CPZs 
planned and which are required to support several local transport and planning 
objectives. 

 
Cllr Gant invited speakers to address the meeting and responded to the points made 

in their statements. 
 
Cllr Gant felt that proposed CPZ details, as presented in the report, would not serve 

in the best interest of residents of Lower Wolvercote area and informed the meeting 
that he would defer a decision on this matter so the officers could explore an impact 

of the proposed CPZ would have on parking in the area. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management agreed to DEFER a decision on the 

proposal as advertised for a Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) in the Lower Wolvercote 
area so officers could explore an impact that this CPZ would have on parking in the 

area.  
 

107/22 OXFORD: UPPER WOLVERCOTE AREA - PROPOSED CONTROLLED 

PARKING ZONE  
(Agenda No. 8) 

 
This report presents the consultation responses to the Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) 
proposals for the Upper Wolvercote area of Oxford as part of the approved 

programme for introducing CPZs in the city. 
 

Measures to restrict and control car parking availability, including use of Controlled 
Parking Zones (CPZs), form part of the county’s emerging Central Oxfordshire Travel 
Plan (COTP) as well as recently adopted Local Transport and Connectivity Plan 

(adopted in 2022) and also Oxford City Council’s Local Plan (adopted in 2020). Much 
of Oxford is already covered by CPZs, with further CPZs planned and which are 

required to support several local transport and planning objectives. 
 
Cllr Gant went though the proposals and responses to the consultation including 

officers’ feedback on objections.  Cllr Gant added that he would agree with a review 
of the scheme is carried out approximately 12 months after the implementation of the 

CPZ should it be approved. 
 
Cllr Gant felt that the CPZs would help facilitate the safe movement of traffic and 

alleviate parking stress, with a CPZ in Upper Wolvercote particularly aimed at 
ensuring parking from Oxford North did not just displace in the area, and to also help 

encourage the use of sustainable transport modes.  CPZs were also identified as one 
of several action in the county’s emerging Central Oxfordshire Travel Plan that were 
required to support wider transport policies within the county council’s Local 

Transport Connectivity Plan (adopted July 2022).  
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to: 

Page 5



3 

 
1) Approve the proposals as advertised for a Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) in 

the Upper Wolvercote area. 
 

2) Include properties located on Osborne Close and Church Lane within the list of 
eligible properties able to apply for resident & visitor permits. 

 

108/22 THAME: CENTRAL AREA PROPOSED PARKING MEASURES  
(Agenda No. 9) 

 

In November 2021, the enforcement of on-street parking restrictions transferred from 
Thames Valley Police to Oxfordshire County Council. At launch, a number of local 
concerns were made about enforcement of historic restrictions which did not cater for 

the needs of local residents and businesses. 
 

In response, officers committed with Councillors to undertake a review of the existing 
restrictions in the centre of Thame, alongside wider plans to introduce areas of paid 
parking to support the operation and funding of the civil enforcement operations. 

 
The county council’s parking team have worked closely with local councillors and the 

town council to bring forward a package of proposals to rationalise existing 
restrictions and introduce new measures which will help increase the turnover of 
parking whilst giving options for residential parking.  

 
The proposals subject to the public consultation include: 
 

 Introduction of Pay and Display Bays on High Street, Cornmarket and 
Upper High Street to allow for more effective enforcement and encourage 

the turnover of parking spaces. 1st 30 mins in any 24-hour period would be 
free and the paid parking does not include the main car parks on High 

Street and Upper High Street which would remain free of charges. 

 Introduction of permit holder only bays on Lower High Street, North Street, 
sections of Upper High Street and Park Street.  

 Removal of waiting restrictions on North Street (west side) to allow informal 
parking arrangements to remain. 

 New Street Trader bay in Upper High Street car park and extension of taxi 
bays on High Street 

 
Cllr Gant invited speakers to address the meeting and responded to the points made 
in their statements. 

 
Cllr Gant considered consultation responses as well as officers’ feedback on 

objections raised and concluded that the proposals would help facilitate walking and 
cycling and the safe movement of traffic. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to: 

 

1) Approve the proposals as advertised proposals for changes to no waiting 
restrictions, taxi bays, street trader bays and trader permits. 

 

Page 6



3 

2) Approve amendment of the proposals for permit holder bays as follows: 
a. Park Street, Nelson Street and North Street (except outside the Library) 

– are introduced as permit holder only bays. 
b. Current plans for permit holder bays or Pay and Display and permit 

holders are amended for High Street (plan 1), Upper High Street 
(including. outside the war memorial) – to be introduced as dual 
purpose bays – retaining the current 2-hour limit (non-permit holders) 

and including exemptions for permit holders. 
 

3) Approve to put ON HOLD proposals for the introduction of Paid parking bays 
in central Thame to allow further work on linking plans with emerging transport 
and movement strategies. To be undertaken in discussion with the Town 

Council and be completed within a 6-month period. 
 

4) Approve inclusion of properties No.80, 81, 81a and 83 in permit eligibility for 
the Thame central area. 

 

109/22 WALLINGFORD - VARIOUS LOCATIONS - PROPOSED PARKING PERMIT 

AREAS AND WAITING RESTRICTIONS  
(Agenda No. 10) 

 
In October 2021, The Council, carried out extensive advertising that Civil 

Enforcement would be undertaken in the District of South Oxfordshire Horse 
from 1 November 2021.   

 
Once enforcement commenced a number of comments were received in 
Wallingford from residents who had been receiving PCNs for parking near their 

homes due to historic waiting restrictions that did not meet the needs of 
residents.  

 
A review of the area was undertaken in 2022 along with some other requests 
received in roads within the town. The County Council has worked with the 
town mayor and local councillor to develop proposals (as shown in Annex 1), 

which aim to better manage the demand for parking in parts of Wallingford. 

 
This report presents responses received to a statutory consultation on the 
proposals to introduce changes in Wantage, which include the provision for: 

 Shared Use Parking (resident Permits and limited Waiting – Reading 
Road and Castle Street to allow residents to park without time limit and 

provide short term parking for visitor to the town. 

 Removal of single yellow lines – Croft Road and St Johns Road 

 Removal of double yellow lines – St Johns Road 

 No waiting at any Time – St Johns Road, Croft Road and Castle Street 

 
Cllr Gant observed comments from the consultees and officers’ responses to 
objectors of the scheme.  Cllr Gant added that a review of the scheme would be 

carried out approximately 12 months after the implementation of the proposals. 
 

Cllr Gant observed officers’ responses to objection and agreed that the proposals 
would help facilitate the safe movement of traffic and alleviate parking stress in the 

Page 7



3 

area, and would also help encourage the use of sustainable transport modes and 
help support the delivery of wider transport initiatives.   

 
 
The Cabinet Member for the Highway Management AGREED to approve the 

following measures as advertised: 
 

1) The proposed ‘Resident Permit & Shared-Use Parking’ on Castle Street & 
Reading Road,  

2) The proposed ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ (Double Yellow Lines) on Castle Street, 
Croft Road, and St Johns Road, 

3) The removal of existing ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ (Double Yellow Lines) on St 

Johns Road,  
4) The removal of existing ‘No Waiting Mon-Sat 8am-6pm’ (Single Yellow Lines) on 

Croft Road, and St Johns Road, and 
5) Include Walters Barn, Bear Lane and Morven, Reading Road within the list of 

eligible properties able to apply for resident & visitor permits 

 

110/22 WANTAGE - VARIOUS LOCATIONS - PROPOSED PARKING PERMIT 

AREAS AND WAITING RESTRICTIONS AND TAXI RANK  
(Agenda No. 11) 

 

In October 2021, The Council, carried out extensive advertising that Civil 
Enforcement would be undertaken in the District of Vale of White Horse from 1 

November 2021.   
 
Once enforcement commenced in November it became apparent that residents in 

Grove Street were being issued with PCNs for parking near their homes. Grove 
Street and Stirlings Road are subject no waiting at any time and a single yellow line 

that operates Monday to Saturday 9am to 5pm.  As a result, enforcement of the 
single yellow lines was suspended until a review could be undertaken. 
 

A review of the area was undertaken in 2022 along with some other requests 
received in roads within the town. The County Council has worked with the town 

council and local councillors to develop proposals, which aim to better manage the 
demand for retail and residential parking in the centre of Wantage. 
 

This report presents responses received to a statutory consultation on the proposals 
to introduce changes in Wantage, which include the provision for: 

 
• Resident Permit Parking Area 
• Limited Waiting  

• Disabled Parking Places 
• Taxi Bay 

 
Cllr Gant observed responses to the consultation as well officers’ comments to 
objections.  Cllr Gant agreed with officers’ recommendation that a review of the 

scheme should be carried out approximately 6 months after implementation. 
 

Page 8



3 

Cllr Gant felt that the proposals would help facilitate the safe movement of traffic and 
alleviate parking stress in the area, and would also help encourage the use of 

sustainable transport modes and help support the delivery of wider transport 
initiatives. 

 
 
 
The Cabinet Member for the Highway Management AGREED to remove the 
proposed Taxi Bay in Newbury Street and to APPROVE the remaining measures as 

advertised: 
 
1) the proposed ‘Resident Permit Parking Areas’ in Grove Street & Stirlings Road, 

2) the proposed ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ (Double Yellow Lines) on Grove Street, 
Church Street, Maryfield, Mill Street, Portway, Stirlings Road, and Post Office 

Lane, 
3) the proposed ‘Limited Waiting’ parking on Church Street, Mill Street, and 

Wallingford Street, and 

4) the proposed ‘Disabled Persons Parking Bay’ on Wallingford Street. 
 

111/22 WOODSTOCK: TOWN CENTRE - PROPOSED ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE 

ISSUE OF HOTEL AND GUEST HOUSE VISITOR PARKING PERMITS  
(Agenda No. 12) 

 
In November 2019, West Oxfordshire District Council in coordination with Woodstock 

Town Council carried out a consultation with residents and businesses regarding 
parking usage and demands within the centre of Woodstock. 
 

Following on from this consultation, the County Council worked with the town 
councillors and the local county councillor, to develop proposals which aimed to 

better manage the demand for retail and residential parking in the centre of 
Woodstock, whilst also generating revenue to fund the scheme and provide effective 
enforcement. 

 
In March/ April 2022, the proposals were subject to an extensive public engagement 

exercise, with the outcome presented to Cabinet Member Decisions (CMD) in May 
2022. The approved scheme (appendix 1) included the provision for: 
 

 Paid Parking Bays with exemptions for permit holders. 

 Ultra-short stay parking areas (max stay 30 minutes) 

 Permit holder only parking areas 

 New sections of 3 hour bays 

 New cycle parking areas in the Centre of Woodstock  
 

Under the approved scheme, a commitment was given that further assessment by 
officers would be undertaken to consider the introduction of permits for visitors to 
Guest Houses, Hotels and Holiday Lets within the scheme.  

 
A further proposal includes an amendment to the original scheme to reconsult on 

changes to the restrictions in Park Lane, Woodstock to bring them in line with the 
wider offer of paid parking bays in the centre of Woodstock. 

Page 9



3 

 
The purpose of this report is to report on the recent consultation on new policies for 

hotel and guest house permits to be incorporated as part of the originally approved 
parking scheme for Woodstock. 

 
Cllr Gant invited speakers to address the meeting and responded to the points made 
in their statements.  In response to one of the statements, Cllr Gant assured the 

meeting that he did not come to decision making meeting, such as this one, with a 
predetermined mind.  

 
Cllr Gant invited officers to explain their rationale for proposals as outlined in the 
report. 

 
Cllr Gant felt also considered comments from the statutory consultees as well as 14 

other consultation responses. 
 
Cllr Gant supported officers’ recommendations by saying that the proposals would 

help facilitate walking and cycling and the safe movement of traffic. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is AGREED to: 

 
1) Approve the officer recommendations for a new guesthouse/hotel visitor permit 

scheme to be incorporated into the proposed parking scheme for Woodstock 
approved at CMD on 26th May 2022. 

 
2) Approve the officer recommendations to introduce paid parking bays in 

adjacent to No’s 7-11 and No.12 Park Lane, Woodstock. 

 

112/22 CHADLINGTON - A361 AND CHIPPING NORTON ROAD  
(Agenda No. 13) 

 

This report presents responses received to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
the proposal to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on the Chipping Norton 

Road and also on the A361 by the Chipping Norton Road junction to facilitate the 
safe passage of traffic and also to improve the safety of pedestrians currently parking 
on the verge to then access adjacent retail premises. Chipping Norton Road also 

facilitates the X9 bus service between Chipping Norton and Witney. 
 

Cllr Gant invited speakers to address the meeting and responded to the points made 
in their statements. 
 

Cllr Gant informed the meeting that recommendation 2 would be amended to read 
‘Approval of the as advertised ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions at the A361 and 

Chipping Norton Road at Chadlington to be implemented at an appropriate time with 
the decision to implement delegated to the Director for Highway Operations in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Highway Management.’  as it wasn’t quite 

clear in the original recommendation what that process might look like. 
 

Cllr Gant added that the report had a lot of detail on matters that have already 
happened and those that might needed to happen going forward.  Nevertheless, Cllr 

Page 10



3 

Gant agreed with officers’ recommendations, as amended, ci ting that current situation 
was not satisfactory and the proposals would help facilitate the safe movement of 

traffic. 
 

 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to approve: 

 

1) Continued working with West Oxfordshire District Council, Thames Valley 
Police and Owner of Diddly Squat Farm to find a resolution to the challenges 

faced.  Either through a reduction in visitors by car or suitable off-carriage way 
provision for parking. 

 

2) Approval of the as advertised ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions at the A361 
and Chipping Norton Road at Chadlington to be implemented at an 

appropriate time with the decision to implement delegated to the Director for 
Highway Operations in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Highway 
Management.    

 
 

113/22 OXFORD: ST MICHAEL'S STREET  - PROPOSED PERMANENT CLOSURE 

TO ALL  VEHICLES OF EASTERN END OF ROAD  
(Agenda No. 14) 

 
This report presents responses received during the statutory consultation phase of an 

Experimental Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO) which prohibits all vehicles at the East 
end of St Michael’s Street. 
 

Cllr Gant invited speakers to address the meeting and responded to the points made 
in their statements. 

 
Cllr Gant said that the ETRO had continued the provisions of a Temporary Traffic 
Regulation Order (made under the Department for Transport COVID regulations) 

which had prohibited all vehicles from using the 50-metre length of St Michael’s 
Street west of its junction with Cornmarket Street to enable outdoor seating to be 

provided for the adjacent hospitality businesses. A proposal to make the ETRO 
permanent has been received from Oxford City Council’s Business Liaison Officer at 
the request of the adjacent businesses. 

 
Cllr Gant noted that whilst assisting local businesses as a result of enabling tables 

and chairs to be placed on the carriageway, the proposals has raised issues for 
cyclists who were required to dismount when using this east end of St Michael’s 
Street.  Cllr Gant acknowledged that the section where cyclists had to dismount was 

relatively short and an alternative route East-West through the city centre was 
available where dismounting was not necessary – New Inn Hall Street, George 

Street, Broad Street, albeit on roads used by a greater number of vehicles. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to approve the making of 

the order to prohibit all vehicles at the East end of St Michael’s Street. 
 

Page 11



3 

114/22 YARNTON - CASSINGTON ROAD - PROPOSED RAISED PARALLEL 

CROSSING  
(Agenda No. 15) 

 

This report presents responses received to a statutory consultation on a proposal to 
introduce a raised parallel crossing on Cassington Road just west of its roundabout 
junction with the A44 Oxford to Woodstock Road. 

 
Cllr Gant reflected on consultation outcomes by agreeing with officers’ responses to 

objectors to the scheme as well as on those raising concerns on whether the crossing 
met the current design requirements, with regards to drainage at the road hump 
location and vehicles backing up through the roundabout when the crossing was in 

use. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to approve as advertised a 

raised parallel crossing (a zebra type crossing for pedestrians and pedal cyclists) on 
Cassington Road, just west of its roundabout junction with the A44 Oxford to 

Woodstock Road 
 

115/22 BERRICK SALOME: PROPOSED 20 MPH SPEED LIMITS  
(Agenda No. 16) 

 
The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits in Berrick Salome. 
 

Cllr Gant invited speakers to address the meeting and responded to the points made 
in their statements. 
 

Cllr Gant agreed with officers’ responses to objectors on the scheme by saying that a 
lower limit on the link to the village at Rokemarsh has formed part of the Benson 
consultation where it was proposed that the 50 mph limit on the B4009would replace 

the national speed limit on that link. The connecting link at Roke was longer and the 
existing rural limit was deemed appropriate. 

 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to approve the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised. 

 

116/22 BLETCHINGDON: PROPOSED 20 MPH SPEED LIMITS  
(Agenda No. 17) 

 
The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Bletchingdon. 

 
Cllr Gant acknowledged responses from statutory consultees and agreed with 

officers’ response to a single objection on this scheme. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to approve the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised. 
 

Page 12



3 

117/22 BOURTON (FARINGDON): PROPOSED 20 MPH AND 30 MPH SPEED 

LIMITS  
(Agenda No. 18) 

 

The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on proposals for 20mph 
and 30 mph speed limits in Bourton. 
 

Cllr Gant noted responses from statutory consultees as well as individual comments 
from members of the public, and agreed with officers’ response that neither of the 

objections for the 20mph and 30mph speed limit proposals were considered of 
sufficient merit to warrant a change to the current proposals. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to approve the proposed 

introduction of 20mph and 30mph speed limits as advertised. 

 

118/22 FIFIELD: PROPOSED 20 MPH SPEED LIMITS  
(Agenda No. 19) 

 

 
The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits in Fifield. 
 
Cllr Gant commented that no objections were received and that the main purpose of 

the scheme was to improve road safety and to encourage greater use of active travel 
by reducing speeds which would reduce accidents. 

 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to approve the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised. 

 

119/22 GARSINGTON: PROPOSED 20 MPH SPEED LIMITS  
(Agenda No. 20) 

 

The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Garsington. 

 
Cllr Gant reflected to responses in the consultation and agreed with officers’ 
observations and their responses.  Cllr Gant had also noted comments and 

objections from statutory consultees. 
 

 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to approve the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised. 

 

120/22 GORING - PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMIT  
(Agenda No. 21) 

 

The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Goring-on-Thames.   

 

Page 13



3 

Thames Valley Police re-iterated their views on OCC’s policy and practice regarding 
20mph speed limits; they consider their response as ‘having concerns’ rather than an 

outright objection. 
 

Cllr Gant agreed with officers’ views that all objections were similar to those 
expressed and considered in earlier similar schemes and were then not deemed to 
warrant a change in the proposals. 

 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to approve the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised. 
 

121/22 LITTLE COXWELL - PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMIT  
(Agenda No. 22) 

 
The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 

introduction of 20mph limits in Little Coxwell village and a short section of 40mph limit 
on Fernham Road.  
 

All objections to the 20mph speed limit proposals were similar to those expressed 
and considered in earlier similar schemes and were then not deemed to warrant a 

change in the proposals.  
 
Cllr Gant agreed with officers’ responses to objections to this scheme.  

 
 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to approve the proposed 

introduction of 20mph and 40mph speed limits as advertised. 
 

122/22 LITTLE MILTON: PROPOSED 20 MPH SPEED LIMITS  
(Agenda No. 23) 

 
The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits in Little Milton. The proposals would help 
encourage walking and cycling within Little Milton by making them safer and more 

attractive. 
 
Cllr Gant agreed with the officers’ responses to consultation where the main purpose 

of the scheme was to improve road safety and to encourage greater use of active 
travel by reducing speeds which would also reduce accidents. This formed part of a 

countywide programme of works that sought out to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer 
pace’. 
 

 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to approve the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised.  
 

123/22 NETTLEBED: PROPOSED 20 MPH SPEED LIMITS  
(Agenda No. 24) 

 

Page 14



3 

The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Nettlebed. The proposals would help encourage 

walking and cycling within Nettlebed by making them safer and more attractive. 
 

Cllr Gant welcomed the recommendation by saying that the aim of reducing speed 
limits was to change driver’s mindsets to make speeding socially unacceptable and 
make more environmentally friendly modes of travel such as walking and cycling 

more attractive, and also reduce the Counties carbon footprint. 
 

 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to approve the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised. 

 

124/22 PYRTON: PROPOSED 20 MPH SPEED LIMITS  
(Agenda No. 25) 

 
The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Pyrton. Thames Valley Police re-iterated their 

views on OCC’s policy and practice regarding 20mph speed limits; they consider their 
response as ‘having concerns’ rather than an outright objection. Stagecoach Bus 

Company responded but had no objection or comments to make. The local member 
also expressed support. 
 

Cllr Gant welcomed the recommendation by saying that the aim of reducing speed 
limits was to change driver’s mindsets to make speeding socially unacceptable and 
make more environmentally friendly modes of travel such as walking and cycling 

more attractive, and also reduce the Counties carbon footprint. 
 

 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to approve the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised. 

 

125/22 SOMERTON: PROPOSED 20 MPH SPEED LIMITS  
(Agenda No. 26) 

 
This report presented responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Somerton. Thames Valley Police re-iterated 

their views on OCC’s policy and practice regarding 20mph speed limits; they consider 
their response as ‘having concerns’ rather than an outright objection. A local district 

or parish councillor who appeared to respond on behalf of their Council also voiced 
support. 
 

Cllr Gant expressed his support for the recommendations as the proposal would help 
facilitate walking and cycling within the village and the safe movement of traffic. 

 
The Cabinet Member for Highway Management AGREED to approve the proposed 

introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised. 

 
 
 in the Chair 

Page 15



3 

  
Date of signing   

 
 

 

Page 16



CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT 

26 January 2023 

SPEAKERS 

WRITTEN SPEECHES RECEIVED  

Statements received  

Item 5 

Jack Mullins 

I am a resident of Crouch Street and would like to provide a written statement ahead of this 

meeting in view of the objections raised against the scheme. Based on the response rate to 

the consultation, i.e. 46 responses from 425 households (950 people if a household is 

assumed to consist of two people), the vast majority of affected residents seem not to 

oppose the scheme. Rather, those who have not responded are likely to be in favour, and 

the few opposing responses received could be seen as an example of negativity bias. 

Arguably, the 18 responses in opposition to the scheme represent a vocal minority of 

residents, primarily those of Beargarden Road with access to off-road parking, and should 

not be taken as representative of the broader feeling towards the scheme in the areas 

affected. Furthermore, the proposal offers significant benefits in a range of areas, as set out 

below. 

Available spaces: Currently, the number of cars attempting to park on Crouch Street and 

Beargarden Road regularly exceeds the number of available spaces. This issue is twofold – 

firstly there is a lack of spaces for those that live on these roads, and secondly the roads are 

used by non-residents visiting the town centre for work or leisure. The proposal addresses 

both of these concerns by increasing the number of available spaces and restricting use of 

the spaces to residents. This measure will greatly benefit the vast majority of residents. 

While some consider that the number of spaces will reduce as residents will no longer be 

able to park across their drives, the total number of spaces overall will not be reduced. 

Rather, a space that can currently only be used by a single household with off-road parking 

will be replaced by one or more spaces on the opposite side of the road that are available to 

all residents, to the overall benefit of the majority of residents. 

Enforcement: The proposal indicates that the introduction of the scheme will be supported by 

enforcement of the new parking restrictions. At present, no enforcement is carried out, 

leading to cars parking not only in the restricted bays, but also on double yellow lines, as 

well as non-residents blocking driveways with impunity. This causes safety issues as well as 

broader disputes. By introducing enforcement as part of the scheme, parking of this nature 

can be prevented, to the benefit of all residents, including both those with and without off-

road parking. 

Safety: Several concerns were raised around the safety of moving the parking spaces from 

the South West to the North East side of Beargarden Road. It is agreed that the introduction 

of additional speed measures such as speed bumps or chicanes on this road and on Crouch 

Street would be beneficial. However, in the absence of this, enforcement of the double 

yellow lines at the junction of these two roads and moving traffic on Beargarden to the far 

side of the junction may at least reduce the potential for collisions at the junction itself. 

Cost: At present there is no enforcement of parking restrictions. However, if the scheme 

were not to proceed and the existing restrictions be imposed, residents currently using on-

Page 1

Minute Annex 

Page 17



street parking would have to pay to park elsewhere (e.g., on South Bar Street) or be fined. 

The cost of this would be significantly higher than the £66 annual charge for a permit under 

the proposed scheme. Although it is appreciated that this price could be subject to increase 

in the future, this would also be the case for other paid parking. The proposed scheme is 

likely to be the lowest cost option for residents if enforcement is resumed in any capacity. 

If, despite these benefits, a view is taken that some residents of Beargarden Road are 

sufficiently negatively impacted by the proposal to prevent its implementation on Beargarden 

Road, one option could be to only implement the scheme on the other roads. However, in 

this case, it would seem reasonable to issue parking permits solely to residents of the roads 

where permit parking will actually be introduced, as well as those of Beargarden Road who 

do not have use of off-road parking. In this way, the situation for those affected by the 

current lack of parking can be improved, while avoiding any perceived negative impacts on 

Beargarden Road residents who currently have access to off-road parking. 

In summary, I believe that the overall impact of the scheme would be positive for the 

residents of the affected roads as a whole, and implore the Cabinet Member for Highway 

Management to approve the proposal for the wider benefit of the majority of affected 

residents. 

Alexandra Tyson 

I am a resident of Beargarden Road and would like to submit the following comments in 

support of the proposed permit parking scheme. I understand that residents from 34 houses 

on Beargarden Road have raised objec>ons/signed a pe>>on against the scheme. A 

significant majority of the objectors live on the south west side of the road and have private 

driveways. Most of the objec>ons seem to primarily stem from the fact that these residents 

would lose guaranteed parking across their driveways for the third (or even fourth) vehicle of 

the household. I note that a number of responses assert that the scheme proposes an 

effec>ve reduc>on in the number of available parking spaces in the road. I, however, agree 

with the Council’s assessment that the number of spaces will increase. I live on the north 

east side of the road and do not have a driveway, so parking on the road is my only op>on. 

There are, at present, only 10 spaces in the road, where I could park. Of these spaces, 

some are almost permanently reserved by households with more cars than driveway spaces. 

Some households rotate their cars between their driveway and nearby road spaces to 

ensure that, if mul>ple cars are in use, the driveway is leO empty and only the road space is 

used. This essen>ally makes that road space a semi-private parking space for that 

household. Thus, when I return home from work, more oOen than not there are no vacant 

spaces in Beargarden Road. A number of the objec>ons express concern for the loss of 

parking space for visitors. In my opinion, the availability of parking for residents who use the 

spaces every day should be priori>sed over the irregular or infrequent need of visitors. 

Furthermore, should the number of visitors permits provided be exceeded, South Bar (only 4 

minutes walk away) provides very affordable parking, star>ng at only £1.10 per hour (up to 

£5.00 per day) between 8 am and 6 pm Monday-Saturday. My visitors do not have any 

qualms about incurring these costs, if necessary, when visi>ng me. To speak to the 

concerns regarding safety, I agree that a reduc>on in the speed limit on the road to 20 mph 

would be beneficial. However, absent these measures, enforcement of the double yellow 

lines at either side of the junc>on between Crouch Street and Beargarden Road may reduce 

collisions. At present, there appears to be no enforcement of the no parking zone at this 

junc>on and cars oOen park all the way to the end of Crouch Street. It is my belief that 

implementa>on of the parking scheme, in conjunc>on with the enforcement of restric>ons, 

will improve safety. I understand that, to many people the principle of paying to park on their 

Page 2Page 18



residen>al street may be unpalatable. However, at present I regularly have to pay to park on 

South Bar at an extrapolated cost that far exceeds the £66 a year for a permit. I have even 

contemplated whether it would be more cost-effec>ve for me to pay for a season >cket to 

park on South Bar at a rate of £270 per quarter. I think this further illustrates the lack of 

equity provided by the current parking situa>on. My greatest concern is the possibility that 

the permit scheme might be approved for Crouch Street but not for Beargarden Road. This 

will mean that all those non-residents who currently use Crouch Street/ Beargarden Road to 

park temporarily, (e.g. to go to work, to the doctors or shopping) will instead only be able to 

park on Beargarden Road, significantly increasing the compe>>on for the public parking 

spaces on the road that are regularly used by residents who, like me, have no off-road 

parking. It would also remove Crouch Street as a possible place for me to park when I 

cannot find a space on Beargarden Road. Furthermore, I consider this situa>on would also 

nega>vely impact residents on the south west side of the road, as I believe it will increase 

the incidence of people parking across and blocking driveways temporarily in order to a\end 

the doctors’ surgery or pharmacy (a problem that already exists as outlined by respondent 

number 8 who objected to the scheme). In summary, I sincerely believe the parking permit 

scheme would provide a more equitable parking situa>on for all residents who require 

parking on the road (whether due to lack of a driveway, or because they have more cars 

than the number of spaces on their driveways). 

 

Item 6  

Jo Freer 

As follow-up to reference (55) Member of public, (Oxford, Howard Street), I wish to submit 

the following queries in writing, to be addressed at the OCC Decisions / Cabinet for Highway 

Management meeting on 26 January. 

Why can’t affected Howard Street residents (i.e. those with private parking off Boundary 

Brook Road) be eligible for the Donnington CPZ, instead of the Magdalen South CPZ? Why 

would it not be possible to offer these residents a choice over which CPZ best suits their 

needs? Surely something could be put in place to prevent abuse of this system, e.g. 

automatic rejection of an application from an address if residents already hold a permit for 

the other zone? If this isn’t possible to implement, it would be helpful to know exactly why. 

Connected to this, has any analysis been done around the impact of additional Magdalen 

South CPZ applications from these Howard Street residents? Parking in this area is already 

practically at capacity. Adding cars from around 36 extra houses (i.e. approximate Howard 

Street residences affected by the proposal) poses a very real risk of creating new parking 

issues. 

For Howard Street residents who enjoy private parking at the rear of their property, what 

measures will the Council take to prevent parking abuses from those who park on their land? 

This is already an issue, with cars blocking garages and residents’ access by parking along 

this side of the road. Can the Council provide any reassurances to residents around this 

valid concern, as well as examples of tangible actions they will take to prevent this from 

happening? 

We do not have a Magdalen South CPZ permit. Currently, if we arrive home to discover a 

car blocking our drive, we can park on Boundary Brook Road without issue, and then move 

the car back to our driveway as soon as possible. In the future, with the plans as currently 

proposed, doing this would incur a fine. What action would the Council recommend for us 

Page 3Page 19



when this happens – both immediately and in the longer term? We do not feel purchasing a 

Magdalen South CPZ permit is an appropriate solution. Driving from the back of our house to 

park on Howard Street represents a 1km journey minimum (and a 1.5km round trip). At a 

time when residents of the city are being strongly encouraged to reduce travel by car, this 

seems counterintuitive. 

Can you state with confidence that Howard Street residents directly affected by this proposal 

have been adequately consulted about the proposed CPZ? Unlike the recent School Streets 

initiative, affected residents were not consulted in writing about these plans. Though notices 

were displayed on the street, these could easily have been missed. That the official 

consultation report contains so few responses from Howard Street residents suggests limited 

awareness, which is of concern given the significant impact it may have on them. 

John Marsh 

I’m grateful the OXFORD – DONNINGTON: PROPOSED CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE 
(CPZ) report recognises the concerns of some Howard St residents whose properties have 
driveways and garages on Boundary Brook Rd. However, I do not see how it has addressed 
them. I would like to raise these issues again and hope that the meeting on 26 January 
may generate more ideas, or encourage the Committee to reflect on the issue differently. I 
have outlined extracts from the report in bold below. 
 
A few residents with properties on Howard Street raised the issue of their private 
parking (in front of garages) is accessed of Boundary Brook Broad, within the 
proposed CPZ. The concerns raised were that their parking arrangements maybe 
affected by the introduction of the new zone and residents of Howard Street should be 
given the option to join the new Donnington CPZ. 
 

Our concern is that having a private parking area we require no permit. But if drivers block 
our drive, we will be forced to park on the public highway where a permit is needed to avoid 
a fine. Please could the council instruct us on what to do in this instance? 
Despite leaving notes on offending cars, drivers can block our drive for days. The Thames 
Valley Police website says to contact your local council to help people in these situations. 
Will the council help, or would we be issued with a fine for being forced onto the public 
highway? 
 
In response, Howard Street is currently within the Magdalen South CPZ, and residents 
have the option to apply for permits to park in this zone. 
 

Because of the location of our drive, and one-way streets. To drive to Magdalen South CPZ 
and park there is 1km away along 5 different roads. Once the offending vehicle had been 
moved, and we can reclaim our drive, it’s 0.5km drive back to the driveway (see below). We 
are committed to reducing car journeys and do not want to purchase a permit in order to do 
more driving. If Howard Street residents with garages (36 or so) were allowed to park on 
boundary brook rd, they would only have to drive to the side of the road opposite their 
driveway/garage. Fewer cars on the road, doing fewer miles and much 
more convenient for residents. This is the goal. 
 
We currently don’t have any arrangements in Oxford City were a resident can apply 
for permits in multiple zones, as would be difficult to manage and would be open to 
abuse. 
 

Would the Oxford city council be willing to try, in order to limit car journeys and better serve 
residents? No other arrangements in Oxford City would mean there are fewer requests to 
manage. Just 36 or so. Might those attempting to abuse the system be spotted, because 

Page 4Page 20



they would be the ones applying for two CPZ zones, that don’t live at one of the 36 
addresses. 
 
Are there any CPZ arrangements in the city where residents with driveways are not eligible 
for a CPZ connected to their driveway. But have to leave their driveway and drive away from 
their house for 1KM to reach an CPZ they do qualify for. 
 
Where private parking areas are not part of the public highway, they would not be part 
of the zone and therefore enforcement. 
 

This applies to residents. However, it also applies to anyone who wishes to park on 
boundary brook rd for a while without a permit, and not face a fine. It is an incentive to block 
the garages, and park on driveways. This currently happens so it will continue to do so. 
 
Item 16 
 
Robin Tucker, Co-Chair, CoHSAT 

The private motor vehicle has brought great convenience to people who can afford it, but 
only those directly affected stop to think about the social costs.  Five people every day are 
killed by motor vehicle collisions in the UK, and 50 seriously injured.  This sits on top of a 
bigger, less visible toll from air pollution and physical inactivity.  The benefits of using a 
private vehicle are to its user, but the damage affects all society, so reducing that damage is 
a basic act of fairness. 
Reducing speed limits is one way that a Transport Authority can reduce the damage caused 
by traffic, and we are pleased that Oxfordshire has established itself as a leader in England’s 
move to safer speed limits. At last year’s 20s Plenty Conference we heard from Wales, 
where 20 is now the default for restricted roads. This is estimated to save £100 million in the 
first year alone in reduced deaths and injuries, and reduces the load on the health service.  
We saw graphically the difference between a collision at 30 and a collision at 20.  The myth 
that slower speeds cause more pollution was dispelled.  And they reduce speeds and 
injuries even without enforcement. 
Today, we will hear several recommendations where local communities have put forward 
requests for lower speed limits.  These are Parish and Town Councils where the residents 
feel threatened by the dangers of motor vehicles, and they would like something done about 
it.  They know that this will add to journey times.  Indeed, as locals, they will be affected by it 
more than anyone.  But they want their communities to be aligned to the needs of keeping 
people alive, rather than speeding through in metal boxes. 
We urge you to approve these speed limit reductions. 
Robin Tucker 
Co-Chair 
CoHSAT 
 

Page 5Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



 

Divisions Affected – Abingdon East, Abingdon North, Abingdon 
South, Sutton Courtenay and Marcham, Kennington and Radley, 
Berinsfield and Garsington 
 
 

CMD Highway Management – 23 FEBRUARY 2023 
 

Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) 
 

Report by Bill Cotton, Corporate Director for Environment and Place 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 

approve the Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
(LCWIP). 

 

Executive Summary 
 
2. The Abingdon LCWIP is the fourth LCWIP to be considered for approval by the 

County Council, following those for Oxford, Bicester, and Kidlington.  
 

3. The Abingdon LCWIP is explicitly called for in the County Council’s adopted 
Local Transport and Connectivity Plan (LTCP). Policy 3a in the LTCP states that 
the County Council will “[develop] Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure 
Plans (LCWIPs) for all main urban settlements (over 10,000 inhabitants) across 
the county by 2025, according to national guidance and best practice with the 
aim of increasing walking and cycling activity.” 1 
 

4. The LCWIP identifies a network of walking and cycling routes in and around 
Abingdon (including potential future routes) and sets out high level proposals 
for improvements to the walking and cycling infrastructure which makes up this 
network. These infrastructure improvements are intended for development over 
a ten year period to 2032 and will help to enable modal shift from private vehicle 
use to active and sustainable modes of travel. 
 

5. Adopting the Abingdon LCWIP will help to provide local policy backing to 
maximise the County Council’s ability to secure funding for development and 
delivery of walking and cycling infrastructure in the Abingdon area from central 
government and funding for or direct delivery of infrastructure improvements 

 
1 Oxfordshire County Council, Local Transport and Connectivity Plan, July 2022, p41, available at: 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-
oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf


from local developments (including, but not limited to the strategic allocations at 
Dalton Barracks and Land Adjacent to Culham Science Centre). 

 

Introduction 
 
6. The Abingdon LCWIP is the fourth LCWIP in the County Council’s programme 

to be considered for approval, following Oxford (Cabinet, March 2020), Bicester 
(Cabinet, September 2020) and Kidlington (Cabinet, January 2022) LCWIPs. 

 
7. The Abingdon LCWIP will help the County Council to: 

 
(a) identify walking and cycling infrastructure improvements for future 

investment in the short, medium, and long term 
(b) ensure that priority is given to walking and cycling within both local 

planning and local transport policies and strategies 
(c) make the case for future funding for walking and cycling infrastructure 

 
8. The Abingdon LCWIP will form a key component part of the Abingdon Area 

Travel Plan and will therefore become a component part of the overarching 
Local Transport and Connectivity Plan (LTCP). 
 

9. The LCWIP is intended to be a living document, which will be reviewed and 
updated regularly in order to reflect: 
 
(a) significant changes in local circumstances 
(b) changes to the policies and guidance upon which this first version of the 

LCWIP is based 
(c) progress on scheme development work 
(d) extension of the lifespan of the plan (which is initially intended to cover a 

ten year period from its approval). 
 

Abingdon LCWIP Content 
 
10. The LCWIP identifies a network of routes which are significant for walking and 

cycling in and around Abingdon (including potential future routes), examines 
existing conditions for walking and cycling on this network, investigates the 
potential for future modal shift to walking and cycling in the area (if adequate 
infrastructure to support this behaviour change is provided), and sets out high 
level proposals for a range of specific walking and cycling infrastructure 
improvements. 

 
11. The proposed walking and cycling infrastructure improvements include: 
 

(a) new and improved crossings for walking and cycling 
(b) junction redesign to prioritise walking and cycling movements 
(c) removal or modification of barriers on walking and cycling routes to 

improve accessibility 
(d) provision of additional high-quality cycle parking 

Page 24



(e) on-carriageway cycling improvements (e.g., wider cycle lanes and 
centreline removal, some of which may require additional parking 
restrictions) 

(f) provision of segregated cycle tracks (some of which will require 
reallocation of highway space from motor vehicles to active travel) 

(g) permissions for cycling on some routes where cycling is not currently 
permitted 

(h) new river crossings for walking and cycling over the rivers Thames and 
Ock 

(i) footway widening and public realm improvements 
(j) provision of new and improved walking and cycling routes between 

Abingdon and other key local destinations (outside the town) 
 
12. The proposals (except those for which direct delivery by a developer has 

already been secured) set out in the LCWIP have been assigned approximate 
timescales (short, medium, and long term, which correspond to < 3 years, 3-5 
years, and > 5 years respectively, based on estimated minimum feasible 
delivery timescales) and approximate relative priorities by proposal category. 
 

13. In practice, it is anticipated that the proposals made in the LCWIP will be 
prioritised dynamically by County Council officers, in response to funding 
opportunities. This will give officers the flexibility to consider the requirements 
of the funding source in question (e.g., compliance with the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 20102 for developer funding, or 
stipulations from central government agencies on the priorities for a particular 
funding stream). 

 

Corporate Policies and Priorities 
 
14. The Abingdon LCWIP is explicitly called for in the adopted LTCP’s Policy 3a, 

which states that the County Council will “[develop] Local Cycling and Walking 
Infrastructure Plans (LCWIPs) for all main urban settlements (over 10,000 
inhabitants) across the county by 2025, according to national guidance and best 
practice with the aim of increasing walking and cycling activity.” 3 
 

15. The LCWIP is well aligned with the County Council’s nine priorities as outlined 
in the Strategic Plan 2022-20254, with particular significance to the following 
priorities: 
 
(a) Put action to address the climate emergency at the heart of our work. 

 
2 Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations, 2010, available at: 
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/948/contents/ 
 
3 Oxfordshire County Council, Local Transport and Connectivity Plan, July 2022, p41, available at: 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-
oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf 
 
4 Oxfordshire County Council, Strategic Plan 2022-2025, available at: 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/council/our-vision-0 

Page 25

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/948/contents/
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/council/our-vision-0


(b) Prioritise the health and wellbeing of residents. 
(c) Invest in an inclusive, integrated, and sustainable transport network. 

 

Financial Implications 
 
16. The LCWIP will help the County Council to negotiate with developers for funding 

and direct delivery of infrastructure for active travel. It will also help with 
preparation of bids for government funding, as demonstrated by the recent 
Active Travel Fund bid processes. 
 

17. Development of any new schemes proposed in the LCWIP (except those to be 
directly delivered by developers) will need to be considered through the County 
Council’s capital programme governance and budget setting process as funding 
becomes available. 

 
18. Any new cycling and walking infrastructure will have revenue implications due 

to pressures on staff resources, which will be either funded within current base 
budgets or bid for through Active Travel Fund (or similar) bids. Ongoing 
maintenance for each scheme would be identified during the early stages of that 
scheme. Where possible, commuted sums to fund ongoing maintenance of new 
infrastructure related to new developments would also be identified and secured 
to minimise the revenue impact of the new infrastructure. Any revenue pressure 
after this would be considered as part of the Council’s Budget Strategy process. 

 
Comments checked by: 
 
Rob Finlayson, Finance Business Partner, Rob.Finlayson@Oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

Legal Implications 
 
19. The LCWIP is a requirement of the County Council’s adopted Local Transport 

and Connectivity Plan, which is a statutory document, required under the 
Transport Act 2000.  Delivering the LCWIP is likely to require the County Council 
to exercise its powers to make traffic orders to regulate traffic in the Abingdon 
area. The appropriate statutory consultation will take place as and when any 
orders are promoted, together with compliance with any relevant statutory duty 
applicable at the time. 
 
Comments checked by: 
 
Jennifer Crouch, Principal Solicitor, Jennifer.Crouch@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 

Staff Implications 
 
20. Individual schemes within the LCWIP will require development and delivery, which 

would only take place in the event that suitable funding sources and staff resource 
are identified. 

Page 26

mailto:Rob.Finlayson@Oxfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:Rob.Finlayson@Oxfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:Jennifer.Crouch@oxfordshire.gov.uk


 

Equality & Inclusion Implications 
 
21. Development and implementation of LCWIPs for all the main urban settlements 

in Oxfordshire (LTCP Policy 3a) is one of Oxfordshire County Council's 
commitments to move towards the vision set out in the LTCP for "an inclusive 
and safe net-zero Oxfordshire transport system that enables all parts of the 
county to thrive".5 
 

22. Whilst no negative equalities impacts have been identified which could arise as 
a direct result of approving the Abingdon LCWIP, there is a significant 
opportunity to tackle inequality. 

 
23. The LCWIP promotes investment in infrastructure which will help to improve the 

accessibility and inclusivity of the transport system in the Abingdon area. This 
will enable people with protected characteristics who do not currently feel safe 
or able to travel by active and sustainable modes to do so more easily, enable 
people to live active lifestyles, reduce the need for private car ownership and 
use, improve access for deprived areas, and contribute to a long term 
improvement in air quality. 
 

24. All individual highways schemes may result in unintended negative equalities 
impacts. This risk will be considered in detail on a scheme-by-scheme basis 
(using scheme-specific EIAs as appropriate) when the individual schemes 
promoted in the LCWIP are developed. 

 

Sustainability Implications 
 
25. Development and implementation of LCWIPs for all the main urban settlements 

in Oxfordshire (LTCP Policy 3a) is one of Oxfordshire County Council's 
commitments to move towards the vision set out in the LTCP for "an inclusive 
and safe net-zero Oxfordshire transport system that enables all parts of the 
county to thrive".5 
 

26. The Climate Impact Assessment (CIA) (Annex 4), for the project is therefore 
overwhelmingly positive, recognising the significant potential for improvements 
across the following climate impact categories: 
 
(a) Transport and Connectivity (by supporting a shift to active travel) 
(b) Buildings (by promoting sustainable development) 
(c) Procurement and Investment (by investing in climate action) 
(d) People and Organization (by driving behaviour change with enabling 

infrastructure) 

 
5 Oxfordshire County Council, Local Transport and Connectivity Plan, July 2022, p5, available at: 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-
oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf 
 

Page 27

https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/file/roads-and-transport-connecting-oxfordshire/LocalTransportandConnectivityPlan.pdf


(e) Just Transition (by promoting health and wellbeing through active travel, 
promoting engagement and coproduction, and reducing inequality) 

 

Risk Management 
 
27. No significant risks have been identified which will arise as a direct result of 

approving the LCWIP.  
 

28. Risks of negative side effects associated with individual schemes which are 
promoted in the LCWIP may arise in future as and when those schemes are 
funded and progressed. 
 

29. These scheme-specific risks will be identified in the relevant scheme’s risk 
register during the early stages of that scheme’s development, in order to 
ensure that an informed decision can be made on each scheme. 
 

30. There are several risks associated with a decision not to approve the LCWIP: 
 
(a) risk of failure to achieve the goal set out in LTCP Policy 3a due both to 

the resulting delay to the Abingdon LCWIP programme and to the 
potential knock-on delays to the development of other LCWIPs 

(b) risk of failure to secure future funding for active travel infrastructure in the 
Abingdon area from central government (due to the Department for 
Transport and Active Travel England’s stated preferences for funding 
schemes which are identified in LCWIPs) 

(c) risk of failure to secure adequate provision of active travel infrastructure 
from local developments (for which the LCWIP provides additional local 
policy backing), notably including the nearby local plan allocations at: 
 
(1) Dalton Barracks (1,200 dwellings allocated in the Vale of White 

Horse Local Plan 20316) 
(2) Land Adjacent to Culham Science Centre (approximately 3,500 

dwellings allocated in the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 20357). 
 

Consultation and engagement 
 
31. Throughout the development of the LCWIP, engagement with local 

stakeholders was undertaken through the use of a steering group, which 
enabled key stakeholders to provide feedback and guidance at each stage of 
the LCWIP process. The group was composed of local (County, District and 
Town) council members, officers, and key local stakeholder organisations. A full 

 
6 Vale of White Horse District Council, Local Plan 2031, available at: 
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/local-
plan-and-planning-policies/local-plan-2031/ 
 
7 South Oxfordshire District Council, Adopted Local Plan 2035, available at: 
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-
and-planning-policies/local-plan-2035/adopted-local-plan-2035/ 

Page 28

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/local-plan-2031/
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/local-plan-2031/
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/local-plan-2035/adopted-local-plan-2035/
https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/local-plan-2035/adopted-local-plan-2035/


list of these stakeholder organisations can be seen in section 1.3 in the 
Abingdon LCWIP report (Annex 1). 
 

32. The development of the LCWIP also drew on input from the Central Abingdon 
Regeneration Framework and Abingdon Neighbourhood Plan projects, and 
from their respective engagement processes. 
 

33. Upon completion of a full draft of the LCWIP which met with the approval of the 
steering group (as described above), a wider public consultation exercise was 
undertaken. The outcomes of the consultation are presented in a Consultation 
Outcomes Report (Annex 2). 
 

34. As outlined in the Consultation Outcomes Report (Annex 2), reception of the 
draft LCWIP was generally positive, with 60.4% of respondents to the online 
survey rating the proposals set out in the LCWIP as “good”, 31.3% rating the 
proposals as “mixed”, and only 5.2% rating the proposals as “bad”. 
 

35. Feedback on the draft LCWIP received during the consultation has resulted in 
a number of minor amendments to the LCWIP to ensure it meets the needs of 
local residents. 
 

36. A further set of suggestions has been taken on board for consideration through 
the LCWIP review process (as described in point 9 in this report). These are 
suggestions which require substantial further investigation before inclusion in 
the LCWIP. 

 
 
Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director for Environment and Place 
 
Annex: Annex 1. Abingdon LCWIP 

Annex 2. Consultation Outcomes Report 
Annex 3. Equalities Impact Assessment 
Annex 4. Climate Impact Assessment 

 
Background papers: Nil. 
 
Other Documents: Nil. 
 
Contact Officer: Sam Larkin 
 Transport Planner 
 Samuel.Larkin@Oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 
February 2023 

Page 29

mailto:Samuel.Larkin@Oxfordshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
 

v1.0 January 2023 
southandvale@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
  

Page 31

mailto:southandvale@oxfordshire.gov.uk


Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

2 
 

Contents 
 
Executive summary .................................................................................................... 3 

1 Introduction ......................................................................................................... 6 

1.1 Purpose of the LCWIP .................................................................................. 6 

1.2 Policy context ................................................................................................ 6 

1.3 Governance and co-production arrangements .............................................. 9 

1.4 Methodology for development of the LCWIP ............................................... 10 

1.5 Application and review of the LCWIP .......................................................... 12 

2 Context .............................................................................................................. 13 

2.1 Overview of the local area ........................................................................... 13 

2.2 Geographical scope of the LCWIP .............................................................. 13 

2.3 Background information and data ............................................................... 15 

3 Abingdon walking and cycling network .............................................................. 37 

3.1 Network map ............................................................................................... 37 

3.2 Route classification ..................................................................................... 37 

3.3 Core Walking Zone (CWZ) .......................................................................... 38 

3.4 Audit of current conditions on the network .................................................. 39 

4 Walking and cycling infrastructure improvements ............................................. 42 

4.1 Proposed improvements ............................................................................. 42 

4.2 Prioritisation of proposals ............................................................................ 44 

Glossary of terms and abbreviations ........................................................................ 47 

References ............................................................................................................... 48 

 
Appendices 
 
A. Geographical Scope Map 

B. Local Trip Generators Map 

C. Network Map 

D. Core Walking Zone Map 

E. Primary Route Audit Log 

F. Primary Routes Current Cycling Level of Service (CLoS) Map 

G. Programme of Walking and Cycling Infrastructure Improvements 

H. Proposal Maps 

 
  

Page 32



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

3 
 

Executive summary 
 
How to use the Abingdon LCWIP 
 
The key information for applying the Abingdon LCWIP can be found in the following 
outputs from the LCWIP development process: 
 

• Appendix C: Network Map 
• Appendix D: Core Walking Zone Map 
• Appendix G: Programme of Walking and Cycling Infrastructure Improvements 
• Appendix H: Proposal Maps (a visual aid to the interpretation of the proposals 

listed in Appendix G) 
 
Some readers may only wish to review the proposals for infrastructure changes in 
and around Abingdon, without reading the background material included in this 
report and some of the appendices. These readers should refer to Appendix H: 
Proposal Maps and Appendix G: Programme of Walking and Cycling Infrastructure 
Improvements. 
 
A full list of the appendices which form part of this LCWIP is provided in the table of 
contents on page 2. 
 
What is the Abingdon LCWIP for? 
 
The Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) – which is 
composed of this report and its appendices – will help Oxfordshire County Council 
to: 
 

• identify walking and cycling infrastructure improvements for future investment 
in the short, medium, and long term 

• ensure that priority is given to walking and cycling within both local planning 
and local transport policies and strategies  

• make the case for future funding for walking and cycling infrastructure 
 
By doing this, the LCWIP provides a basis for the preparation of bids for funding from 
central government for the development and delivery of active travel schemes, as 
well as a wish-list of active travel infrastructure improvements to which local funding 
sources (most notably developer contributions or direct delivery) should be applied 
as and when opportunities arise. 
 
The Abingdon LCWIP will form a key component part of the Abingdon Area Travel 
Plan and will therefore become a component part of the overarching Local Transport 
and Connectivity Plan. 
 
Lifespan and review 
 
The lifespan of this first version of the LCWIP is ten years from its adoption, although 
it is recognised that some of the ambitious proposals set out in the plan may not 
have been implemented by the end of this period. 

Page 33



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

4 
 

Throughout (and beyond) this ten year period, the LCWIP will be reviewed regularly 
to reflect any significant changes to local circumstances (including changes to the 
policies and guidance upon which this first version of the LCWIP is based) and to 
extend the lifespan of the plan. 
 
Key local challenges and opportunities for active travel infrastructure 
 
There are currently significant volumes of through traffic – as well as local traffic – 
passing through the town centre. Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) on Stratton 
Way is approximately 19000 and on High Street – in the heart of the town centre – is 
approximately 9000. This is due in part to the limited opportunities to cross the rivers 
Thames and Ock and to access the A34 (the trunk road which links Abingdon to 
Oxford and the M40 to the north, and to Didcot and the M4 to the south) from 
Abingdon and its immediate surroundings. 
 
Changes to transport infrastructure in the town centre to improve walking and cycling 
conditions are highly constrained by the presence of 3 distinct conservation areas 
(see section 2.1 for more information) and a central Air Quality Management Area 
(AQMA), as well as narrow, historic street geometries and on-street parking. The 
AQMA in particular limits the scope of proposals in this central area. 
 
Some proposals set out in the LCWIP which could (in the short term) risk a negative 
impact on air quality in the AQMA (by increasing vehicular queueing) may be 
deferred until such a time as local air quality is less problematic in central Abingdon. 
 
Based on the latest Air Quality Annual Status Report (see section 2.3.10 for more 
information), it is anticipated that consideration may soon be given to revoking the 
AQMA, which would significantly improve the viability of major changes in this area. 
 
The projected growth in the area will require significant improvements to be made for 
walking and cycling in Abingdon over the next 10 years, in order to ensure that the 
local transport network can sustainably provide for the increased numbers of trips 
associated with this growth. That being said, the growth also provides a significant 
opportunity to seek developer contributions or direct delivery for betterment of local 
walking and cycling infrastructure. 
 
The data set out in section 2.3 indicates that levels of cycling in Abingdon are 
already high relative to much of the UK. This provides a reasonable expectation that 
the town has the potential for very high levels of cycling if adequate infrastructure is 
provided to make cycling accessible and attractive to all. 
 
Proposals 
 
This LCWIP sets out high level proposals for a range of improvements to walking 
and cycling conditions, including: 
 

• new and improved crossings for walking and cycling 
• junction redesign to prioritise walking and cycling movements 
• removal or modification of barriers on walking and cycling routes to improve 

accessibility 

Page 34



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

5 
 

• provision of additional high-quality cycle parking 
• on-carriageway cycling improvements (e.g., wider cycle lanes and centreline 

removal, some of which may require additional parking restrictions) 
• provision of segregated cycle tracks (some of which will require reallocation of 

highway space from motor vehicles to active travel) 
• permissions for cycling on some routes where cycling is not currently 

permitted 
• new river crossings for walking and cycling over the rivers Thames and Ock 
• footway widening and public realm improvements 
• provision of new and improved walking and cycling routes between Abingdon 

and other key local destinations (outside the town) 
 
As and when the proposals in the LCWIP are funded and progressed, significant 
changes to the local transport network will be subject to further public consultation on 
a scheme-by-scheme basis. 
 
Note that the omission of an infrastructure improvement from this first version of the 
LCWIP will not preclude Oxfordshire County Council from seeking that improvement 
in the event that it is deemed appropriate for the developer of a particular site to 
provide. 
 
The LCWIP was developed with the expectation that 20mph speed limits will be 
rolled out in Abingdon soon after its adoption. This expectation has shaped some of 
the proposals made in the LCWIP and consideration should be given to this 
expected change when undertaking design work. 
 
The LCWIP was developed with considerable assistance from – and engagement 
with – a steering group of local stakeholders. Similar engagement will be undertaken 
during future reviews of the LCWIP.  

Page 35



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

6 
 

1 Introduction 
 
1.1 Purpose of the LCWIP 
 
The Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) will help 
Oxfordshire County Council to: 
 

• identify walking and cycling infrastructure improvements for future investment 
in the short, medium, and long term 

• ensure that priority is given to walking and cycling within both local planning 
and local transport policies and strategies  

• make the case for future funding for walking and cycling infrastructure 
 
The LCWIP proposes and prioritises infrastructure improvements to be delivered 
over a ten-year period (although it is recognised that some of the ambitious 
proposals in the LCWIP may take longer than this to deliver, and that the priority of 
these proposals may change in order to respond to funding opportunities) from its 
adoption as Oxfordshire County Council policy. It is a living document, which will be 
reviewed and updated at regular intervals to reflect any significant changes to local 
circumstances or to the policy context outlined in section 1.2. 
 
1.2 Policy context 
 
1.2.1 National policy context 
 
The key relevant national policies and guidance which support the development of 
the Abingdon LCWIP are as follows: 
 

• Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy (CWIS1) [1] 
• Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans: Technical Guidance for Local 

Authorities [2] 
• Gear change: a bold vision for cycling and walking [3] 
• Cycle Infrastructure Design (LTN1/20) [4] 
• Inclusive mobility: a guide to best practice on access to pedestrian and 

transport infrastructure [5] 
• Decarbonising transport: a better, greener Britain [6] 
• The second cycling and walking investment strategy (CWIS2) [7] 

 
These policies and guidance documents clearly set out the national ambition to 
make walking and cycling the natural choices for shorter journeys, or for short stages 
of longer journeys. 
 
The development of LCWIPs in order to facilitate the delivery of improved walking 
and cycling infrastructure is a core part of the government’s strategy to achieve this 
ambition. 
 
The newly-formed Active Travel England (ATE), which is the government’s executive 
agency responsible for making walking, wheeling, and cycling the preferred choice 

Page 36



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

7 
 

for everyone to get around in England, has made it clear that local authorities will be 
held to high standards when seeking funding for active travel projects, and that 
funding for these projects will often depend on local authorities producing high-
quality LCWIPs. 
 
The benefits of increasing levels of walking, wheeling, and cycling are well 
established. Switching to active travel provides a cost-effective way to reduce 
transport emissions (thus helping to respond to the ongoing climate emergency and 
to improve air quality), to combat physical inactivity (which costs the NHS up to £1 
billion per annum, with further indirect costs calculated at £8.2 billion [8]), to improve 
mental health and wellbeing, to reduce inequality, and to increase footfall and 
takings for local businesses [9]. 
 
In order to achieve these benefits, a wide range of changes are required (including 
education and behaviour change initiatives), however CWIS2 highlights the 
importance of infrastructure improvements (and by extension LCWIPs) as follows: 
 
Alongside improving safety for people walking and cycling through changes to The 
Highway Code, the delivery of better cycle infrastructure is the most important thing 
government can do to enable more people to cycle. [7] 
 
1.2.2 Local policy context 
 
The key relevant local policies which support and inform the development of the 
Abingdon LCWIP are as follows: 
 

• Local Transport and Connectivity Plan (LTCP) [10] 
• Active Travel Strategy (ATS, a supporting strategy to LTCP) [11] 
• Vale of White Horse District Council Local Plan 2031 [12] 
• South Oxfordshire District Council Adopted Local Plan 2035 [13] 

 
The LTCP outlines a clear vision to deliver a net-zero Oxfordshire transport and 
travel system that enables the county to thrive while protecting the environment and 
making Oxfordshire a better place to live for all residents. 
 
The headline targets for the LTCP include aspirations to make the following changes 
by 2030 (within the lifespan of this LCWIP): 
 

• replace or remove 1 out of every 4 current car trips in Oxfordshire 
• increase the number of cycle trips in Oxfordshire from 600,000 to 1 million 

cycle trips per week 
• reduce road fatalities or life changing injuries in Oxfordshire by 50% 

 
In order to help achieve these headline targets, one of the LTCP’s key policies 
(LTCP policy 3) is a commitment to develop LCWIPs for all major urban settlements 
(with a population greater than 10,000) in Oxfordshire by 2025. 
 
The Active Travel Strategy estimates that a doubling of the number of cycle trips per 
week across Vale of White Horse and South Oxfordshire districts is required in order 
to achieve the headline targets outlined above. 

Page 37



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

8 
 

Given that Abingdon is the largest town by population in Vale of White Horse, and 
the fact that urban areas typically have the highest potential for shifting car trips to 
walking and cycling, the development (and implementation) of the Abingdon LCWIP 
is essential to achieve these targets. 
 
The Department for Transport (DfT) is clear that there should be direct and clear 
links between LCWIPs and other strategic transport planning documents for the 
area, with particular emphasis on links to Local Transport Plans and other local 
walking and cycling strategies. These key relationships are described below. 
 
Relationship with Local Transport and Connectivity Plan (LTCP) 
 
In the case of the Abingdon LCWIP, a clear link to the overarching strategy – 
Oxfordshire County Council’s LTCP [10] – will be created through the preparation of 
an Abingdon Area Travel Plan, which is currently under development as a ‘part 2’ of 
the LTCP. This document will set out a wider transport strategy for all modes. The 
Abingdon LCWIP (which is promoted in LTCP policy 3) [10] will feed into and 
become a key component part of the Abingdon Area Travel Plan, thereby becoming 
a component part of the Local Transport and Connectivity Plan. 
 
Relationship with other walking and cycling strategies 
 
There is some overlap between the Abingdon LCWIP network and the Science Vale 
Active Travel Network (SVATN) (originally known as the Science Vale Cycle 
Network) [14], which is currently under review. 
 
The two projects are complementary, and care has been taken to incorporate the 
relevant sections of the SVATN into the LCWIP proposals, in order to help seek 
funding for improvements to these routes. As work progresses on both the 
development of LCWIP schemes and the development of the SVATN, information 
will be shared between the two projects and potential synergies will be explored 
(e.g., opportunities to deliver complementary schemes at the same time in order to 
create longer active travel routes which are continuous and high-quality). 
 
Work is underway at Oxfordshire County Council to develop a county-wide Strategic 
Active Travel Network (SATN) [11] (which is promoted in LTCP policy 4) [10]. As part 
of the information gathering phase of this project, the Abingdon LCWIP network and 
the SVATN will be reviewed for opportunities to create wider strategic active travel 
links. It is anticipated that some links in the Abingdon LCWIP network will become 
links in the SATN (which may have an impact on the priority of improvements to 
these links relative to other parts of the LCWIP network). 
 
Relationship with Supplementary Planning Documents 
 
As well as embedding the LCWIP into strategic transport planning documents as 
discussed above, it may also be appropriate to embed the proposals listed in the 
LCWIP into local Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs). The Dalton Barracks 
SPD [15] in particular, may benefit from a review to include references to the 
Abingdon LCWIP. 

Page 38



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

9 
 

1.3 Governance and co-production arrangements 
 
The Abingdon LCWIP was produced in-house by Oxfordshire County Council’s 
South and Vale Infrastructure Locality team under a single local authority delivery 
model. 
 
The project team consisted of a working group of Oxfordshire County Council 
officers responsible for active travel and local transport strategy. The group held 
regular (approximately monthly) progress meetings throughout the development of 
the LCWIP. 
 
This working group was supported and guided by the input of a larger steering group 
made up of local stakeholders. The steering group met regularly (approximately 
every 6-8 weeks) throughout the development of the LCWIP. 
 
The following groups were represented at these steering group meetings: 
  

• Local authority officers: 
o Oxfordshire County Council officers 
o South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils officers 

• Local authority members: 
o Oxfordshire County Council members 
o Vale of White Horse District Council members 
o South Oxfordshire District Council members 
o Abingdon Town Council members 

• Other organisations: 
o Abingdon Liveable Streets 
o CoHSAT 
o Culham Science Centre/CulBUG 
o Harwell Science and Innovation Campus/HarBUG 
o Milton Park/MilBUG 
o Oxfordshire Cycling Network 
o Oxfordshire Ramblers 
o Sustrans 

 
As well as the aforementioned Abingdon LCWIP steering group, input to the LCWIP 
was received from the Abingdon Neighbourhood Plan steering group, and from the 
Central Abingdon Regeneration Framework project team. 
 
The engagement processes undertaken for the purposes of the Neighbourhood Plan 
and the Central Abingdon Regeneration Framework by these groups also fed into 
the development of the LCWIP. 
 
Oxfordshire County Council recommends that Vale of White Horse District Council 
and Abingdon Town Council endorse the Abingdon LCWIP and refer to it when 
producing their own local policies and strategies. It may also be appropriate for 
South Oxfordshire District Council and the parishes surrounding Abingdon to do the 
same. 
 

Page 39



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

10 
 

1.4 Methodology for development of the LCWIP 
 
The approach and methodology used to develop the Abingdon LCWIP followed the 
guidance provided by the DfT [2] closely, whilst recognising the limitations (in 
resources and data) associated with developing an LCWIP for a market town, rather 
than for a city. 
 
The stages which made up the process followed in the production of this LCWIP are 
set out below. 
 
1.4.1 Determining scope 
 
Work on the LCWIP began with the identification of key local stakeholders and the 
formation of the steering group (as described above in section 1.3). After the 
formation of the steering group, the geographical scope (as described below in 
section 2.2) for the LCWIP was established and refined with the help of the steering 
group. A plan and estimated timescales for the project were also agreed with the 
steering group. 
 
In order to determine the geographical scope of the Abingdon LCWIP, the following 
factors were considered: 
 

• likely distances that could be travelled by walking (typically up to 2km) and 
cycling (typically up to 10km) 

• location of significant trip generators (including planned developments) 
• the extents of the neighbouring Oxford LCWIP network 
• key severance features (the A34, the River Thames and the Cherwell Valley 

railway line) 
 
1.4.2 Gathering information 
 
The guidance from the DfT is clear that LCWIPs should be evidence-based where 
possible, with emphasis on quantifying the number of trips already being made by 
walking and cycling, and the number of trips which could feasibly be made on foot or 
by cycle if conditions were improved for these modes. [2]  
 
In order to inform the development of the LCWIP network, proposals, and priorities, 
(as well as to enable before-and-after comparison with future situations) information 
and data were gathered on the following themes: 
 

• location of significant trip generators 
o key employment sites 
o transport interchanges 
o education facilities 
o housing developments 

• transport network 
o existing walking and cycling networks 
o synergies with other planned and proposed transport and land use 

schemes that could directly or indirectly impact on walking and cycling 

Page 40



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

11 
 

• travel patterns 
o existing walking and cycling trips 
o trips currently made by other modes of transport which could be walked 

or cycled 
• perception of existing facilities 

o people’s concerns about making walking and cycling trips using 
existing infrastructure 

o requests for new or improved routes or facilities 
• other factors 

o air quality 
o indices of deprivation 

 
Section 2.3 provides an overview of the background information and data gathered 
during work on the LCWIP. 
 
1.4.3 Network planning for walking and cycling 
 
Whilst the DfT’s guidance on network planning suggests considering cycling and 
walking networks separately and then identifying synergies between the two, a 
slightly different approach was taken for the Abingdon LCWIP. 
 
Since Abingdon is a relatively compact town (most of the existing built-up area of the 
town is within 2km of the town centre), most trips within the town can be either 
walked or cycled. It was therefore decided to produce a single network map, which 
identifies the key routes for both walking and cycling (noting that some routes are 
appropriate for walking only and that some routes further out of the town are less 
likely to be walked than cycled). 
 
Through consideration of the information sources identified in section 2.3 of this 
document, and extensive discussion with the steering group, the routes which make 
up the Abingdon LCWIP network were selected, classified, and mapped. The 
outcomes of this exercise are described in sections 3.1 and 3.2. 
 
As well as establishing a network of walking and cycling routes, the national 
guidance on the development of LCWIPs recommends that the identification of Core 
Walking Zones (CWZs) is also considered. 
 
CWZs normally consist of a number of walking trip generators that are located close 
together – such as a town centre. [2] They highlight areas where there are already 
very high walking flows, where infrastructure improvements for walking should be 
prioritised, due to the potential to positively impact on very large numbers of trips. 
 
A single CWZ was identified in Abingdon town centre, where investment in walking 
improvements should be prioritised. This CWZ is described in more detail in section 
3.3. 
 
An audit of the current conditions for walking and cycling was then conducted to 
identify where infrastructure improvements are required on the network. The audit is 
described in section 3.4. More information on the suggested improvements identified 
through this audit process can be found in section 4.1. 

Page 41



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

12 
 

 
1.4.4 Prioritising improvements 
 
After producing a list of proposed infrastructure improvements, these proposals were 
categorised into short term, medium term and long term improvements and 
consideration was given to the relative priority of different types of improvements 
within each of these timescale categories. The outcomes of this stage are described 
in section 4.2. 
 
1.5 Application and review of the LCWIP 
 
1.5.1 Application 
 
As well as providing a basis for the preparation of bids for funding from central 
government for the development and delivery of active travel schemes, the LCWIP 
provides a wish-list of active travel infrastructure improvements to which local 
funding sources (most notably developer contributions or direct delivery) should be 
applied. 
 
All new developments located within or near the geographical scope of the Abingdon 
LCWIP (refer to Appendix A: Geographical Scope Map) will be reviewed for 
opportunities to deliver or make funding contributions towards the delivery of any 
proposals listed in Appendix G: Programme of Walking and Cycling Infrastructure 
Improvements deemed relevant to the site (as well as any improvements deemed 
relevant to the site which have not been explicitly included in the LCWIP). 
 
Opportunities for exploring synergies between the Abingdon LCWIP’s proposals and 
those made in the neighbouring LCWIPs for Oxford (adopted) [11] and Didcot (work 
in progress) should be explored as and when relevant schemes from these LCWIPs 
are progressed. The same approach should be taken for any relevant proposals and 
schemes emerging from the SVATN and SATN projects. 
 
The key information for applying the Abingdon LCWIP can be found in the following 
outputs from the LCWIP development process: 
 

• Appendix C: Network Map 
• Appendix D: Core Walking Zone Map 
• Appendix G: Programme of Walking and Cycling Infrastructure Improvements 
• Appendix H: Proposal Maps (a visual aid to the interpretation of the proposals 

listed in Appendix G) 
 
1.5.2 Review 
 
The Abingdon LCWIP is a ‘living document’, which will be reviewed regularly in order 
to ensure that it reflects any significant changes in local circumstances (including 
changes to the relevant policy and guidance set out in section 1.2), as well as to 
reflect progress made with implementation of the original proposals.  

Page 42



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

13 
 

2 Context 
 
2.1 Overview of the local area 
 
Abingdon-on-Thames is a historic market town located within cyclable distances of 
Oxford city centre, the Great Western Main Line at Didcot Parkway railway station, 
the Cherwell Valley Line at Radley and Culham railway stations, and the three major 
employment sites which form the Science Vale – Culham Science Centre, Milton 
Park, and Harwell Campus. The town is also located on National Cycle Network 
Route 5 (NCN5). 
 
At present, changes to transport infrastructure in the town centre are highly 
constrained by the presence of 3 distinct conservation areas (areas of special 
architectural or historic interest which have a specific character or appearance which 
enhances the local area and where certain changes to the environment – including 
the public highway – are restricted) [16] and a central Air Quality Management Area 
(AQMA) [17], as well as narrow, historic street geometries and on-street parking. 
 
There are currently significant volumes of through traffic – as well as local traffic – 
passing through the town centre. Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) on Stratton 
Way is approximately 19000 and on High Street – in the heart of the town centre – is 
approximately 9000. This is due in part to the limited opportunities to cross the rivers 
Thames and Ock and to access the A34 (the trunk road which links Abingdon to 
Oxford and the M40 to the north, and to Didcot and the M4 to the south) from 
Abingdon and its immediate surroundings. 
 
Despite these challenges, cycling levels in the area are high by UK standards and 
there is significant local community action in terms of promoting and campaigning for 
active travel. 
 
The projected growth in the area and the allocation of several significant housing 
developments around Abingdon in Vale of White Horse and South Oxfordshire 
district councils’ Local Plans [12] [13] will require significant improvements to be 
made for walking and cycling in Abingdon over the next 10 years (the intended 
lifespan of this LCWIP), in order to ensure that the local transport network can 
sustainably provide for the increased numbers of trips associated with these 
developments. 
 
Providing these infrastructure improvements will also contribute to the shift of trips 
currently made by car to more sustainable modes and help to ensure that Abingdon 
continues to develop into a safe, sustainable, and thriving ‘liveable’ town (where the 
facilities needed to meet residents’ daily needs are readily accessible within the town 
by a short walk or cycle). 
 
2.2 Geographical scope of the LCWIP 
 
Figure 1 shows the geographical scope of the Abingdon LCWIP. The area shown in 
blue is in scope and is the primary focus of the LCWIP. 
 

Page 43



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

14 
 

Although some strategic links outside this area are also considered (refer to section 
2.3.2 for details), a number of these links fall under the remit of other projects 
(SVATN, SATN, and neighbouring LCWIPs) and are only given high-level 
consideration in this first version of the Abingdon LCWIP. Additional detail on these 
links may be added to the LCWIP (for completeness) in a future update once these 
projects have progressed further. 
 

 
Figure 1 – Appendix A: Geographical Scope Map 

To the north of Abingdon, the boundary extends to the southern edge of Kennington, 
thus linking the Abingdon LCWIP network directly to the southern extent of the 
Oxford LCWIP network via Kennington Road and Oxford Road [11]. 
 
To the east of Abingdon, the LCWIP boundary is delineated by the railway line – 
called the Cherwell Valley Line, which runs north-to-south from Banbury via Oxford 
to the Great Western Main Line at Didcot Parkway – and by the River Thames, both 
of which act as natural boundaries to the local walking and cycling network. Note that 
consideration of links across these severance features is essential to the 
development of the wider strategic active travel network. High-level proposals for 
these links are therefore covered in this first version of the LCWIP. 
 
The existing river crossing at Abingdon Bridge (A415) and active travel connections 
between Abingdon and the car parks at Rye Farm and Hales Meadow are in scope. 

Page 44



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

15 
 

 
The onward route along the A415 to Culham and beyond forms part of the SVATN 
project, which is already being considered separately. [14] This route therefore 
receives high-level consideration in this first version of the LCWIP, with the intention 
that further detail will be added as the SVATN project progresses. 
 
To the south of Abingdon, the boundary of the LCWIP has been drawn at the 
northern perimeter of the sewage works on Peep’O’Day Lane. This ensures that the 
network covers the extents of the town, whilst acknowledging that the SVATN project 
and work by Sustrans will cover proposals for improving walking and cycling further 
to the south along NCN5. 
 
Detailed proposals for major changes to Marcham Interchange are out of scope for 
this first version of the LCWIP. The A34 is a trunk road, and is therefore managed by 
National Highways, rather than by the local highway authority (Oxfordshire County 
Council). That being said, it is recognised that improvement of the walking and 
cycling routes through Marcham Interchange is highly desirable and the LCWIP 
proposals indicate the need to work with National Highways to make these 
improvements. 
 
Note that National Highways are currently undertaking a review of potential 
improvements to the A34 north and south of Oxford, which – along with the 
proposals for south-facing slip-roads at Lodge Hill Interchange [18] – may affect 
conditions at this junction. [19] 
 
To the west, the LCWIP boundary largely follows the A34, however connections 
across the A34 into Shippon and towards Dalton Barracks are in scope to ensure 
that active travel links to the strategic development site at Dalton Barracks are 
considered. [12] 
 
An extension area, shown in red in Figure 1, has been added to the main LCWIP 
area. This area indicates the possible future extents of development at the Dalton 
Barracks site. Although infrastructure requirements within this area (which are highly 
dependent on master planning for the Dalton Barracks site) are not considered in 
this first version of the LCWIP, links to the area are covered, as stated in the 
previous paragraph. 
 
Infrastructure improvements within the extension area may be included in the review 
process for the LCWIP as planning for the Dalton Barracks development progresses 
and the opportunities and requirements for active travel infrastructure through the 
site become clearer (for example the potential alignment of an active travel route 
between Abingdon and Wootton). 
 
2.3 Background information and data 
 
2.3.1 Abingdon Liveable Streets proposals 
 
Work at Oxfordshire County Council to identify the existing walking and cycling 
network in Abingdon (and to identify where improvements are required) was 
accelerated and improved by access to the work of local volunteers on the Abingdon 

Page 45



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

16 
 

Cycling and Walking Network Plan [20] document, produced in 2020, which will be 
referred to throughout the remainder of this LCWIP as the ‘Abingdon Liveable 
Streets proposals’ (in order to avoid confusion with work produced by Oxfordshire 
County Council). This document contains a wealth of local knowledge relating to the 
town’s existing walking and cycling network and perceptions of the existing facilities 
which make up these networks, as well as suggestions for new and improved 
facilities – many of which have been included in the LCWIP. 
 
2.3.2 Location of significant trip generators 
 
The locations of significant local trip generators relevant to the Abingdon LCWIP 
have been identified using local knowledge – making use of the Abingdon Liveable 
Streets proposals [20] and the help of the steering group – as well as open data 
available from OpenStreetMap and licensed under the Open Data Commons Open 
Database License (ODbL) [21]. Local Plan allocated development sites were also 
considered. 
 
The trip generators in the immediate vicinity of Abingdon town have been mapped 
and can be seen in Appendix B: Local Trip Generators Map. Figure 2 shows a low-
resolution version of this map for convenience. 
 
Six strategic allocations in the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 and the South 
Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 have been identified as having particular significance to 
the Abingdon LCWIP. Their locations can be seen in Figure 2. 
 
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 [12] 

• North Abingdon-on-Thames (outline planning permission for up to 900 
dwellings) 

• North West Abingdon-on-Thames (outline planning permission for up to 200 
dwellings) 

• North West Radley (outline planning permission for up to 240 dwellings) 
• South of Kennington (planning permission for 283 dwellings) 
• Dalton Barracks (1,200 dwellings allocated) 

 
South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2035 [13] 

• Land Adjacent to Culham Science Centre (approximately 3,500 dwellings 
allocated) 

 
New routes and facilities to be provided by the developers of these sites (where they 
are known and have been set out in legal agreements) have been included in the 
LCWIP network map. 
 
For those sites where the details of transport mitigations to be provided by the 
developer have not yet been agreed (Dalton Barracks and Land Adjacent to Culham 
Science Centre), particular care has been taken to identify opportunities to provide a 
betterment of active travel infrastructure relevant to the site. 
 

Page 46



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

17 
 

 
Figure 2 – Appendix B: Local Trip Generators Map 

In addition to the trip generators shown in Figure 2, the following further-afield 
locations are also considered to be significant trip generators, contributing to trips 
into and out of Abingdon: 
 

• Oxford city centre 
• Marcham village 
• Drayton and Steventon villages 
• Wootton village 
• Didcot Parkway railway station 
• Culham Science Centre 
• Milton Park (Science and Technology Park) 
• Harwell Science and Innovation Campus 

 
2.3.3 Census 2011 travel to work data 
 
Travel to work data from the 2011 census is available at Middle Layer Super Output 
Area (MSOA) and Lower Layer Super Output Area (LSOA) level and offers 
information on truly local travel patterns. This is valuable as it can help to identify 
local areas where infrastructure improvements are required to allow local people to 
adopt active modes. Comparison with future census results may also be used to give 

Page 47



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

18 
 

some indication of the effectiveness of specific schemes and interventions over the 
life span of the LCWIP. 
 
On the other hand, the usefulness of the Census 2011 data is limited by its focus on 
travel to work. Trips for other purposes are not included. This is a significant 
limitation, considering that in 2011, commuting accounted for only 15% of all trips 
and 19% of the total distance travelled that year in England. [22] 
 
The proportion of trips and miles made up by commuting remained fairly consistent 
until 2019, when commuting accounted for 15% of trips and 20% of distance 
travelled in England. [23] In 2020, commuting accounted for only 12% of trips and 
there was a 22% decrease in total trip numbers from 2019 to 2020 as a result of the 
COVID-19 pandemic. [24] 
 
It is difficult to predict future travel patterns accurately, but the rise in popularity of 
working from home, which has persisted to some degree beyond the national 
lockdowns of 2020 and 2021, may result in a long-term decrease in commuting trips 
as a proportion of total trip numbers. 
 

 
Figure 3 – MSOAs forming Abingdon LCWIP Area of Influence (AoI) [25] [21] 

Figure 3 shows the locations of the MSOAs which make up the area of influence of 
Abingdon LCWIP (as featured in Figure 4). 
 
Origin-destination data from the 2011 Census [26] indicates that for the town of 
Abingdon (i.e. MSOAs 2-5 in Figure 3), the internalisation of commuting trips (i.e. the 
proportion of people both living and working – excluding working from home – within 
this area) was approximately 32% (4,902 of a total of 15,280 commuters) in 2011. Of 
these internal commuting trips, approximately 44% (2,160 of 4,902) were driven and 
19% (924 of 4,902) were cycled. 

Page 48



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

19 
 

 
For the wider area of influence of the LCWIP (i.e. all 7 MSOAs listed in Figure 3), this 
internalisation rate was approximately 40% (10,374 of a total of 26,148 commuters) 
in 2011. Of these internal commuting trips, approximately 51% (5,315 of 10,374) of 
trips were driven and 15% (1,553 of 10,374) were cycled. 
 
Considering the relatively short distances involved in making these local commuting 
trips – especially within the town of Abingdon, where the distance from one side of 
the town to the other is approximately 5km – there is significant potential for modal 
shift to walking and cycling. 
 
Figure 4 summarises the overall travel to work mode share figures from the 2011 
census (as per the Propensity to Cycle Tool (PCT) analysis – see section 2.3.4) for 
Abingdon LCWIP’s area of influence (i.e. all 7 MSOAs listed in Figure 3), the town of 
Abingdon (i.e. MSOAs numbered 2-5 in Figure 3) as well as Oxfordshire, Oxford 
City, South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse for context. 
 
The locations of these MSOAs can be seen in Figure 3 and the locations of the 
LSOAs which make these up can be viewed on the Office for National Statistics’ 
(ONS) Open Geography Portal. [25] 
 

 
Figure 4 – Census 2011 travel to work mode share by geographical area [27] 

2.3.4 Propensity to Cycle Tool (PCT) 
 
The DfT-funded Propensity to Cycle Tool (PCT) – based on origins and destinations 
(clustered at LSOA population weighted centroids in order to avoid disclosure of 
personal information) from data on travel to work collected during the 2011 census – 
is a useful starting point in identifying where cycling is currently common, as well as 
where there is significant potential for increasing cycling levels. [27] 
 
The tool provides an estimate of the number of cyclists using each link shown on the 
network – which is identified using the CycleStreets routing algorithm [28] to estimate 
the most direct routes between origin and destination locations – and offers several 
different hypothetical future scenarios for comparison with the Census 2011 
baseline. 
 
Although the routes identified by the PCT are generally appropriate and the tool is 
useful in highlighting routes which are likely to carry the highest cycling flows, the 
routing algorithm’s outputs are imperfect (as the origins and destinations of each trip 
are generalised to LSOA centroids – therefore the inputs to CycleStreets’ system are 

Page 49



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

20 
 

imperfect) and local knowledge must be applied to identify where other routes are 
preferred over the alignments shown in the PCT’s outputs. 
 
As well as the lack of local knowledge of routes, the tool is also limited by the age of 
the Census 2011 data and by its inability to consider the impact of future 
development. 
 
PCT commuting data (Census 2011 Cycling scenario) 
 
The baseline cycling flows from the 2011 census (as seen in Figure 5) are useful in 
identifying many of the routes which make up the existing cycling network in 
Abingdon. 
 

 
Figure 5 – PCT commuting cycle route network (Census 2011 Cycling scenario 
flows) [27] 

PCT commuting data (Ebikes scenario) 
 
The PCT’s Ebikes scenario, shown in Figure 6, makes use of the same route 
network as the Census 2011 Cycling scenario shown above, but estimates the 
numbers of users of each route (for commuting trips) assuming Dutch propensities to 
cycle, with the additional assumption that people use electric bikes for some longer 
and hillier trips. [27] 
 

Page 50



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

21 
 

This scenario is effectively a best-case estimate of the potential for modal shift to 
cycling in Abingdon. It helps to provide an ambitious estimate of future cycling flows 
in Abingdon and to highlight where the largest numbers of potential cyclists would 
benefit from improved infrastructure (although it does not factor in the impact that 
new developments will have on these flows). This will help to prioritise future 
investment in cycle infrastructure (by focusing investment on routes which are likely 
to be used by the largest numbers of people) and to make the case for funding 
infrastructure improvements on specific routes. 
 

 
Figure 6 – PCT commuting cycling route network (Ebikes scenario flows) [27] 

PCT school travel data (School Census 2011 scenario) 
 
The PCT also provides some data on travel to school. Figure 7 shows the cycling 
flows for school travel based on the School Census 2011 scenario. This scenario 
provides a baseline of cycle use for travel to state schools in Abingdon. Data for 
private school travel patterns is not held at this time. 
 
This data can be used to highlight parts of the walking and cycling network where 
demand (especially peak-hour demand) is higher than the commuting data from the 
PCT suggests, due to the additional requirement to carry school traffic. In addition, it 
can help to identify where there may be additional demand for segregation from 
motor traffic in order to facilitate safe opportunities for children (who may be less 
able to mix safely with general traffic) to travel to and from school by active modes. 

Page 51



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

22 
 

Many short trips to school are already travelled by walking (in the 5 years between 
2015 and 2019, an average of 44% of children walked to school – the most common 
way of getting to school [29]), but there is significant potential to shift some longer 
trips to school from driving (the second most common way of getting to school [29]) 
to cycling. 
 
Note that whilst the PCT data shown in Figure 7 indicates high cycling flows on 
Colwell Drive (towards Larkmead School), anecdotal evidence suggests that the 
higher school cycling flow is actually on Spring Road, rather than Colwell Drive, as 
the main entrance to Larkmead School is located on Faringdon Road. 
 

 
Figure 7 – PCT school cycling route network (School Census 2011 scenario flows) 
[27] 

PCT school travel data (Go Dutch scenario) 
 
The PCT’s Go Dutch scenario for school travel, highlights potential cycling flows for 
school travel assuming Dutch propensities to cycle. An Ebikes scenario is not 
currently available for the PCT’s school travel data. 
 
This provides an aspirational estimate of future cycling levels for trips to school in 
Abingdon and can be used to help prioritise improvements to cycle infrastructure, by 
identifying routes where trips to school by cycle can be unlocked. 
 
For Abingdon, the most notable finding is the requirement for safe opportunities for 
school children to travel from the south of the town to the north for school. There are 
no secondary schools in southern Abingdon and as such, there is significant unmet 

Page 52



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

23 
 

demand for safe and convenient cycle routes across the River Ock and onwards to 
the three secondary schools off Faringdon Road and Wootton Road. 
 
This is highlighted by the very high potential school cycling flow across the River Ock 
over the existing B4017 bridge (Drayton Rd), as seen in Figure 8. As with Figure 7, 
the high potential school cycle flow on Colwell Drive is more likely to follow Spring 
Road, due to the location of the main entrance to the Larkmead School site. 
 

 
Figure 8 – PCT school cycling route network (Go Dutch scenario flows) [27] 

2.3.5 Rapid Cycleway Prioritisation Tool 
 
The Rapid Cycleway Prioritisation Tool (commissioned by Sustrans and the DfT to 
help identify promising locations for new cycleways in England) highlights Ock Street 
in Abingdon as a ‘top ranked new cycleway’ based on projected cycling flows from 
the PCT and estimates of the road space available for reallocation to improve cycling 
infrastructure along the route. 
 
The results for Abingdon from this tool, shown in Figure 9 have already been used to 
help secure funding through the DfT’s Active Travel Fund Tranche 3 for feasibility 
and preliminary design for an active travel scheme along Ock Street, to improve 
conditions for walking and cycling along this route. 
 
The outcomes of this work will be used to seek further funding for implementation of 
the scheme. 
 

Page 53



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

24 
 

 
Figure 9 – Rapid Cycleway Prioritisation Tool results for Abingdon [30] 

2.3.6 Strava Global Heatmap 
 
Although the trips recorded on Strava tend to be for sport or leisure purposes and 
may not accurately reflect patterns of walking and cycling trips for utility purposes, 
Strava’s Global Heatmap provides an additional data source which helps to 
corroborate and validate the conclusions drawn from the PCT route network and the 
network identified in the community-led Abingdon Liveable Streets proposals. The 
data provides a visualisation of the frequency of cycling, walking and running on 
different routes in Abingdon, based on aggregated public activities recorded on 
Strava over the past year.  
 
Figure 10 shows the Strava Global Heatmap for cycling activities recorded in the 
Abingdon area. The routes shown in a bold red colour are the most commonly cycled 
by Strava users. Figure 11 shows a similar map for walking and running activities 
recorded in the Abingdon area. 
 

Page 54



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

25 
 

 
Figure 10 – Strava Global Heatmap (cycling), accessed 15 November 2021 [31] 

 
Figure 11 – Strava Global Heatmap (walking and running), accessed 15 November 
2021 [31] 

Although most of the frequently cycled routes overlap well with the estimates in the 
PCT (see section 2.3.4), there are several notable differences between the network 
identified in the PCT and the network identified by the Strava Global Heatmap: 
 

Page 55



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

26 
 

• the Strava data shows high flows on a number of away-from-carriageway 
routes which do not feature in the PCT analysis (e.g., NCN5 between central 
Abingdon and Radley) 

• the Strava data shows a different (and more accurate) preferred route (via 
Foxborough Road and Church Road) through Radley to the PCT (via St 
James Road, which is affected by the location of the LSOA centroid in the 
PCT analysis) 

• the Strava data suggests a higher flow of cyclists on Audlett Drive than on 
Radley Road (whereas the PCT suggests that this is the other way around) 

 
2.3.7 CycleStreets low traffic neighbourhoods and modal filters mapping tool 
 
The map shown in Figure 12 is an extract from a tool developed by CycleStreets (the 
developers behind the routing algorithm used in the PCT). This tool uses automated 
analysis of OpenStreetMap data to highlight streets which may be inappropriately 
carrying through-traffic. 
 

 
Figure 12 – CycleStreets Low Traffic Neighbourhoods map tool [32] 

The analysis for Abingdon, as seen in Figure 12 indicates that most of the town’s 
residential streets are already designed such that they do not permit through traffic.  
 
It is expected that these streets (shown in blue on the map) have relatively low traffic 
flows and speeds and are therefore less likely to require major additional 
infrastructure to permit safe walking and cycling. 

Page 56



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

27 
 

 
Despite these low speeds and flows, it may still be appropriate to make 
improvements to some of these routes. Many small-scale improvements are possible 
(for example provision of dropped kerbs and tactile paving where they are currently 
missing), and major changes may be appropriate where one of these streets forms 
part of a strategic or locally significant walking and cycling route. 
 
No new Low Traffic Neighbourhoods are proposed for Abingdon in this first version 
of the LCWIP. 
 
2.3.8 Traffic data 
 
Although it is not comprehensive, and recent data is not available for all routes in 
Abingdon, a significant amount of data is held on traffic flows and speeds within the 
Abingdon LCWIP area. 
 
This data has been used to inform audits of existing walking and cycling conditions 
and to help identify the appropriate types of infrastructure improvements for each 
route. 
 
The key speed and flow data held for the primary routes identified in the LCWIP is 
summarised in Appendix E: Primary Route Audit Log. 
 
Most residential streets within the town currently have 30mph speed limits. The 
peripheral roads (Audlett Drive, Twelve Acre Drive, Dunmore Road, Copenhagen 
Drive and Colwell Drive) have 40mph speed limits except for a short stretch of 
Audlett Drive closest to the town centre. A number of key routes outside the town 
boundary which form part of the wider walking and cycling network also have higher 
speed limits (50mph on Oxford Road, 40mph on Kennington Road, 40mph on the 
A415 to the south, 50mph on Drayton Road, 50mph on the A415 to the west, 40mph 
on Long Tow and 40mph on Wootton Road). 
 
Note that whilst the existing traffic speeds were used to inform the route auditing 
process described in section 3.4, it is expected that the speed limits on a number of  
routes within Abingdon town boundary will soon be reduced from 30mph to 20mph, 
and that the speed limit on the peripheral roads will be reduced from 40mph to 
30mph. [33] [34] Consideration was given to this proposed change when making 
proposals for infrastructure improvements. The proposed speed limit reductions are 
expected to improve road safety for all road users – especially for people walking 
and cycling – and would support provision of further improvements for walking and 
cycling through the use of some different types of infrastructure (e.g., the use of a 
zebra crossing instead of a signalised crossing). 
 
2.3.9 Collision data 
 
The STATS19 database (named after the police form used to record the data) holds 
data on collisions on highways which resulted in personal injury and were reported to 
the police within 30 days. [35] 
 

Page 57



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

28 
 

During the ten year period from 2012 to 2021 (inclusive), there were 151 cyclist 
casualties and 88 pedestrian casualties relevant to the Abingdon LCWIP. 
 
Note that these figures include casualties resulting from collisions which occurred 
within either the Abingdon LCWIP main boundary or the boundary extension for 
Dalton Barracks (as shown in Figure 1 – Appendix A: Geographical Scope Map), as 
well as a small number of collisions on LCWIP routes into and out of these areas (for 
example on the A415 between Abingdon and Culham). 
 
Figure 13 shows the locations of the collisions which resulted in cyclist casualties, 
and their severities (slight, serious, or fatal). 
 
Figure 14 shows the locations of the collisions which resulted in pedestrian 
casualties, and their severities (slight, serious, or fatal). 
 
When opportunities to fund improvements arise, the details of these collisions will be 
reviewed to ensure that the proposed scheme eliminates features of the existing 
infrastructure which are known to increase the likelihood of collisions. 
 

 
Figure 13 – STATS19 cyclist casualties relevant to Abingdon LCWIP [36] 

 

Page 58



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

29 
 

 
Figure 14 - STATS19 pedestrian casualties relevant to Abingdon LCWIP [36] 

2.3.10 Air quality data 
 
Air quality is a particular concern in Abingdon and the area shown in Figure 15 is 
designated as an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA). 
 
At present, the AQMA limits the scope of proposals in this central area. Significant 
changes which may result in increased vehicular queueing in this area risk a 
negative impact on local air quality in the short term. This may result in some 
proposals being deferred until such a time as local air quality is less problematic in 
central Abingdon. 
 
As can be seen in Figure 16, the latest data shows that local NO2 levels in Abingdon 
– including within the AQMA – are below the national objective. Although the very 
low levels of NO2 seen in 2020 were due to the significant reduction in traffic 
volumes during the Covid-19 pandemic, it should be noted that levels of NO2 in the 
Abingdon AQMA were also below the objective before the pandemic and that 
VoWHDC’s Air Quality Annual Status reports raised consideration for revoking the 
Abingdon AQMA as early as 2018. 
 
The 2021 Air Quality Annual Status Report states: 
 
‘The levels of NO2 in Abingdon remained below the air quality objective in 2020 
[levels in 2019 were also below the objective] and serious consideration can now be 

Page 59



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

30 
 

given to revoking the AQMA. This will be one of the ideas explored when producing 
the new AQAP [Air Quality Action Plan]. ‘ [37] 
 
The 2022 Annual Status report goes on to say: 
 
“In Abingdon annual levels of NO2 continue to be below 36µg/m3 at all monitoring 
sites and it is anticipated that the evidence supporting the revocation of the Abingdon 
AQMA will be submitted to Defra in the next 12 months with a view to revoking the 
Abingdon AQMA.” [37] 
 

 
Figure 15 – Abingdon Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) [38] 

With this change and the expected fleet change to cleaner vehicles over the coming 
years in mind, this limitation on changes which can be made within the central area 
in Abingdon is expected to be reduced or eliminated completely in the long term. 
 
As this situation develops, and a wider transport strategy is developed for the 
Abingdon area, ambitious proposals for the current AQMA area can be developed 
further. 

Page 60



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

31 
 

 

 
Figure 16 – Abingdon air quality trends as per VoWHDC’s 2022 Air Quality Annual 
Status Report [37] 

2.3.11 Active Lives Survey 
 
The Active Lives Survey, conducted by Sport England, offers data on all types of 
cycling trips at a local authority district (LAD) level and helps to provide some of the 
missing information on non-commuting trips which are not covered by the census 
data discussed in section 2.3.3. 
 
Participation in cycling in Vale of White Horse district is consistently high relative to 
other local authorities in England. Since the May 2019-2020 survey, Vale of White 
Horse has remained in the top 4 LADs outside cities (topped only by South 
Cambridgeshire, the Isles of Scilly and Woking) and the top 13 LADs overall (topped 
only by Cambridge, Oxford, several London boroughs, South Cambridgeshire, the 
Isles of Scilly, and Woking) in terms of cycling participation (the proportion of adults 
who cycled at least twice in the 28 days leading up to the survey date). [39] 
 
Abingdon is the largest settlement in Vale of White Horse – accounting for 25% of 
the population of the district by ONS’ mid-2020 estimates [40] – and the Census 
2011 mode share figures suggest that cycling levels in Abingdon are somewhat 
higher than those in the rest of the district (refer to Figure 4). 
 
Levels of cycling in the neighbouring South Oxfordshire district are also high relative 
to other local authorities in England. 
 
These already high levels of cycling in and around Abingdon, by current UK 
standards, provide a reasonable expectation that the town has the potential for very 
high levels of cycling if adequate infrastructure is provided to make cycling 
accessible and attractive to all. 

Page 61



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

32 
 

 
Figure 17 shows the level of participation in any cycling activity (proportion of adults 
who cycled at least twice in the 28 days leading up to the survey date) in Vale of 
White Horse and South Oxfordshire districts. There was a clear increase in the 
number of people participating in cycling in the region during the May 2019-2020 
period, when the first national lockdown came into effect. This goes some way to 
demonstrating that a rapid increase in cycling levels can be achieved when traffic 
volumes are reduced on cycle routes. 
 
The Active Lives Survey sample sizes are relatively small at LAD level, so the data is 
relatively volatile, and caution is required in drawing conclusions from these results. 
 

 
Figure 17 – Active Lives Survey results: participation in cycling in SO and VoWH 
districts [39] 

2.3.12 National Travel Survey 
 
The National Travel Survey is the primary source of data on personal travel patterns 
by residents of England within Great Britain. The survey is conducted annually and is 
used to monitor long-term trends in personal travel and to inform policy development. 
It is a high-level tool and does not offer local detail but provides an excellent 
overview of typical travel patterns across England. 
 
Figure 18 shows the mode share of trips by main mode for different trip lengths in 
England in 2020. Most trips recorded by the National Travel Survey are relatively 
short. 
 
In 2020, 25% of trips were under 1 mile. Of these trips, 82% were travelled by 
walking. In 2019 (before the COVID-19 pandemic), 24% of trips were under 1 mile 
and 80% of these were walked. [24] 
 

Page 62



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

33 
 

In 2020, 71% of trips were under 5 miles and in 2019, 68% of trips were under 5 
miles. [24] 
 
As can be seen in Figure 18, although walking is the dominant mode for trips under 1 
mile, driving is the second most frequently used mode in this distance band. For all 
distance bands over 1 mile, driving is the dominant mode. It is worth noting that the 
public transport mode share has been reduced as a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic. 
 
The aim of LCWIPs is to change this pattern and to shift trips which are currently 
being driven to walking and cycling. The key opportunities apparent in Figure 18 are 
the majority of trips between 1 and 5 miles which are driven, but which could – in 
many cases (especially within urban and suburban areas) – be cycled or walked and 
the trips under 1 mile which are still driven, rather than walked or cycled. 
 
Figure 19 shows the proportion of cycling trips per person per year, by trip purpose 
for 2019 and 2020. Travel patterns in 2020 were altered significantly by the impact of 
the COVID-19 pandemic. This accounts for the significant increase in the proportion 
of leisure cycling trips in 2020. 
 
Figure 20 shows the proportion of walking trips per person per year, by trip purpose 
for 2019 and 2020. Similar to the pattern observed in the cycling figures, walking for 
the purpose of ‘Other including just walk’ accounted for 48% of trips and ‘Leisure’ 
accounted for an additional 8%. 
 

 
Figure 18 – Mode share of trips by main mode for different trip lengths: England, 
2020 (NTS0308) [24] 

Page 63



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

34 
 

 
Figure 19 – Proportion of cycling trips per person per year, by trip purpose: England, 
2019 and 2020 (NTS0409) [24]  

 
Figure 20 – Proportion of walking trips per person per year, by trip purpose: England, 
2019 and 2020 (NTS0409) [24] 

Page 64



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

35 
 

2.3.13 Perception of existing facilities 
 
The aforementioned Abingdon Liveable Streets proposals [20] provided a good 
starting point in identifying the needs of the local community in terms of 
improvements to the local active travel network. 
 
Stakeholder engagement and public consultation exercises undertaken during the 
course of the LCWIP process also provide a valuable source of data regarding the 
perception of existing facilities. 
 
Consultations on the ongoing Neighbourhood Plan process and the Central 
Abingdon Regeneration Framework project were also considered. 
 
At a national level, wave 5 of the National Travel Attitude Survey [41] provides some 
useful data on the types of measures which encourage people to cycle more. The 
survey highlights that the following encourage uptake of cycling: 
 

• segregated cycle paths (55% of responses) 
• safer routes (53% of responses) 
• well-maintained surfaces (49% of responses) 

 
Notably, 68% of responses indicated that they would support the creation of 
dedicated cycle lanes, at the expense of road space for cars. 
 
2.3.14 Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 
 
Figure 21 shows a map which displays the Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) by 
LSOA in and around Abingdon based on data from 2019. 
 
This data can be used to aid prioritisation of infrastructure improvements for walking 
and cycling. In general, higher priority should be given to improvements which serve 
more deprived communities (although this factor will need to be balanced with other 
prioritisation criteria). 
 

Page 65



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

36 
 

 
Figure 21 – Abingdon and surroundings IMD map [42] 

  

Page 66



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

37 
 

3 Abingdon walking and cycling network 
 
3.1 Network map 
 
The proposed walking and cycling network can be seen in Appendix C: Network 
Map, a low-resolution version of which is shown in Figure 22 for convenience. 
 

 
Figure 22 – Appendix C: Network Map 

3.2 Route classification 
 
As seen in Figure 22, the LCWIP network map includes four distinct types of route: 
primary, secondary, restricted, and future routes. Table 1 provides a description for 
each of these four types. 
 
This typology is the result of consideration of the national guidance on LCWIPs [2] 
and ongoing work at Oxfordshire County Council to standardise the outputs of 
LCWIPs in Oxfordshire. 
 
Each route in the network map has been classified using this typology based on local 
knowledge and on the data described in section 2.3 of this document. 
 

Page 67



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

38 
 

Table 1 – Classification of LCWIP routes 

Route type Description 
Primary Main routes for both walking and cycling, typically linking key origin 

and destination locations (e.g. linking a large residential area to the 
town centre) in the most direct way. High walking and/or cycling flows 
are forecast along these routes. These routes are often classified 
roads which may require significant investment in walking and cycling 
infrastructure to achieve these high walking and cycling flows. 

Secondary Routes with local importance, typically linking trip generators such as 
education and employment sites, linking primary routes to one another 
or providing less direct alternatives to primary routes.  Medium walking 
and/or cycling flows are forecast along these routes. 

Restricted Routes which are not currently accessible for both walking and 
cycling. These routes have some sort of (physical, legal or temporal) 
restriction (e.g. cycling is not permitted, the route is opened only at 
certain times or the route is on private land). Where appropriate, steps 
should be taken to remove these restrictions and to reclassify these as 
primary or secondary routes. 

Future Routes which do not currently exist. This set of routes includes both 
routes which have been secured and are expected to be delivered, 
and aspirational routes (e.g. river crossings and links through private 
land) which have not yet been formally secured. The alignments of 
these aspirational routes are subject to change and the links shown on 
the network map are indicative only. 

 
3.3 Core Walking Zone (CWZ) 
 
For Abingdon, a single CWZ encompassing the town centre has been identified. The 
proposed extents of this CWZ can be seen in Appendix D: Core Walking Zone Map. 
A low-resolution version of this map can be seen in Figure 23 for convenience. 
 
Several factors have influenced the identification of this CWZ. The majority of town 
centre trip generators (e.g., retail and hospitality services) fall within this region; the 
routes between the town centre and the car parks at Rye Farm, Abbey Close, The 
Charter, Audlett Drive and West St Helen Street are all covered; and the walking 
‘funnel routes’ across the River Thames and the River Ock are also covered. 
 

Page 68



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

39 
 

 
Figure 23 – Appendix D: Core Walking Zone Map 

3.4 Audit of current conditions on the network 
 
An audit of the current conditions for walking and cycling was conducted to identify 
where infrastructure improvements are required. 
 
The overall goal of the proposed improvements is to create a walking and cycling 
network which meets the core design principles for walking and cycling. Networks 
and routes for both walking and cycling should be coherent, direct, safe, 
comfortable, and attractive. [2] [4] 
 
Note that although the core principles are the same for both walking and cycling, the 
physical infrastructure design features which create these conditions are different for 
each mode. 
 
The primary routes identified in Appendix C: Network Map, as seen in Figure 22 
were audited using the Cycling Level of Service (CLoS) tool, which is described in 
LTN1/20 [4]. This approach provides a consistent and systematic method for auditing 
cycling routes against the core design principles listed above. 
Each primary route was broken down into sections such that the characteristics of 
the route did not change significantly within a section. The lengths of these sections 
are generally less than 1km (as per the guidance [2]), but in some cases, where 

Page 69



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

40 
 

there are long stretches of a route over which conditions remain similar, section 
lengths of more than 1km were used. In total, 41 sections (covering 12 routes) were 
audited using this approach. 
 
As well as scoring each section using the CLoS tool, any critical failures (of the 
existing infrastructure) against the CLoS criteria were recorded, to ensure that these 
issues are noted and addressed as and when schemes to improve these primary 
routes are progressed. 
 

 
Figure 24 – Appendix F: Primary Routes Current CLoS Map 

The detailed results of this CLoS audit can be seen in Appendix E: Primary Route 
Audit Log and an overview of the results can be seen in Appendix F: Primary Routes 
Current Cycling Level of Service (CLoS) Map, a low-resolution version of which can 
be seen in Figure 24 for convenience. 
 
During the primary route auditing process, opportunities, and challenges for 
improving both walking and cycling conditions were considered. Whilst cycling 
conditions were assessed using the CLoS tool, walking conditions were assessed 
informally, without the use of a scoring system. 
 
For the secondary and restricted routes identified in the network map, an informal 
auditing process was used (a full CLoS audit was not conducted on these routes due 

Page 70



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

41 
 

to limitations on project resources and due to a lack of traffic data on many of these 
routes). No scoring system was used to assess the current conditions for walking or 
cycling on these routes, but the outcomes of the informal audits fed directly into the 
LCWIP proposals. 
 
  

Page 71



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

42 
 

4 Walking and cycling infrastructure improvements 
 
4.1 Proposed improvements 
 
Following the completion of the network auditing process, a list of proposals for 
improvements to the walking and cycling infrastructure provision in Abingdon was 
developed. The full list of proposals can be found in Appendix G: Programme of 
Walking and Cycling Infrastructure Improvements. 
 
The proposed infrastructure improvements listed in this document seek to address 
the issues identified on the existing walking and cycling network during the auditing 
process, as well as to highlight where additional routes are needed. 
 
The proposals include suggestions for the following types of improvements: 
 

• new and improved crossings for walking and cycling 
• junction redesign to prioritise walking and cycling movements 
• removal or modification of barriers on walking and cycling routes to improve 

accessibility 
• provision of additional high-quality cycle parking 
• on-carriageway cycling improvements (e.g., wider cycle lanes and centreline 

removal, some of which may require additional parking restrictions) 
• provision of segregated cycle tracks (some of which will require reallocation of 

highway space from motor vehicles to active travel) 
• permissions for cycling on some routes where cycling is not currently 

permitted 
• new river crossings for walking and cycling over the rivers Thames and Ock 
• footway widening and public realm improvements 
• provision of new and improved walking and cycling routes between Abingdon 

and other key local destinations (outside the town) 
 
There are 108 proposals in total, of which 75 (approximately 69%) are suggested 
improvements for both walking and cycling, 6 (approximately 6%) are suggested 
improvements for walking only, and 27 (approximately 25%) are suggested 
improvements for cycling only. 
 
22 proposals (approximately 20%) fall into the short term timescale category (could 
feasibly be completed within 3 years), 29 proposals (approximately 27%) fall into the 
medium term timescale category (could feasibly be completed within 5 years) and 41 
proposals (approximately 38%) fall into the long term timescale category (will take 
longer than 5 years to deliver). 
 
The remaining 16 proposals (approximately 15%) have already been secured for 
direct delivery by local developers and will be delivered when their triggers (as set 
out in the relevant S106 agreements) are reached. These proposals have been 
included in the LCWIP for completeness and to provide context for the proposals 
which have not yet been secured. 
 
 

Page 72



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

43 
 

Where appropriate, the suggestions of local interest groups and local members have 
been incorporated into Appendix G: Programme of Walking and Cycling 
Infrastructure Improvements, based on the work set out in the community-led 
Abingdon Liveable Streets proposals [20] and on discussions held with the steering 
group. 
 
In Appendix G: Programme of Walking and Cycling Infrastructure Improvements, the 
proposals are grouped into the following categories: 
 
Table 2 – Classification of LCWIP proposals 

Proposal type Description 
Primary route network proposals High-priority proposals for improvements to 

existing primary routes. 
Core Walking Zone proposals Proposals for improvements within the Core 

Walking Zone. Note that proposals which fall 
both on a primary route and within the Core 
Walking Zone are listed under primary route 
network proposals. 

Town-wide proposals Proposals which cover the whole town or a 
number of locations across the town, rather 
than along a particular route (e.g., speed limit 
reduction on residential streets to 20mph). 

“Quick win” proposals Proposals which are generally low cost, with 
relatively few barriers to delivery (and do not 
fall on the primary route network), but which 
could rapidly improve or expand the walking 
and cycling network. 

Other proposals Proposals which do not fall into one of the 
categories above. This includes proposals on 
secondary and restricted routes, which are not 
considered to be quick wins (due to barriers to 
delivery), but which are considered to offer a 
significant benefit. This category also includes 
proposals for completely new (future) routes, 
for example new river crossings, which are not 
yet part of the network. 

 
To aid understanding, the proposals in this LCWIP have been numbered and 
mapped. The proposal reference numbers listed in Appendix G: Programme of 
Walking and Cycling Infrastructure Improvements correspond to the labels shown in 
Appendix H: Proposal Maps. Note that the descriptions in the tabular list of proposals 
are more detailed than those in the legend of the proposal maps. 
 
Whilst the proposals set out by this LCWIP aim to address most significant barriers 
to walking and cycling which currently exist in Abingdon, there are many locations 
where minor issues exist (for example missing dropped kerbs or tactile paving). 
 
These are too numerous to map and list in full in this first version of the LCWIP, but 
targeted consideration will be given to these issues as and when opportunities arise 

Page 73



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

44 
 

(for example when a larger scheme in the vicinity is being progressed, or when a 
relevant planning application comes forward). 
 
Additional detail will be added to the proposals listed in Appendix G: Programme of 
Walking and Cycling Infrastructure Improvements as and when funding and staff 
resource for completing topographical and arboricultural surveys, and outline 
scheme design is identified. 
 
Note that as and when the proposals in the LCWIP are funded and progressed, 
significant changes to the local transport network will be subject to further public 
consultation on a scheme-by-scheme basis. 
 
The LCWIP was developed with the expectation that 20mph speed limits will be 
rolled out in Abingdon early in the lifetime of this LCWIP. [33] This expectation has 
shaped some of the proposals made in this LCWIP and consideration should be 
given to the revised speed limits in Abingdon when undertaking design work. 
 
4.2 Prioritisation of proposals 
 
The guidance from the DfT recommends that the infrastructure improvements 
proposed in an LCWIP should be prioritised into three categories: short term 
improvements (typically requiring less than three years to deliver), medium term 
improvements (typically requiring between three and five years to deliver), and long 
term improvements (typically requiring more than five years to deliver) [2]. 
 
For the Abingdon LCWIP, a fourth category has been added. This is direct delivery, 
which indicates that a particular improvement is to be delivered directly by a third 
party, such as a developer, and the timescale for delivery of the infrastructure is 
linked to the rate of build-out and/or occupations at the relevant development site. 
 
The proposals listed in Appendix G: Programme of Walking and Cycling 
Infrastructure Improvements have been prioritised into these timescale categories. 
The table below provides a brief description of the criteria for each category: 
 
Table 3 Criteria for categorisation of proposal timescales 

 Approximate timescale Criteria 
Short term Less than 3 years Improvements which can be 

implemented quickly (relatively low 
cost, with few barriers to delivery) or 
which are already under development. 
Delivery within or close to this 
timescale is dependent on securing 
funding rapidly upon adoption of the 
LCWIP. 

Medium term 3 to 5 years Improvements where there is a clear 
intention to act, but delivery is 
dependent on further funding 
availability or other issues (which may 
mean that some of these 

Page 74



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

45 
 

improvements take longer than 5 
years to deliver). 

Long term More than 5 years More aspirational improvements, 
which will require significant funding 
and may not yet have a clearly 
defined solution. Most major primary 
route improvements fall into this 
category. These are generally the 
improvements which will have the 
greatest impact, but which are the 
most difficult and costly to implement. 

Direct delivery Varies Improvements which have been 
secured through the planning process 
and are to be delivered by developers. 
Some improvements which are 
currently in one of the other categories 
may be secured for direct delivery as 
and when further developments come 
forward in the area. 

 
It is anticipated that the proposals listed in Appendix G: Programme of Walking and 
Cycling Infrastructure Improvements will generally be implemented in this order: 
short term, then medium term, then long term improvements, with direct delivery 
improvements being implemented as and when the relevant triggers are met (as set 
out in the legal agreements which secure them). 
 
With that being said, the crucial factor which will determine the order of delivery will 
be the availability and the source(s) of funding and resources to undertake feasibility 
studies, design work, and finally delivery. 
 
It may be appropriate (depending on the funding source) to group a number of 
proposals together into a larger package of works (especially where these proposals 
apply to a continuous route or to routes which are directly connected to one another). 
The timescales set out in Appendix G: Programme of Walking and Cycling 
Infrastructure Improvements are therefore subject to change. 
 
As well as using the timescales (as described above) for each proposal, the 
infrastructure improvements proposed in the Abingdon LCWIP can generally be 
prioritised (within each timescale category) using the proposal types described below 
as a preferred order of delivery (with number 1 being the highest priority): 
 

1. Primary route network proposals 
2. CWZ proposals 
3. Town-wide proposals 
4. “Quick win” proposals 
5. Other proposals 

 
This means that, for example, ‘primary route network improvement proposals’ with 
‘short’ timescales (e.g., proposal reference ABP03-05) should generally be funded 
and implemented first, followed by ‘CWZ proposals’ with ‘short’ timescales and so 

Page 75



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

46 
 

on. Using this approach, ‘other proposals’ with ‘long’ timescales would generally be 
funded and implemented last. 
 
Note that this is a generalisation, and prioritisation of the proposals set out in the 
LCWIP will be adjusted dynamically in order to respond to funding opportunities.  
 
There are a number of proposals (e.g., new river crossings and proposals requiring 
acquisition of land) which fall later in the proposed order of delivery as set out above 
(i.e., in the ‘long term’ timescale and the ‘other proposals’ category), but which are 
considered to have very high potential for positive impact on the walking and cycling 
network. Inclusion of these major proposals in these categories does not imply that 
these proposals are not important infrastructure improvements but recognises that 
there are significant challenges to be overcome in order to deliver them. 
 
All of the proposals listed in Appendix G: Programme of Walking and Cycling 
Infrastructure Improvements are considered to be of significant value, and delivery of 
all proposals relevant to a forthcoming development site should be sought in line with 
the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 [43]. 
 
Consideration will be given to the use of a more sophisticated prioritisation approach 
in a future review of the Abingdon LCWIP. This will be of particular value for 
comparing the relative priority of long term primary route network improvements 
against one another.  

Page 76



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

47 
 

Glossary of terms and abbreviations 
 
AADT Annual Average Daily Traffic 
AoI Area of Influence 
AQMA Air Quality Management Area 
ATS Active Travel Strategy 
CWIS1 Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy 
CWIS2 The second cycling and walking investment strategy 
LAD Local Authority District 
LCWIP Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
LSOA Lower Layer Super Output Area (UK census geography) 
LTCP Local Transport and Connectivity Plan 
LTN1/20 Cycle Infrastructure Design (Local Transport Note 1/20) 
MSOA Middle Layer Super Output Area (UK census geography) 
NCN5 National Cycle Network Route 5 
ONS Office for National Statistics 
PCT Propensity to Cycle Tool 
SATN Strategic Active Travel Network 
SO South Oxfordshire (local authority district) 
SODC South Oxfordshire District Council 
SPD Supplementary Planning Document 
SVATN Science Vale Active Travel Network 
VoWH Vale of White Horse (local authority district) 
VoWHDC Vale of White Horse District Council 

   

Page 77



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

48 
 

References 
 
[1]  Department for Transport, “Cycling and walking investment strategy,” 2017. 

[Online]. Available: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycling-and-
walking-investment-strategy. 

[2]  Department for Transport, “Planning local cycling and walking networks,” 2017. 
[Online]. Available: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-cycling-
and-walking-infrastructure-plans-technical-guidance-and-tools. 

[3]  Department for Transport, “Cycling and walking plan for England,” 2020. 
[Online]. Available: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycling-and-
walking-plan-for-england. 

[4]  Department for Transport, “Cycle infrastructure design (LTN1/20),” 2020. 
[Online]. Available: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycle-
infrastructure-design-ltn-120. 

[5]  Department for Transport, “Inclusive mobility: making transport accessible for 
passengers and pedestrians,” 2022. [Online]. Available: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/inclusive-mobility-making-
transport-accessible-for-passengers-and-pedestrians. 

[6]  Department for Transport, “Transport decarbonisation plan,” 2021. [Online]. 
Available: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/transport-
decarbonisation-plan. 

[7]  Department for Transport, “The second cycling and walking investment 
strategy,” 2022. [Online]. Available: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-second-cycling-and-walking-
investment-strategy. 

[8]  Department for Transport, “The economic benefits of walking and cycling,” 
2014. [Online]. Available: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/economic-case-for-active-travel-
the-health-benefits. 

[9]  Living Streets, “High Streets,” [Online]. Available: 
https://www.livingstreets.org.uk/policy-and-resources/our-policy/high-streets. 

[10]  Oxfordshire County Council, “Local Transport and Connectivity Plan,” 2022. 
[Online]. Available: https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-
transport/connecting-oxfordshire/ltcp. 

[11]  Oxfordshire County Council, “Active travel,” 2022. [Online]. Available: 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/connecting-
oxfordshire/active-travel-0. 

[12]  Vale of White Horse District Council, “Local Plan 2031,” [Online]. Available: 
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-
and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/local-plan-2031/. [Accessed 
20 October 2021]. 

[13]  South Oxfordshire District Council, “Adopted Local Plan 2035,” [Online]. 
Available: https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-
council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-planning-policies/local-plan-
2035/adopted-local-plan-2035/. [Accessed 20 October 2021]. 

[14]  Oxfordshire County Council, “Science Vale Cycle Network (SVCN),” 2021. 
[Online]. Available: https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-

Page 78



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

49 
 

transport/roadworks/major-current-roadworks/science-vale-cycle-network. 
[15]  Vale of White Horse District Council, “Dalton Barracks Supplementary Planning 

Document (SPD),” [Online]. Available: https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-
of-white-horse-district-council/planning-and-development/local-plan-and-
planning-policies/supplementary-planning-documents/dalton-barracks-
supplementary-planning-document/. 

[16]  Vale of White Horse District Council, “Designated conservation areas, 
character appraisals, management plans and maps,” [Online]. Available: 
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/planning-
and-development/building-conservation-and-design/conservation-
areas/designated-conservation-areas-character-appraisals-management-
plans-and-maps/. 

[17]  Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs, “AQMA Details: Abingdon 
AQMA (Vale of White Horse District Council),” [Online]. Available: https://uk-
air.defra.gov.uk/aqma/details?aqma_ref=517. 

[18]  Oxfordshire County Council, “A34 Lodge Hill Interchange,” [Online]. Available: 
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/roadworks/future-
transport-projects/a34-lodge-hill-interchange. 

[19]  National Highways, “A34 improvements north and south of Oxford,” [Online]. 
Available: https://nationalhighways.co.uk/our-roads/a34-improvements-north-
and-south-of-oxford/. 

[20]  Abingdon Liveable Streets, “Abingdon Cycling and Walking Network Plan,” 
2020. 

[21]  OpenStreetMap contributors, “OpenStreetMap,” [Online]. Available: 
https://www.openstreetmap.org. 

[22]  Department for Transport, “National Travel Survey: 2011,” 2012. [Online]. 
Available: https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/national-travel-survey-
2011. 

[23]  Department for Transport, “National Travel Survey: 2019,” 2020. [Online]. 
Available: https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/national-travel-survey-
2019. 

[24]  Department for Transport, “National Travel Survey: 2020,” 2021. [Online]. 
Available: https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/national-travel-survey-
2020. 

[25]  Office for National Statistics, “Open Geography Portal: LSOA MSOA 2011,” 
[Online]. Available: https://geoportal.statistics.gov.uk/maps/ons::lsoa-msoa-
2011-1/explore?location=51.673105%2C-1.275992%2C13.78. 

[26]  Office for National Statistics, “Census 2011 Origin-Destination,” [Online]. 
Available: https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/sources/census_2011_od. 

[27]  Lovelace, R., Goodman, A., Aldred, R., Berkoff, N., Abbas, A., & Woodcock, J., 
“The Propensity to Cycle Tool: An open source online system for sustainable 
transport planning,” Journal of Transport and Land Use, vol. 10, no. 1, 2017.  

[28]  CycleStreets, “Journey Planner - plan a cycle journey,” [Online]. Available: 
https://www.cyclestreets.net/. 

[29]  Department for Transport, “Travel to School,” 2020. [Online]. Available: 
https://www.ethnicity-facts-figures.service.gov.uk/culture-and-
community/transport/travel-to-school/latest. 

Page 79



Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan – v1.0 Jan 2023 

50 
 

[30]  Lovelace, R. and Talbot, J., “Rapid Cycleway Prioritisation Tool,” 2020. 
[Online]. Available: https://www.cyipt.bike/rapid/. 

[31]  Strava, “Global Heatmap,” [Online]. Available: 
https://www.strava.com/heatmap. [Accessed 15 November 2021]. 

[32]  CycleStreets, “Mapping Low-Traffic Neighbourhoods (LTNs) and modal filters,” 
[Online]. Available: https://www.lowtrafficneighbourhoods.org/. [Accessed 09 
June 2022]. 

[33]  Oxfordshire County Council, “The 20mph restriction programme,” [Online]. 
Available: https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-
transport/traffic/20mph-scheme/20mph-restriction-programme. 

[34]  Oxfordshire County Council, “Abingdon - proposed 20mph & 30mph speed 
limits,” [Online]. Available: 
https://letstalk.oxfordshire.gov.uk/abingdon_2030mph2022. 

[35]  Department for Transport, “Road Safety Data,” 2022. [Online]. Available: 
https://www.data.gov.uk/dataset/cb7ae6f0-4be6-4935-9277-
47e5ce24a11f/road-safety-data. 

[36]  CycleStreets, “BikeData,” [Online]. Available: https://bikedata.cyclestreets.net/. 
[37]  Vale of White Horse District Council, “Oxfordshire Air Quality,” [Online]. 

Available: https://oxfordshire.air-quality.info/local-air-quality-management/vale-
of-white-horse. 

[38]  Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs, “UK Air Information 
Resource,” [Online]. Available: https://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/aqma/maps/. 

[39]  Sport England, “Active Lives Online,” [Online]. Available: 
https://activelives.sportengland.org/. 

[40]  Office for National Statistics, “Middle Super Output Area population estimates: 
Mid-2020: SAPE23DT4 edition of this dataset,” [Online]. Available: 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigratio
n/populationestimates/datasets/middlesuperoutputareamidyearpopulationestim
ates. 

[41]  Department for Transport, “National Travel Attitudes Study: Wave 5,” 2021. 
[Online]. Available: https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/national-travel-
attitudes-study-wave-5/national-travel-attitudes-study-wave-5. 

[42]  Oxfordshire County Council, “Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 2019,” 
[Online]. Available: 
https://public.tableau.com/views/IMD2019Oxfordshire/IMD2019?:embed=y&:di
splay_count=no&:showVizHome=no#1. 

[43]  “Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations,” 2010. [Online]. Available: 
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/948/contents/. 

 
 

Page 80



Abingdon LCWIP Appendix A: 
Geographical Scope Map 

Page 81



   

        

 

   

Abingdon LCWIP Geographical Scope 

Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2020 

Legend 
Main boundary 

Extension for Dalton Barracks 

¯ 

0 0.5 1 2 3 4
Kilometers 

P
age 82



Abingdon LCWIP Appendix B: 
Local Trip Generators Map 

Page 83



Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2020

0 1 2 3 40.5
Kilometers

¯

Legend
Strategic allocations

Employment and services

! Schools and education

! Railway stations

Abingdon LCWIP Local Trip Generators

P
age 84



Abingdon LCWIP Appendix C: 
Network Map 

Page 85



ABP03

ABP05

ABP08

ABP
10

AB
P0

6

ABP
04

ABP07
ABP02

AB
P

01

AB
P1

1

ABP00

ABP09

AB
P

03

AB
P0

3

ABP05

AB
P0

1

ABP03

ABP
08

AB
P1

0

Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2020

0 1 2 3 40.5
Kilometers

¯

Legend
Primary routes

Secondary routes

Restricted routes

Future routes

Abingdon LCWIP Network

P
age 86



Abingdon LCWIP Appendix D: 
Core Walking Zone Map 

Page 87



Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2020

0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.50.05
Kilometers

¯

Legend
Core Walking Zone (CWZ)

Primary routes

Secondary routes

Restricted routes

Future routes

Abingdon LCWIP Core Walking Zone

P
age 88



Abingdon LCWIP Appendix E: 
Primary Route Audit Log 

Page 89



Abingdon LCWIP Primary Route Audit Log
Aug-22

Route ref ALS ref Section Length [km] 85%le speed AADT (year) Starts Ends Audit date Auditors ALS Authors CLoS critical fail1 CLoS score (/50) CLoS score (%)2

ABP00 IR High Street and Ock Street 0.29 24.9mph Estimate 9000 (2017) Bridge Street Stratton Way 18/05/2022 SL, HD, NM OM, RT 15 21 42%
ABP00 IR Stratton Way 0.41 Estimate >30mph 19000 (2016) Ock Street Stert Street 18/05/2022 SL, HD, NM OM, RT 11, 12, 15 17 34%
ABP00 IR Stert Street 1.00 22.4mph 8700 (2016) Stratton Way High Street 18/05/2022 SL, HD, NM OM, RT 15 21 42%

ABP01 n/a Oxford Road (a) 1.40 54.1mph 18900 (2019) Sugworth Lane Twelve Acre Drive 12/05/2022 SL SA, RT 9, 10, 11, 12 15 30%
ABP01 Rad1 Oxford Road (b) 0.91 Estimate >30mph Estimate 10600 (2019) Twelve Acre Drive Northcourt Road 12/05/2022 SL SA, RT 11, 12 19 38%
ABP01 Rad1 Oxford Road (c) 0.93 Estimate >30mph 10600 (2019) Northcourt Road Vineyard 12/05/2022 SL SA, RT 11, 12, 15 20 40%
ABP01 Rad1 Vineyard 0.31 26.1mph 15200 (2019) Oxford Road Stert Street 12/05/2022 SL SA, RT 11, 12, 15 21 42%

ABP02 Rad2 Radley Road (a) 0.46 36.7mph 6000 (2019) White's Lane Audlett Drive 10/05/2022 SL HM, RT 12 16 32%
ABP02 Rad2 Radley Road (b) 0.79 31.1mph 3600 (2019) Audlett Drive Kennet Road 10/05/2022 SL HM, RT 12 21 42%
ABP02 Rad2 Radley Road (c) 0.79 31.8mph 3600 (2019) Kennet Road Vineyard 10/05/2022 SL HM, RT 12 19 38%

ABP03 n/a Kennington Road 1.13 43.8mph 2900 (2015) Sugworth Ln Church Road 10/05/2022 SL AP, NN, SA, JW, RT 9, 10, 12 20 40%
ABP03 n/a Church Road and Foxborough Road 1.32 32.5mph 2600 (2019) Kennington Road Thrupp Lane 10/05/2022 SL AP, NN, SA, JW, RT 15 22 44%
ABP03 n/a Thrupp Lane 1.03 31.8mph 330 (2012) Foxborough Road Radley Lakes BOAT 10/05/2022 SL AP, NN, SA, JW, RT n/a 19 38%
ABP03 Rad5 Radley Lakes 1.61 n/a n/a Thrupp Lane Barton Fields 10/05/2022 SL AP, NN, SA, JW, RT n/a 30 60%
ABP03 Rad5 Barton Fields and Abbey Meadows 1.49 21.3mph 1000 (2008) Barton Fields Bridge Street 10/05/2022 SL AP, NN, SA, JW, RT n/a 26 52%
ABP03 Rad7 Market Place to Wilsham Road 0.60 24.4mph 3000 (2022) Bridge Street Wilsham Road 10/05/2022 SL AP, NN, SA, JW, RT 12, 15 19 38%
ABP03 Rad7 Wilsham Road, N Quay and W Quay 1.08 30.5mph 2500 (2009) Caldecott Road Peep O Day Lane 10/05/2022 SL AP, NN, SA, JW, RT 15 24 48%
ABP03 Rad7 Peep O Day Lane 1.72 n/a n/a Lambrick Way Drayton Road 10/05/2022 SL AP, NN, SA, JW, RT n/a 29 58%

ABP04 Rad6 Bridge Street 0.37 33.5mph 10300 (2018) High Street Rye Farm Car Park 21/04/2022 SL, HD SD, RT 11, 12, 15 17 34%
ABP04 Rad6 The Causeway 1.01 44.1mph 10300 (2018) Rye Farm Car Park The Burycroft 21/04/2022 SL, HD SD, RT 9, 10, 11, 12 13 26%

ABP05 Rad9 Ock Street 0.69 24.9mph 14800 (2017) Stratton Way Drayton Road 01/06/2022 SL, JM PN, RT 11, 15 18 36%
ABP05 Rad9 Marcham Road 0.99 36.0mph 24600 (2019) Drayton Road Marcham Interchange 01/06/2022 SL, JM PN, RT 11, 12 16 32%

ABP06 Rad8 Drayton Road (a) 0.41 27.3mph 18500 (2018) Ock Street Caldecott Road 26/07/2022 SL EdlH, RT 11, 12, 15 17 34%
ABP06 Rad8 Drayton Road (b) 0.51 26.1mph Estimate 18500 (2018) Caldecott Road Preston Road 26/07/2022 SL EdlH, RT 11, 12, 15 18 36%
ABP06 Rad8 Drayton Road (c) 0.52 Estimate >40mph Estimate 11100 (2019) Preston Road Stonehill Lane 26/07/2022 SL EdlH, RT 9, 10, 11 19 38%
ABP07 Rad9 Drayton Road (d) 0.78 45.9mph 11100 (2019) Stonehill Lane Sutton Wick Lane 26/07/2022 SL EdlH, RT 9, 10, 11 22 44%

ABP07 Rad10 Faringdon Road (a) 0.53 30.5mph Estimate 4500 (2018) Bath St Spring Road 14/06/2022 SL, EW, WP ME, ME, RT 15 19 38%
ABP07 Rad10 Faringdon Road (b) 0.75 30.5mph 4500 (2018) Spring Road Barrow Road 14/06/2022 SL, EW, WP ME, ME, RT 15 18 36%
ABP07 Rad10 Faringdon Road (c) and Cholswell Road 0.75 30.5mph Estimate 4500 (2018) Barrow Road Long Tow 14/06/2022 SL, EW, WP ME, ME, RT 12 22 44%

ABP08 Rad11 Bath Street 0.38 29.8mph 7000 (2019) Stratton Way Faringdon Road 17/05/2022 SL AP, NN, SA, JW, RT n/a 18 36%
ABP08 Rad11 Wootton Road (a) 0.60 29.8mph 6200 (2019) Faringdon Road Northcourt Road 17/05/2022 SL AP, NN, SA, JW, RT n/a 19 38%
ABP08 Rad11 Wootton Road (b) 0.47 29.8mph Estimate 6200 (2019) Northcourt Road Dunmore Road 17/05/2022 SL AP, NN, SA, JW, RT n/a 24 48%
ABP08 Rad11 Wootton Road (c) 0.40 39.2mph 9100 (2019) Dunmore Road Long Tow 17/05/2022 SL AP, NN, SA, JW, RT 9, 10 22 44%

ABP09 n/a Long Tow 0.74 38.3mph 3200 (2018) Cholswell Rd Wootton Road 17/05/2022 SL - 9, 10, 12 25 50%

ABP10 Rad4 Audlett Drive (a) 0.16 Estimate 30mph Estimate 6300 (2022) Radley Road Thames View 14/06/2022 SL CB, RT 15 20 40%
ABP10 Rad4 Audlett Drive (b) 2.04 38.5mph 6300 (2022) Thames View Twelve Acre Drive 14/06/2022 SL CB, RT 9, 10 21 42%
ABP10 OR Twelve Acre Drive 1.34 42.9mph 12500 (2008) Radley Road Oxford Road 14/06/2022 SL NR, RT 9, 10, 11 20 40%
ABP10 OR Dunmore Road 1.92 41.0mph 17200 (2008) Oxford Road Wootton Road 14/06/2022 SL NR, RT 9, 10, 11 18 36%
ABP10 OR Copenhagen Drive 1.10 44.9mph 14500 (2008) Wootton Road Colwell Drive 14/06/2022 SL NR, RT 9, 10, 11 20 40%
ABP10 OR Colwell Drive 0.86 Estimate >40mph Estimate 14500 (2008) Copenhagen Drive Marcham Road 14/06/2022 SL NR, RT 9, 10, 11 20 40%

ABP11 n/a White's Lane 0.90 34.4mph 2800 (2019) Church Rd Radley Rd 12/05/2022 SL - 12 20 40%
Footnotes

1
2 CLoS score brackets are as follows: 'low' (red) <40%, 'intermediate' (amber) 40% - 69%, 'high' (green) 70% and over

ABP00

ABP01

ABP02

ABP03

ABP04

ABP05

ABP06

ABP07

ABP08

ABP09

ABP10

ABP11

Numbers refer to CLoS criteria reference numbers (refer to LTN1/20 for details)

P
age 90



Abingdon LCWIP Appendix F: 
Primary Routes Current Cycling Level of 

Service (CLoS) Map 

Page 91



ABP03

ABP05

ABP08

ABP10

AB
P0
6

ABP04

ABP07
ABP
02

AB
P0
1

AB
P11

AB
P00

ABP09

AB
P0
3

AB
P0
3

ABP05

AB
P0
1

ABP03

ABP08

AB
P1
0

Conta ins OS da ta  © Crown Cop yright a nd da ta ba se right 2020

0 1 2 3 40.5
Kilometers

¯

Legend
CLOS

Low CLoS (<40%)

Intermedia te CLoS (40-69%)

High CLoS (≥70%)

No forma l CLoS score

Abingdon LCWIP Prima ry Routes Current Cycling Level of Service (CLoS)

P
age 92



Abingdon LCWIP Appendix G: 
Programme of Walking and Cycling 

Infrastructure Improvements 

Page 93



Jan-23

Proposal 
reference

Route/zone 
references

Modes1 Proposal name Proposal description Timescale2 Cost estimate 
(outline design)

Funding sources 
(outline design)

Design 
secured

Cost estimate 
(delivery)

Funding sources 
(delivery)

Delivery 
secured

Mapped3

Primary route network proposals
ABP00-01 ABP00, 

ABP03, 
ABP04

Both Market Place junction improvements Eliminate the NCN5 'missing link' where cycle users must 
dismount (northbound only from Lombard Street to Bridge 
Street) and improve crossing facilities for cycling and walking 
on all arms of the junction. An outline design has been 
produced by Sustrans in partnership with Oxfordshire County 
Council. We will now seek to progress to detailed design and 
to secure delivery of this scheme.

medium £50k-£100k Sustrans LCWIP3 N £500k-£1m None N Y

ABP00-02 ABP00 Both Stert St active travel and public realm 
improvements

Provide zebra and parallel crossings (see proposal ABP00-05) 
on Stert Street at links to adjoining walking and cycling routes 
and widen footways where possible.

long £50k-£100k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP00-03 ABP00 Walking High St active travel and public realm 
improvements

Provide widened footways and associated public realm 
improvements on High Street and Ock Street to the junction 
with Stratton Way.

long £50k-£100k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP00-04 ABP00 Walking High Street zebra crossing Provide a new zebra crossing on High Street, west of the 
Market Place.

long Included in 
proposal ABP00-
03 estimate

None N £50k-£100k None N Y

ABP00-05 ABP00 Both Stert St parallel crossing from Broad 
Street to Old Station Yard

Provide a new parallel crossing on Stert Street from Broad 
Street to Old Station Yard.

long Included in 
proposal ABP00-
02 estimate

None N £100k-£250k None N Y

ABP00-06 ABP00 Both Stratton Way parallel or toucan 
crossing

Provide a parallel or toucan crossing at the site of the existing 
signalised crossing on Stratton Way at Bath Street.

medium ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP00-07 ABP00, 
ABP08

Both Stratton Way and Bath Street 
junction improvements

Redesign the junction of Stratton Way and Bath Street to 
prioritise safe crossing movements for cycling and walking. 
Crossing Bath Street to the north of Stratton Way is very 
difficult at present.

long £50k-£100k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP00-08 ABP00 Cycling Stratton Way cycle tracks Provide segregated cycle tracks in both directions on Stratton 
Way.

long £50k-£100k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP01-01 ABP01 Cycling Vineyard advisory cycle lanes Remove the centreline and provide wide advisory cycle lanes 
(1.5m minimum at constraints and 2m where width is 
adequate).

medium ≤£50k None N £50k-£100k None N Y

ABP01-02 ABP01 Cycling Oxford Road segregated cycle route Provide a segregated cycle route, using a mixture of service 
roads and segregated cycle tracks between Vineyard and 
Peachcroft roundabout. Side road entry treatments should 
provide priority for people walking and cycling along Oxford 
Road. The design should consider complementary 
improvements for walking.

long £100k-£250k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP01-03 ABP01 Both St John's Road to Boxhill Road 
connection

Provide an improved cycling and walking connection (parallel 
crossing preferred) over Oxford Road, to link the cycling and 
walking routes along St John's Road and Boxhill Road and 
create an accessible east-west route from Radley Road to 
Wootton Road. Comprehensive improvements to this route 
should be investigated in the event that funding for feasibility 
and design of proposal ABP01-03 is found.

long £50k-£100k None N Design dependent none N Y

ABP01-04 ABP01 Both Oxford Road, Northcourt Road and 
Appleford Drive junction 
improvements

Redesign the junction of Oxford Road, Northcourt Road and 
Appleford Drive to prioritise safe movements for cycling and 
walking through the junction. Consideration should be given 
to the potential impact on Northcourt Lane and measures 
should be taken to avoid this route becoming an attractive 
through-route for motor vehicles.

long £50k-£100k None N Design dependent None N Y

Abingdon LCWIP Programme of Walking and Cycling Infrastructure Improvements

P
age 94



ABP01-05 ABP01, 
ABP10

Both Peachcroft roundabout parallel or 
toucan crossings

Provide parallel or toucan crossings for walking and cycling 
across all arms of Peachcroft roundabout (junction of Oxford 
Road, Twelve Acre Drive and Dunmore Road). Note that a 
toucan crossing over the northern arm is to be delivered by 
the developer of the North Abingdon strategic site. The type 
and design of the crossings on the other arms should be 
determined with consideration for the traffic flows and speeds 
on each arm. These will be affected by the upcoming speed 
limit changes in Abingdon, as well as by the occupation of the 
housing at the North Abingdon site, and by the 
implementation of the A34 Lodge Hill Interchange south-
facing slip roads scheme.

medium £50k-£100k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP01-06 ABP01 Both Oxford Road toucan crossing north of 
ring road

Provide a toucan crossing across Oxford Road between the 
Central Parcel and the Eastern Parcel of the North Abingdon 
site. This infrastructure was secured prior to the development 
of the Abingdon LCWIP and is to be delivered by a local 
developer as a condition of their planning permission.

direct n/a S106/S278 Y n/a S106/S278 Y Y

ABP01-07 ABP01 Both Oxford Road active travel 
improvements (ring road to Lodge 
Hill)

Provide a 3m shared use path on the west side of Oxford Road 
to the north of the proposed Oxford Road toucan crossing 
(ABP01-06) to link up with existing shared use path to Lodge 
Hill Garage. Provide a 3m shared use path on east side of 
Oxford Road to the south of the same toucan crossing until 
Oxford Road roundabout. Provide dropped kerbs to the north 
and south to allow cyclists to join and leave these shared use 
paths.  This infrastructure was secured prior to the 
development of the Abingdon LCWIP and is to be delivered by 
a local developer as a condition of their planning permission.

direct n/a S106/S278 Y n/a S106/S278 Y Y

ABP01-08 ABP01 Both Lodge Hill interchange walking and 
cycling improvements

Walking and cycling improvements through A34 Lodge Hill 
Interchange to be delivered as part of the strategic scheme to 
provide south-facing slip roads.

long n/a n/a n/a n/a Y

ABP01-09 ABP01, 
ABP02

Walking Vineyard mini roundabout zebra 
crossings

Provide zebra crossings on each arm of the junction of Oxford 
Road, Vineyard and Radley Road.

long £50k-£100k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP01-10 ABP01 Walking Controlled crossing on Oxford Road 
to provide safe access between 
Northcourt Lane and Norman Avenue

Provide a controlled crossing to facilitate safe crossing of 
Oxford Road between Northcourt Lane and Norman Avenue, 
to cater for school travel. Complementary reduction of 
junction radii at Northcourt Lane and Norman Avenue may be 
required (other traffic reduction or calming measures may 
also be appropriate).

long ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP02-01 ABP02, 
ABP11

Both Radley Road and Whites Lane shared 
use route

Extension and widening (to 3.5m) of footpath adjacent to 
Radley Road (Radley 326/8/10); provision of new crossing 
facilities to NW Radley site (uncontrolled) and to Foxborough 
Road (parallel).  This infrastructure was secured prior to the 
development of the Abingdon LCWIP and is to be delivered by 
a local developer as a condition of their planning permission.

direct n/a S106/S278 Y n/a S106/S278 Y Y

ABP02-02 ABP02 Both Radley Road shared use path 
widening

Widen shared use path to 3m using private land to the north 
of the highway between Twelve Acre Drive and the Cinder 
Track. This will require a retaining wall or groundworks to 
account for the level difference between the field and the 
highway.  This infrastructure was secured prior to the 
development of the Abingdon LCWIP and is to be delivered by 
a local developer as a condition of their planning permission.

direct n/a S106/S278 Y n/a S106/S278 Y Y

P
age 95



ABP02-03 ABP02 Both Radley Road roundabout 
improvements

Provide a widened refuge island (on Twelve Acre Drive), new 
cycle off-slip for cycling towards Radley on path 326/8/10 and 
visibility improvements.  This infrastructure was secured prior 
to the development of the Abingdon LCWIP and is to be 
delivered by a local developer as a condition of their planning 
permission.

direct n/a S106/S278 Y n/a S106/S278 Y Y

ABP02-04 ABP02 Cycling Radley Road segregated cycle track(s) Investigate the feasibility of providing off-carriageway cycling 
facilities along Radley Road between Twelve Acre Drive and 
Kennet Road. The verge along this section is wide and it may 
be possible to reallocate some of this width. See proposal 
ABP02-05 as an alternative/additional measure.

long £50k-£100k None N Design dependent None N N

ABP02-05 ABP02 Cycling Radley Road advisory cycle lanes Remove the centreline and provide wide advisory cycle lanes 
(1.5 minimum at constraints and 2m where width is adequate) 
supported by waiting restrictions along the full length of the 
route. See proposal ABP02-04 as an alternative/additional 
measure.

medium £50k-£100k None N £50k-£100k None N Y

ABP03-01 ABP03 Both East of Kennington Road cycle route Provide a 3m shared use path on eastern side of Kennington 
road until footpath (Radley) 326/3/10 which is being surfaced 
for shared use by the developer of the South Kennington 
strategic site.  This infrastructure was secured prior to the 
development of the Abingdon LCWIP and is to be delivered by 
a local developer as a condition of their planning permission.

direct n/a S106/S278 Y n/a S106/S278 Y Y

ABP03-02 ABP03 Both NCN5 (to Radley Lakes) surface 
improvements

Resurface NCN5 between Barton Fields and Thrupp Lane to 
provide a smooth surface suitable for utility and commuting 
trips by walking and cycling in all seasons.

medium ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP03-03 ABP03 Both Abbey Stream bridge replacement Provide a new bridge suitable for cycling and walking between 
Abbey Meadows and Barton Fields. The bridge deck should be 
a minimum of 4m wide for shared use, should have an 
appropriate parapet height to permit cycling, and should have 
inclusive gradients for access in both directions.

short ≤£50k VoWH CIL TBC Design dependent VoWH CIL TBC Y

ABP03-04 ABP03 Cycling East St Helen Street cycle contraflow Redesign to permit contraflow cycling on East St Helen Street. 
An outline design has been produced by Sustrans in 
partnership with Oxfordshire County Council. We will now 
seek to progress to detailed design and to secure delivery of 
this scheme.

medium Included in 
proposal ABP00-
01 estimate

Sustrans LCWIP3 Y Included in 
proposal ABP00-
01 estimate

None N Y

ABP03-05 ABP03 Cycling West St Helen Street cycle contraflow Provide a southbound contraflow cycling facility with light 
segregation from St Helen's Court to the southbound arm of 
East St Helen Street (to provide a cycling link to/from Ock 
Street via Winsmore Lane and/or Coopers Lane).

short ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP03-06 ABP03 Cycling Wilsham Road segregated cycle track Provide a two-way segregated waterfront cycle track and 
footway widening between Caldecott Road and Preston Road. 
Implementation may require a one-way (northbound) 
arrangement for vehicular traffic between Preston Rd and 
Caldecott Rd and supporting waiting restrictions. Modification 
of the barrier at North Quay should be prioritised to 
complement this. 

long £50k-£100k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP03-07 ABP03 Both Thrupp Lane off-carriageway shared 
use path

Investigate options for providing an off-carriageway walking 
and cycling route between Radley and the Radley Lakes area, 
as an alternative to the carriageway along Thrupp Lane.

medium ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

P
age 96



ABP04-01 ABP04 Both Abingdon Bridge active travel 
improvements

Provide widened footways and consider providing advisory 
cycle lanes to help cyclists bypass queueing traffic. Adequate 
provision of footway width may require retaining the recent 
temporary shuttle working arrangement, which could be 
implemented on a temporary or experimental basis in the first 
instance (thereby permitting a shorter timescale).

medium £50k-£100k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP04-02 ABP04 Both Off-carriageway cycling 
route(s)between Abingdon and 
Culham and onwards to Berinsfield

Investigate options for providing an off-carriageway cycle 
route adjacent to the A415 between Abingdon and Culham 
(and Berinsfield) including, but not limited to widening of the 
Causeway to provide a shared use walking and cycling route. 
Design of the route along the A415 should include provision 
for safe crossing of side roads and accesses, whilst retaining 
priority for the walking and cycling route over these side roads 
(including Rye Farm car park access, Thame Lane and the 
Europa School access).

long £100k-£250k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP04-03 ABP04 Both Parallel crossing on the A415 
immediately south of Abingdon 
Bridge

Provide a parallel crossing for walking and cycling across the 
A415 immediately south of Abingdon Bridge (near the access 
to Rye Farm car park). This will help to provide access to and 
from the Causeway for walking and cycling, and will provide 
additional benefits for walking along the Thames Path, which 
crosses the A415 here. It will also aid pedestrians seeking to 
access the east side footway on the bridge (as the west side 
footway does not continue for the full span of the bridge).

long ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP04-04 ABP04 Both Redesign of the junction of A415 and 
Tollgate Road to priorisise safe 
walking and cycling movements

Provide toucan crossings for walking and cycling across both 
the A415 and Tollgate Road, and redesign the junction layout 
to facilitate the widening of the walking and cycling route on 
the north side of the A415.

long £100k-£250k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP05-01 ABP05 Both Ock St active travel improvements Provide segregated cycle tracks in both directions along Ock 
Street, between Stratton Way and Drayton Rd, along with 
complementary walking improvements. Feasibility and 
preliminary design work for this scheme has been funded 
through the DfT's Active Travel Fund Tranche 3. Consideration 
should be given to provision of additional cycle parking near 
trip generators (e.g. takeaways).

medium £100k-£250k ATT3 Y Design dependent None N Y

ABP05-02 ABP05, 
ABP06

Both Drayton Road double mini 
roundabout junction improvements

Redesign the junction of Drayton Road, Ock Street and 
Marcham Road to prioritise safe movements for cycling and 
walking. Improvements to walking and cycling conditions at 
this junction are essential to support the proposed 
improvements along Ock Street.

long £50k-£100k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP05-03 ABP05 Both Marcham Road and Colwell Drive 
controlled crossings

Provide controlled crossings for walking and cycling (parallel 
or toucan crossings) across all arms of the roundabout where 
Colwell Drive meets Marcham Road.

medium £50k-£100k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP05-04 ABP05 Both Shared use route improvements 
(widening and crossings) through 
Marcham Interchange and onwards 
to Marcham

Consider options for improvements (widening and crossings) 
to the existing (~1.7m shared use) facility along the A415 and 
alternative alignments. Work with National Highways to 
improve walking and cycling conditions through Marcham 
Interchange.

long £100k-£250k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP05-05 ABP05 Both Marcham Road segregated cycle 
route from Ock Street to Marcham 
Interchange

Consider options for providing a segregated cycle route along 
Marcham Road including improved access for both walking 
and cycling through the major roundabouts along this section.

long £100k-£250k None N Design dependent None N Y

P
age 97



ABP05-06 ABP05 Both Fairacres roundabout redesign to 
facilitate provision of controlled 
crossings

Provide controlled crossings for walking and cycling across all 
arms (with the priority being crossings over the north and 
south arms) of the Fairacres roundabout. This is likely to 
require a wider review of the roundabout layout.

long £100k-£250k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP06-01 ABP06 Both Drayton Road active travel 
improvements

Provide a segregated cycle route, using a mixture of service 
roads and segregated cycle tracks between Preston Road and 
Ock Street. Side road entry treatments should provide priority 
for people walking and cycling along Drayton Road. The design 
should consider complementary improvements for walking. 
Width is highly constrained along this route and alternative 
alignments may need to be considered. Departures from 
LTN1/20 standards or alternative routing may be required 
through the width-constrained section between Mill Road and 
Ock Street.

long £100k-£250k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP06-02 ABP06 Both New walking and cycling river 
crossing (bridge) over the Ock

Use Vale of White Horse District Council and Abingdon Town 
Council land west of existing B4017 bridge to provide a new 
walking and cycling river crossing (bridge) over the Ock to link 
with suitable crossing facilities at the Drayton Road, Marcham 
Road and Ock Street junction (double-mini roundabouts). 
Options for accessing this bridge from the south (including 
joining from the carriageway and from a quiet route via 
Ladygrove Meadow) should be considered carefully.

long £100k-£250k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP06-03 ABP06 Both B4017 (Drayton Road and Abingdon 
Road) shared use route 
improvements (widening and priority 
through junctions) to Drayton

Consider improvements to the existing (narrow shared use) 
facility along the B4017 (Drayton Road and Abingdon Road) 
from Preston Road to Sutton Wick Lane. Widening may 
require realigning the carriageway to the west through some 
sections.

long £100k-£250k N Design dependent N Y

ABP06-04 ABP06 Both Controlled crossing at the south end 
of the shared use path between 
Drayton and Abingdon

Provide a controlled crossing for walking and cycling across 
the B4017 at the northern extent of Drayton village, to 
provide safe access to the shared use path on the east side at 
peak times

long ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP07-01 ABP07 Cycling Faringdon Road and Cholswell Road 
cycle route

Investigate the feasibility of providing off-carriageway cycling 
facilities along width-constrained route bus route. Provide 
wide advisory cycle lanes (1.5-2m) where physical segregation 
is not possible. Provide side road entry treatments along the 
full length of the route and improve connections to other 
cycle routes (especially to Copenhagen Drive via the ramp 
described in proposal ABP07-02).

long £100k-£250k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP07-02 ABP07, 
ABP10

Both Ramp legthening and accessibility 
improvements between Faringdon 
Road and Copenhagen Drive

Minimise the gradient of the ramp and widen the surface to 
facilitate cycling and accessibility for all users.The design 
should include measures to aid safe and convenient access to 
and from the ramp for all walking and cycling movements, 
with reference to the proposals for the walking and cycling 
routes on Faringdon Road (ABP07-01) and Copenhagen Drive 
(ABP10-01 and ABP10-02).

long ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP07-03 ABP07, 
ABP08

Both Link from Faringdon Road to Bath 
Street service road

Provide a link for walking and cycling between Faringdon Road 
(at its junction with Wootton Road) and the Bath Street 
service road, to facilitate movements between Faringdon 
Road and Boxhill Walk

long ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP08-01 ABP08 Cycling Wootton cycle route Consider options for providing an off-carriageway cycle route 
to Wootton including a route through the proposed 
development site at Dalton Barracks and onwards via Public 
Rights of Way connections, as well as an off-carriageway 
facility along the B4017.

long £100k-£250k None N Design dependent None N Y

P
age 98



ABP08-02 ABP08 Both Wootton Road existing shared use 
path improvements

Widen the shared use paths along Wootton Road (from 
Trendell Place to Long Tow on the west side and from 
Northcourt Road to the Wootton Road roundabout on the 
east side) to >3m where space is available and provide side 
road entry treatments to give walking and cycling priority 
through junctions along the full length of the route. Consider 
similar widening for the new shared use path between Boxhill 
Walk and Northcourt Road (proposal ABP08-03).

long £50k-£100k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP08-03 ABP08 Both Wootton Road new shared use path Provide a 3m shared use path on the eastern side of Wootton 
Road from Northcourt Road to Boxhill Walk, to link up with 
the Bath Street service road.  This infrastructure was secured 
prior to the development of the Abingdon LCWIP and is to be 
delivered by a local developer as a condition of their planning 
permission.

direct n/a S106/S278 Y n/a S106/S278 Y Y

ABP08-04 ABP08 Cycling Bath Street and Wootton Road on-
carriageway cycling improvements

Provide an inbound advisory cycle lane to help cyclists bypass 
queueing traffic on Bath Street and an adequate hatched 
buffer space (0.5m minimum) from the car door zone adjacent 
to parking bays. Widen existing outbound advisory cycle lane 
to 1.5m minimum to link with proposals for Faringdon Road 
(proposal ABP07-01). Remove existing narrow  advisory cycle 
lane on Wootton Road between Faringdon Road and Boxhill 
Walk and provide central cycle symbols in both directions to 
encourage cyclists to take a primary position in the lane. 
Remove the centreline and widen the existing advisory cycle 
lanes between Boxhill Walk and Trendell Place (west side) and 
Northcourt Road (east side) to 1.5m minimum.

medium ≤£50k None N £50k-£100k None N Y

ABP08-05 ABP08 Both Bath Street service road ramp Provide an accessible cycling and walking connection (ramp) 
from the service road back down to carriageway level at Bath 
Street.

medium ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP08-06 ABP08 Walking Bath Street zebra crossing Provide a new zebra crossing at the proposed ramp (proposal 
ABP08-05) to the Bath Street service road to provide a 
connection to Roysse's Lane and complementary footway 
widening to the north and south of the crossing (may require 
removal of on-street parking bays).

long ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N

ABP08-07 ABP08 Both Wootton Road connection to North 
West Abingdon site

Provide a 3m shared use path on the eastern side of Wootton 
Road from the North West Abingdon site to the Wootton 
Road roundabout and a new uncontrolled crossing with a 
refuge island suitable for cycling across the B4017 Wootton 
Road to join the existing shared use path on the western side.  
This infrastructure was secured prior to the development of 
the Abingdon LCWIP and is to be delivered by a local 
developer as a condition of their planning permission.

direct n/a S106/S278 Y n/a S106/S278 Y N

ABP08-08 ABP08, 
ABP10

Both Wootton Road roundabout parallel 
crossings

Provide parallel crossings on all four arms of the Wootton 
Road roundabout to prioritise active travel through this 
junction. Planned speed limit changes in Abingdon should 
make this approach viable, but it may be appropriate to 
consider toucan crossings as an alternative option.

medium £50k-£100k None N Design dependent None N Y

P
age 99



ABP09-01 ABP09 Both Long Tow cycle track(s) and footway 
widening

Provide segregated cycling facilities for the full length of Long 
Tow to link appropriately with existing infrastructure on 
Wootton Road. A continuous route in both directions, with 
convenient access to the southbound route along Wootton 
Road and into the Dalton Barracks site is preferred. Provision 
of adequate crossings to access these facilities at either end 
should be provided. Complementary footway improvements 
on both sides of the carriageway should be provided. 
Avoidance of conflict with public transport users at the bus 
stops should be considered. Delivery of these comprehensive 
improvements may require acquisition of land.

long ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP10-01 ABP10 Both Ring road side road entry treatments Provide reduced corner radii, raised table crossings and 
priority for walking and cycling across all side roads on Audlett 
Drive, Twelve Acre Drive, Dunmore Road, Copenhagen Drive 
and Colwell Drive. Audlett Drive is the priority as it forms part 
of a strategic cycle route to Radley railway station and 
onwards to Oxford and therefore carries higher walking and 
cycling flows than the rest of the ring road route.

medium £100k-£250k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP10-02 ABP10 Both Widening of ring road walking and 
cycling route and physical 
segregation of cycling from walking

Widen the ring road walking and cycling route and physically 
segregate walking and cycling where highway space is 
available.

long £100k-£250k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP10-03 ABP10 Cycling Audlett Drive advisory cycle lanes Provide wide advisory cycle lanes (1.5 minimum) with no 
centreline on Audlett Drive, between the existing toucan 
crossing and Radley Road. Offset the toucan crossing zig-zags 
to provide continuity to the dropped kerbs.

medium ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

ABP10-04 ABP10 Both North Abingdon site to Radley 
railway station shared use link

Provide a 3m shared use path on the north side of Twelve Acre 
Drive, linking North Abingdon development to Radley railway 
station.  This infrastructure was secured prior to the 
development of the Abingdon LCWIP and is to be delivered by 
a local developer as a condition of their planning permission.

direct n/a S106/S278 Y n/a S106/S278 Y Y

ABP10-05 ABP10 Both North Abingdon site to Tilsley Park 
shared use link

Provide 3m shared use path from Tilsley Park access road to 
western boundary of North Abingdon strategic site. The path 
will continue through the site and join up with the provision 
towards Radley from the eastern boundary of the site.  This 
infrastructure was secured prior to the development of the 
Abingdon LCWIP and is to be delivered by a local developer as 
a condition of their planning permission.

direct n/a S106/S278 Y n/a S106/S278 Y Y

ABP10-06 ABP10 Both North West Abingdon site to Tilsley 
Park shared use link 

Provide a 3m shared use path from Tilsley Park access road to 
eastern boundary of North West Abingdon strategic site 
including provision of a new walking and cycling bridge over 
the River Stert. The path will continue through the site.  This 
infrastructure was secured prior to the development of the 
Abingdon LCWIP and is to be delivered by a local developer as 
a condition of their planning permission.

direct n/a S106/S278 Y n/a S106/S278 Y Y

ABP10-07 ABP10 Both Carse Close link toucan crossing Provide toucan crossing across Twelve Acre Drive at new 
shared use link to Carse Close.  This infrastructure was secured 
prior to the development of the Abingdon LCWIP and is to be 
delivered by a local developer as a condition of their planning 
permission.

direct n/a S106/S278 Y n/a S106/S278 Y Y

P
age 100



ABP10-08 ABP10 Both Dunmore Road toucan crossing at 
North West Abingdon site access

Provide a toucan crossing across Dunmore Road at the 
seconday site access to the North West Abingdon site (near 
Parsons Mead).  This infrastructure was secured prior to the 
development of the Abingdon LCWIP and is to be delivered by 
a local developer as a condition of their planning permission.

direct n/a S106/S278 Y n/a S106/S278 Y Y

ABP10-09 ABP10 Both Dunmore Road pegasus crossing at 
Pen Lane bridleway

Provide a pegasus crossing across Dunmore Road at bridleway 
(Abingdon 100/8/10).  This infrastructure was secured prior to 
the development of the Abingdon LCWIP and is to be 
delivered by a local developer as a condition of their planning 
permission.

direct n/a S106/S278 Y n/a S106/S278 Y Y

ABP10-10 ABP10 Both Dunmore Road toucan crossing at 
North Abingdon site access

Provide a toucan crossing across Dunmore Road at access to 
the North Abingdon site (between Oxford Road and Pen Lane).  
This infrastructure was secured prior to the development of 
the Abingdon LCWIP and is to be delivered by a local 
developer as a condition of their planning permission.

direct n/a S106/S278 Y n/a S106/S278 Y Y

ABP10-11 ABP10 Both Twelve Acre Drive controlled crossing 
at Peachcroft Farm access

Provide a controlled crossing (toucan or parallel) across 
Twelve Acre Drive at the access to Peachcroft Farm.

long ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

Core Walking Zone proposals5

CWZ-01 CWZ Both (Lower) Bath Street pedestrianisation Prohibition of motor vehicles on (lower) Bath Street from Ock 
Street to Stratton Way (with some limited motor vehicle 
access retained as required) and creation of a space with clear 
priority for walking and cycling.

medium £50k-£100k None N Design dependent None N Y

CWZ-02 CWZ Both Broad street segregated walking and 
cycling route

Provide a segregated cycle track and improved walking space 
on Broad Street, linking crossings over Stratton Way and Stert 
St to onward routes. Relocate street furniture including cycle 
parking (which is currently placed such that only one side of 
each Sheffield stand is easily accessible), public art, street 
lighting and bollards from the centre of the narrow section to 
maximise the available width.

medium £50k-£100k None N Design dependent None N Y

CWZ-03 CWZ Cycling Market Place cycle parking Provide cycle parking in Abingdon Market Place to make active 
travel into the Core Walking Zone easier.

short n/a ATC CIL N ≤£50k ATC CIL N Y

CWZ-04 CWZ Walking Stratton Way underpass parabolic 
mirrors

Provide parabolic mirrors at both ends of the Stratton Way 
pedestrian underpass to increase visibility and social security. 
In the long term, the underpass may be eliminated through 
ambitious redesign of Stratton Way and the Stratton Way and 
Bath Street junction in order to create space for walking, 
cycling and public transport infrastructure.

short n/a None N ≤£50k None N N

CWZ-05 CWZ Cycling Consider permissions for cycling in 
the shopping precinct (Market Place 
and Bury Street) and provide cycle 
parking at regular intervals within the 
precinct.

Permit cycling in the shopping precinct to protect access for 
those who cannot easily dismount and would eliminate the 
need to dismount unnecessarily at quiet times. LTN1/20 
recommends that cycling in Vehicle Restricted Areas should be 
permitted unless there is a clear safety issue resulting from 
cycle access. Research at TRL found that most cyclists will 
dismount when pedestrian numbers are high.4 Cycle parking 
(including some relocated from Broad Street should be 
provided at regular intervals).

short n/a None N ≤£50k None N Y

Town-wide proposals
TW-20MPH n/a Both Town-wide speed limit reductions Implement lower speed limits across Abingdon. 20mph is to 

be the new standard within the town, with a few exceptions - 
including the ring road - which are to be 30mph.

short n/a OCC Y n/a OCC Y N

P
age 101



TW-BR n/a Both Town-wide barrier 
removal/modification

Removal or modification of access control barriers across 
Abingdon as per LTN1/20 and Inclusive Mobility guidance. See 
Abingdon LCWIP Barriers map for locations (including the 
locations of some privately owned barriers which are not in 
scope). When arranging barrier removal/modification, the 
Abingdon Cycling and Walking Network Plan  community 
document should be reviewed for images and notes on 
related accessibility issues (e.g. no/poorly aligned dropped 
kerb) at each barrier location to ensure appropriate remedial 
measures are taken.

short n/a None N ≤£50k None N Y

TW-CP n/a Cycling Town-wide cycle parking review Review cycle parking provision across the town for 
opportunities to increase the quantity and quality of cycle 
parking. Cycle parking at specific strategic locations is 
recommended below, but other opportunities should also be 
explored. Cycle parking at bus stops (especially for strategic 
routes between towns and major employment sites) should 
be reviewed for gaps in provision.

medium n/a None N £50k-£100k None N N

TW-W n/a Both Town-wide walking and cycling 
wayfinding 

Provide wayfinding for walking and cycling routes including 
signage along routes which offer quieter or traffic-free 
alternative routes to main roads, as well as main roads where 
adequate walking and cycling infrastructure is provided and 
active travel mapping resources to make local people aware of 
the availability of these routes.

medium n/a None N £50k-£100k None N N

TW-SS n/a Both Implement school streets across 
Abingdon

Implement further school streets around Abingdon, where 
school staff and parents are supportive, and where the 
location of the school is appropriate for a school streets 
approach. Caldecott school has already expressed interest and 
should be considered when identifying the next school street 
location for Abingdon. Other locations and details of scheme 
proposals have yet to be determined.

medium TBC None N TBC None N N

"Quick win" proposals
QW-01 ABP00 Cycling Stratton Way north side shared use 

permissions
Formalise shared use of the north side footway along Stratton 
Way between Bath Street and Vineyard as an interim measure 
before delivery of segregated cycle tracks.

short n/a None N ≤£50k None N N

QW-02 ABP01 Cycling Oxford Road shared use permissions Formalise shared use of the west side footway on Oxford Road 
from Long Furlong path to Peachcroft Roundabout as an 
interim measure before delivery of segregated cycle tracks.

short n/a None N ≤£50k None N N

QW-03 n/a Cycling Clifton Drive to Boxhill Walk to 
Harcourt Way shared use 
permissions

Formalise shared use of the path from Clifton Drive to Boxhill 
Walk to Harcourt Way and widen the path.

short n/a None N ≤£50k None N Y

QW-04 n/a Cycling Tithe Farm to Tesco shared use 
permissions

Formalise shared use of the existing footpath over the river 
Ock to the Tesco supermarket site and widen the path.

short n/a None N ≤£50k None N Y

QW-05 n/a Cycling Summerfields path shared use 
permissions

Formalise shared use of the Summerfields path and widen the 
path.

short n/a None N ≤£50k None N Y

QW-06 n/a Both Bridge widening/replacement over 
Radley Brook at Summerfields path

Provide a wider bridge suitable for walking and cycling. The 
gap between the parapets on the existing bridge is 
approximately 1.05m wide. LTN1/20 recommends a minimum 
width of 4m for shared use bridges, but given the limited 
widths of the paths on either side and the short span, a 
narrower structure may be acceptable.

short n/a None N ≤£50k None N Y

QW-07 n/a Both Daisy Bank path access & surface 
improvements

Access point improvements (adjustment of barriers, dropped 
kerbs and signage) along Daisy Bank path as well as surface 
improvements along the full length and widening where space 
is available.

short n/a None N ≤£50k None N Y

P
age 102



QW-08 n/a Both Audlett Drive car park active travel 
route width protection (wheel stops)

Provide physical buffers (wheel stops) in the parking spaces in 
Audlett Drive car park, which are adjacent to the cycling and 
walking route (which runs between Thames View and Abbey 
Close) to prevent overhanging vehicles from limiting the 
effective width of the path.

short n/a None N ≤£50k None N Y

QW-09 n/a Both Twelve Acre Drive to Carse Close 
shared use link

Provide a 3m shared use path from Carse Close to Twelve Acre 
Drive. Avoid unnecessary use of access barriers.  This 
infrastructure was secured prior to the development of the 
Abingdon LCWIP and is to be delivered by a local developer as 
a condition of their planning permission.

direct n/a S106/S278 Y n/a S106/S278 Y Y

QW-10 n/a Cycling Radley Station covered cycle parking Provide additional cycle parking at Radley station. The 
provision should consist of covered Sheffield stands. OCC is 
currently engaged in discussions with Great Western Railway 
to arrange the delivery of this cycle parking.

short n/a S106/S278 Y n/a S106/S278 Y Y

QW-11 n/a Cycling Rye Farm car park covered cycle 
parking

Provide cycle parking at Rye Farm car park. The provision 
should consist of covered Sheffield stands.

short n/a None N ≤£50k None N Y

QW-12 n/a Cycling Boxhill Road to Boxhill Walk shared 
use permissions

Formalise shared use and remove cyclists dismount signage at 
the bridge between Boxhill Road and Boxhill Walk.

short n/a None N ≤£50k None N Y

QW-13 n/a Cycling White Horse Leisure Centre covered 
cycle parking

Provide additional cycle parking at White Horse Leisure 
Centre. The provision should consist of covered Sheffield 
stands.

short n/a None N ≤£50k None N Y

QW-14 n/a Cycling Peachcroft Roundabout bus stop 
cycle parking

Provide additional cycle parking at the Peachcroft Roundabout 
bus stops (prioritise the southbound side, where there is 
currently no cycle parking). The provision should consist of 
(preferably covered) Sheffield stands. Care should be taken 
not to obstruct future widening of the walking and cycling 
route.

short n/a None N ≤£50k None N Y

QW-15 n/a Cycling Stratton Way cycle parking 
improvements

Improve cycle parking provision at the junction of Stratton 
Way and Park Road (remove poor quality existing cycle 
parking and provide high quality, well spaced Sheffield stands, 
taking care not to obstruct future access improvements for 
walking and cycling between Park Road and Stratton Way).

short n/a None N ≤£50k None N Y

Other proposals
OTH-01 n/a Cycling Spring Road advisory cycle lanes Remove the centreline and provide wide advisory cycle lanes 

(1.5 minimum at constraints and 2m where width is adequate) 
supported by waiting restrictions along the full length of 
Spring Road.

medium ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

OTH-02 n/a Both Pen Lane bridleway surface 
improvements

Provide surface improvements for walking and cycling (whilst 
considering the needs of equestrians) along this route in all 
seasons and improve accessibility by removing or modifying 
barriers (including gates).

medium ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

OTH-03 n/a Both St Nicolas School school street Implement a permanent school street scheme, with ANPR 
enforcement for the prohibition of motor vehicles on Boxhill 
Walk, building on the trial scheme which has thus far been 
operating under an Experimental Traffic Regulation Order, 
without camera enforcement.

short n/a OCC Y n/a OCC Y Y

P
age 103



OTH-04 n/a Both East Abingdon to STRAT9 (South 
Oxfordshire Local Plan site) new 
walking and cycling river crossing 
(bridge)

Provide a new river crossing (bridge) for walking and cycling 
between Abingdon and the STRAT9 local plan allocation, 
Culham Science Centre and beyond. The South Oxfordshire 
Local Plan indicates that proposals to develop the STRAT9 site 
will be expected to deliver all necessary infrastructure, 
referring to the Infrastructure Delivery Plan, which is likely to 
include provision for excellent sustainable transport facilities 
including (as part of a more comprehensive infrastructure 
package) provision of a new cycle bridge and associated 
connectivity and paths across the River Thames to connect 
appropriately with Abingdon on Thames to the north of the 
site.

long £250k-£500k None N Design dependent None N Y

OTH-05 n/a Both Abingdon Marina new walking and 
cycling river crossing (bridge)

Provide a new river crossing (bridge) for walking and cycling 
between south Abingdon and Culham. Early consideration of 
the impact of the design of the bridge (especially its soffit) on 
navigation on the Thames will be required and the existing use 
of this stretch of the river by Abbey Sailing Club should be 
taken into account.

long £250k-£500k None N Design dependent None N Y

OTH-06 n/a Both Upper Reaches new walking and 
cycling river crossing (bridge)

Provide new river crossing (bridge) for walking and cycling at 
the site of the Upper Reaches hotel, to provide an alternative 
to the heavily trafficked A415 bridge.

long £250k-£500k None N Design dependent None N Y

OTH-07 n/a Both Drayton to Abingdon Public Rights of 
Way upgrades (surfacing)

Provide an additional cycling and walking route between 
Drayton and Abingdon using Public Rights of Way (via 
restricted byway 192/7/10).

long £50k-£100k None N Design dependent None N Y

OTH-08 n/a Both Radley to South Kennington railway 
route

Provide an additional walking and cycling route between 
Radley and South Kennington, adjacent to the railway, using 
safeguarded land.

long £50k-£100k None N Design dependent None N Y

OTH-09 n/a Both Wilts-Berks canal walking and cycling 
route

Provide a new walking and cycling route to Grove along the 
route of the disused Wilts-Berks canal (entering Abingdon at 
Mill Road).

long £250k-£500k None N Design dependent None N Y

OTH-10 n/a Both Potential cycling and walking link to 
King Street development

Investigate provision of a walking and cycling link to the King 
Street estate via Lucca Drive and Looker Grove.

medium ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

OTH-11 ABP00 Both Potential cycling and walking link to 
the north of Stratton Way

Investigate provision of a walking and cycling link to the north 
of Stratton Way via Withington Court, Sutton Close and 
Fitzharry's Road.

medium ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

OTH-12 n/a Both Surface improvements to path 
through Long Furlong park for 
walking and cycling

Provide a surfaced walking and cycling route through the park 
between Long Furlong Community Centre and Dunmore Road.

medium ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

OTH-13 n/a Both Public footpath 333/7/10 and A34 
footbridge upgrades

Provide upgrades (including rights for cycling and physical 
surface upgrades)  to public footpath 333/7/10 and the 
footbridge over the A34 to allow this route to be used for both 
walking and cycling.

long £100k-£250k None N Design dependent None N Y

OTH-14 n/a Both Surface improvements to path from 
Crabtree Place to NCN5 in Barton 
Fields

Widen and resurface link between Crabtree Place and NCN5 in 
Barton Fields for walking and cycling.

medium ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

OTH-15 ABP10, 
ABP11

Both Walking and cycling link between 
Twelve Acre Drive and Whites Lane

Provide a high quality walking and cycling link between Twelve 
Acre Drive and Whites Lane via Peachcroft Farm.

medium ≤£50k None N Design dependent None N Y

OTH-16 n/a Both Potential cycling and walking link 
between Ypres Way and Mons Way

Investigate provision of a more direct walking and cycling link 
to Copenhagen Drive via Ypres Way and Mons Way.

medium ≤£50k None N Design dependent none N Y

Footnotes
1

2

3

Walking (includes use of mobility aids), cycling or both

Short, medium and long term timescales correspond approximately to: <3 years from LCWIP adoption, 3-5 years from LCWIP adoption and 5-10+ years from adoption. 'Direct' indicates that the scheme will be directly delivered by a developer and that the 
timescale is determined by the rate of construction and occupation of the site as set out in the relevant S106 agreement. 
Indicates whether the proposal has been shown in the Abingdon LCWIP Proposal Maps. Some proposals have not been mapped (in order to help keep the maps legible) as they do not have a clear location at this stage, overlap with more 
significant/preferred infrastructure improvements, or are considered to be minor changes.

P
age 104



4

5

General notes

Where appropriate (especially when designing improvements to routes on or adjoining existing public rights of way where equestrians have access), consideration should be given to the potential impact of the proposals made in the LCWIP on equestrians. 
Complementary improvements for conditions for horse riding should be made where possible and care should be taken to minimise any detrimental impact for equestrians.

The proposals made in this LCWIP are subject to revision or removal as scheme development work progresses and more information becomes available regarding the deliverability of these proposals. Additional proposals may also be added over the lifetime of the 
LCWIP in response to new information.

All proposals should be designed to the standards set out in LTN1/20: Cycle Infrastructure Design  and Inclusive Mobility: A Guide to Best Practice on Access to Pedestrian and Transport Infrastructure  by default. Departures from these standards may be acceptable only 
in circumstances where physical or legal constraints make delivering infrastructure to these standards impossible.

Note that proposals within the CWZ which also lie on primary routes are listed under 'primary route network proposals' not under Core Walking Zone proposals

Many of the proposals in this document are based on suggestions from local stakeholders made in the Abingdon Cycling and Walking Network Plan document. The relevant sections of that document should be reviewed in detail when implementing the proposals 
listed here for opportunities to address minor concerns identified by local stakeholders and to review suggestions for specific infrastructure made by the local community.

TRL Report 583 – Cycling in Vehicle Restricted Areas (2003)

P
age 105



Abingdon LCWIP Appendix H: 
Proposal Maps 

Page 106



!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!

!

!!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!!

! ! !
!

! !!
!

!!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2020

0 1 2 3 4 50.5
Kilometers

¯ Legend
TYPE

! Barrier to be modified or removed

! New or improved controlled crossing

! Cycle parking

! Junction redesign to prioritise walking and cycling

! New minor structure (e.g. bridge)

Permeability improvements

Pedestrianisation

Permissions for cycling

School street

On-carriageway cycling improvements- e.g. wide (>1.5m) cycle lanes with no centreline

Surface improvements

New or improved shared use path

New river crossing for walking and cycling (indicative location only - exact route TBC)

Segregated cycle track(s) with priority at side roads

Footway widening and public realm improvements

Abingdon LCWIP Proposals - Overview

P
age 107



!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

ABP08-04

ABP00
-08

ABP04-01

ABP02-05

ABP08-05

ABP01-01

OTH-06
ABP04-02

ABP05-01 ABP00-03

ABP00-02

AB
P0

3-
04

CWZ-02

QW-08

AB
P0

1-
02

C
W

Z-01

OTH-11

ABP03-06

ABP07-01

ABP10-03

CWZ-05

ABP03-05

ABP07-03

ABP04-03

ABP08-06

ABP00-02

ABP00-06

ABP00-04

ABP00-05QW-15

QW-11

ABP01-09

ABP00-07

ABP00-01

Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2020

0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 10.1
Kilometers

¯ Legend
TYPE

! Barrier to be modified or removed

! New or improved controlled crossing

! Cycle parking

! Junction redesign to prioritise walking and cycling

Permeability improvements

Pedestrianisation

Permissions for cycling

On-carriageway cycling improvements- e.g. wide (>1.5m) cycle lanes with no centreline

Surface improvements

New or improved shared use path

New river crossing for walking and cycling (indicative location only - exact route TBC)

Segregated cycle track(s) with priority at side roads

Footway widening and public realm improvements

Abingdon LCWIP Proposals - Central Area

!

P
age 108



!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

! !

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!
!

!

!
!

!
! !

!
!

!

!

!

AB
P0

1-
02

ABP02-05

ABP10-04

QW
-0

7

ABP10-01, ABP10-02

O
TH

-02 OTH-15

ABP03-02

OTH-12

QW-05

AB
P0

1-
07

QW
-0

3

ABP01-01

ABP00-0
8

CWZ-02

QW
-0

9

QW-08

OTH-11

ABP00-02

O
TH

-14

ABP02-01

ABP10-03

ABP02-02

QW-12

AB10-11

ABP01-10

ABP01-03

ABP00-06

ABP10-10

ABP10-07

ABP10-09 ABP01-06

QW-14

QW-13
ABP01-09

ABP01-04

ABP02-03

ABP01-05

QW-06

ABP03-03

Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2020

0 0.4 0.8 1.2 1.6 20.2
Kilometers

¯ Legend
TYPE

! Barrier to be modified or removed

! New or improved controlled crossing

! Cycle parking

! Junction redesign to prioritise walking and cycling

! New minor structure (e.g. bridge)

Permeability improvements

Pedestrianisation

Permissions for cycling

School street

On-carriageway cycling improvements- e.g. wide (>1.5m) cycle lanes with no centreline

Surface improvements

New or improved shared use path

Segregated cycle track(s) with priority at side roads

Footway widening and public realm improvements

Abingdon LCWIP Proposals - East Area

P
age 109



!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

ABP10-04

AB
P0

1-
07

O
TH

-02

AB
P0

1-
02

OTH-15

ABP10-01, ABP10-02

OTH-12

QW-05 QW
-0

9

AB10-11

ABP10-10ABP10-09 ABP01-06

QW-14

ABP01-05

QW-06

Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2020

0 0.4 0.8 1.2 1.6 20.2
Kilometers

¯ Legend
TYPE

! Barrier to be modified or removed

! New or improved controlled crossing

! Cycle parking

! Junction redesign to prioritise walking and cycling

! New minor structure (e.g. bridge)

Permissions for cycling

Surface improvements

New or improved shared use path

Segregated cycle track(s) with priority at side roads

Abingdon LCWIP Proposals - North Area

!

P
age 110



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

AB
P0

7-
01

O
TH

-0
1

ABP05-05

ABP10-0
1, 

ABP10
-02

OTH-13

ABP09-01

ABP05-01

OTH-12

ABP08-04

O
TH

-02

ABP08-01

ABP08-02

AB
P1

0-
06

AB
P0

8-
03

ABP08-05

ABP00
-08

QW
-0

3

ABP01-01

ABP10
-04

ABP00-03

ABP00-02

AB
P0

1-
02

CWZ-02

ABP04-01
OTH-06AB

P0
3-

04

C
W

Z-01
OTH-11

ABP07-02

OTH-03

O
TH

-16

CWZ-05

QW-12

ABP08-01

ABP08-06

ABP00-02

ABP10-08

ABP00-04
CWZ-03

ABP05-06

ABP01-09

ABP05-02

ABP05-03

ABP08-08

ABP00-01

Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2020

0 0.4 0.8 1.2 1.6 20.2
Kilometers

¯ Legend
TYPE

! Barrier to be modified or removed

! New or improved controlled crossing

! Cycle parking

! Junction redesign to prioritise walking and cycling

Permeability improvements

Pedestrianisation

Permissions for cycling

School street

On-carriageway cycling improvements- e.g. wide (>1.5m) cycle lanes with no centreline

Surface improvements

New or improved shared use path

New river crossing for walking and cycling (indicative location only - exact route TBC)

Segregated cycle track(s) with priority at side roads

Footway widening and public realm improvements

Abingdon LCWIP Proposals - West Area

!

P
age 111



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

O
TH

-0
7

AB
P0

6-
03

O
TH

-0
9

ABP05-05

AB
P0

6-
01

O
TH

-0
1

ABP05-04

QW-04

ABP05-01

O
TH

-1
0

ABP10-01, AB
P10-02

ABP06-04

ABP05-06

ABP05-02

ABP05-03

Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2020

0 0.4 0.8 1.2 1.6 20.2
Kilometers

¯ Legend
TYPE

! Barrier to be modified or removed

! New or improved controlled crossing

! Junction redesign to prioritise walking and cycling

Permeability improvements

Permissions for cycling

On-carriageway cycling improvements- e.g. wide (>1.5m) cycle lanes with no centreline

New or improved shared use path

New river crossing for walking and cycling (indicative location only - exact route TBC)

Segregated cycle track(s) with priority at side roads

Abingdon LCWIP Proposals - Southwest Area

P
age 112



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

O
TH

-0
8

AB
P0

3-
01

AB
P0

2-
01

OTH-15

ABP10-04

ABP10-01, ABP10-02

ABP03-07

ABP02-02

AB10-11

ABP03-01

ABP03-01

ABP03-01

QW-10

ABP02-03

ABP02-01

Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2020

0 0.4 0.8 1.2 1.6 20.2
Kilometers

¯ Legend
TYPE

! Barrier to be modified or removed

! New or improved controlled crossing

! Cycle parking

! Junction redesign to prioritise walking and cycling

On-carriageway cycling improvements- e.g. wide (>1.5m) cycle lanes with no centreline

New or improved shared use path

Segregated cycle track(s) with priority at side roads

Abingdon LCWIP Proposals - Radley Area

P
age 113



ABP08-01

ABP09-01

Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2020

0 0.4 0.8 1.2 1.6 20.2
Kilometers

¯ Legend
On-carriageway cycling improvements- e.g. wide (>1.5m) cycle lanes with no centreline

New or improved shared use path

Segregated cycle track(s) with priority at side roads

Abingdon LCWIP Proposals - Wootton Area

P
age 114



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

ABP04-02

O
TH

-04

ABP02-05

QW
-0

7

ABP03-02

AB
P0

1-
02

OTH-05

AB
P1

0-
01

, A
BP

10
-0

2

ABP03-07

ABP03-06

ABP00
-08

ABP04-01

ABP08-04

QW
-0

3

ABP01-01

OTH-06

ABP00-03

ABP00-02

AB
P0

3-
04

QW-08

OTH-11

OTH-14

ABP10-03

OTH-03

ABP01-10

ABP04-03

ABP01-03

ABP00-02
ABP00-04

ABP00-05

QW-13

QW-11

CWZ-03

ABP04-04

ABP01-09

ABP00-01

ABP03-03

Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2020

0 0.6 1.2 1.8 2.4 30.3
Kilometers

¯ Legend
TYPE

! Barrier to be modified or removed

! New or improved controlled crossing

! Cycle parking

! Junction redesign to prioritise walking and cycling

! New minor structure (e.g. bridge)

Permeability improvements

Pedestrianisation

Permissions for cycling

School street

On-carriageway cycling improvements- e.g. wide (>1.5m) cycle lanes with no centreline

Surface improvements

New or improved shared use path

New river crossing for walking and cycling (indicative location only - exact route TBC)

Segregated cycle track(s) with priority at side roads

Footway widening and public realm improvements

Abingdon LCWIP Proposals - River Thames and Culham Area

P
age 115



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
Consultation Outcomes Report 
 
v0.2 January 2023 
southandvale@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

Consultation approach 
 
Online materials 
The consultation was based on the Let’s Talk Oxfordshire platform, which was used 
to provide an opportunity to view and download the draft Abingdon LCWIP and its 
appendices, and to provide feedback by one (or both) of two methods: a traditional 
survey form, and a map-based survey, which allowed people to raise issues at 
specific locations more easily. 
 
Note that whilst the map survey enabled individual users to submit multiple 
responses, it was not used to gauge support for the LCWIP as a whole. Its purpose 
was to act as a tool to enable respondents to highlight specific local issues for 
inclusion in this version or future versions of the LCWIP. 
 
Paper copies 
During the consultation period, a hard copy of the LCWIP and its appendices was 
made available at Abingdon Library. The deadline for hard copy responses was 
extended to account for the unexpected closure of Abingdon Library for several days 
– due to internal flooding following heavy rain – during this period. 
 
One request for a paper copy from a local resident was received and fulfilled during 
the consultation period. 
 

Number of consultation responses and respondents 
 
Table 1 shows the number of responses to the consultation by each of the available 
response methods, and the number of unique respondents to the consultation – both 
for each method of response and in total. 
 
Note that the total number of unique respondents (120) is less than the sum of the 
number of unique respondents by method (140), as some (20) respondents provided 
responses by several methods (e.g., both placed pins on the map and submitted an 
online form (16), or both submitted an online form and a letter elaborating on the 
content of the online submission (4)). 
 
Table 1 Number of responses and respondents by response method 

Response method Responses Respondents % Respondents 
Online survey 96 96 80.0% 
Online map 207 39 32.5% 
Letter/email 5 5 4.2% 
Total 308 120 100% 

 

Page 117



2 
 

Online survey results – overview 
 
Figure 1 shows the response to the multiple choice online survey question which 
invited respondents to rate their overall impressions of the LCWIP route network. 
 
The overall response to the draft LCWIP was positive, with 50.0% of respondents to 
the survey rating the network of identified walking and cycling routes as “good” and a 
further 36.5% of respondents to the survey rating the network as “mixed”. Only 6.3% 
of responses rated the network identified in the draft LCWIP as “bad”. 
 
Note that a number of respondents who responded “mixed” to this question, 
elaborated on their response indicating that their concerns related to existing 
conditions on the route network, rather than to the selection of routes identified in the 
LCWIP and their classifications (primary/secondary/etc.), which was the intention of 
the question. 
 

 
Figure 1 Responses to: “Overall, what do you think of the suggested route network?” 

Figure 2 shows the response to the multiple choice online survey question which 
invited respondents to rate their overall impressions of the infrastructure 
improvements for walking and cycling proposed in the LCWIP. 
 
The response to the proposals was positive overall, with 60.4% of respondents to the 
survey rating the proposals set out in the LCWIP as “good” and a further 31.3% 
rating the proposals as “mixed”. Only 5.2% of responses rated the proposals as 
“bad”. 
 

Page 118



3 
 

 
Figure 2 Responses to “Overall, what do you think of the suggested infrastructure 

improvements?” 

Online map – overview 
 
Figure 3 shows an overview of the proportion of the number of pins placed on the 
consultation map which fell into each of the following categories: 
 
Table 2 Categorisation of consultation pins 

Category Description 
Included pre-consultation pins which flagged issues for which improvements 

have already been included in the LCWIP 
Included post-consultation pins which flagged issues for which improvements 

have been included in the LCWIP as a result the 
consultation 

For future review pins which flagged issues for which proposals will be 
considered for inclusion through the LCWIP review 
process (because they require further investigation 
which would delay the approval of the LCWIP or 
because they are not considered suitable for 
inclusion at this time, but may become suitable in 
future) 

Not included pins which flagged issues within the geographical 
scope of the LCWIP which were not considered 
appropriate for inclusion in the LCWIP 

Maintenance pins which raised issues which were maintenance 
issues only (i.e., “the surface is damaged” would fall 
into this category, but “the surface is damaged and 
needs widening” would not). 

Out of scope pins which flagged issues outside the geographical 
scope of the LCWIP 

Page 119



4 
 

 
Figure 3 Overview of action taken in response to issues raised on consultation map 

The consultation map pins can still be viewed (but not edited) online, after the 
consultation has closed. Figure 4 gives an impression of the key clusters of map pins 
placed: in the town centre, on the A415 Causeway, near the junctions of the A415 
with Tollgate Road and Thame Lane, between Abingdon and Radley, and along Ock 
Street and Marcham Road. Note that Figure 4 does not capture all 207 pins 
submitted (some of which were placed outside the area shown). 
 

 
Figure 4 Abingdon LCWIP consultation map pin clusters 

Page 120



5 
 

 

Specific issues and proposals raised during consultation 
 
Table 3 Breakdown of actions on issues raised during consultation 

To be included in the first version of the LCWIP 
 
Junction improvements to prioritise safe walking and cycling at the junction of 
Tollgate Road and the A415 
 
Junction improvements to prioritise safe walking and cycling along the A415 at its 
junctions with Thame Lane and the front access to Europa School 
 
Formalise cycling route between Boxhill Walk and Boxhill Road 
 
Controlled crossings at Fairacres roundabout 
 
Clarification of the need for active travel improvements along the B4017 to 
Whitecross and Wootton – as well as through the Dalton Barracks site 
 
Controlled crossing at the south (Drayton) end of the B4017 shared use route to 
enable safe access to and from the route at peak times 
 
Off-carriageway path alongside Thrupp Lane to reduce conflict with commercial 
traffic 
 
Explicit mention of consideration for the impact of a redesign of the Oxford Road 
junction with Northcourt Road and Appleford Drive on Northcourt Lane 
 
Controlled crossings at the Vineyard mini roundabout 
 
Widening and resurfacing of the link from Crabtree Place to NCN5 in Barton Fields 
 
Removal of the barrier between Queen Street and the Market Place 
 
Explicitly mention consideration of the impact of the soffit height of a bridge in the 
vicinity of the marina on sailing activity on this stretch of the Thames 
 
Explicitly mention the need to consider the impact on equestrians of schemes in 
areas with more rural characters or on public rights of way with access rights for 
equestrians 
 
Controlled crossing on Twelve Acre Drive at the access to Peachcroft Farm 
 
Explicit mention of consideration for temporary or experimental walking and cycling 
improvements on A415 bridge 
 
Improve cycle parking provision at: White Horse Leisure Centre (covered), Ock 
Street, bus stops on Oxford Road and Stratton Way 

Page 121



6 
 

Controlled crossing of A415 at Rye Farm car park access 
 
Miscellaneous minor changes to the report which provides the supporting text for the 
proposals in the LCWIP (e.g., correction of errors identified through consultation) and 
to the appendices (e.g., map format changes) 
 
To be considered for inclusion through the LCWIP review process 
 
Reclassify Spring Road from a secondary route to a primary route 
 
Include access improvements (barrier removal and cycle parking at the park itself) 
for pedestrians and cyclists to the private roads around Albert Park. This will require 
engagement with and approval from the landowner and requires further 
investigation. 
 
Surfacing and widening of the Ock Valley River Walk for use in all seasons 
 
Access improvements for walking and cycling to Abingdon Business Park 
(Blacklands Way and Wyndyke Furlong) (requires further investigation including 
engagement with and approval from the landowner) 
 
Traffic filter at the iron bridge over the River Ock to the southwest of St Helen’s 
Wharf 
 
Controlled (zebra or parallel) crossing over Abbey Close at the desire line between 
old Station Yard and the route adjacent to Waitrose 
 
Consider alternative routes between Abingdon and Marcham, including the (currently 
closed) bridleway route via Marcham Mill 
 
Improvements for walking and cycling on Caldecott Road – including improved 
access to Drayton Road from the service road and junction improvements at the 
junction with Blacknall Road 
 
Resurface the concrete (rigid road) section of Peep’O’Day Lane (noting that the 
Thames Water site is accessed by this route and the potential for surface changes 
may be limited) 
 
Rationalise and reduce street clutter (largely associated with traffic signals) in the 
shared use path at the junction of Drayton Road and Preston Road (requires further 
investigation) 
 
Crossing improvements over Oxford Road at the junction with Sugworth Lane and 
Church Lane 
 
Improve access between Wootton Road and the side streets to the east for cycling 
 
Barrier removal on the path immediately to the south of Fitzharris trading estate 
(between Wootton Road and Springfield Drive) (requires further investigation 

Page 122



7 
 

including engagement with and approval from the landowner) 
 
Street lighting for the walking and cycling route adjacent to Radley Road between 
Twelve Acre Drive and Foxborough Road 
 
Consider directing cycles through the car park adjacent to Bury Street, rather than 
through Bury Street (including rearrangement of the cycle parking behind the Black 
Swan pub) (requires further investigation including engagement with and approval 
from the landowner) 
 
Consider adding Vintner Road to the network (note that this route is private) 
 
Not suitable for inclusion in the LCWIP 
 
Suggestions for new routes where delivery is not considered to be feasible at this 
time 
 
Suggestions for restrictions on vehicular traffic with significant implications for the 
operation of the wider highway network, or for changes to public transport provision, 
both of which will need to be considered carefully through the forthcoming Area 
Travel Plan (which will cover all modes of transport, rather than just active travel) 
 
Suggestions which go against national and international best practice in cycle 
infrastructure design (e.g., prohibiting cycles from using the carriageway when there 
is an off-carriageway facility present) 
 
Suggestions for infrastructure which is outside the geographical scope of the LCWIP 
(note that some additional proposals on the A415 have been included and many of 
these out of scope issues have been referred to the neighbouring Didcot LCWIP 
project) 
 
Requests for maintenance. Whilst maintenance of walking and cycling infrastructure 
is a key issue, these issues are not well suited for inclusion in an LCWIP because 
capital funding (which the LCWIP is intended to help secure) is not generally 
available to spend on maintenance of existing assets. Maintenance issues raised 
during the Abingdon LCWIP consultation have been referred to maintenance 
colleagues for review and action as appropriate. 
 
 

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

 

 

Oxfordshire County Council 

Equalities Impact Assessment  
Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) 

15 December 2022 

  

P
age 125



2 
 

Contents 
Section 1: Summary details .............................................................................................................................................................................................................. 3 

Section 2: Detail of proposal ............................................................................................................................................................................................................ 4 

Section 3: Impact Assessment - Protected Characteristics .............................................................................................................................................................. 6 

Section 3: Impact Assessment - Additional Community Impacts .................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Section 3: Impact Assessment - Additional Wider Impacts ........................................................................................................................................................... 10 

Section 4: Review ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

 

  P
age 126



3 
 

Section 1: Summary details 

Directorate and Service 
Area  

Environment and Place, Transport and Infrastructure 

What is being assessed  Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) 

Is this a new or existing 
function or policy? 

This is a new local policy for Abingdon. It is supported by the existing Local Transport and Connectivity Plan (LTCP) 
Policy 3 - Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans. 

Summary of assessment 

Briefly summarise the policy or 
proposed service change. 

Summarise possible impacts. 
Does the proposal bias, 
discriminate or unfairly 

disadvantage individuals or 
groups within the community?  

(following completion of the 
assessment). 

Development and implementation of LCWIPs for all the main urban settlements in Oxfordshire (LTCP Policy 3a) is one 
of Oxfordshire County Council's commitments to move towards the vision set out in the LTCP for "an inclusive and 
safe net-zero Oxfordshire transport system that enables all parts of the county to thrive". 

Whilst no negative equalities impacts have been identified which could arise as a direct result of approving the 
Abingdon LCWIP, there is a significant opportunity to tackle inequality. 

The LCWIP promotes investment in infrastructure which will help to improve the accessibility and inclusivity of the 
transport system in the Abingdon area. This will enable people with protected characteristics who do not currently feel 
safe travelling by active and sustainable modes to do so more easily, enable people to live active lifestyles, reduce the 
need for private car ownership and use, improve access for deprived areas, and contribute to a long term improvement 
in air quality. 

All individual highways schemes may result in unintended negative equalities impacts. This risk will be considered in 
detail on a scheme-by-scheme basis (using scheme-specific EIAs as appropriate) when the individual schemes 
promoted in the LCWIP are developed. 
 

Completed By Sam Larkin, Transport Planner 

Authorised By  

Date of Assessment 15 December 2022 

P
age 127



4 
 

Section 2: Detail of proposal 

Context / Background  

Briefly summarise the 
background to the policy or 
proposed service change, 
including reasons for any 

changes from previous versions. 

 

 

The Abingdon LCWIP is one of a number of LCWIPs under development for market towns across Oxfordshire (as 
required by LTCP Policy 3a). 

This is the first version of the Abingdon LCWIP to be considered for approval. 

Proposals 

Explain the detail of the 
proposals, including why this has 
been decided as the best course 

of action. 

 

 

 

The LCWIP proposes: 

• new and improved crossings for walking and cycling 
• junction redesign to prioritise walking and cycling movements 
• removal or modification of barriers on walking and cycling routes to improve accessibility 
• provision of additional high-quality cycle parking 
• on-carriageway cycling improvements (e.g., wider cycle lanes and centreline removal, some of which may 

require additional parking restrictions) 
• provision of segregated cycle tracks (some of which will require reallocation of highway space from motor 

vehicles to active travel) 
• permissions for cycling on some routes where cycling is not currently permitted 
• new river crossings for walking and cycling over the rivers Thames and Ock 
• footway widening and public realm improvements 
• provision of new and improved walking and cycling routes between Abingdon and other key local 

destinations (outside the town) 

P
age 128



5 
 

Evidence / Intelligence 

List and explain any data, 
consultation outcomes, research 
findings, feedback from service 
users and stakeholders etc, that 
supports your proposals and can 
help to inform the judgements you 

make about potential impact on 
different individuals, communities 
or groups and our ability to deliver 

our climate commitments. 

Evidence/Intelligence notes: 

• Consultation outcomes - positive reception of draft LCWIP, constructive feedback received will be 
considered for inclusion in the LCWIP before it is approved. Review consultation outcomes report for details. 

• Review LCWIP document for details of the background information and data which was used to inform the 
document's proposals. 

Alternatives considered / 
rejected 

Summarise any other approaches 
that have been considered in 

developing the policy or proposed 
service change, and the reasons 
why these were not adopted. This 
could include reasons why doing 

nothing is not an option. 

 

As noted above, the adopted LTCP makes a clear commitment to develop an LCWIP for Abingdon. Policy 3a in the 
LTCP states that Oxfordshire County Council will "[develop] Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans 
(LCWIPs) for all main urban settlements (over 10,000 inhabitants) across the county by 2025, according to national 
guidance and best practice with the aim of increasing walking and cycling activity." 

The LCWIP follows national guidance and is supported by both national and local policy. Using an alternative 
approach would mean deviating from the policies adopted in the LTCP and may reduce the likelihood of securing 
funding for active travel schemes in the Abingdon area. 

 

  

P
age 129



6 
 

Section 3: Impact Assessment - Protected Characteristics 

Protected 
Characteristic No 

Impact Positive Negative Description of Impact Any actions or mitigation 
to reduce negative impacts 

Action owner* 
(*Job Title, 

Organisation) 

Timescale and 
monitoring 

arrangements 

Age 

☐ ☒ ☐ 

Provision of segregated cycle 
infrastructure offers 
additional benefits to children 
and elderly people, who often 
cycle more slowly and are 
less able to mix with general 
traffic (which can often 
prevent these groups from 
attempting active travel in 
locations where infrastructure 
provision is inadequate). 

Consider unintended 
consequences of individual 
schemes during design work. 

South and 
Vale Locality 
Team 

Ongoing 

Disability 

☐ ☒ ☐ 

Removal of barriers to 
access for people with 
disabilities (e.g., removing 
physical barriers which 
cannot be passed by 
wheelchair users, widening 
narrow footways, and 
eliminating the need for cycle 
users to dismount at certain 
locations, which can be a 
barrier to adapted cycle 
users) 

Retain or relocate disabled 
parking bays to suitable 
locations when reallocating 
space to active modes. 

Consider unintended 
consequences of individual 
schemes during design work. 

South and 
Vale Locality 
Team 

Ongoing 

P
age 130



7 
 

 

Gender 
Reassignment ☒ ☐ ☐ N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Marriage & Civil 
Partnership ☒ ☐ ☐ 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Pregnancy & 
Maternity 

☐ ☒ ☐ 

Removal of barriers to 
access for people with 
pushchairs and young 
children (e.g., physical 
barriers which cannot be 
passed, safer crossings) 

Consider unintended 
consequences of individual 
schemes during design work. 

South and 
Vale Locality 
Team 

Ongoing 

Race ☒ ☐ ☐ N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Sex 

☐ ☒ ☐ 

Provision of segregated cycle 
infrastructure offers 
additional benefits to women, 
who are more likely to travel 
for caring trips, may be more 
likely to travel with children 
(and therefore to cycle more 
slowly and to be less able to 
mix with general traffic). 

Ensure that a wide range of 
destinations are considered 
in order to cater for the 
diverse range of non-
commuting utility trips made 
by women.  

South and 
Vale Locality 
Team  

Ongoing 

Sexual 
Orientation ☒ ☐ ☐ 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Religion or 
Belief ☒ ☐ ☐ 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

P
age 131



8 
 

Section 3: Impact Assessment - Additional Community Impacts 

Additional 
community 
impacts 

No 
Impact Positive Negative Description of impact Any actions or mitigation 

to reduce negative impacts 

Action owner 

(*Job Title, 
Organisation) 

Timescale and 
monitoring 

arrangements 

Rural 
communities 

☐ ☒ ☐ 

Potential for improved 
connectivity between 
Abingdon and the 
neighbouring villages by active 
modes. 

Consider unintended 
consequences of individual 
schemes during design work. 

South and 
Vale Locality 
Team 

Ongoing 

Armed Forces  

☐ ☒ ☐ 

Potential for improved 
connectivity by active modes 
between the Dalton Barracks 
site and Abingdon town 
centre. 

Consider unintended 
consequences of individual 
schemes during design work. 

South and 
Vale Locality 
Team 

Ongoing 

Carers ☒ ☐ ☐ N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Areas of 
deprivation  

☐ ☒ ☐ 

Vale of White Horse LSOA 
008C (Caldecott) is one of the 
most deprived communities in 
the county. The LCWIP 
proposes investment in 
infrastructure to improve 
access to, from and through 
this area by active modes, 
which will help to promote 
health and wellbeing, 
improved air quality and 

Consider unintended 
consequences of individual 
schemes during design work. 

South and 
Vale Locality 
Team 

Ongoing 

P
age 132



9 
 

Additional 
community 
impacts 

No 
Impact Positive Negative Description of impact Any actions or mitigation 

to reduce negative impacts 

Action owner 

(*Job Title, 
Organisation) 

Timescale and 
monitoring 

arrangements 

access to local services for 
residents in this area. 

P
age 133



10 
 

Section 3: Impact Assessment - Additional Wider Impacts 

Additional 
Wider Impacts No 

Impact Positive Negative Description of Impact Any actions or mitigation 
to reduce negative impacts 

Action 
owner* (*Job 
Title, 
Organisation) 

Timescale and 
monitoring 
arrangements 

Staff 

☐ ☒ ☐ 

Potential for improvements to 
staff’s ability to travel 
(commuting and business 
travel) by active modes. 

Consider unintended 
consequences of individual 
schemes during design work. 

South and 
Vale Locality 
Team 

Ongoing 

Other Council 
Services  

☐ ☒ ☐ 

Potential for improved access 
to schools, Abingdon Library, 
and Abingdon Community 
Support Service premises by 
active modes. 

Consider unintended 
consequences of individual 
schemes during design work. 

South and 
Vale Locality 
Team 

Ongoing 

Providers  ☒ ☐ ☐ N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Social Value 1 ☒ ☐ ☐ N/A N/A N/A N/A 

  

 
1 If the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 applies to this proposal, please summarise here how you have considered how the contract might improve the economic, 
social, and environmental well-being of the relevant area 

P
age 134



11 
 

Section 4: Review 

Where bias, negative impact or disadvantage is identified, the proposal and/or implementation can be adapted or 
changed; meaning there is a need for regular review. This review may also be needed to reflect additional data and 
evidence for a fuller assessment (proportionate to the decision in question). Please state the agreed review timescale for 
the identified impacts of the policy implementation or service change.  

Review Date EIA to be reviewed during LCWIP updates. The LCWIP is a live document, and the EIA should be updated 
accordingly as and when changes are made to the LCWIP 

Person Responsible for 
Review 

South and Vale Locality Team 

Authorised By  

 

P
age 135



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Climate Impact Assessment 

Summary

Directorate and Service 

Area 

Environment and Place, Transport and Infrastructure

What is being assessed Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP)

Is this a new or existing 

function or policy?

This is a new local policy for Abingdon. It is supported by the 

existing Local Transport and Connectivity Plan (LTCP) Policy 3 

- Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans.

Summary of assessment

Development and implementation of LCWIPs for all the main 

urban settlements in Oxfordshire (LTCP Policy 3a) is one of 

Oxfordshire County Council's commitments to move towards 

the vision set out in the LTCP for "an inclusive and safe net-

zero Oxfordshire transport system that enables all parts of the 

county to thrive".

The CIA assessment is therefore overwhelmingly positive, 

recognising the significant potential for improvements to:
Completed by Sam Larkin, Transport Planner

Climate action sign off by
Tammy Marrett

Director sign off by

Assessment date 44930

Energy

(↓↑ 0)

Transport & 

Connectivity

(+5)

Buildings

(+4)

Nature

(+1)Waste & 

Consumption

(↓↑ 0)

Resilience & 

Adaptation

(+2)

Procurement 

& Investment

(+5)

People & 

Organizations

(+4)

Just transition

(+4)

+24

Oxfordshire Council has committed to being a carbon neutral 

organisation by 2030 (8 years and 0 months away).

Generated 
19/01/23 

v1.36

Preview

P
age 137



Detail of proposal

Context / Background

Proposal

Evidence / Intelligence

Alternatives considered / 

rejected

The Abingdon LCWIP is one of a number of LCWIPs under development for market towns across Oxfordshire 

(as required by LTCP Policy 3a).

This is the first version of the Abingdon LCWIP to be considered for approval.

The LCWIP proposes:

• new and improved crossings for walking and cycling

• junction redesign to prioritise walking and cycling movements

• removal or modification of barriers on walking and cycling routes to improve accessibility

• provision of additional high-quality cycle parking

• on-carriageway cycling improvements (e.g., wider cycle lanes and centreline removal, some of which may 

require additional parking restrictions)

• provision of segregated cycle tracks (some of which will require reallocation of highway space from motor 

vehicles to active travel)

• permissions for cycling on some routes where cycling is not currently permitted

• new river crossings for walking and cycling over the rivers Thames and Ock

• footway widening and public realm improvements

• provision of new and improved walking and cycling routes between Abingdon and other key local destinations 

Evidence/Intelligence notes:

- Consultation outcomes - positive reception of draft LCWIP, constructive feedback received will be considered 

for inclusion in the LCWIP before it is approved. Review consultation outcomes report for details.

- Review LCWIP document for details of the background information and data which was used to inform the 

document's proposals.

As noted above, the adopted LTCP makes a clear commitment to develop an LCWIP for Abingdon. Policy 3a 

in the LTCP states that Oxfordshire County Council will:

"Develop Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans (LCWIPs) for all main urban settlements (over 

10,000 inhabitants) across the county by 2025, according to national guidance and best practice with the aim 

of increasing walking and cycling activity."

The LCWIP follows national guidance and is supported by both national and local policy. Using an alternative 

approach would mean deviating from the policies adopted in the LTCP and may reduce the likelihood of 

securing  funding for active travel schemes in the Abingdon area.

P
age 138



Category Impact criteria
Score

(-3 to +3)
Description of impact

Actions or mitigations to 

reduce negative impacts

Action 

owner

Timeline and 

monitoring 

arrangements

Energy Increases energy efficiency N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Energy Promotes a switch to low-carbon or renewable energy N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Energy Promotes resilient, local, smart energy systems N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Transport & Connectivity
Reduces need to travel and/or the need for private car 

ownership
2

The LCWIP will help reduce staff and 

residents’ need for private car 

ownership by supporting investment 

in infrastructure for alternative 

modes (aiming to make walking and 

cycling the natural choice for short 

trips and for short sections of longer 

trips).

Reduction in the need for 

private car ownership and use 

by improving the infrastructure 

provided for other modes is a 

key function of LCWIPs. Action: 

develop, approve and 

implement Abingdon LCWIP.

S&V 

Locality, 

TDC

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of the LCWIP.

Transport & Connectivity Supports active travel 3

The LCWIP will help to normalise 

walking and cycling and will help to 

make these modes more accessible. 

The LCWIP proposes:

• new and improved crossings for 

walking and cycling

• junction redesign to prioritise 

walking and cycling movements

• removal or modification of barriers 

on walking and cycling routes to 

improve accessibility

• provision of additional high-quality 

cycle parking

• on-carriageway cycling 

improvements (e.g., wider cycle lanes 

and centreline removal, some of 

which may require additional parking 

restrictions)

• provision of segregated cycle tracks 

(some of which will require 

reallocation of highway space from 

motor vehicles to active travel)

• permissions for cycling on some 

routes where cycling is not currently 

permitted

• new river crossings for walking and 

cycling over the rivers Thames and 

Supporting active travel is a key 

function of LCWIPs. Action: 

develop, approve and 

implement Abingdon LCWIP.

S&V 

Locality, 

TDC

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of the LCWIP.

P
age 139



Transport & Connectivity Increases use of public transport 1

The LCWIP will help to support an 

increase in the usage of public 

transport by improving access to 

public transport interchanges (bus 

stops and railway stations) and by 

encouraging modal shift from private 

car use to walking and cycling 

(thereby helping to reduce 

congestion and improve public 

transport journey time reliability).

Ensure that access to public 

transport interchanges is 

considered carefully when 

developing the LCWIP.

S&V 

Locality, 

TDC

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of the LCWIP.

Transport & Connectivity Accelerates electrification of transport N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Buildings Promotes net zero new builds and developments 2

The LCWIP will support the delivery of 

sustainable developments by helping 

to ensure that new developments in 

the area provide suitable 

infrastructure for active travel, in 

order to maximise uptake of active 

modes for travel to and from new 

developments and to minimise 

private car use associated with these 

developments.

Action: work with district 

councils and developers to 

ensure that new developments 

make suitable provision for 

active travel, both by providing 

improvements identified in the 

LCWIP, and by identifying and 

providing any additional 

relevant improvements which 

have not yet been included in 

the LCWIP.

S&V 

Locality, 

TDC

Ongoing

Buildings Accelerates retrofitting of existing buildings N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Nature
Protects, restores or enhances biodiversity,  landscape and 

ecosystems 
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Nature Develops blue and green infrastructure N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Nature Improves access to nature and green spaces 1

The LCWIP will help to improve 

access to nature and green spaces by 

providing improved walking and 

cycling infrastructure on routes 

within the town which provide access 

to urban green space (parks) as well 

as routes between Abingdon and 

other nearby employment sites, 

settlements, and transport 

interchanges (thereby providing 

access to the green spaces between 

these trip generators).

Action: ensure that access to 

these green spaces is 

considered when individual 

scheme design work is 

progressed.

S&V 

Locality, 

TDC

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of the LCWIP.

Waste & Consumption Reduces overall consumption N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Waste & Consumption Supports waste prevention and drive reuse and recycling N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Resilience & Adaptation Increases resilience to flooding N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Resilience & Adaptation
Increases resilience to other extreme weather events (e.g., 

storms, cold snaps, heatwaves, droughts)
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

P
age 140



Resilience & Adaptation
Increases resilience of council services, communities, energy 

systems, transport infrastructure and/or supply chains
2

The LCWIP will help to increase the 

resilience of local communities and 

local transport infrastructure by 

promoting sustainable modes of 

travel, thereby helping to reduce the 

negative impacts of Oxfordhire's 

transport network on the climate, and 

helping to reduce the dependence of 

people travelling in Oxfordshire on 

global fuel markets.

Adapting to respond to the 

climate emergency is a key 

function of LCWIPs. Action: 

develop, approve and 

implement Abingdon LCWIP.

S&V 

Locality, 

TDC

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of the LCWIP.

Procurement & Investment
Procurement practices prioritise low-carbon options, circular 

economy and sustainability
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Procurement & Investment
Investment being considered supports climate action/ is 

consistent with path to net zero
3

Investment in alternatives to the use 

of the private car is a key action for 

Oxfordshire in response to the 

climate emergency. As set out in the 

adopted LTCP, the development and 

implementation of LCWIPs such as 

this one is a key part of delivering 

against this action.

Supporting climate action is a 

key function of LCWIPs. Action: 

develop, approve and 

implement Abingdon LCWIP.

S&V 

Locality, 

TDC

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of the LCWIP.

People & Organizations
Drives behavioural change to address the climate and ecological 

emergency
3

The LCWIP will help to encourage 

behavioural change of staff and 

residents by providing infrastructure 

which supports the change from 

private car use to active travel.

Encouraging modal shift is a 

key function of LCWIPs. Action: 

develop, approve and 

implement Abingdon LCWIP.

S&V 

Locality, 

TDC

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of the LCWIP.

People & Organizations
Drives organizational and systemic change to address the climate 

and ecological emergency 
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Just transition Promotes green innovation and job creation N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Just transition Promotes health and wellbeing 2 The LCWIP promotes active travel.

Improving health and wellbeing 

is a key function of LCWIPs. 

Action: develop, approve and 

implement Abingdon LCWIP.

S&V 

Locality, 

TDC

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of the LCWIP.

Just transition Reduces poverty and inequality 1

The LCWIP will help to create 

accessible, low-carbon transport 

options for deprived communities.

Creation of accessible, low-

carbon transport options is a 

key function of LCWIPs. Action: 

develop, approve and 

implement Abingdon LCWIP.

S&V 

Locality, 

TDC

10 years. Monitor impact 

through LTCP target 

monitoring and regular 

reviews of the LCWIP.

P
age 141



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   

   
   
   

Divisions affected:  Abingdon North  

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT                           
23 FEBRUARY 2023  

 
ABINGDON: B4017 WOOTTON ROAD – PROPOSED TOUCAN 

CROSSING  
 

Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 

approve as advertised a toucan crossing on the B4017 Wootton Road at 
Abingdon as advertised 

 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
installation of a toucan crossing on the B4017 Wootton Road at Abingdon as 
shown in Annex 1; the provision of this crossing was a planning condition in 

respect of the approved development of adjacent land for a food retail business 

(Aldi) . 
 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for the proposals, including consultation will be met from the 
developers of adjacent land. 

 
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 

respect of the proposals. 
 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help facilitate walking and cycling and improve road safety 
in the vicinity. 
 

 
 

 

Page 143

Agenda Item 6



            

     
 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation on the proposed was carried out between 09 December 

2022 and 06 January 2023. An email was sent to statutory consultees & key 
stakeholders, including: Thames Valley Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, 
Ambulance service, Bus operators, countywide transport, access & disabled 

peoples user groups, Abingdon Town Council, Vale of White Horse District 
Council, the local District Councillors, and the local County Councillor 

representing the Abingdon North division. Letters were also sent to 
approximately 45 adjacent properties, and public notices placed on site in the 
immediate vicinity of the proposals. 

 
7. Seventeen responses were received during the formal consultation, comprising 

of: three objections, two raising concerns, eleven in support, and one non-
objections. 
 

8. The responses are shown at Annex 2, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 

 

Officer response to objections/concerns  
 

9. Thames Valley Police expressed no objection providing the necessary speed 

monitoring had taken place with the results supporting this, and that the 
crossing fully meets all necessary design criteria. They also raised a query 
regarding the validity of the proposed road markings. Noting these comments, 

it is confirmed that the design meets the relevant national criteria and that the 
detailed design of the road markings will be checked and adjusted as required 

ahead if of implementation should the scheme be approved, noting also that a 
post completion road safety audit will also be carried out.  
 

10. The local member expressed support for the scheme but also emphasized the 
importance of adequate maintenance of the cycle provision noting the current 

overgrowth of vegetation which impedes users of these relatively narrow paths , 
and also the competition of approved cycle infrastructure funded by adjacent 
development that has yet to be delivered. 

 
11. Responses were received from two local councillors, both expressing support 

for the toucan itself but raising also queries on the timing of the consultation on 
the toucan crossing, and also the design of the new vehicle access to the store. 
In respect of the first query, while the delivery of the crossing was included as 

a condition of the planning consent, there is still a requirement to consult on the 
crossing under national regulations on the provision of traffic control measures; 

the concerns on t he design of the access are discussed below. 
 

12. Abingdon Town Council expressed a concern noting that in their view the 

adjacent cycle path layout appears to differ from published plan and in their 
opinion does not fit well with this. 

 

Page 144



            

     
 

13. Two responses were received from representatives of Cycling UK; while neither 

objected to the proposed toucan crossing itself, the responses expressed 
strong concerns in respect of the junction layout for the new store and also the 

adequacy of the linking off-road cycle provision particularly in respect of its 
width. 

 

14. Two objections were also received from members of the public; these again 
focussed on the adjacent and linking off- road provision for cyclists, as opposed 

to the proposal for a toucan crossing. 
 

15. Six responses were received from  members of the public expressing support 

for the toucan crossing  but these also included strong concerns in respect of 
the current junction layout for the store.  

 
16. In response to the objections and concerns on the new layout immediately 

adjacent to the development and specifically including the junction design, the 

works on the ground currently are not the finished works, and the intention is 
still to install the access in line with the planning approved layout, which should 

address these specific matters, noting that the cycleway, footway and toucan 
crossing layout proposals are in line with the planning approved layout. 
 

17. In respect of the concerns of the width of the off-road cycle provision, the 
footway/ cycleway could not be widened at the location of the toucan due to 
existing limitations such as the hedgerow. The impact of the hedgerow on the 

proposed works was reviewed during the planning process and it was 
determined the hedgerow was to be retained.  

        
 
Bill Cotton 

Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 
 Annex 2: Consultation responses  
  

   
Contact Officers:  Jacob Mowlem   

     
February 2023  
 

  

Page 145



            

     
 

  

ANNEX 1

Page 146



          

  

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
No objection – In principle I have no objections providing the necessary speed monitoring has taken place and the 

result support such a crossing point. And the crossing fully meets all necessary design criteria . 
 
Just one question from me regarding the road markers. The centre line through the crossing has been shortened to 
accommodate an arrow and there are other arrows within the controlled area is this permitted ? 
 

(2) Local County Cllr, 
(North Abingdon division) 

 
Support - Fundamentally I support this proposal which will be key to link up the Aldi site with King’s Gate and the 

wider cycle connectivity across north Abingdon. 
 
However, it will only really compliment the north-south active travel routes on either side of Wootton road if the 
vegetation and overgrowth on both sides is maintained properly allowing for the already relatively narrow paths to not 
be impeded by the new poles added for this crossing. 
 
As a separate issue please could the promised cycle track on the east side of Wootton Road along the frontage of 
Kings gate (in the approved planning application drawings) actually be constructed too? 
 

(3) Abingdon Town 
Council 

Concerns – Related cycle path layout appears to differ from published plan and does not fit well with this. 

(4) Local Cllr, (Abingdon, 
Hillview Road) 

 
Support - I welcome this proposal. The new supermarket is already proving very popular with local residents, and a 

Toucan crossing will enable pedestrians and cyclists to access the store much more safely. This is in line with the 
agreed policies of the District and Town Councils to support active travel and see "15 minute neighbourhoods" in 
operation. 
 

(5) Local Cllr, (Abingdon, 
Ock Street) 

 
Support - The crossing is essential for the safety of pedestrians and cyclists. The Toucan crossing should already in 

place as per the planning decision made in Nov 21, P21/V0024/FUL, I Chaired that meeting and active travel and 
cyclist safety was the main point of discussion and debate. 'Prior to first occupation, the proposed TOUCAN crossing 
along Wootton Road adjacent to the site shall be provided and constructed in accordance with the highway authority's 

P
age 147



                 
 

requirements and specifications. Reason: To provide appropriate pedestrian and cycle facilities that will serve the 
development and in interests of highway safety (Policy CP33 and CP35 of the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1 and 
DP16 of the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 2).' Committee were unanimously in favour of the Aldi, but the need for 
active travel and safe roads and convenience for residents should not be in conflict. I can not understand how the 
Toucan crossing is up for consultation when it is so clearly needed. 
 
The access to the Aldi car park has not been constructed in line with the plans submitted as part of P21/V0024/FUL. 
The give-way is now at the edge of the Wooton Rd not at where the cycle path and pedestrian footway cross the site 
entrance. The commentary in the planning report on which the planning committee made its decision says: 5.50 
Following receipt of amended plans the access has been designed to give priority to users of the existing cycle path 
along Wootton Road with give way markings to be installed for vehicles at the access. The priority to cyclists will help 
to encourage the use of sustainable modes of transport as supported by CP35 of LPP1. 
 

(6) Local Cllr, (Abingdon, 
Oxford Road) 

 
Support - The crossing is essential for the safety of pedestrians and cyclists.  

 
I would also like to know why the Toucan crossing is not already in place as per the planning decision made in Nov 
21, P21/V0024/FUL?, extract as follows: 
 
'Prior to first occupation, the proposed TOUCAN crossing along Wootton Road 
adjacent to the site shall be provided and constructed in accordance with the 
highway authority's requirements and specifications. 
Reason: To provide appropriate pedestrian and cycle facilities that will serve 
the development and in interests of highway safety (Policy CP33 and CP35 of 
the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1 and DP16 of the adopted Local Plan 2031 
Part 2).' 
Why is this only being consulted on now?  
 
Also the access to the Aldi car park has not been constructed in line with the plans submitted as part of 
P21/V0024/FUL. The give-way is now at the edge of the Wooton Rd not at where the cycle path and pedestrian 
footway cross the site entrance. The commentary in the planning report on which the planning committee made its 
decision says: 
 
5.50 Following receipt of amended plans the access has been designed to give 
priority to users of the existing cycle path along Wootton Road with give way 

P
age 148



                 
 

markings to be installed for vehicles at the access. The priority to cyclists will 
help to encourage the use of sustainable modes of transport as supported by 
CP35 of LPP1.  
 
I would like the road markings at the entrance modified to prioritise pedestrian and cycle traffic in accordance with the 
planning decision and both Vale and County Active travel strategy. 
 

(7) Interim Managing 
Director, (Oxford Bus 
Company) 

Support 

(8) Local 
group/organisation, 
(Cycling UK Oxfordshire) 

 
Concerns – Summary 

 
Good points: 
This is an important route, it should improve the most direct active travel route from Dalton Barracks to the primary 
school. 
 
Bad points: 
The toucan crossing is hampered by lost opportunities: - 
• It should help improve the active travel route following the desire line (via the roundabout) from Wootton/Dalton 
Barracks to Fitzharries School/central Abingdon, but fails to follow this desire line 
• Widening of the segregated/shared use pedestrian/cycle track on the west side of the B4017 and replanting the 
hedge set back from the pedestrian/cycle track - even the consultation drawing shows at one point the track width 
measured to within the hedge. For most of the year the track width will be narrower that shown due to the hedge 
growth/inadequate frequency of cutting impinging onto the cycle/pedestrian track. This comment is based on 
experience throughout Oxfordshire. 
• The 3m track width is reduced by 0.45m due to the pole set in from the kerb. A vertical edge to a cycle track reduces 
the effective width by 0.5m (LTN 1/20 guidance). So with a hedge and a pole, the 3m width effectively becomes 2m 
width for shared use at a location where users will gather/wait at the crossing 
• As the land adjacent to the highway is being redeveloped (as opposed to a pre existing property), the above issues 
could easily have been resolved as part of the development. Why such a simple solution was not insisted upon by 
Oxfordshire Highways is of deep concern to us. 
 
We formally object to the non compliant narrow width of the proposed track at and adjoining crossing. 
 

P
age 149



                 
 

Detailed comments. 
 
Good points. 
• The toucan crossing links the new housing development to/from Aldi. 
• Wootton Rd/Dalton Barracks to the development to Dunmore Primary School: - a quieter and similar distance if using 
the school side entry from Farm Rd compared to via the Dunmore Rd/B4017 roundabout and the Northcourt Rd. 
entrance. 
• The toucan crossing looks good with a link to the new toucan crossing in Dunmore Rd. 
 
Central right turn lanes before/after the toucan crossing: 
There is a bit of a "3rd lane" in the centre of the road/crossing. The central section straddling the toucan crossing 
needs to be clearly marked as "not a running lane". There is not enough length/distance for hatching markings, some 
buff colour surface would be a good alternative. A traffic island would be much better. This should help deter impatient 
drivers from being temped to overtake at this location. 
It is the short section between these 2 right turn lanes that needs to be clearly marked as "not a running lane". 
 
The area adjoining the toucan crossing: 
General points adjoining the toucan crossing. 
The proposed toucan crossing while fine in itself, is surrounded by poor design and lost opportunities for active travel. 
Unfortunately an all too common occurrence. 
Where does the toucan crossing lead to? 
The toucan crossing does little for connectivity from the wider area to Fitzharries School/central Abingdon. To avoid 3 
sides of a rectangle on the new cycle track on the east side of the B4017 between the proposed Aldi toucan crossing 
and the roundabout, there needs to be a direct cycle/pedestrian route beside/set 1m back on the east side of the B 
4017 to link up with the existing toucan crossing on Dunmore Rd adjacent to the roundabout. (Continuing on the west 
side of the B4017 towards Abingdon does lead to a toucan crossing on the B4017 south of the roundabout, but this 
requires an uncontrolled crossing of Copenhagen Drive - a toucan crossing is needed here as well). 
 
Width of the segregated track near the toucan crossing: 
 
The segregated track fails to meet LTN 1/20 guidance. Although nominally 3m wide, the hedge reduces the effective 
measured width to 2.5m (before allowing for hedge growth encroaching on the track). This is likely to be used to the 
school run, so should be designed to accommodate the busy school run. 
 

P
age 150



                 
 

• The segregated use pedestrian/cycle track on the west side of the B4017 should have had the hedge replanted set 
back from the pedestrian/cycle track to allow for hedge growth - even the consultation drawing shows at one point the 
track width measured to within the hedge. For most of the year the track width will be narrower that shown due to the 
hedge growth impinging onto the cycle/pedestrian track. This comment is based on experience throughout 
Oxfordshire. 
• The 3m track width is reduced by 0.45m due to the pole set in from the kerb. A vertical edge to a cycle track reduced 
the effective width by 0.5m (LTN 1/20 guidance). So with a hedge and a pole, the 3, width effectively becomes 2m 
width for shared use at a location where users will gather/wait at the crossing. A pole set at the back of the shared use 
track with the traffic light head cantilevered out should be installed. 
• As the land adjacent to the highway is being redeveloped (as opposed to a pre existing established property), the 
above issues could easily have been resolved as part of the development. Why such a simple solution was not 
insisted upon by Oxfordshire Highways is a complete mystery. 
 
Aldi side entry: 
The Aldi access offers no protection or priority for cyclists. It is in keeping with all the other inappropriate wide bell 
mouths wherever the new North Abingdon housing development meets the existing road network, all across "cycle 
tracks". All these turnings/entries must be LTN 1/20 compliant - options for cycle tracks crossing side roads/entries are 
given in Figure 10.13: "Priority crossings of cycle tracks at side roads" in LTN 1/20. In short, tighter kerb radii, 
narrower entrances, cycle pedestrian track priority across the entry with a raised cycle/pedestrian track across the 
entry. 
 

(9) Local 
group/organisation, 
(Cycling UK Oxfordshire) 

 
Object - The toucan crossing itself is ok, although it is important that it links coherently to the wider walking and 

cycling route network. 
 
We strongly object to the design of the entrance to Aldi, which is dangerous. 
 
The 8m radii encourage fast entry speeds across a walking and cycling route. According to Highway Code rule H2 
pedestrians and cyclists have priority across a junction like this. This design makes 'left hook collisions' likely. Similar 
moving left-hooks recently caused the deaths of cyclists in Headington in November 2020 and at Oxford Parkway in 
February 2022.  
This design goes against the council's policies for a transport hierarchy that prioritises pedestrians and cyclists, and its 
commitment to 'Vision Zero' for serious traffic casualties. 
 
The junction should be redesigned for safety, the road user hierarchy, and to support drivers to obey the Highway 

P
age 151



                 
 

Code, with tight radii, a continuous raised shared path across the junction using 'Dutch entrance kerbs', and give way 
markings to reinforce priority. 
 

(10) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Kidlington, The 
Moors) 

 

Object - While I welcome the toucan crossing the TS pole will be on the cycle path without additional width given to 

the path at that point. This is dangerous and inconvenient.  
 
Entrance to Aldi. I object to the design of this entrance and the foot and cycle path crossing. It is yet another missed 
opportunity to start implementing continuous foot &amp; cycle paths in Oxfordshire. Pedestrians and cyclists should 
have priority but this design will force them to wait for cars and create dangerous situations because the design 
contradicts the new Highway Code. It also doesn’t encourage people to walk or cycle. The needs a redesign to include 
a raised table for walking and cycling and narrower radi to slow cars down. 

(11) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sunningwell, 
Sunningwell Road) 

 
Object - Showing astonishing negligence, the county council failed to secure the widening of the sub-standard 

ped/cycle track on the west side of Wootton Road in connection with the new Aldi development. Already reduced in 
width annually by spring/summer growth of the hedge that bounds it, this toucan crossing would now add some signal 
poles to further obstruct it, making it even less attractive for cyclists to use. They are also not being protected at the 
new access to the Aldi site. I like many other cyclists will not be using the track and attempting to negotiate this new 
access and standing pedestrians. 
 
The crossing would appear likely to be very little used and as yet there is no sign of the cycle track on the east side of 
Wootton Road along the frontage of the new development which was displayed on the approved planning application 
drawings and which would appear to be blocked by some brick walls that have been constructed at the entrance to the 
site. 
 

(12) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Abingdon, Darrell 
Way) 

 
Support - I broadly support the proposal for a Toucan crossing as it will generally make it easier for pedestrians and 

cyclists to access the supermarket. 
 
I strongly object to the proposed design of the entrance which I consider dangerous. The junction must prioritise 
cyclists and pedestrians using the Wootton Road cycle path, in accordance with the hierarchy of road users given in 
the Highway Code.  The proposed design is car-centric, and is likely to result in serious cyclist or pedestrian 
casualties. 

P
age 152



                 
 

 

(13) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Abingdon, Morgan 
Vale) 

Support - I think it makes a lot sense, now that the Aldi store is open and there eill be a lot of people trying to cross 

this road. 

(14) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Abingdon, Morgan 
Vale) 

Support - It is safer for us to cross the Wootton Road, especially after the opening of ADLI. 

(15) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Abingdon, Oxford 
Road) 

 
Support - The crossing is needed to ensure the safety of pedestrians and cyclists crossing Wootton Road between 

Aldi supermarket and the housing. The current arrangement of just having a centre refuge is unsafe and does not 
protect pedestrians and cyclists.  
I am suprised that the supermarket was allowed to open without the crossing in place. 
 
I am also confused about the point where the cycle lane and footpath cross the entrance to Aldi car park. This is 
extremely dangerous as it gives priority to car drivers. It is not clear if the marked crossing is for pedestrians or for 
both cyclists and pedestrians. As it is, it is not clear whether cyclists are intended to use the marked crossing or 
deviate onto the road. The vehicle give way marking  for exiting the car park should inform car drivers to give way at 
the pedestrian/cycle crossing point and not at the road edge. 
 
Changing this entrance/exit and installing the toucan crossing will together make the whole area around the 
supermarket much safer and reduce the likelihood of accidents. 
 

(16) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Abingdon, Morgan 
Vale) 

 
Support - As a resident of Kings Gate I can say that we do need a safe way to cross the road, especially now that Aldi 

is just opposite our development. The site is full of families with young children who will simply walk to the Aldi on a 
daily basis. 
 

(17) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Shippon, Rookery 
Close) 

Support - Very busy road 

 

P
age 153



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   

   
   
   

Divisions affected:  Kennington & Radley  

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT                           
23 FEBRUARY 2023  

 
RADLEY: KENNINGTON ROAD & WHITES LANE – PROPOSED 

PEDESTRIAN & CYCLE CROSSINGS AND SHARED USE FOOTWAY 
/ CYCLETRACK  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the following measures as advertised:  

  
a. a new zebra crossing on Kennington Road 
b. a new raised parallel crossing on Kennington Road 

c. a new non-raised parallel crossing on Whites Lane,  
d. a new Shared-use footway/cycle track (to be approx. 3 metres wide) on 

the east side of Kennington Road, and the west side of Whites Lane. 

 
 

Executive summary 

 

2. This report presents responses to a consultation on a proposal to introduce a 

number of pedestrian and pedal cycle improvements in Kennington Road and  
Whites Lane, Radley in order to provide safe and convenient facilities for 

pedestrians and cyclists; while the measures are being funded by the 
developers of housing on adjacent land with a particular focus of encouraging 
active travel by occupants of this development, the measures will also benefit 

the many existing pedestrian and cyclists, including through the provision of a 
convenient link through the development to the Sustrans Route 5 linking 

Abingdon and Oxford. 
 

3. Specifically, the proposals as shown in Annexes 1 to 4 will comprise of the 

following measures a) a new zebra crossing on Kennington Road, b) a new 
raised parallel crossing on Kennington Road, which will be sited on a new flat 

top road hump approx. 7m wide and 75mm high, with a ramp gradient of 
between 1:15 and 1:20, c) a new non-raised parallel crossing on Whites Lane, 
(both of which comprise of separate adjacent crossing facilities for pedestrians 

& pedal cyclists), and d) a new Shared-use footway/cycle track (to be approx. 
3 metres wide) on the east side of Kennington Road, and the west side of 

Whites Lane. 
 

 

 

Page 155

Agenda Item 7



            

     
 

Financial Implications  
 

4. Funding for the proposals, including consultation will be met from the 

developers of adjacent land. 
 
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

5. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

6. The proposals would help facilitate walking and pedal cyclists, and improve 

road safety in the vicinity. 
 
 

Formal consultation  
 

7. The Formal consultation was carried out between 01 December to 30 
December 2022. A notice was published in the Oxford Times newspaper, and 
an email sent to statutory consultees, including Thames Valley Police, the Fire 

& Rescue Service, Ambulance service, local bus operators, countywide 
transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, Vale of White Horse District 

Council, the local District Cllrs, Radley Parish Council  and the local County 
Councillor representing the Kennington and Radley division. Additionally, 
letters were sent directly to approximately 55 adjacent premises in the 

immediate vicinity. 
 

8. 42 responses were received via the online survey during the course of the 
formal consultation, and these are summarised in the table below:  
 

Proposal Object Concerns Support 
No opinion 

/ objection 
Total 

zebra crossing 
Kennington Road 

2 (5%) 6 (14%) 31 (74%) 3 42 

raised parallel crossing 

Kennington Road 
1 (2%) 6 (14%) 31 (74%) 4 42 

non-raised parallel 

crossing Whites Lane 
- 7 (17%) 31 (74%) 4 42 

Shared-use 
footway/cycle track 

12 (29%) 10 (24%) 19 (45%) 1 42 

 

9. Additionally, 11 emails were received, comprising of four objections, two raising 
concerns, four in support, and one submitting a non-objection. 
 

Page 156



            

     
 

10. The full responses are shown at Annex 5, and copies of the original 

submissions are also available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 

 

Officer response to objections/concerns  
 

11. Thames Valley Police expressed no objection providing the necessary speed 
monitoring had taken place with the results supporting this, and that the 

proposals fully meet all necessary design criteria.  
 
12. The Local member, Oxford bus Company and Radley C of E Primary School 

all expressed support for the proposals. 
 

13. Radley Parish Council expressed support for the proposals, although also 
sought reassurance that the project meets the County Council's commitment to 
biodiversity net gain, and also asked that resident concerns at the size and 

location of the new layby which replaces parking at the front of 98 to 102 
Kennington Road are considered. 

 
14. Two responses were received from Cyclox (full response shown at Annex 6) 

and Cycling UK; these included an objection in respect of the detailing of the 

cycle track where it crosses the access to the Sports Centre in respect of cycle 
priority and kerb radii etc. Their detailed response raises also many other 

comments and observations, and these will be considered by the designers; 
notwithstanding these important matters of detail, their overall response is very 
supportive noting that the proposals address a current ‘missing link’ for cyclists 

travelling between Abingdon and Oxford.  
 

15. Several responses – including that of Radley Parish Council above, and the 
affected residents – expressed objections and concerns over the impact of the 
of the scheme on parking by residents of 98 to 102 Kennington Road. 

Unfortunately, there is no scope to retain the current parking provision directly 
outside these properties. The new parking is provided approx. 35m south (this 

measurement has been taken from the centre of the existing parking provision 
to the centre of the new parking layby). It is noted that the property furthest 
south has on-plot parking, and this access will be retained. 

 
16. Several objections were also received to the proposed shared use cycle track 

on the grounds that the scheme should focus on the improvement of the 
existing shared use track on the west side between Radley village and 
Sugworth Lane. However, although the latter will be retained, the propsoed 

cycle track on the east side provides a much better connection for cyclists and 
pedestrians between Radley and Kennington including also a convenient cycle 

link through the residential  development to the Sustrans route 5 continuing to 
Oxford.  
 

17.  In respect of other comments received, the following points are noted: 
 

 It is a standard arrangement to have private driveway accesses adjoining 
shared cycleway/footways, due care and attention should always be 

Page 157



            

     
 

taken when emerging from driveways as users of the footway/ cycleway 

have priority as per the Highway code.    
 

 The verges on the eastern side will be removed to facilitate the 
cycleway/footway. The hedges will not be lost, but there are two Highway 
trees that will need to be removed to facilitate the works.  

 

 The new cycleway links into the Redrow Homes development in 

Kennington, this connection to Redrow's cycleway is on the eastern side 
of the carriageway, therefore if the cycleway was on the opposite side of 
the road cyclist would need to cross the carriageway twice, this would 

make the route less attractive to users and increase costs to provide 
formal crossing points. 

 

 An environmental impact assessment was carried out at the planning 

stage and all information can be viewed on the District Council's website.  
 

 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annexes 1- 4: Consultation Plans 
 Annex 5: Consultation responses  

 Annex 6: Consultation response from Cyclox 
  

   
Contact Officers:  Ryan Moore 07557 082568  
     

February 2023  
 

  

Page 158



            

     
 

 

ANNEX 1

Page 159



            

     
 

  

ANNEX 2

Page 160



            

     
 

 

ANNEX 3

Page 161



            

     
 

  

ANNEX 4

Page 162



          

  

ANNEX 5 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
No objection – In principle the Police have no objection providing the necessary speed monitoring has taken place 

and current speeds support these proposals, and that these proposals meet all current design standards. 
 

(2) Local County Cllr, 
(Kennington & Radley 
division) 

Support – Quite happy with the proposals, this is a culmination of a process which has been going on for many years!  

(3) Interim Managing 
Director, (Oxford Bus 
Company) 

Support – Oxford Bus Company is supportive of these proposals. 

(4) Radley CE Primary 
School 

 
Support – on behalf of the Governors, staff, children and parents of Radley Primary School to support the proposed 

construction of a zebra crossing for pedestrian use across Kennington Road north of the junction with Church Road, 
as this will enable the children that attend our school from Radley College to safely cross this busy road.  In our travel 
plan, we have permission to use the Sports Centre car park for parents who drive their children to school and walk the 
last part.   
 
We are also very keen for the children attending our school to travel to school by bike, scooter or foot, and the 
proposals of the cycle lane and crossings will not only ensure the safety of our children, but also the children from 
Radley once they have left us to attend secondary school in Abingdon and travel by foot or bicycle.   
 
With our expansion due to finish in the near future and doubling the size of our school, the need for these will only 
increase.    
 

(5) Local 
group/organisation, 
(Cyclox) 

Object – see full response in Annex 6 

(6) Local 
group/organisation, 
(Cyclox) 

 
Support – Thank you for posting the consultation on Kennington Road & Whites Lane proposed pedestrian & pedal 

cycle improvements.  We are very supportive of this scheme, and will provide constructive comments. 

P
age 163



                 
 

 
One question. The original plans agreed with Pye Homes included cycle tracks on the rest of Whites Lane, 
improvements to the junction with Radley Road/Thrupp Lane, and improvements to the cycle tracks on Radley Road 
inside and outside the Abingdon ring road.  Are these coming forward in a separate consultation? 
 

(7) Radley Parish Council 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Support     
 
Radley Parish Council welcomes pedestrian and cycling improvements which will be brought by this project, but asks 
to be reassured that the project meets the County Council's commitment to biodiversity net gain.   
It asks that resident concerns at the size and location of the new layby which replaces parking at the front of 98 to 102 
Kennington Road are considered. 
 

(8) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley, 
Kennington Road) 

 
Object – I don’t know how you can possibly expect my two families with very young children to manage with a layby 
30yards down the road! Which presumably anybody can use.let alone leave their cars there overnight. 
 
Historically the layby is there to service just those cottages. Of course deliveries and septic tank empties also. 
 

(9) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley, 
Kennington Road) 

 
Object – I am resident and owner of Oakwood Cottage, 98 Kennington Road, Radley and object to the cycle track 

proposed along the east side of Kennington Road. As do my neighbours who are residents at no 100 and 102 
Kennington Road, you will perhaps also hear from them separately along with the owner of 100 and 102 Kennington 
Road. 
 
As a cyclist, I support improvement of cycle routes to connect the new development. The originally proposed route as 
part of the Neighbourhood plan; along the railway track seemed an ideal solution but I understand the required land 
could not be purchased to facilitate this. I therefore understand that the next solution is to follow the road, of which I 
have no issue with. However, I (& others listed above) strongly feel it would be far better to improve and widen the 
existing cycle track and pavement on the other side of the road rather than destroy the grass verge, drainage ditch 
and existing habitats on the east side to create a completely new cycle track. 
 

P
age 164



                 
 

The current scheme negatively impacts our row of three houses and I object on the following basis… 
 
- Safety, the proposed cycle track will be extremely dangerous to emerge onto from my driveway. The current opening 
beyond my boundary (what will become the cycle track) is what I have to pull out onto to be able to see both up and 
down Kennington Road before pulling out. As you may be aware there is also a bend in the road to the right of my 
property, so even when pulling out of my driveway into the existing opening (before emerging into the road) it can be 
risky if a car is coming around the bend quickly. The only option should the cycle track on the east side go ahead 
would be to pull out of my driveway blindly onto the cycle track, blocking this entirely to be able to see the road. This 
would leave me blocking the cycle track posing quite a danger to cyclists who may find it difficult to see my vehicle 
side on. 
 
To illustrate this point, please find at the bottom of this email a series of photos; 
 
- IMG_3170 - Illustrates the significant drop of my driveway from the road, with the removal of the space between my 
driveway opening and the road, meaning I need to pull directly out (blindly) into a cycle track this makes a difficult bit 
of car clutch control required here posing a greater danger to cyclists 
 
- IMG_3176 - Shows the view sat in a car emerging from my driveway (front of car in line with boundary), looking 
south. As shown, you cannot see at all before emerging onto what will be a cycle track 
 
- IMG_3178 - Shows the view sat in a car emerging from my driveway (front of car in line with boundary), looking 
north. As shown, you cannot see at all before emerging onto what will be a cycle track 
 
- IMG_3182 - Shows the view sat in the car in the opening to my driveway (front of car 2ft from the road edge), looking 
south, what would be blocking the new cycle track. As shown, I would have to entirely block the cycle track to see 
sufficiently to pull out 
 
- IMG_3183 - Shows the view sat in the car in the opening to my driveway (front of car 2ft from the road edge), looking 
north, what would be blocking the new cycle track. As shown, I would have to entirely block the cycle track to see 
sufficiently to pull out 
 
The loss of the lay-by outside no 100 and no 102 is also quite an issue and poses a different safety concern. Both 
these properties have no driveways and their only parking is in this lay-by. Therefore moving this lay-by further up the 
road poses a safety risk for both these families as they would have to park further down the road and navigate a cycle 
track and pavement next to a 40mph road with very young children. It’s a danger for these children parking in a lay-by 

P
age 165



                 
 

directly outside their houses let alone having to park further away and walk down the cycle track / road with children, 
shopping etc. 
 
- Biodiversity, destroying the grass verges and drainage ditches on the East side of the road and removing habitats for 
various wildlife makes no sense given there is already a fairly wide pavement and cycle track on the opposite side of 
the road. This surely could be improved and widened to provide the same effect on the side of the road where there is 
an existing pavement and cycle track where the area next to the road (pavement and grass verges) is particularly wide 
in most places already. Given the councils adoption of Bio-Diversity Net Gain objectives in planning from 2023 
onwards, this certainly does not align with this policy. 
 
- Security, introducing cyclists and pedestrians onto the side of the road where our properties are poses security 
issues which we haven’t faced previously. All 3 of our properties are very close to the road and open at the front. 2 of 
the 3 properties do not have driveways, my property does and so has a wide opening which would encourage 
unwelcome visitors. I feel with the cycle track immediately outside my boundary it would be difficult to have a gate, as I 
would need to pull into the cycle track and leave my vehicle blocking this whilst opening / closing the gate. Dangerous 
for both the residents but also the cyclists using the new cycle track. 
 

(10) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley, 
Kennington Road) 

 
Object – I am resident and owner of Oakwood Cottage, 98 Kennington Road, Radley, and object to the cycle track 

proposed along the east side of Kennington Road. As do my neighbours who are residents at no 100 and 102 
Kennington Road, you will perhaps also hear from them separately along with the owner of 100 and 102 Kennington 
Road. 
 
As a cyclist, I support improvement of cycle routes to connect the new development. The originally proposed route as 
part of the Neighbourhood plan; along the railway track seemed an ideal solution but I understand the required land 
could not be purchased to facilitate this. I therefore understand that the next solution is to follow the road, of which I 
have no issue with. However, I (& others listed above) strongly feel it would be far better to improve and widen the 
existing cycle track and pavement on the other side of the road rather than destroy the grass verge, drainage ditch 
and existing habitats on the east side to create a completely new cycle track. 
 
The current scheme negatively impacts our row of three houses and I object on the following basis… 
 
- Safety, the proposed cycle track will be extremely dangerous to emerge onto from my driveway. The current opening 
beyond my boundary (what will become the cycle track) is what I have to pull out onto to be able to see both up and 
down Kennington Road before pulling out. As you may be aware there is also a bend in the road to the right of my 

P
age 166



                 
 

property, so even when pulling out of my driveway into the existing opening (before emerging into the road) it can be 
risky if a car is coming around the bend quickly. The only option should the cycle track on the east side go ahead 
would be to pull out of my driveway blindly onto the cycle track, blocking this entirely to be able to see the road. This 
would leave me blocking the cycle track posing quite a danger to cyclists and pedestrians who may find it difficult to 
see my vehicle side on. 
 
To illustrate this point, please find at the bottom of this email a series of photos; 
 
- IMG_3170 - Illustrates the significant drop of my driveway from the road, with the removal of the space between my 
driveway opening and the road, meaning I need to pull directly out (blindly) into a cycle track this makes a difficult bit 
of car clutch control required here posing a greater danger to cyclists 
 
- IMG_3176 - Shows the view sat in a car emerging from my driveway (front of car in line with boundary), looking 
south. As shown, you cannot see at all before emerging onto what will be a cycle track 
 
- IMG_3178 - Shows the view sat in a car emerging from my driveway (front of car in line with boundary), looking 
north. As shown, you cannot see at all before emerging onto what will be a cycle track 
 
- IMG_3182 - Shows the view sat in the car in the opening to my driveway (front of car 2ft from the road edge), looking 
south, what would be blocking the new cycle track. As shown, I would have to entirely block the cycle track to see 
sufficiently to pull out 
 
- IMG_3183 - Shows the view sat in the car in the opening to my driveway (front of car 2ft from the road edge), looking 
north, what would be blocking the new cycle track. As shown, I would have to entirely block the cycle track to see 
sufficiently to pull out 
 
The loss of the lay-by outside no 100 and no 102 is also quite an issue and poses a different safety concern. Both 
these properties have no driveways and their only parking is in this lay-by. Therefore moving this lay-by further up the 
road poses a safety risk for both these families as they would have to park further down the road and navigate a cycle 
track and pavement next to a 40mph road with very young children. It’s a danger for these children parking in a lay-by 
directly outside their houses let alone having to park further away and walk down the cycle track / road with children, 
shopping etc. 
 
- Biodiversity, destroying the grass verges and drainage ditches on the East side of the road and removing habitats for 
various wildlife makes no sense given there is already a fairly wide pavement and cycle track on the opposite side of 

P
age 167



                 
 

the road. This surely could be improved and widened to provide the same effect on the side of the road where there is 
an existing pavement and cycle track where the area next to the road (pavement and grass verges) is particularly wide 
in most places already. Given the councils adoption of Bio-Diversity Net Gain objectives in planning from 2023 
onwards, this certainly does not align with this policy. 
 
- Security, introducing cyclists and pedestrians onto the side of the road where our properties are poses security 
issues which we haven’t faced previously. All 3 of our properties are very close to the road and open at the front. 2 of 
the 3 properties do not have driveways, my property does and so has a wide opening which would encourage 
unwelcome visitors. I feel with the cycle track immediately outside my boundary it would be difficult to have a gate, as I 
would need to pull into the cycle track and leave my vehicle blocking this whilst opening / closing the gate. Dangerous 
for both the residents but also the cyclists using the new cycle track. 
 

(11) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley Road) 

 
Concerns – I would like to draw your attention to a problem on the existing pedestrian walkway/cycle path between 

Radley College and Sugworth Lane. 
 
Because of the decision to cut the grass verge only once a year and not carry out routine maintenance, the path 
naturally becomes narrower (image attached showing how much the verge has overgrown due to NO maintenance).  
In the height of summer when the grass and weeds are at their highest the path is as little as 2 or 3 feet wide in 
places.  This causes a safety issue as bicycles are trying to squeeze past pedestrians - sometime at speed - on such 
a narrow path.  It would make for more sense to tarmac the entire width of the track to allow safer use for both 
pedestrians and cyclists. 
 
Another issue is the path between Sugworth Lane and the bus stop at Sugworth Crescent which is now a disgrace.  
Despite me speaking directly to a Redrow representative, they decided just to throw mud and stones on the path 
verge after they had finished digging it up.  After just a few weeks weeds germinated and by mid summer they were 3 
or 4 feet high and encroaching the footpath.  Also every time it rains the road and footpath now become flooded 
(image attached).  This combination makes access for the elderly and disabled virtually impossible.  Quite a contrast 
to the manicured turf and block paving that they laid on their shiny new housing estate. 
 
In short, any new shared-use footway/cycle track laid needs to be wide enough for both AND regularly maintained to 
avoid accidents and allow safe use for all. 
 

(12) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 

P
age 168



                 
 

public, (Kennington, 
Bagley Wood Road) 

Concerns – I understand the need for improvements to the current cycle route from Oxford through to Abingdon, in 
particular the section between Kennington and Radley. My concern is about the environment. The housing 
developments are gradually eroding space for wildlife and I would hope that there should be some environmental gain 
from this new plan.  
 
Our road verges are increasingly important as havens for wildlife, including vital pollinators and wild flowers. If we lose 
the verges on the East side of the road then consideration needs to be given to what can be gained on the West side, 
perhaps even extending the field verge into the field a short distance.  
It is now generally accepted that our road verges are vital resources and I hope we can enhance them wherever 
possible. 
 

(13) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley, College 
Close) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Concerns, 
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Concerns, 

Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support, 
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Support 
 
The plans are not obvious. There is little suggestion where things are. An overview of the entire extend of work with 
references to the individual plans would have been useful. A bike lane is vital, but who is going to maintain it? There is 
already a combined footpath/cycle path on the opposite side of the road which the Parish Council (with the help of 
Radley College) maintains if possible. Can the existing bike/footpath not be adjusted widened? 
Where is the Zebra crossing going to be? Still in Radley? Is it to connect the Oxford-bound Radley College bus stop 
with the opposite side of the Road? 
 
The main crossing near Church Road seems to be on the wrong side and as such only caters for traffic from 
Kennington Road to Whites Lane. Could it be closer to the entrance to the Radley Sports Centre to also include 
footfall from the village (from Church Road) to the sports centre)? I wonder if pedestrians (people with push chairs) 
would people turn right around the church, cross and then turn left again towards the sports centre entrance? 
 

(14) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley, College 
close ) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support, 
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support, 
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support, 
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Support 
 

P
age 169



                 
 

No comments. 
 

(15) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley, Ferny 
Close) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support, 
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support, 
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support, 
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Support 
 
Pro walking and cycling measures - we need alternatives which enable people to switch from motorised vehicles. 
 

(16) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley, 
Foxborough Road) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Object, 

Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support, 
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support, 
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Object 

 
The proposal does not recognize that we are facing a climate and biodiversity emergency. The almost total loss of the 
verge on the east side of Kenningon Road is indefensible. Use of the verge on the west side of Whites Lane is, alas, 
the only way of providing a safe pedestrian and cycle route along it. But the surface must be specified to remain 
porous. The proposed layout at the cottages is utterly impractical: the proposed cycle path is squeezed up against the 
valuable (private, I assume, hedge) , with a notable, and sudden change of level compared to the front gardens, and 
car parking in a dangerous, and narrow, island between the cycle path and the carriageway. The proposed 
arrangements at the Radley College bus stop are similarly unacceptable. 
 
The solution is to move away from the assumption that cars must have plenty of space to go as fast as possible, while 
humans and all other life forms must adapt to cars' demands. Fortunately, this stretch of Kennington Road is lightly 
used. It should be seen as only for local vehicular traffic between Kennington, North Radley, Sugworth, and Central 
Radley, and for up to 3 (or maybe in future 4) buses an hour in each direction. For longer journeys, the car-dependent 
should be nudged to use the A34.  The (certainly, desirable) southbound cycle lane should be laid out on the east side 
of the existing paved carriageway, with wands as necessary at the bends, crossing to the west side, as proposed, just 
north of the church. There might need to be, say, 3 places where the space for vehicles is slightly widened to allow 
large vehicles going in opposite directions to pass each other. However, the car-dependent should, in my view, accept 
that they may, sometimes, have to take turns, and not expect a 3.5 m wide desert everywhere they want to go. 
 

P
age 170



                 
 

(17) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley, 
Foxborough Road) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support, 
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support, 
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support, 
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Concerns 

 
I am very pleased at the proposal to have a dedicated cycle path between Abingdon and Oxford (this is part of it) as I 
regularly cycle between Radley and Oxford or Abingdon and I know that many other people do too. Due to the Climate 
Crisis, we all need to rethink transport and this feels like a step in the right direction ie making a good cycle and 
pedestrian route. 
 
I am generally in favour of the proposal and pleased that there will ultimately be a cycle path between Abingdon and 
Oxford. Other points I'd like to make are: 
 
• The proposal will result in loss of biodiversity and damage to wildlife as verges and hedging is removed. Is the plan 
to fill in the ditch? If so, what environmental impact will this have? I would like there to be an environmental impact 
assessment on the proposals and mitigation put in place. 
 
• Alternatively, could part of the Kennington Road be allocated to become a cycle track rather than building a new 
cycle path? Some passing spaces could be provided. This would naturally slow down vehicular traffic making it safer 
and encouraging people to consider alternatives to driving a car. Combined with the provision of a good cycle path this 
would be a significant behavioural nudge towards cycling. 
 
• Where the cycle and footpath crosses the junction to Radley Sports Centre this must be clearly marked as priority for 
pedestrians and cyclists. Ideally with the path being level all the way. 
 

(18) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley, Further 
Wore ) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Support     
 
Regularly cycle between kennington and Abingdon 
 

P
age 171



                 
 

(19) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley, 
Gooseacre) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Concerns     

 
There is already an underused cycle path on the west side of kennington road - widening that could be more cost 
effective and less damaging to the local biodiversity. As a regular biker, I strongly support more bike routes but in this 
case there is already an existing cycle path and I'm concerned how this fits in with the local authority's commitment to 
biodiversity net gain. There is a healthy hedge bordering the proposed new cycle path which the Radley Environment 
Group recently surveyed, and I'd like to know how this would impact the hedge. I also can't see on the plans what 
happens to the South of the new development on White's Lane and surely there needs to be a path all the way to the 
bike path at the bottom of White's Lane? 
 

(20) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley, 
Kennington Rd) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Object     

 
I write to oppose in part the introduction of a cycle path along the Kennington road.  In particular to its location as it 
runs from Sugworth lane to Radley college.  As  resident at 102 Kennington Rd, the Park Farm Cottages.  As our 
access is shared with the entrance to the farm field we use the entrance daily.  The proposal wishes to ignore the 
existing stretch of shared cycle/footpath already in place on the far side of the road that could easily be improved.  
When existing the entrance there is a blind corner to your right.  On many occasions there have been near missed.  
The drivers veiw is obscured by the hedge row and drop on the road elevation.  The addition of a cycle lane/path on 
the cottage side would be dangerous to all those that use it.   In addition there is a proposal to move the current 
parking/lay further down the road.  This is the parking for visitors and neighbors and often ourselves.  With three 
children one of whom is an infant we feel that having a heavily used cycle path with fast moving riders is a danger.  It 
would be far more sensible to extend the already existing pathway. 
 

(21) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley, 
Kennington Rd ) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  

P
age 172



                 
 

Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Support     
 
I am a regular cyclist and would like better facilities 
 

(22) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley, 
Kennington road) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Object     

 
I live in Oakwood Cottage, 98 Kennington road and this would join my boundary, this causes various concerns for me 
and my two neighbours. It makes no sense to ruin the natural habitats on this side of the road, not to mention the 
affects on our properties, security risk etc. When there’s a perfectly good pavement including existing cycle path on 
the opposite side of the road. This simply could be widened to increase safety for cyclists and pedestrians at a fraction 
of the financial cost as well as having very little impact on the environment and natural habitats. This is a completely 
ridiculous idea and there are two much simpler solutions; the cycle track following the railway as proposed in the 
neighbourhood plan or simply widen the existing pavement and cycle track on the other side of the road 
 

(23) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley, 
Kennington Road) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Object     

 
There is already an existing foot/cycle path on the west side of Kennington Road (south of Sugworth Lane).  I also 
have safety concerns regarding exiting our driveway (98 Kennington Road, Radley) as we are already on a blind 
corner and will have to straddle the proposed cycle path before we are able to see on coming traffic. 
 

(24) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley, 
Kennington road) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Object     

 

P
age 173



                 
 

There is already a cycle path on the opposite side of road. If this was properly maintained(verge cut more than once a 
summer) and widen in the ample available space there is no need for a cycle path to be built on the other side. Also 
as per the plans, the parking that is available or my property will be moved a good distance further down the road and 
with two children under the age of 2 this, is far from ideal. 
 
I simply do not see why the existing cycle/footpath cannot be improved. Surely would also be a cheaper option too. 
 

(25) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley, Norfolk 
Close) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Concerns,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Concerns     

 
I'm supportive of the proposed cycle path from Redrow Homes, through to Radley Village (Church Road). 
 
My concern is when the path crosses the road, to the side of Radley College: 
 
The exit from Radley Sports centre takes priority over the cycle lane.  This is a large disincentive to switch side to use 
this stretch of cycle lane.  In particular when classes finish, there will be queued traffic blocking the cycle lane. 
 
Many users of this stretch will be commuting cyclists.  It takes less than a minute to cycle from the proposed Radley 
Church crossing, to "Access to Main Development" / Whites Line Crossing.  Given the sports centre entrance this 
means  that someone commiting is expected to take three extra crossings / start / stops to keep on the cycle route. 
 
Given the extra crossings, and effort required to stay on the proposed cycle lane I expect few people will cross over at 
Church Road. 
 
Giving priority to cyclists at the Sports Centre will make this stretch less inconvenient.   
 
Given the likelihood of people avoiding using this stretch of cycle track, I recommend that the design allows an easy 
transaction from cycle track to road at the Kennington Lane / Church Road junction. 
 

(26) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - No opinion,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - No opinion,  

P
age 174



                 
 

public, (Radley, Norfolk 
Close) 

Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - No opinion,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - No opinion     
 
Please forgive me, this is a subsequent submission with the following as an afterthought. I wanted to flag a problem 
the feeder route to the start (Kennington end) of this proposed stretch.  Specifically, the Sandford Lane / Kennington 
Road stretch of cycle lane that has yet to be opened. 
 
At both entrances to this alleged cycle lane are signs with the instruction "Cyclists Dismount".  Needless to say, if 
people are instructed not to cycle on a cycle lane, people will avoid using the cycle lane, or there will be likely be 
conflict with people who cycle on the cycle lane.  If it's not suitable to cycle on the cycle lane, then it's status of a cycle 
lane should be removed.  Not being able to cycle onto this proposed stretch may have an impact of the design of this 
new stretch.   
 
Better would be to fix the problem, and / or to change the signs of this feeder route to "Share with care", or "Pedestrian 
Priority". 
 

(27) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley, Pebble 
hill) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Concerns,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Concerns,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Concerns,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Object     
 
The proposed position of this is not on the best side of the road it just need the original path in the other side of the 
road widening or better still continuing the cycle track along the side of the river extending to Abingdon 
 

(28) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley, 
Stonhouse Crescent) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Concerns,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Concerns,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Concerns,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Object     

 
There is already a cycle path for most of the route on the other side of the road, and I cycle it regularly. If it were made 
a little wider and the greenery cut back it would be fine, it is a waste of time and money to carry out the proposed plan. 
Please reconsider. 
 

P
age 175



                 
 

(29) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley , 
Gooseacre ) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Support     
 
Additional footpath and cycle ways to connect Radley are badly needed 
 

(30) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley , 
Kennington Road) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Object     
 
Better and more effective use of funds to upgrade current cycle path on west side of Kennington Road 
 

(31) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Radley , Pebble 
hill ) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Support     
 
We need a safe walking route around the village with new house coming in. 
 

(32) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Kennington , 
Poplar Grove) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Support     
 
There’s no cycle lane or footpath on White’s Lane. The existing path between Radley and Kennington is nowhere near 
wide enough nor in an acceptable state. Joining it and coming off it is dangerous and ill thought through. 
 

(33) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  

P
age 176



                 
 

public, (Kennington, 
Meadow View Road) 

Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Support     
 
The shared-use path should really be wide enough that cyclists and pedestrians don't get into conflict for space. 
Looking forward to this improvement, but would be great to extend something like it through Kennington itself. 
 

(34) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Kennington, Old 
Nursery View) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - No opinion,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - No opinion,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - No opinion,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Concerns     

 
This is not an appropriate location for cycle track as it will pass 3 houses between the end of Kennington and the start 
of Radley on the left, by the fields. it will impact on their access to their drives and isn’t safe for cyclists who will be 
cycling fast while drivers cross their track to and from the houses. The track will be better located on the opposite side 
of the road. This is v important. 
 

(35) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Kennington, River 
View) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Concerns,  

Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Support     
 
I support the proposals in general, with the following concerns: the whites lane parallel crossing is to a short length of 
cycle path likely only used by those must vulnerable, so it would make sense to have this as a raised crossing also to 
protect those children by forcing speed reduction (the 30 limit on whites lane is not well observed as it looks like a 
'country road'). The driveway openings in the main path look like smooth gradients, but it would be safer to show 
priority by keeping a flat path with a steeper kerb stone and also act as a speed reduction device. For similar reasons 
the drives should have good sight lines along the path. Please also consider adding more regular dropped kerb 
access where there are no driveways so people can escape from the road onto the path if they see a hazard. Thanks 
for the new facilities in general, it will be great when they start linking up with some of the plans in the Abingdon 
LCWIP. 
 

P
age 177



                 
 

(36) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Kennington, The 
avenue) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - No opinion,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - No opinion,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Concerns     

 
Current cycle lane could be improved at less cost and less damage to environment 
 

(37) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Kennington, 
Woodcroft) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Concerns     
 
Creating a new cycle path on the East side will lead to considerable loss of verge and hedge both of which are 
essential habitats for many creatures. I support a cycle path but would like there to be a plan to ensure there is not a 
net loss of biodiversity and habitats. This could be by reinstating new mixed hedges alongside the new path and by 
natural improvements to the West verge. Biodiversity net gain is vital both in terms of the short term and our long term 
survival. 
 

(38) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Kennington , 
Fairways) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Concerns     
 
Parking and general driver intolerance on Kennington Rd / The Avenue create a dangerous environment for cyclists 
and pedestrians. We need to make the roads safer for vulnerable road users to encourage cycling and walking. I’m 
not 100% behind shared use paths however as my experiences in north Oxford and Botley Rd have not always been 
positive. The safest solution I’ve found in Oxford is on Donnington Bridge where cyclists, pedestrians, and cars are 
kept separate. 
 

(39) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  

P
age 178



                 
 

public, (Kennington , 
Meadow View road ) 

Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Support     
 
There's certainly a need for a proper off-road cycle path through Radley 
 

(40) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Kennington , 
Playfield Road ) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Object,  

Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Object     

 
The cycle track will be dangerous for both cyclists and residents living in the cottages at 98 -102 Kennington road 
Radley as their access  will be compromised and the loss of the lay-by outside their houses is disadvantageous to the 
young family who will have to park at a distance to their house. If the cycle path was on the west side of the road it 
would not be dangerous for residents to use their existing driveways. Also an alternative route for the cycle path was 
identified by the approved Radley neighbourhood plan alongside the railway which would link to Sustrans path 5 at 
Sandford lane which would be safer and pleasanter for cyclists. At night the Kennington road is dark at this point as no 
street lights  are present this will make access to the houses even more dangerous for cyclists. Loss of biodiversity in 
current grass verges and ancient hedgerows will likely  be disturbed by the work. The road floods in places as there is 
no mains drainage so cycle track may also be affected by flooding . I object to the route because there are alternatives 
that are safer for both cyclists and residents. The sight 
 
Line is poor due to a bend into Kennington making emerging from 102 and 98 Kennington Road  more difficult, plus 
the added possibility of having to block the cycle path in order to get out of their drives. The pathway on the west side 
of the road could easily be widened with none of the disadvantages of the route on the east side. 
 
I am not happy about the route as there are great potential dangers for cyclists to clash with residents who will need to 
emerge in their cars crossing first the proposed cycle track, and  then onto a fast main road (limited at 40mph, but 
rarely adhered to) from their driveways? 
 
The scheme particularly negatively affects the residents in the white cottages  at 98 to 102 Kennington Road as their 
vehicular access will be compromised by the cycle track. Also the loss of the lay-by immediately  outside their homes 
is a great disadvantage especially to the young family currently living at 100 Kennington Road. 
 

P
age 179



                 
 

Please can you tell me if the present wide grass verges and established hedgerows will also be lost to this scheme, if 
it goes ahead? There is no mention of potential loss of biodiversity in the notes on the plans? 
 
We can’t understand why the planned cycle track route is for the east side of the main Kennington  road, yet there is 
already a path regularly  used by cyclists on the west side which could simply be widened and improved for both 
walkers and cyclists? This would be less costly and less disruptive for residents. 
 
On your point about cars crossing over the cycle track needing to give priority to cyclists, what is not evident from the 
plans is the change in levels between two of the cottage’s drives and the proposed cycle track level. There is several 
feet difference at 98 Kennington road, which means a car emerging onto the cycle track will not be able to see cyclists 
coming along the track to their right prior to mounting the track, this is dangerous for cyclists especially at night and 
relies very much on a drivers clutch control to balance just at the very edge of the track before emerging onto the track 
and stopping ! If priority is given to a cyclist and the road is not then clear to emerge, it is quite likely another cyclist 
could be stopped and delayed on the track whilst a car driver is checking for traffic on both sides of the road which 
currently has a 40 mph speed limit and a bend into Kennington to the right at that point! I have been driving for four 
decades but I could not negotiate both crossing the cycle track and emerging onto the road without checking again for 
road traffic and potentially blocking the track to a cyclist who could easily crash into the side of a car in the dark or bad 
weather. 
This situation particularly applies to cottage at 98 Kennington Road. 
 
Removal of the lay-by to the south of existing lay-by, will create a problem for the occupants of 100 Kennington road 
as they have no side access to their house being a mid terrace. They will have to park at a distance from the front of 
their house forcing them to manage young children and a baby buggy, plus shopping walking along the cycle track 
and potentially conflicting with cyclists travelling at a fast pace. This will be dangerous for both cyclist and pedestrians. 
I am also concerned about delivery drivers ignoring the new lay-by and parking their vans on the cycle track to gain 
access to the three cottages, forcing cyclists out into the road. Whereas if the cycle track was on the west side of the 
road as existing, this would not happen. 
 
Loss of the wide verges for the whole length of the cycle track is a considerable loss to wildlife and biodiversity. I 
cannot find the  environmental impact statement you referred to at the “planning stage” on the Vale’s website? Does 
this mean a planning application has already been submitted to the Vale district council? Can you send me the link to 
the environmental impact statement please? Or a reference number so we can check the planning  application?  
Surely the consultation period with the public open  until 30th December  should happen before any decisions have 
been made by the district  council about the proposed track? 
 

P
age 180



                 
 

 Your point about cyclists having to cross the road twice makes no sense to me, as the plans show that the cyclists do 
have to cross back to the west side of the main road when they reach Radley, so why not simply improve the existing 
pavement/cycle track that people already use on the west side of the road from the point at Sugworth lane all the way 
into Radley, they wIll then only have to cross once onto the  pavement that already  exists and there is a narrow  grass 
verge which can easily be widened without any great loss of the wider grass verges on the east side? I suspect that 
there will be much damage done to the adjacent hedgerows as the work for the track will potentially affect the roots of 
the hedge? Will the two trees that are 
lost be replaced? 
 
Much damage has already been done by Redrow homes on the east side of the Kennington road in front of their new 
development by the removal of some trees and hedges due to drainage and utilities companies frequently digging up 
the road! 
 
Surely the point of public consultation is that it is effective for the public to participate and is not just a box ticking 
exercise for the Council. 
 
I would refer you to Sherry Arnsteins  ladder of participation which demonstrates that much “consultation “ is designed 
to actually frustrate and discourage public  participation in the planning process, rather than facilitate effective 
participation and enable ordinary people to get their voices heard.  
 
As I have written two dissertations on this very topic whilst I was studying as a town planner, I get a quick sense of 
when there is “tokenism” happening rather than genuine participation. I am also aware of the criticisms made by 
opponents to recent other traffic management matters in the way in which voices of the public have been consistently  
ignored on occasions. 
 
I can reassure you that my son is a keen cyclist and as a family we all enjoy walking, so it is the safety of cyclists and 
pedestrians using the proposed track that is uppermost here. The cycle track needs to be on the WEST side of the 
road NOT the east side and there are good reasons for maintaining that route which already exists and has adequate  
space to improve the existing infrastructure and the use already made by cyclists and pedestrians.  
 
I/we need to understand therefore why the east side has been chosen over the West side of the road? Please ask the 
relevant officer to explain the rationale of their decision? 
 

(41) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  

P
age 181



                 
 

public, (Abingdon, 
Bostock Road) 

Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Concerns,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Concerns     

 
My main concern is that will not be a continuous cyclepath on both sides of Kennington Rd + White's Lane. The cycle 
path should have priority over traffic at the sports centre entrance and driveways, with coloured tarmac and yield 
markings indicated for car driver cross the cycle path. As a cyclist, if we have to give way at all the driveways and 
entrances we'll very likely stay on the road (which is how we currently travel along this stretch). 
 
It is implied that cyclists travelling south will cross over before Church Rd using the zebra crossing., whereas in 
practice those traveling on to Abingdon will just rejoin the road at this point, unless the cycle path is given priority over 
Church Rd. Unfortunately I can imagine getting abuse from some drivers at this point if they wait at the zebra crossing, 
and then we rejoin the road and don't cross. 
 
My partner and I frequently commute between Abingdon and Oxford despite these comments, we're generally glad to 
see this linking up with the cyclepath around the back of the Redrow development. We look forward to when we might 
actually have a full cycle path linking Abingdon to Oxford. 
 

(42) As part of a 
group/organisation, 
(Abingdon, Bostock Road) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Support     
 
* This route will enable a traffic-free link from Abingdon to Oxford, the first significant inter-town link in the county. It is 
a route that is already cycled by many people (based on observations at commuting time), despite road sections as it 
is about 7 miles centre-to-centre, but a full traffic-free option will increase its attractiveness substantially. 
 
* The basic design of the route, a 3m shared path seems appropriate. There is some, but limited walking traffic, and 
we judge it will fit well withing the LTN 1/20 guidance of under 300 pedestrians and 300 cyclists per hour. 
 
* It is disappointing that the route swaps sides for 160m, and we note that it sometimes falls slightly below 3m and 
required buffers, but we accept that this is where required due to width and reasonable budget constraints. 
 
* One design point that should be improved is the crossing of the sports centre junction. This should reflect the priority 

P
age 182



                 
 

given to pedestrian and cycling movements by Highway Code Rule H2, and the OCC transport hierarchy. The 
walking/cycling route on the road should have priority over this driveway, this should be clearly marked, and the path 
here should be level, raised if possible perhaps using 'Dutch Entrance Kerbs' to emphasise priority and speed 
reduction for traffic turning in or out. 
 
* The complete scheme should continue to Thrupp Lane with a redesigned junction, and to about 100m west of 
Audlett Drive. We hope and expect that plans and consultation for this part of the scheme will follow in coming 
months. 
 

(43) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Abingdon, Darrell 
Way) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Support     
 
The proposals will go part-way to providing a safe segregated cycle/walking route between Abingdon and Oxford. I 
strongly support schemes that promote active travel, for environmental and health reasons. 
 

(44) Local or County Cllr, 
(Abingdon, Hanson Road) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Support     
 
All proposals will help link the NCN Route 5 with the pre-existing cycle routes in Abingdon. As a regular user myself 
this continuous section provision from Abingdon to Oxford will fill in the gaps and encourage other, less confident 
cyclists to join in and contribute to modal shift (good for the environment, health, and congestion). 
 
Ideally the crossing of the sports centre junction should be looked at, with the walking/cycling route having priority over 
this junction, and it being clearly marked. 
 

(45) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Abingdon , 
Victoria Road ) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  

P
age 183



                 
 

Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Support     
 
All looks fantastic. The shared use pathway should be as wide as possible, with pedestrian and cyclist priority at the 
junctions, as they do in The Netherlands. It should continue up Whites Lane and Radley Road, all the way to 
Abingdon. This would really encourage cycle commuting. 
 

(464) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Long Wittenham, 
Westfield Road) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Concerns,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Object,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Concerns,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Object     

 
I am writing to you to object to the Kennington Road and Whites Lane proposed pedestrian and pedal cycle 
improvements. 
 
I am writing as a cyclist who spent three years commuting along that stretch of road, as a professional ecologist, and 
as a scientist involved in investigating how our society can achieve net zero carbonemissions. 
 
I object to these plans for the following reasons: 
 
1. UNACCEPATABLE COST TO BIODIVERSITY through ecological damage to habitats and loss of ecological 
connectivity. 
 
There is a roughly 350m continuous stretch of hedgerow running along the east side of the Kennington road from the 
Redrow homes development south to the Kennington Road Cottages. After the Kennington Road Cottages, there is a 
further stretch of ~350m hedgerow running on southwards, also along the east side of the Kennington road. These 
hedgerows are legally protected due to their length and location. 
 
These hedgerows are currently in good condition, accompanied by a ditch along part of their length and currently 
protected from the road by a wide (&gt;2m) margin. This complex of three habitats (hedgerow, ditch, margin) is 
extremely ecologically valuable. It provides multiple ecological functions that are not provided for elsewhere in 
the vicinity. It is providing habitat for farmland birds and north-south connectivity for woodland birds, small mammals, 
invertebrates and amphibians. 
 
a. According to the plans, the proposed cycle way will involve removal of hedgerows, hedgerow trees and scrubby 

P
age 184



                 
 

growth at the north end of the scheme (plus other locations). Since the trees and scrub are ecologically part of the 
hedgerow, this is illegal, and it will cause loss of connectivity for woodland dependent species. This hedgerow is 
a vital link from the semi-natural ancient woodland of Radley Large Wood, south to North Close Copse and beyond. 
The Redrow development has already severely degraded the northerly parts of this hedgerow (through gapping and 
'urbanising' it) and further damage to this hedgerow represents an unacceptable loss of ecological connectivity. 
 
b. According to the plans, the ditch that accompanies the hedgerows will be completely obliterated. This is the sole 
movement route for amphibians, water vole and freshwater invertebrate species from the pond at Radley primary 
school north to Radley Large Wood and the boundary stream. Along with the wet ditch and hedgerows along White's 
Lane, these ditches form a key north-south movement/dispersal route that links Radley Lakes to the wet habitats 
within Radley Large Wood and along Sandford Lane. Destruction of any of the ditches along this route is completely 
unacceptable: it shows a complete disregard for the needs of biodiversity and is counter to the objectives of 
Oxfordshire's Nature Recovery Network. 
 
c. According to the plans, the proposed development will result in complete loss of the grassy margins that currently 
lie between the eastern hedgerows and Kennington road. It is proposed that the new hard surface cycle/footway will 
immediately but up against the hedgerows. This will severely degrade the ecological quality of these hedgerows (e.g. 
by increasing the fraction of run-off/pollution they receive from the adjacent road). The hedgerows are currently used 
by breeding whitethroat (amber listed species) and yellowhammer (red listed species of highest conservation 
concern). Both of these birds use the vegetation at the base of hedgerows, i.e. the rough margins adjacent to the 
hedgerow is as valuable to them for food and nesting protection as the hedgerow itself. It is likely the roadside margin 
is more insect rich than the margin on the arable side of the hedge (due to the hedge protecting it from agricultural 
spray drift) so the fact the grassy margins on the field side of the hedge will remain is not sufficient compensation. 
Loss of the rough grassy margins along the east side of Kennington Road is an unacceptable loss of habitat that 
will result in a decrease in biodiversity in this area. 
 
d. The residents of Kennington have been trying to increase biodiversity within their village by reducing mowing of 
road verges. This is being done to support pollinators and other insects as well as grassland plants. Loss and 
reduction of the grassy margins along Kennington Road, as a result of the proposed plans, will severely undermine 
their efforts to support biodiversity and increase nature connectedness within their community. The (currently wide) 
grassy verges along Kennington Road, which are threatened by the cycle way plans, are the primary means for 
grassland species to travel northwards and colonise the new wildflower verges within Kennington. Other ecological 
access routes into Kennington are either wooded, heavily managed (e.g. Radley College) or blocked by urbanisation 
(e.g. Cow Lane/Redbridge). The verges running into Kennington from the Radley direction are the only movement 
corridors left for grassland species and the proposed plans will cut this last route off and cause severe loss of vital 

P
age 185



                 
 

connective habitat. 
 
 
2. INSUFFICIENT BENEFIT TO CYCLISTS 
 
From the proposed plans, it appears that a cyclist travelling southwards from Oxford to Abingdon on cycle route 5 
would be expected to come out of the Redrow development and join the proposed cycle path running eastwards down  
the Kennington Road, cross Kennington Road at the proposed formal crossing outside Radley College, then cross the 
access road to Radley Sports centre and then recross Kennington Road to enter the new development off Whites 
Lane. It is plausible that a family with children out on a Sunday bike ride might do this. Most daily commuter cyclists 
(whose priority is continuous cycling) would not do this: this involves stopping for two crossings of the main road 
and crossing an access road (before taking a presumably circuitous route through the Whites Lane development). 
Furthermore, the access road they are required to cross is a Sports Centre with significant exit/entry traffic both early 
morning and early evening during peak cycle commuting time. 
 
There is already a perfectly functional pavement along the west side of Kennington Road which runs south from 
Sugworth Lane to Church Lane. It would be infinitely preferable if a crossing was instead installed immediately to the 
north of Sugworth Lane (where the footpath connection to the Redrow site is) to enable cyclists to safely join 
the existing west-side footway (which has already been made wide enough at that point to act as a shared 
cycle/footway), with another crossing across Sugworth Lane so that cyclists could then safely join the exiting west-side 
footway. This option simply involves relocating two of the proposed crossings, still provides a safe cycle route, does 
not require construction of a new cycle path and would not involve degrading the quality of 700m of priority habitat. 
 
 
3. CARBON EMISSIONS 
 
The hedgerows, verges and ditches are currently capturing carbon from the atmosphere and locking it away. They 
contribute towards the country's efforts to reach net zero and minimise climate change. They are a carbon sink. 
 
The proposed plans will concrete/tarmac much of this carbon sink. This construction process will release huge 
amounts of carbon through the vehicles and materials involved. It will be a carbon emitting process. 
 
No calculations have been provided for the carbon cost of this development. No statistics have been offered on the 
number of cyclists who currently use this route. No roadside survey seems to have been conducted to establish *how* 
cyclists currently use this route (i.e. if most are already using the existing footway, constructing an extra one on the 

P
age 186



                 
 

other side of the road is clearly of no benefit) No projections have been presented on how many more cyclists might 
use this route if the plans are implemented. If this scheme does not result in a reduction of cars travelling this route, 
then there will be no carbon saving and this proposal will actually result in net carbon emissions to the atmosphere. 
 
The council must provide thorough, realistic and convincing statistics on the expected carbon budget of this scheme, 
given that it is due to result in loss of carbon-absorbing semi-natural habitats. 
 
Furthermore, some residents have been told that Kennington Road will be shifted westwards, in order to fit the 
proposed cycle route in 
between the road and the existing hedges. It is not clear from the plans that this will happen. If this is what is 
proposed, the carbon cost of this scheme will be greater still. 
 
Just because this plan involves creating a cycle path, does not automatically mean that this is a 'green' or 'eco-friendly' 
scheme. The carbon cost of this scheme must be declared, given the minimal benefit to cyclists and the significant 
negative ecological impacts. If this proposed scheme is not projected to be on-site carbon neutral (i.e. without offsite 
mitigation), then it should be refused. 
 
 
4. URBANISATION 
 
The proposed scheme is another step towards the urbanisation of the green belt between Oxford and Abingdon. 
 
One field remains between the bottom of the Abingdon Road in Oxford and Kennington village - this is currently 
occupied by Kendall Copse and, if the flood relief scheme goes ahead, this will be lost to a concrete lined channel. 
 
The Redrow development has extended the urban area of Kennington as far south as Sugworth Lane and the White's 
Lane development has extended Radley Village. 
 
Only three arable fields now remain between Oxford and Abingdon: the two fields either side of Kennington Road and 
the field between Twelve Acre Drive and White's Lane. If this proposed scheme goes ahead, a third of the arable 
roadside verges along the Oxford-Abingdon route will be lost. 
 
 
5. LOSS OF ECOSYSTEM SERVICES 
 

P
age 187



                 
 

The proposed scheme will result in loss of ecosystem services: 
- carbon capture will be reduced through loss of semi-natural habitats 
- water quality/flood alleviation will be reduced through loss of the ditches 
- pollination services and biodiversity will be reduced through loss of semi-natural habitat and reduced connectivity 
- cultural services will be impacted through the roadscape's conversion from a rural to an urbanised appearance. 
 
It is difficult to see how such loss of ecosystem services could be considered in the public benefit. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The proposed scheme offers minimal benefit to cyclists, given that an off-road option already exists alongside 
Kennington Road. Further reductions to the speed limit and relocating the proposed crossings *without constructing 
the extra cycle path east of Kennington Road* could all offer more cost-effective and carbon-effective ways of 
improving safety for cyclists in this location. 
 
The proposed scheme will cause significant ecological damage to, and degradation of, priority habitats. It will reduce 
connectivity for multiple species, contribute to habitat fragmentation and as such is counter to the goals of 
Oxfordshire's Nature Recovery Network. The loss of habitat and connectivity for biodiversity appears to far outweigh 
any minimal gains in connectivity cyclists might receive. 
 
The carbon costs/benefits of this scheme are unclear. 
 
As such, my view is that this will not help Oxfordshire achieve Net Zero Plus goals and the money could be better 
spent in other ways that offer greater benefits to the community and are less damaging to local biodiversity. 
 

(47) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Moulsford, Ferry 
lane) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Concerns,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Concerns,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Concerns,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Object    

 
Your plan is entitled “pedestrian and pedal cycle improvements”. 
 
That is clearly misleading, as the plan requires pedestrians to share space with vehicular traffic.  Pedal cycles are 

P
age 188



                 
 

vehicular traffic.   Mixing of pedestrians and such vehicular traffic is not necessarily dangerous, but makes walking 
less attractive  and hence runs counter to environmental aims of pollution-free local transport (by foot). 
 
You may want to rename your plan as “pedal cycle improvements at the expense of pedestrian comfort”. 
 

(48) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Church 
Cowley Road) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Concerns,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Concerns,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Concerns,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Concerns     

 
Shared use footway/cycleways bring pedestrians and cyclists into conflict, especially in places where the cyclists are 
expected to go at speed.  A 3m wide one is a welcome improvement, but doesn't eliminate the problem entirely, as 
neither group will know which unmarked "side" to use to avoid each other. 
 
The northmost end only makes sense if the old path from the railway bridge, behind the new development, is 
reopened; at the moment, everyone is expected to go along Sandford Lane and double back up Kennington Road. 
The southmost stretch of the shared path, where it swaps to the west of the road, is useful for pedestrians and less 
confident riders accessing the new Radley development, but is not welcoming to riders going between Kennington and 
Abingdon.  Crossing over means slowing nearly to a halt for the sharp change of direction, and also using a cycle lane 
that's marked in the mouth of a side-road.  Drivers are likely to ignore cyclist and pedestrian priority at these places, 
despite the road markings. 
 
Because of all of these factors, I am likely to be forced into using the carriageway for some stretches beside this path, 
and worried that its existence means some drivers will be angered by my doing so. 
 

(49) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (oxford, hollybush 
row) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Support     
 
As a cyclist and pedestrian this would improve my  experience. Kennington road is also on the cycle route from Oxford 
to Abingdon and so should be made better for cyclists. 
 

P
age 189



                 
 

(50) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Howard 
Street) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Concerns     

 
Why do some sections of the path have a 0.5m buffer to the carriageway, but others not (even when the carriageway 
is &gt;7m)?  There should be a 0.5m buffer everywhere, unless that would drop the carriageway below 6.4m width. 
 
No vertical cross-sections are provided with the plans.  Please make sure that  the shared path remains entirely flat 
across vehicular crossovers, with entrance kerbs used so the rise is at the carriageway edge.  (Slopes should 
minimise inconvenience to thousands of people walking and cycling, not for a few vehicle movements a day.) 
 
The entry to the sports centre has excessively high radius corners, encouraging vehicles to turn in at speed.  These 
should be tightened. 
 

(51) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - No opinion,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - No opinion,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - No opinion,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Object     
 
I strongly object as there is already a Cycle path on the other side of the road, total waste of money 
 

(52) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford , Walton 
well ) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Support     
 
As a commuting cyclist this section of road is currently v intimidating- a dedicated cycle lane and crossing points will v 
much improve safety. Not clear from plans how side entryway into fields/properties will work but strongly encourage 
you to make these raised curb so that the cycle way v clearly has priority and is a continuous surface 
 

P
age 190



                 
 

(53) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Stanford in the 
Vale, Spencers Close) 

 
Zebra crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Raised Parallel crossing (Kennington Road) - Support,  
Parallel crossing (Whites Lane) - Support,  
Shared-use Footway/Cycle path (Kennington Road/Whites Lane) - Support     
 
Improved environment for cycling and support for active travel 
 

P
age 191



   

   
   
   

 

ANNEX 6

Page 192



            

     
 

  

Page 193



            

     
 

 

Page 194



   

   
   
   

Division(s) affected: Bicester Town 

 
 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT 
 23 FEBRUARY 2023  

 

BICESTER – DUNKIN’S CLOSE: PROPOSED INCLUSION IN 
RESIDENTS PERMIT PARKING SCHEME, AND GENERAL 

CHANGES TO CHERWELL DISTRICT RESIDENTS PARKING 
PERMITS 

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

Recommendation 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 

approve the following proposals as advertised: 
 

a. ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ (Double Yellow Lines) restrictions on St. Johns 
Street (Dunkin’s Close), 

b. Introduce permit holders only parking spaces on St.Johns Street 

(Dunkin’s Close), and 
c. Make changes to permit charges and rules in Cherwell District, including 

limits on permits per resident/property, visitor permit allocation, and 
charges of £66 per permit per annum. 

 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. Following the introduction of Civil Parking Enforcement across Cherwell, South 
Oxfordshire and The Vale of the White Horse districts in November 2021, many 

requests have been received to review existing parking restrictions.  One of 
these requests relates to Dunkin’s Close, near St John Street in Bicester, which 

suffers from an overspill of non-resident parking from the nearby town centre 
and multi-storey car park.  The local member for Bicester North has asked for 
the request to be progressed. 

 
3. This report presents the consultation responses to the advertised Traffic 

Regulation Order (TRO) for a proposed scheme . 
 
 

Introduction 
 

4. Civil Parking Enforcement (CPE) was introduced across Cherwell, South 
Oxfordshire and The Vale of the White Horse districts on 1st November 2021.  
There was an expectation that a review of existing parking restrictions would 

be needed and publicity, in advance of CPE starting, made reference to the 

Page 195

Agenda Item 8



            

     
 

process for reviewing restrictions and that the County Council’s Parking Team 

would suspend enforcement of restrictions where a commitment to undertake 
a particular review had been agreed. 

 
5. The local member for Bicester North, Cllr Waine, has forwarded requests from 

his constituency, to introduce a residents’ permit parking scheme in Dunkin’s 

Close, which suffers from indiscriminate parking on footways and junctions, 
partly due to an overspill from Bicester Town Centre and the multi-storey car 

park, which is attracted to this unrestricted parking location. The proposal is to 
include a short stretch of 5 parking spaces in the existing Bicester Residents 
Permit parking scheme, with new double yellow lines being introduced to cover 

the remaining lengths of highway which includes footways and verges. 
 

6. The proposals would not significantly reduce the supply of parking spaces in 
the town centre, as it only alters 5 spaces to residents’ only.  The other parking 
that takes place causes obstructions to local access and blocks footways, and 

so is proposed as double yellow lines. 
 

7. From 1st April the County Council is planning to take responsibility for the 
administration and issuance of residential parking permits in Cherwell  
including for existing schemes in Bicester. So that the rules by which schemes 

operate align with our existing policies and administration functions, it is 
proposed that a number of minor amendments are made to how existing 
schemes operate. A summary of the proposed changes is shown in the table 

below: 
 

Summary of proposed changes 

 

Residents permits Existing Proposed 

Residents permit charge 
£66 (including administration fee)  
for 12 months 

£66 for 12 months 

Residents permit allocation Maximum 2 permits per property 
Maximum 1 permit 
per person, 2 per 
property 

Limitations for properties 
with  
off-street parking 

Reduction of permit allocation for 
each  
off-street parking space available  
(up to 2) 

No limitations for 
permit eligibility 

Permit provided Physical permit Virtual permit 

Change of vehicle 
administration charge 

£16 £0 

Visitor permits Existing Proposed 

Visitor permit maximum 
annual allowance 

100 a year 50 year 

Visitor permit charges 
£12.50 for 25 visitor permits (pro rata  
up to 100), first 50 free for resident 
permit holders 

1st 25 free, 2nd 
allocation £25 
(free for over 70s) 

Duration of use  24 hours 24 hours 

Page 196



            

     
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

8. The proposals would help facilitate the safe movement of traffic and alleviate 

parking stress in the area, and also help encourage the use of sustainable 
transport modes and help support the delivery of wider transport initiatives. 

 

 

Financial and Staff Implications (including Revenue) 

 

9. Funding for the initial consultation fees has come from the on-street parking 
account (revenue) and implementation costs will be provided by s.106 funds.  

Ongoing management and enforcement costs would be met from the on-street 
parking account. 

 
 

Equalities and Inclusion Implications  
 

10.  No equalities or inclusion implications have been identified in respect of the 

proposals. 
 
 

Formal Consultation 

 
11. The formal consultation on the proposals as shown in Annex 1 was carried out 

between 24 November and 30 December 2022.  A public notice was placed in 

the Bicester Advertiser newspaper, and an email sent to statutory consultees 
& key-stakeholders, including Thames Valley Police, the Fire & Rescue 
Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, countywide transport/access & 

disabled peoples user groups, Bicester Town Council, Cherwell District 
Council, the local District Councillors, and the local County Councillors 

representing the Bicester North,  Bicester West, Bicester Town, and Otmoor 
divisions. 
 

12. A letter was sent directly to approximately 125 properties in the area, which 
also included a copy of the formal notice of the proposals - providing details on 

permit eligibility and costs. 
 

13. During the course of the formal consultation, a total of ten responses were 

received in relation to the Dunkin’s Close proposals, and 22 in response to the 
proposed Cherwell permit amendments, and these are summarised in the 

tables below: 
 

a. Dunkin’s Close: 

 

Proposal Support Object Concerns No objection or opinion Total 

Permit Holders 
parking restrictions 

4 1 2 3 10 

No Waiting at Any 
Time restrictions 

4 0 2 4 10 

Page 197



            

     
 

b. Cherwell Permits 

 

Proposal Support Object Concerns 
No objection 
or opinion 

Total 

Permit Holders parking 
places (various locations) 

6 8 6 2 22 

 
14. The full responses are shown at Annex 2, and copies of the original responses 

are also available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 
 

Officer response to objections/concerns  
 

Dunkin’s Close: 
 
15. A local resident of a nearby street objects as they will no longer be able to park 

in the close but have no alternative parking where they live, either on or off-
street.  As they are a family with children who have special care needs, and 

therefore require access to convenient parking, they have made suggested 
changes to the proposals.  These include:  
 

a. Adding a disabled persons parking space in Dunkin’s Close: 
In order to make such an amendment, to include a different type of 

parking space, this would require a readvertisement of the TRO.  
However, such a parking space would be available for any blue badge 
holder, and there could be several who live close-by.  Hence, the space 

may not be available to the family, and it is also understood that they do 
not currently have use of a disabled persons’ blue badge, and so would 

not be able to use such a space in any case.  Were they to be successful 
in their application for a blue badge, they could use any of the residents 
permit holders parking spaces nearby, either the new ones in Dunkin’s 

Close or in North Street. 
 

b. For their property to be included in the nearby residents parking scheme 
at North Street, with potentially all of the properties next to them being 
similarly included in the scheme: 

This would also require a readvertisement of the TRO, and the Parking 
Team has received other requests from nearby properties to be 

included, and so a future review can consider this further, albeit funding 
will need to be secured for the TRO process. 
 

c. For St Johns Street to be pedestrianised and on-street parking made 
available: 

As a significant through route, options for pedestrianising this road 
would be complicated, costly and would require a major review of traffic 
management in the neighbourhood.  Possible changes to remove some 

of the double yellow lines along St Johns Street to enable on-street 
parking might be feasible, but would require a layby to be provided, to 

maintain the width available for two-way traffic flow.  This would need 
to be investigated and funded. 

Page 198



            

     
 

 

The local resident concerned has been contacted by email to encourage 
them to apply for a disabled persons’ blue badge, and this can be fast-

tracked for them, given the circumstances. 
 

16. Another local resident is concerned about access for loading or building works 

but this would be allowed under the exemptions in the TRO for both the parking 
spaces and yellow lines.  It is therefore considered that the proposals would 

improve access for these activities by removing the indiscriminate parking by 
non-residents. 

 

17. Another local resident is concerned that people who receive visiting carers and 
the like will exceed their allocation of visitors’ permits. This can be 

accommodated by the issuing of a carer’s permit, and also organisations 
representing healthcare practitioners have an arrangement with the Parking 
Team that allows their staff to apply for dispensations from local parking 

restrictions when they are visiting clients. 
 

18. Another local resident asks why the group of cottages, 1-4 Brookside can’t 
have a parking permit, as they are without off road parking. There are 6 
properties in the close without off-street parking.  It is understood that there is 

a driveway access to the properties known as Brookside Bungalow and 
Brookview.  In designing the small scheme for the close, it has not been 
possible to provide more than 5 spaces, but it is intended to protect that 

driveway entrance with new double yellow lines. 
 

19. Another local resident supports the proposals, as their narrow driveway opens 
onto Dunkin’s Close and is frequently blocked in by a car parking next to it. The 
existing ‘keep clear’ road marking can be refurbished during implementation of 

the scheme if it is approved. 
 

20. Lastly, another local resident is concerned that vehicles which currently park 
on the grass island in Dunkin’s Close (next to the roundabout at the junction 
with Manorsfield Road) will displace to the private service road that runs 

parallel to St Johns Street.  They have mentioned that, in previous 
correspondence with the County Council it has been suggested that the private 

service road could be made up to an adoptable standard (paid for by the 
landowners/frontagers) or that the road is closed off, perhaps using plant 
containers or similar. It is further suggested that the private road nameplate 

could be replaced, which is a matter for Cherwell District Council.  Casual 
observations on-site by the Parking Team suggest that this indiscriminate 

parking already takes place, along at least part of the private service road, and 
so this could be  addressed by the landowners themselves taking action to 
control parking on what is essentially private land. 

 
Harmonisation of Parking permits in Cherwell with County Council Policy: 

 
21. In response to the consultation 3 respondents raised concerns regarding the 

change of policy to not apply limits to properties that have off-street parking. 

In response, currently the County Council policies do not put limitations on 

Page 199



            

     
 

the number of permits based the available off-street parking. Where schemes 

has been introduced this rule has not created a problem, and our experience 
is in general, if residents have off-street parking they will use it for their 

vehicles to avoid paying for a permit. We will continue to monitor the 
schemes and consider any complaints received. 
 

22. The second concern raised related to the introduction of virtual permit 
system. A couple of residents felt this would undermine the overall scheme 

as residents would not be able to tell if vehicles parked were not doing so in 
contravention of the restrictions. In response, officers are currently 
developing an online vehicle checker, where residents will be able to input a 

registration, and report illegally parked vehicles. The use of a virtual permit 
system, does not impact on the efficiency of our enforcement. 

 
23. The point was made in two responses, that under the County Council permit 

scheme residents would end up paying more for less as number free visitor 

permit allowance has been reduced, along with the total visitor permits 
allowed. The allocation of 50 visitor permits per annum provides a balance of 

allowing residents the flexibility to have visitors but controls the amount of 
vehicles trying to park. This works well in schemes operated in County 
Council run zones, and the limit is generally accepted as being a fair amount. 

There are other permit types available within the scheme for carers and 
where traders are undertaking works. 

 

 

Monitoring and evaluation 
 

24. It is suggested that a review of the scheme is carried out approximately 12 

months after its implementation, should it be approved. 
 

 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 
 Annex 2: Consultation responses  

   
  

Contact Officers:  James Whiting 07584 581187 
  Mike Horton    07912 474356 
     

     
February 2023

Page 200



          
  

   

ANNEX 1

P
age 201



          

  

ANNEX 2 
 

A. Bicester Dunlins Close proposals: 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

No objection 

(2) Local County Cllr, 
(Bicester Town 
division) 

Support – Very happy with the Dunkin’s Close proposal. 

(3) Cherwell District 
Council 

No objection 

(4) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Bicester, 
Hailles Gardens) 

 
Object – I am writing on behalf of myself and my husband. We are the residents of Hailles Gardens, across the 

road from Dunkins Close, which is our only feasible place to park. As such, we object to the proposed parking 
scheme as it currently stands in the strongest terms for the reasons that follow, and we would like to suggest some 
appropriate amendments (following the reasons for objection).  
  
Reasons for objection:  
  
1. There is no available parking for 5-8 Hailles Gardens. Dunkins Close is the only place we can park within 100 
metres. We have been in contact with the council, specifically Cllr Donna Ford, about applying for a permanent and 
fixed parking space and we were told we would be eligible. I quote from our email correspondence: ‘The scheme 
as it stands accommodates residents who do not have any off street, or allocated parking spaces for their vehicles. 
Any extension envisaged would require funding for the Council to implement, hence careful consideration is 
required to be undertaken when extending further.’ Both Cllr Ford and I have chased the relevant authorities to 
discuss this further but to no avail. We desperately need a fixed parking space due to our children; as you will 
read, the current proposal would exacerbate an already unbearable situation.  
 
2. We are the parents of two young children (aged eleven months and three years). In order to get to our house, 
we have to park in Dunkins Close and then carry them over a busy road and walk along said road to our house. 
The road is dangerous as cars frequently fail to stop at the zebra crossing. That is the situation as it stands. Under 

P
age 202



                 
 

the proposed scheme, our nearest parking space would be two-thirds of a mile away. This is not feasible. We need 
our car to get to childcare, pre-school and work.    
 
3. Moreover, we specifically need a space that is fixed and that has access to both doors (i.e. we cannot park so 
one side of the car is against a wall). My son has special educational needs, including ADHD and suspected 
autism. As such, he becomes very upset if we don’t park in the same place. He also becomes terrified that he will 
be stuck if I have to park next to the wall and/or ask him to climb out of the other side of the car. When frightened, 
he often tries to run away. On occasion he has tried to run into the busy road. This situation is horrible but having 
to do a similar journey, walking for two-thirds of a mile all the way from Roman Way, would be impossible. We 
would essentially become house-bound (which isn’t an option because I need to travel for work and to earn 
money).   
 
4. Given my son’s considerable needs, we are in the process of applying for a blue badge. However, for this we 
need formal assessments, and the current waiting list for ADHD assessment in Oxfordshire, according to our GP, 
is between two to seven years. We have been referred to a private clinic for the autism assessment and are 
waiting to hear back but even private services are oversubscribed. He has a play therapist and pre-school teachers 
who can confirm his needs in writing but, until we have the formal diagnosis, we are very unlikely to be eligible for 
a blue badge. It is not our fault that the NHS is under extreme pressure, but it leaves us unable to access the care 
and services our son needs.   
 
5. The stress from the parking situation is incredible. We have even considered selling our house over it; however, 
our son’s conditions mean that he reacts very badly to change. Consequently, we consider that the momentous 
upheaval of moving house would cause him more distress than the current parking situation, albeit perhaps not 
than the proposed one.  
 
6. Finally, these parking difficulties, and the impending additional complications, are having a severe impact not 
only on my children’s health but also on my own health. I have a diagnosed severe anxiety disorder (please treat 
as confidential) and the worry about the proposed parking changes has exacerbated my mental health difficulties.   
  
Given the six substantive reasons listed above, we are extremely concerned about the proposed parking scheme 
due to its impact on my son’s health, our ability to conduct our daily school and work routines, and my mental 
health. We would like to propose several amendments to the scheme that we would be happy to consider.   
  
Proposed amendments:  

P
age 203



                 
 

1. 5 Hailles Gardens is provided a space (i.e. an extra sixth space) within the Dunkins Close residential parking 
scheme  
2. 5 Hailles Gardens is provided a space within the North Street residents parking scheme (at the back of our 
house)  
3. A consultation is launched on a proposal of a residential parking scheme for Hailles Gardens, with a temporary 
space granted to 5 Hailles Gardens within 100 metres of our house  
4. St John’s Street is pedestrianised and on-street parking made available, improving everyone’s health.   
  
Thank you for considering our list of reasons and proposals for rectifying a distressing situation. As you can 
imagine, this has caused considerable perturbance and we are very keen to attend and convey the strength of our 
objections at the public meeting 23rd February.  
 

(5) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Bicester, Bath 
Terrace) 

 
No Waiting at Any Time – Concerns  
Permit Holders Parking Places – No opinion 
 

Owners of permit parking houses, if offloading or doing building works have no access to a close by bay or any bay 
most of the time. Yellow lines hinder people of the terrace houses. 
 

(6) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Bicester, 
Greenway) 

 
No Waiting at Any Time – No opinion  
Permit Holders Parking Places – Concerns 
 

PLEASE think about those people who need visitors several times a day (carers, family, friends) and will never 
have enough permits. There needs to be a mechanism in place to HELP these people not make their lives a 
misery. Please do nothing until these vulnerable residents are considered. Don’t forget that people can go from 
absolutely fine to very vulnerable in an instant,  so lengthy form filling etc should NOT be necessary. If you have a 
stroke (say) you might not be able to fill in a form or make a phone call. The elderly often don’t  have internet 
access, are too frail to go to a library or use the phone for very long. You MUST consider every eventuality before 
changing anything. 
 

(7) Online response, 
(unknown) 

 
No Waiting at Any Time – Support  
Permit Holders Parking Places – Support 
 

P
age 204



                 
 

No comments. 
 

(8) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Bicester, St 
Johns Road) 

 
Support – I have read your Residential Parking Purposed letter. This is really good news that we will be able to 

park outside our own house at long last. 
 
Can you please explain why we can’t have a parking permit for our group of 4 cottages 1-4 Brookside, as we are 
the only ones along this stretch of road without off road parking. 
 

(9) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Bicester, St 
Johns Road) 

 
Support – I AM STRONGLY IN FAVOUR OF THE PROPOSAL TO MAKE CHANGES TO THE PESENT 
PARKING SITUATION BY INTODUCING YELLOW LINES AND THE ISSUE OF PERMITS TO RESIDENTS 
 
This is because my narrow driveway opens onto Dunkins Close and despite the Council marking KEEP CLEAR I 
am frequently blocked in by a car blocking exit/entrance to my property. The road marking being worn away by this 
happening and would really benefit from repainting 
 

(10) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Bicester, St 
Johns Road) 

 
Concerns – I fear that people who normally park on the grass and in Dunkin’s close will encroach on my service 

road that starts at corner of Dunking Close and runs to length of and parallel to St John Street to the roundabout at 
Queens Street.  Several years ago, I wrote to Cherwell and copied Oxford Oxfordshire County Council to 
complained about two issues, first the number of cars from people in Dunkin’s parking on my service road, and 
second, that while doing work in St John Street knocked down the private road sign at the start of the service road 
and never replaced it. They wrote me a letter suggesting that I paid to have the service road made up to council 
standards and they would buy the service road off me or that I closed the road off from Dunking’s Road by using 
some sort of container that had plants and flowers. I request that you either replace the private road sign or be 
happy for me to close the road of using a concrete container which will be filled with plants and flowers.   
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

P
age 205



                 
 

B. Cherwell parking permit proposals:  
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

No objection 

(2) Cherwell District 
Council 

No objection 

(3) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, 
Beargarden Road) 

Object - resident only permits without new options are not viable. 

(4) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, 
Beargarden) 

 
Object - I still don't understand why paying to park on my own road will benefit me. Limiting the area to residents 
only doesn't automatically guarantee that I'll find a parking spot on my area, as it could still be taken by my 
"neighbour's visitor". The limitation of the spaces is still a reality, you are not increasing the parking places, and it'll 
make more people angry in the long run, especially when they couldn't find a place where to park after having paid 
£66 a year.. which, by the way, I believe the Council reserves the right to increase this fee anytime in the future. 
No, no and no. It's a money maker! 
 

(5) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, 
Beargarden Road) 

 
Object - Charges were made to have the white line put across the driveway now we will be parking to park our 

cars on the street. Council will be putting up the council tax for next year all during the biggest economic crisis in 
over 40 years - this is a money-making scheme by the council.  
 

(6) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, 
Beargarden Road) 

Object – no comments. 

(7) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, 
Beargarden Road ) 

 
Object - Any charges implemented on residents parking should be abolished, and non residents should be 

charged  

P
age 206



                 
 

(8) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, 
Bloxham Road) 

Object - You are preventing the right to have a family life for the people who live in the roads specified.  

(9) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Bicester, Kings 
End) 

 
Object - My issues are: 
 
Removal of limitation for properties with off street parking - may lead to additional cars parking with no additional 
spaces allocated for them. 
 
Visitors permit allowance / charges - I am paying the same amount (£66) for less. I will now only get 25 visitors 
permits per resident permit as opposed to 50 previously. To get back to the level I was will now cost me £91 per 
year.  
 
It's not uncommon for people to park in the residents parking area without a permit. I can't say they're all Bicester 
Village visitors but I'm sure some are. 
 
At the moment they are easily identified as they don't have a permit displayed in their car window. As residents we 
can easily see this and  challenge them to move on.  
 
With the new virtual permits we will have no knowledge if these cars are parked illegally or not. We will be reliant 
on the parking enforcement team and to be fair they are not always around.  
 
What can be done regarding this? 
 

(10) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Bodicote , 
Cotefield Drive) 

Object - Should not be charging residents to park outside their homes  

(11) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Bicester, Priory 
Road) 

 
Concerns – Can I please just say that the proposed 'paperless' scheme would result in chaos!  

  
I live in Priory Road in Bicester town centre. I campaigned for several years to get the residents parking scheme up 
and running. 

P
age 207



                 
 

My road, and others in the town centre, was completely filled with comuter vehicles parking every day leaving 
nowhere for residents to park. 
  
Without the visible permit, how are residents going to know if a vehicle is part of the scheme or not? 
Also, why would anyone bother using visitors permits? If a vehicle parks up with nothing visible, who knows if it is a 
resident, a visitor or just a commuter taking advantage? And trust me, once permits are scrapped, we will be 
swamped by commuter vehicles just like before. 
 
Please do not say that patrols will be able to check on legitamacy of a vehicle- we simply DO NOT have patrols in 
Bicester! Since the parking scheme was introduced, I think I have only seen a PCSO twice in Priory Road, and 
when questioned she informed me that she did not have the power to actually issue a parking fine!  
  
So unless you are proposing to provide wardens to patrol every day, it simply won't work. 
  
The cost of the scheme remains the same- £66 per year. Going paperless just means the Council get that money 
for nothing. You wouldn't dream of making the Blue Badge scheme paperless so why residents parking? 
  
This scheme is by no means perfect - but it works! Please do not let it go paperless! 
 

(12) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, 
Crouch Street) 

Concerns - Due to the small number of spaces available on Crouch Street, those with existing off-street parking 
should be limited to one permit. 

(13) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Bicester, Bath 
Terrace) 

 
Concerns - just look at this planning applicatoin and the amount of contesion to the current lack of permit bays, yet 
no one does anything about that. we pay for parking and generally come home to no space on all areas. 
22/01619/OUT 
 

(14) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Bicester, 
Greenway) 

 
Concerns - PLEASE think about those people who need visitors several times a day (carers, family, friends) and 
will never have enough permits. There needs to be a mechanism in place to HELP these people not make their 
lives a misery. Please do nothing until these vulnerable residents are considered. Don’t forget that people can go 
from absolutely fine to very vulnerable in an instant,  so lengthy form filling etc should NOT be necessary. If you 
have a stroke (say) you might not be able to fill in a form or make a phone call. The elderly often don’t  have 

P
age 208



                 
 

internet access, are too frail to go to a library or use the phone for very long. You MUST consider every eventuality 
before changing anything. 
 
You must consider every possible eventuality, for all residents. 
 

(15) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Bicester, Priory 
Road) 

 
Concerns - we write to agree to the proposals, in particular to the introduction of the virtual permits.  

 
We do, however, have concerns about the proposed "limitations for properties with off-street parking". If the 
ultimate result of this change will mean the introduction of a greater number of cars on the streets, we would like to 
object to this proposal, as we feel there is already a shortage of on-street parking.  
 

(16) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Bicester, Priory 
Road) 

 
Concerns – My sole piece of feedback is that I do not think that the maximum number of visitors parking permits 

should be limited to 50 per year instead of 100 – even if most people do not require more than 50 visitors permits 
they should still have the option to purchase more, and it doesn’t seem to me that the council will lose anything by 
allowing a small number of users of the scheme to do this. 
 

(17) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, 
Crouch Street) 

Support – no comments. 

(18) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, 
Crouch Street) 

Support - As a resident of Crouch Street I would be happy with the permit system 

(19) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, 
Crouch Street) 

Support - I support proposals but feel that permits should be granted as one per household with an option to buy 

another if there is sufficient parking space to warrant it. 

(20) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, 
Woburn Close) 

Support - Traffic parking in central areas becoming a problem for residents 

P
age 209



                 
 

(21) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Bicester, 
Victoria Road) 

Support – no comments. 

(22) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (unknown) 

Support – no comments. 

 

P
age 210



   

   
   
   

Divisions affected: Rose Hill & Littlemore  

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAYS MANAGEMENT – 23 
FEBRUARY 2023 

 
LITTLEMORE: OXFORD ROAD – PROPOSED BUS STOP 

CLEARWAY 
 

Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 

approve as advertised a bus stop clearway on Oxford Road approximately 30 
metres north of Dudgeon Drive at Littlemore.  

 

 

Executive summary 
 

2. Following concerns being received from Littlemore Parish Council about the 
obstruction by parked vehicles for buses seeking to use the existing bus stop 

layby approximately 30 metres north of Dudgeon Drive, it is proposed to 
introduce a bus stop clearway.  
 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation on the proposals and their implementation if 

approved has been provided by Littlemore Parish Council.  
 
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help facilitate the safe movement of buses & their 

passengers. 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 211

Agenda Item 9



            

     
 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 05 January 2023 and 03 

February. An email was sent to statutory consultees & key stakeholders, 
including: Thames Valley Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance 
service, Bus operators, countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user 

groups, Littlemore Parish Council, Oxford City Council, the local City 
Councillors, and the local County Councillor representing the Rose Hill & 

Littlemore division. Letters were also sent directly to approximately 10 
adjacent properties, and public notices were placed on site in the immediate 
vicinity. 

 
7. Twenty responses were received during the formal consultation period, 

comprising of: six objections (30%), 13 in support (65%), and one expressing 
no objection.  
 

8. The responses are shown in full at Annex 2, and copies of the original 

submissions are available for inspection by County Councillors. 

 
 

Officer response to objections/concerns  
 
9. Thames Valley Police expressed no objection. 

 
10. Stagecoach Bus Company & Thames Travel both supported the proposals, 

citing the importance that buses are able to pull in close to and parallel to 

kerbs at bus stops and to depart easily without being impeded by other 
parked motor vehicles. Confirming the importance of this for passengers with 

reduced mobility or sight impairments. 
 

11. OXTRAG a local group representing people with mobility expressed support 

for the proposals, as did a local councillor. 
 

12. Objections were received from six members of the public, all local residents, 
concerned about the loss of parking, noting the parking pressures in  the area 
and with some commenting that there was space for both a bus and one 

parked car to use the layby. 
 

13. Expressions of support were received from nine members of the public.  
 
 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1  Consultation Plan  
 Annex 2: Consultation responses  

  
  

Contact Officers:  Anthony Kirkwood 07392 318871 
February 2023   

Page 212



          
  

  

ANNEX 1

P
age 213



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

No objection 

(2) Head of Strategic 
Development & the Built 
Environment (Stagecoach 
Bus Company) 

 
Support – Notwithstanding that Stagecoach has in the recent passed ceased to operate services serving this stop, we 
nevertheless support the proposed Order, in the interests of wider safe and reliable bus operation in the City. 
 
It is vital that bus stops are clear to allow buses to pull in close to and parallel to the kerb at the boarding area, and 
then leave in forward gear without need for extreme or additional manoeuvring.  
 
This is in the interest of safety or boarding and alighting passengers for whom a substantial gap between the edge of 
the bus platform and the kerb represents a significant hazard. This is magnified for the partially sighted. For those in 
wheelchairs, it is also necessary that the ramp can be safely deployed. To this extent the Order would be entirely 
justified by the duties binding on the Council under Equalities Act 2010. 
 
The proper operation of the lay-by also has other practical benefits for the flow of traffic which also justifies these 
measures under the Council's Traffic Management Duty under the Traffic Management Act 2004. 
 
We trust that this Order will therefore proceed. 
 

(3) Business Development 
and Partnerships 
Manager, (Thames 
Travel) 

 
Support – Oxford Road Littlemore is served by the 3A service up to every 30 minutes linking Littlemore with the city 

centre, Oxford Science Park and Cowley, Templars Square. It is also served by the 45 service which operates up to 
every hour linking Littlemore Abingdon and via an alternative route to the 3A with Cowley, Templars Square. Finally in 
the evenings Oxford Road Littlemore is also served by the X40 service and in the early hours of Saturday and Sunday 
mornings (in effect Friday and Saturday nights) by the NX40 service linking Oxford city centre and south to Wallingford 
with certain journeys continuing beyond to Reading.  
  
We support the introduction of the bus stop clearway for the following reasons:  
  

P
age 214



                 
 

It is important that buses are able to pull in close to and parallel to the kerb at bus stops and to depart easily without 
being impeded by other parked motor vehicles. This is particularly important for passengers with reduced mobility or 
with a sight impairment where the inability of a bus to pull closely in to the kerb could case a hazard when boarding or 
alighting the bus. For those in wheelchairs, it is also necessary that the ramp can be safely deployed. It is also of 
convenience to parents or others with buggies/pushchairs if they are able to simply roll-on/roll-off a bus which again 
requires the bus to be able to pull in close to the kerb.  
  
Sometimes having a bus stop in a lay-by can be detrimental to a bus service if once the bus has pulled in to the stop it 
is unable to easily re-join the main traffic flow. In this instance the bus stop lay-by is just after a pinch point where 
traffic needs to Give Way to on-coming traffic. This will therefore provide gaps in the flow of traffic and so allow buses 
to depart the stop. 
 

(4) Local 
group/organisation, 
(OXTRAG) 

 
Support – It would  be a good move for the layby to be made into a bus stop clearway.  It would be helpful not only to 

buses and to vehicles following buses, but also to drivers coming out of Dudgeon Drive, as visibility to their left would 
no longer be obstructed by vehicles parked in the layby. 
 
Therefore OXTRAG supports this proposal. 
 

(5) Local Cllr, (Littlemore, 
David Nicholls Close) 

Support - Private vehicles are often left parked in this layby for days so this is long overdue.  

(6) Local resident, 
(Littlemore, Oxford Road) 

 
Object – I’m a resident of Oxford Road. I live near the bus bay. I can see the bus bay out of the window. 
 
I’m writing on behalf of myself, and on behalf of a house near to the bus bay: who occasionally uses the bus bay to 
park his vehicle. Since the matter became controversial last year they try to park it as far away from the bus shelter as 
possible. 
 
Both of us feel that if the Bus Companies think that this is a serious problem warranting the use of pubic funds, 
parking should be made illegal. However, if it were only up to us, both of us would oppose the plan, because 
 
1) it doesn’t seem to us to be a serious or frequent enough problem to require the use of public funds to control it 
2) banning parking altogether may cause knock on problems in the road, which is narrow, and often busy 
3) the Parish Council who suggested it has gone about it in the wrong way. 

P
age 215



                 
 

 
One member of the Council has persuaded the majority that ‘as a matter of courtesy to the residents of Littlemore’ 
parking should be made illegal. However the Parish Council has not done residents of Oxford Road the 
courtesy of discussing the problem with them. Instead the one councillor has used meetings to describe the offenders 
using vulgar terminology, glued ‘illegal parking’ notices on windscreens, and overseen some residents getting letters 
from the Police which accused them of ‘antisocial behaviour’ toward their neighbours. Those who received Police 
letters suspect one of their neighbours is the source of them. The whole thing has caused upset, anxiety, resentment, 
and inconvenience. 
 

(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Littlemore, Oxford 
Road) 

 
Object - Parking is already difficult for residents on Oxford Road and this would takeaway parking spaces. 

Traffic is already fast and busy on Oxford Road. When the bus has to stop in the middle of the road, this slows down 
traffic. It also puts people off from using Oxford Road as a throughfare rather than using the ring road   
 

(8) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Littlemore, Oxford 
Road) 

 
Object - This would add and put pressure on residential parking in an area where we are already impacted by the 

volume of traffic preventing residents to park safely.  There are many families with babies and small children who 
need the parking that will be removed, to park close to home.  
 
It seems the current system is working so why change it?  
 
Please do not add anymore pressure to this street that already suffered with speeding cars and excessive delays 
getting on and off the roundabout during rush hour.  
 

(9) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Littlemore, Oxford 
Road) 

 
Object - As a resident who lives opposite the lay by in question, I oppose this plan.  

 
As few of the houses on the street have driveways most people have to park their cars on the road. When residents 
have visitors, there are events at the local churches or schools, or visitors to the park - the limited spaces can be 
easily filled. Therefore the option to park in the lay by comes in very useful and is often used.  
 
In my experience of 5+ years of living on the road the residents are conscientious with parking in the lay by and leave 
adequate room for buses to stop. Only 1 car tends to use it at any time.  
 
Introducing a clearway would force more cars to park on the road, and given the chicanes and traffic calming already 

P
age 216



                 
 

in place it would arguably create more obstacles for through traffic to navigate and increase congestion and delays.  
 
If the bus company feel the current arrangements cause issues for their drivers I would encourage the council to see 
whether some of the large pavement space could be adapted to allow cars to be parked safely without obstructing the 
buses.  
 

(10) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Littlemore, Oxford 
Road) 

 
Object - This lay-by has not been a bus Clearwater for over 25+ years and does not cause any problems - it’s only the 

opinion of a local resident who has raised this point - who has no evidence of a problem but wants to cause one of the 
residents of the road  
 

(11) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Littlemore, Oxford 
Road) 

 
Object - The bus stop allows for occasional overspill parking for residents primarily at weekends when non-resident 

cars appear. Given that there is very little parking in the area, this can be very useful.  
 
On the relatively few occasions where a car is parked and prevents a bus entering the clearway, there is no obstacle 
to buses stopping on the road as they do at the majority of bus stops. This causes a short delay to those who then 
need to wait behind.    
 
I have lived opposite the bus stop for 15 years and it is hard to see why there is any need to change the status quo; 
there would be no clear benefit and inconvenience for residents.  
 

(12) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Littlemore, Alice 
Smith Square) 

Support - more spaces for buses and less for private cars. In my opinion all the bus routes should be free from car 

parking 

(13) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Littlemore, Oxford 
Road) 

Support - I’d like to see less traffic on Oxford Rd, know there will be vocal objections but also the combination of 
random parking and unpredictable traffic is not great. Want to facilitate bus use.  

(14) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Littlemore, Oxford 
Road) 

 
Support - I live on Oxford Road. Although I don't use the bus very much since I prefer to cycle, I've noticed that buses 

sometimes struggle to manoeuvre in and out of the bus stop when cars are parked there. I want to encourage better 
public transport into the city which is why I support this proposal. 

P
age 217



                 
 

(15) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Cowley 
Road) 

Support - It's crazy that this even has to be consulted on.  It's a bus stop.  Cars should not be left there.  Strong 

support.  Please add instant tow and crush to penalties available for bus stop parking. 

(16) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Maidcroft 
Road) 

Support - It is important that this stop is kept clear for buses. 

(17) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, 
Monmouth Road) 

Support - Please do what's necessary to stop obstructive parking where the bus needs to be. 

(18) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Rymers 
Lane) 

Support - This needs to happen.  

(19) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Rymers 
Lane) 

Support - People frequently park in the bus bay and make it difficult for the bus users and other road users.  

(20) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, 
Swinburne Road) 

Support - People are always parking in the bus stop - need to keep it clear for buses!  

 

P
age 218



   

   
   
   

Divisions affected: Hanborough & Minster Lovell  

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAYS MANAGEMENT – 23 
FEBRUARY 2023 

 

LONG HANBOROUGH: REGENT DRIVE AREA (HANBOROUGH 
PARK) – PROPOSED WAITING RESTRICTIONS 

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 

 
a) approve the proposed waiting restrictions at Regent Drive area 

(Hanborough Park) Long Hanborough. 

b) instruct officers to prepare a plan for an extended length of no waiting at 
any time restrictions to be prepared and consulted on. 

 

 

Executive summary 
 

2. Following concerns raised by the local County Councillor and local residents 

about excessive and  obstructive overspill parking from commuters using 
Hanborough rail station and the adjacent commercial business park, the 
waiting restrictions as shown in Annex 1 have been proposed, with waiting 

between 11am & noon Mondays to Fridays  applying on both  sides of all 
roads within the Hanborough Park residential development, comprising: 

Olympian Close, Regal Lane, Regent Drive, Reliance Way, and Renown 
Court.  

 

 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation on the proposals and their implementation if 
approved has been provided by the developers  

 
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 

respect of the proposals. 
 

 
 
 

Page 219

Agenda Item 10



            

     
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help facilitate the safe movement of traffic. 
 
 

Formal consultation  
 

6. The Formal consultation was carried out between 24 November  and 30 

December 2022. A notice was published in the Oxford Times newspaper, and 
an email sent to statutory consultees, including Thames Valley Police, the Fire 
& Rescue Service, Ambulance service, local bus operators, countywide 

transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, Hanborough Parish 
Council, West Oxfordshire District Council, District Cllrs, and the local County 

Councillor representing the Hanborough & Minster Lovell division. Letters 
were sent directly to approximately 150 adjacent premises, and street notices 
placed on site in the immediate vicinity of the proposals. 

 
7. 44 responses were received during the formal consultation period, comprising 

of: nine objections (20%), sixteen expressing concerns (36%), sixteen  in 
support (36%), and three expressing no objection.  
 

8. The responses are shown in full at Annex 2, and copies of the original 

submissions are available for inspection by County Councillors. 

 
 

Officer response to objections/concerns  
 
9. Thames Valley Police expressed no objection, requesting the Council to make 

it clear that the proposed restrictions would apply to residents also. 
 

10. West Oxfordshire District Council and Stagecoach Bus Company responded 

expressing no objection to the proposals. 
 

11. A local councillor who is also a resident of Regents Drive expressed a 
concern over the impact of the proposals on their visitors. 
 

12. The remaining forty responses were from members of the public, all but one 
of whom were residents of Hanborough Park. While the overall balance of 

opinion was not supportive of the current proposals, most of the respondents 
acknowledged the current parking problems caused by rail users do require 
action, but opinion was divided on the appropriate measures, although noting 

also that  there was a general consensus that the existing no waiting at any 
time restrictions at the junction of Regent Drive with the A4095 should be 

extended due to the  danger and obstruction of cars parking just beyond them 
where there is also a bend in the road.  
 

13. One of the grounds for concern and objection were that the proposals – 
despite its limited time of operation – would nevertheless cause 

inconvenience for residents and their visitors, with a number of responses 
suggesting that a residents permit parking scheme would be appropriate. 

Page 220



            

     
 

However, some responses raised concerns that the current proposals would 

not address problems of parking at weekends with some vehicles (assumed 
to be of rail passengers parking while taking a weekend break) being parked 

overnight. 
 

14.  Similarly, among those expressing support for the proposals there was some 

spread of views, including some expressing a preference for the proposal 
over a residents permit parking scheme.  

 
15. Mindful of the spread of views in the responses but the general 

acknowledgment of the parking  issues at Hanborough Park, and also taking 

account that the  proposals should be effective in addressing weekday 
commuter parking with hopefully only  limited impact on legitimate parking 

demand on the part of residents and their visitors   (by virtue of the proposals  
only applying between 11am and noon), it is recommended that the proposals 
are approved and then monitored with a view to reviewing at a later date, 

including  the scope for introducing a residents permit parking scheme. 
 

16. It is however also recommended that proposals for extending the existing no 
waiting at any time restrictions further into Regents Drive from its  junction 
with the A4095 are progressed to consultation.  

 
 
Bill Cotton 

Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1 Consultation Plan  
 Annex 2: Consultation responses  
  

  
  
Contact Officers:  Adam Barrett 07919 175889   

     
 

 
February 2023   

Page 221



          
  

  

ANNEX 1

P
age 222



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
No objection – The Police have no objection, but please make it clear these restrictions will also apply to ALL 

residents. Similar restrictions have been in place for many years at Didcot and some residents believed they did not 
apply to them. 
 

(2) West Oxfordshire 
District Council, (Parking 
Team) 

No objection 

(3) Head of Strategic 
Development and the Built 
Environment, (Stagecoach 
Bus Company) 

No objection – In line with our general practice, I am again happy to confirm that Stagecoach has no comments or 
observations to make and offers no objection to these proposals. 

(4) Local Cllr, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

Concerns - I worried about my visitors-friends 

(5) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

 
Object - This is a limitation on the whole of Hanborough Park when the issue is just the part of the road from the 

entrance to Regent Drive to the first houses on both sides of the road.  Double yellow lines on that section would 
suffice. 
 

(6) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

 
Object - 'I object to the proposal because I think it is a sledgehammer to crack a nut. 

 
1) There are some issues with parking on the bend at the entrance to the estate - this can/should be solved by 
extending the double yellow lines as far as the first houses/into the turning for the farmer to prevent *any* parking 
there at all for reasons of safety.  This will not inconvenience residents. 
 
2) Parking restrictions further in are not required because the number of cars parking on the estate currently varies 
between 0 and 8 on weekdays, usually the lower end.  What evidence do you have that there are more cars than this 
parking on the estate?  What evidence do you have that there is any risk of parking at the lower end of the estate 

P
age 223



                 
 

e.g. Olympian Way, bottom end of Regent Drive?    
 
3) Some of the properties only have one allocated parking space - what if there are two adults with two cars in the 
property?  Most seem to have two allocated parking spaces - but properties can easily have three adults with three 
cars.  Where should they park if they are "working from home"? 
 
4) Some of the residents have health issues - they park outside the front of their houses because it is easier for them 
to access their vehicles in this way. 
 
5) What provision will be made for visitors/guests/work-people coming on to the estate during this time: 
- The postman usually delivers during the 11 - 12 time slot.  Has he been asked to change his delivery time? 
- Where do delivery drivers park?  What about cleaners, health-visitors etc? 
- Where should visitors park - will designated "visitor bays" or permits be provided? 
 
6) What consideration has been given to a residents permit scheme - such as is in operation in Woodstock and 
Oxford?  This would permit residents and their visitors (with a permit) to park, but prevent the kind of parking that you 
perceive to be an issue. 
 

(7) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

 
Object - This proposal will restrict residents and their visitors (e.g. cleaners and those providing services to the 

elderly) from parking on the roads next to their homes.  Where many of the smaller homes do not have parking for 
two vehicles this would be extremely prohibitive. 
 
There is no safety risk or parking issue across the vast majority of the estate and the proposal is heavy handed.  If 
parking on part of the estate is seen as an issue a better solution would be a residents parking scheme.  
You say that the county councillor with other residents has put the proposal forward.  As he is a resident of the estate 
this constitutes a conflict of interest. What evidence does he have that he undertook any systematic consultation 
prior to this proposal being put forward.   
 

(8) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regal Lane) 

 
Object - The entrance to Hanborough Park is a tight curve therefore any cars parking there cause a safety issue. 

Therefore the entrance to Hanborough Park to the first house on both sides of Regent Drive should be double yellow 
lines so that drivers have a clear vision of oncoming vehicles. 
 
The suggestion of  no waiting restriction between 11am and noon will impede on residents lives by restricting the 

P
age 224



                 
 

time when people may receive visitors, ie no one can visit you during 11am and noon. 
I would propose that the parking restriction should be a maximum of 2 or 3 hours between 7.00 am and 5.00 pm . 
This would negate people parking all day but allow residents to receive visitors during the day. 
 

(9) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

Object - Will only encourage people to park further down the estate and at weekends. 

(10) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

 
Object - I am a homeowner in Regent Drive (at the middle of Regent Drive).  

 
I object to these proposals because if the restrictions only apply to the first half of the road, people will simply park 
further into Regent Drive - pushing the problem further into the road. There are many new developments in Long 
Hanborough, and this means there are many more people using the station. If someone wants to use the station and 
park during the day, they should have to pay for parking. Under the current proposals, they will easily be able to just 
drive further up the road!  
 
The road is widest at the top, and it is already causing problems for people entering / exiting the road. It gets much 
narrower towards the middle and end - which would make it very dangerous to have cars parked at the narrow parts 
- particularly with kids playing and the many cats in the development.  
 
I would support having lines all the way down the road (however I understand some people need to be able to park 
on the road). 
 
 The best solution is to have permit parking for the entire development - similar to the rest of the city centre. Homes 
can have one free permit and can purchase more as needed (gaining revenue for the council and helping fix this 
issue for the residents and road users).  
 

(11) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

 
Object - This is not going to eliminate the issue, only reduce the 9-5 users. Living near the entrance to the estate I 

often observe people use the estate for overnight parking for trips utilising the train station.  
It is also going to inconvenience residents using the streets for parking.  
I think the best solution is going to be a residents only permit scheme. Allowing 1 free permit a year to allow a guest 
to park. 
 

P
age 225



                 
 

(12) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Reliance 
Way) 

Object - I live here it's not what me or other residents want 

(13) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

 
Object - I would like to draw your attention to the issues re parking with you personally as they do impact me as a 
resident personally. I would also like to express my objection to the proposal to only have restrictions for one hour 
during the week. Firstly I will outline the issues below and secondly give reasons for not having restrictions for the 
one hour.  
 
Current issues re parking on Hanborough Park: 
 
1. Commuters and some visitors to the development park on both sides of the road as you enter the development 
and up to and outside my house (2 Regent Drive). When cars park on both sides this makes the road narrow and 
difficult to enter and exit the development. This does not always happen but I have observed recently where 
residents have struggled to pass the parked cars. If cars park on both sides of the road this makes it impossible for 
larger vehicles such as the bin lorry and delivery lorries to get to the other end of the development. Should a fire 
engine need to access the bottom end of the development it would be impossible for them to reach the far end if cars 
are parked on both sides.  
 
2. The entrance to the Hanborough Development has a blind bend/corner. When cars park on the road on entering 
the development it becomes a danger to children and small stature individuals because it’s difficult/impossible to see 
around the parked cars. My son has had a couple of close encounters with cars entering the development having to 
swerve around the parked cars.  
 
3. When people park outside my house (2 Regent Drive) it makes it very difficult for my neighbour opposite to get out 
of their drive safely or easily.  
 
4. There has been numerous times when people have parked for long weekends and left their cars parked extending 
the parking issues for long periods sometimes several days.  
 
5. Cars have parked at the entrance to the farmers field. If they individuals leave their car parked in this area, the 
farmer is unable to access the field.  
 
6. On some occasions commuters slam their doors in the early hours to catch an early train. This has the potential to 

P
age 226



                 
 

wake small children in the early hours.  
 
I am proposing that there be double yellow lines on entry to the development, outside my house, opposite my 
neighbours house and the entry to the farmers field. This would allow my neighbour to exit/enter their 
property/driveway safely and easily. Having the double yellow lines would also stop cars parked as they do currently 
preventing larger vehicles such as fire engines from accessing properties at the bottom end of the development.  
 
The problem with parking is going to get worse as more and more people using the train station become aware that 
there is free parking on Hanborough Park. I do not feel that the hour restriction is enough. It needs to be residents 
only with double yellows as stated. 
 
Furthermore, I forgot to mention that commuters don’t just park at the start of the day. It can be staggered (flexible 
workers) which means the parking restriction from 11am to noon does not consider these flexible workers. I have 
observed recently that there has been times when people use Hanborough Park to park their cars to catch the train 
into Oxford or London at various times throughout the day. This at times has resulted in over night parking 
(sometimes for several days including weekends). As I said in my previous email my main concern is safety and 
residents on the development being able to function I.e. get out of their drive. I feel that the issue with parking is 
going to get worse not better as people realise there is free parking on the development. My neighbours and I feel 
that there needs to be double lines from the start of the development and past the first houses 2 Regent Drive and 7 
Regent Drive (house opposite mine). This would allow my neighbour at number 7 to easily get out of their drive. Cars 
parked directly in front of my house can at times make it difficult for our neighbour to pull out of their drive as they 
need the extra space to manoeuvre. The remainder ideally needs to be residents  only. 
 

(14) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Reliance 
Way) 

 
Concerns – I am a Reliance Way Resident and rejoice at the fact that you are taking some action about the rogue 

parking, forcing us residents into the path of oncoming cars, because of all the parked cars! 
 
However, having spoken with my neighbours, we would all strongly recommend free permits and one visitor permit 
for each address on the estate.  Any ‘No Waiting’ will also restrict residents so may not be the best solution. 
 

(15) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

 
Concerns – Firstly, it is true that there have been a number of problems at the junction of Regent Drive and access 

to the very busy A4095 road which goes through Long Hanborough (LH) and these are caused in the main by 
various people parking at the junction to avoid car parking fees at the train station in LH. 
 

P
age 227



                 
 

It has been proposed that a "No Waiting" restriction Monday-Fridays between 11am and 12 noon be introduced 
throughout the development. Both myself and another resident have carried out a small survey on the development 
concerning this problem and what might resolve it. I believe you are now in receipt of the results (these I gather got 
lost within OCC departments or otherwise?) of the survey which were sent to OCC, Bloor (the developer), 
Hanborough Parish Council and I think also WODC (?). Results showed that people did have concerns but the 
majority seemed in favour of something slightly less drastic than parking restrictions as proposed in your circled letter 
(REF: CM/12.6.238 24th Nov 2022). WE proposed continuation of yellow lines from the junction on both sides of the 
road i.e. on the right (approaching from A4095) to the end of the first property [to their parking/garage area] and on 
the left from the first house and to be continued along that side of the road and to finish at the end of the future 
proposed car park for the station (presently scrub land and Bloor owned land). This seemed to be a fair compromise 
to the problem and would respectfully waste less OCC money and also policing. 

(16) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Olympian 
Close) 

 
Concerns - The drives of the properties are not wide enough for some vehicles and also of you have a car charging 
on your drive you cannot fit another car on it so therefore needs to be out on the road. Also, if you wish to get a 
bicycle or motorbike out of your garage, you cannot pass down the side of a parked car on your drive as again, the 
drives are too narrow, therefore making it a hassle to promote cycling and therefore easier to just jump in a car. 
 

(17) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regal Lane) 

 
Concerns - A blanket ban on parking during those hours means we don’t have any parking available for visitors. 

There needs to be (free) parking permits for residents.  
 
I do think (as proposed) any restrictions need to cover the whole estate otherwise people will just park a minute 
further in and walk to the station.  
 

(18) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

 
Concerns - I am a local resident of Hanborough Park and have been one of the residents who has been affected by 

commuter parking.  
The issues have been  
1. Parking on the bend in the road which makes it dangerous for little children to see around the cars. My son has 
had a couple of close encounters with cars overtaking parked cars. I feel that this area needs to be double yellow  
lined. It also makes it difficult for cars entering the development because they have to overtake on a bend. I have 
observed some near misses.  
 
2. Cars on some occasions are park for the duration of a weekend (2/3 days). I feel that double lines are needed.  
 

P
age 228



                 
 

3. Cars parked outside my house 2 Regent Drive make it difficult for my neighbours opposite to get out of their drive.  
 
4. People slamming their doors in the early hours to catch a train.  
 
I am delighted that the issue of parking issues are being addressed. My concern with the proposals is that the 
restrictions are only from 11 am to noon Monday to Friday. This is only for 1 hour. People will continue to park out of 
this hour restriction.  
 
My main concern is safety and for my neighbours to be able to function by being able to get out of their drive.  
 
As new developments spring up more and more people will use Hanborough park as a free parking area. So the 
problem of parking will increase particularly at weekends when they want to go into Oxford by train. Understandably 
they will want to avoid paying for parking.  

(19) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

Concerns - My concerns for the parking restrictions is because we live in the flats on regent drive and have 2 

vehicles and only 1 parking space. 

(20) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

 
Concerns - I support the proposal, but existing residents should rightfully be able to park in front of their own homes 

at these times. I have two parking spaces, so it does not affect me, but other people do not and they deserve to be 
able to park on the road near their house. 
 

(21) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Reliance 
Way) 

 
Concerns - I support that the entrance to the housing estate is dangerous during working hours of Mon-Fri, due to 

the train station commuters.  
 
I support that lines should be painted on the road between the main road up to the first houses.  
 
I think this should be tried first to deter them as it is currently very easier for them to get away with it without being 
questioned by residents. I feel this should be experimented first for a fair period and if it just pushes the issue into the 
estate then I support painting the whole estate.  
 

(22) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Renown 
Court) 

 
Concerns - Does not consider residents who want to park on the street?  

Overly restrictive on the deeper streets in development (E.g. Renown Court) where there isn’t an issue with 
commuter train parking overspill.  

P
age 229



                 
 

 

(23) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough , Regal Lane) 

 
Concerns - I agree parking needs to be looked at for the entrance to regent drive and regal Lane, however if the 

restrictions are granted it must be with parking permits provided to residents for their own and visitor car parking. 
Both can not possibly be restricted to removing their cars from nearby their homes for one hour a day. It is not 
feasible for all residents and needs consideration to those living in the area (Even on weekdays) as most residents 
will have two cars but sadly parking may not have been sufficient for their household by the builders . 
 

(24) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regal Lane) 

 
Concerns - I would like restrictions throughout the estate to protect locals ability to park but disagree with the hour 

long no street parking rule. This would stop us from having visitors throughout the day. A parking permit scheme 
would be my preference - e.g. 1 or 2 visitors permits per household and perhaps 1 for each household without off 
street parking (for use during that hour/peak times) 
 

(25) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regal Lane) 

 
Concerns - We have two cars, often need to leave one on outside of our house to be able to get other car out of 

drive. We are a blended family of 10, our children often visit us as we are both senior citizens. This would cause 
problems with their parking. 
 

(26) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Reliance 
Way) 

Concerns - I agree there needs to parking restrictions but maybe double lines or residence permits.  

(27) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Reliance 
Way) 

 
Concerns - I feel that this will also impact on the residents of Hanborough Park with regards to visitors to the estate. 

This is because we sometimes have visitors who stay over for a few nights meaning they could be fined for staying 
with us. I believe double yellow lines up to the first houses on the estate with single yellow restriction on the side by 
the unused land on the estate. No yellow lines down the roads off of Regents Drive. 
 

(28) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Hanborough 
Park) 

 
Concerns - After reading your letter about parking restrictions on Hanborough park I do have one concern you have 

stated on no waiting between 11am and noon my question is are you going to employ someone to come everyday 
and check that no one is parking and if they are will you be issuing parking tickets? I personally think that double 

P
age 230



                 
 

yellow lines or permit holders only should be considered or perhaps you have! 
 

(29) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Hanborough, 
Regent Drive) 

Support - Double yellow lines across the entrance  

(30) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

Support - Parking for the train station is a problem and becoming dangerous. There are too many cars on Regent 

Drive and it is becoming a safety issue. 

(31) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

 
Support - There is an increasing number of parked cars at the entrance of Hanborough Park, which forces you to 

drive on the wrong side of the road and restricts visibility when coming around the first corner (heading out of the 
estate).  
 

(32) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

 
Support - I support the proposal but think the waiting restriction should apply Mon-Sun i.e. 7 days per week to 

prevent inappropriate parking/waiting on Saturday and Sunday. 
 
I have reviewed the documentation online and note that only 1 'yellow sign' is proposed at the entrance to 
Hanborough Park.  I think this is insufficient and would support signs being installed on the existing street light 
columns at the entrance and 'hammer-head' end of each named street. 
 
As a resident of Regent Drive, I have been monitoring the vehicles parked on the estate roads during November and 
December 2022 - especially those on Regent Drive.  During the traditional working week there are many more 
vehicles parked on the estate. 
 
During periods of industrial action (i.e. recent train strikes) there have been NO vehicles parked on the estate roads - 
the difference is stark. 
 
Naturally, you can only draw the conclusion that train users (normally on weekdays M-F) are avoiding parking 
charges at the station car park - by street parking on the Hanborough Park estate.  This is clearly causing loss of car 
park revenue, inconvenience for residents, and safety issues as narrow estate roads and junctions are becoming a 
car park for hours at a time. 
 

P
age 231



                 
 

(33) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

 
Support - It's dangerous for cars to park near the entrance when there are oncoming cars into the entrance from 

both sides. I'd prefer double lines up to the 1st house and no lines outside resident's houses as they shouldn't be 
penalised for parking outside their own houses. 
 

(34) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

 
Support - This needs to be resolved as it represents a loss of revenue to the local council from commuters not 

paying the charge and parking in the railway station car park. Further, it needs addressing before the future station 
bridge and additional carpark are added to Hanborough station. 
 
Hence, I'm very supportive of the proposal in general -- there are several people taking advantage of lack of parking 
restrictions at top of Hanborough Park at present. This is a 7-days-a-week problem though, so extending the 
restrictions to apply Monday to Sunday would be more appropriate.  
 
Finally, more signage is needed on the estate to highlight the restrictions, as the proposal only has a single small 
sign at the entrance to the estate currently (this is insufficient). 
 

(35) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

Support - Cars parked create additional hazards when driving through this area, causing drivers to be on the wrong 

side of the road, and on the bend visibility of oncoming traffic is obscured  

(36) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

Support - I live on the estate affected and think it is an intelligent way to prevent people who are using the trains 

from parking all day without requiring a permit scheme for guests of the residents visiting. 

(37) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Reliance 
Way) 

 
Support - Poor parking by commuters on the main entrance/exit road of the estate. It is a corner and parking on the 

bend is dangerous and contradicts the highway code. This is exacerbated by vehicles driving too fast, especially 
couriers.  
Poor parking throughout the rest of the estate, especially staggered parking (each side of the road) or at junctions is 
dangerous. Lots of children like playing outside, vehicles drive too fast (including residents) and poor parking 
reduces visibility increases risk.  
Starting to see more commuters park further into estate. Vehicles can be left for a few days at a time.  
 
The survey presented here is very poor, and very limited. It has not provided any scope to suggest how this scheme 
would be implemented and controlled, nor offer the chance to respond to these suggestions, how does the council 

P
age 232



                 
 

gather feedback from the residents when residents are offered one question which is far too vague and offers zero 
detailed feedback. There are more questions about the person responding to the survey than the scheme, seems to 
serve better as data scraping for those taking the survey than an actual survey on the proposed issue, hence my 
response of 'prefer not to say'. What happens to genuine visitors? Are permits going to be enforced? Given current 
conditions of the economy, would the council expect to residents to pay for this service? etc. etc. Lots of questions 
remain unknown, pity that the proposer of the survey failed to drive out any detail.  
 
In principle i support the restrictions, but as no detail has been provided by the council, it is impossible to fully 
support the scheme.  
 

(38) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Reliance 
Way) 

 
Support - As a resident, I completely support the park restrictions due to the high volume of people using the state 

as a free car park for the station. This is causing a number of problems, from the increased traffic in the state, 
dangerous U turns to inappropriate parking blocking resident’s entrances  
 

(39) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

Support - Because I live on the estate and the parking by rail station users  instead of using the car park often 

causes issues getting in and out if the estate with near misses in collisions on many occasions 

(40) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Regent Drive) 

 
Support - We need a parking restriction in place, especially in Hanborough Park, due to safety reasons.  

 
Many train users of the Hanborough station park near the junction/ entrance of the estate, making it dangerous the 
access the estate from the main road as the road isn’t wide enough to have 2 cars driving and 1 row of cars parked.  
 

(41) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Renown 
Court) 

 
Support - I just wanted to drop you an email to say that I agree with the proposal and believe it is the fair and correct 

thing to do. I live on Renown Court which is a cull de sac deep within Hanborough Park so I don’t feel the full affects 
of people taking advantage of the estate for free parking as much as others might.  
 
However, it is certainly becoming more apparent that of a morning when I leave for work there is a queue of cars 
parked along the main entrance road to the estate, which means you have to drive on the wrong side of the road to 
approach the exit junction of the estate which becomes rather blind. I can only imagine this getting worse as more 
people realise it’s a free car park so I fully support the proposal to introduce restrictions to the full estate. 
 

P
age 233



                 
 

(42) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Hanborough 
Park) 

 
Support - I am a resident of Hanborough Park and I support the introduction of parking restrictions between 11am 

and noon throughout the estate. 
 
I have a couple of other points, this does not address the issue at weekends which can often be worse than through 
the week, could a similar scheme run throughout the weekend? Obviously this could cause an issue for residents 
with family visiting, so could a residents permit be introduced with perhaps 2 passes allowed per household? 
 

(43) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Long 
Hanborough, Hanborough 
Park) 

 
Support - I support the proposal because I think it's a clever way of achieving the desired outcome, with minimal 

inconvenience to residents and without incurring the expense and administrative hassle of a resident permit scheme. 
 
I notice the exact same restriction is already present in the short side road off the A4095 nearer the station entrance. 
However, this is also a good reminder of the need for enforcement. A car that park in the same spot on that side road 
throughout the working day, typically every day, and has done so for years in spite of the sign right above it. I have a 
feeling the driver works at the adjacent MINI garage. 

(44) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Witney, Main 
Road) 

Support - I live in the affected area and station parking is a constant nuisance. At present the parking restrictions in 

the service road are not enforced and therefore ineffective. There is regular day parking. 

 

P
age 234



   

   
   
   

Divisions affected: Banbury Ruscote   

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAYS MANAGEMENT – 23 
FEBRUARY 2023 

 
BANBURY: BRETCH HILL AREA - PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMIT 

& WAITING RESTRICTIONS 
 

Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 

approve as advertised the following: 
 

a) A 20mph speed limit on Bailey Road, Bennett Drive, Fivash Close, Davies 

Road, George Parish Road, Hall Close, Harris Close, Longley Crescent, 
Tony Humphries Road, Upton Close and Wilson Road. 

b) ‘No waiting at any time’ parking restrictions (double yellow lines) at Wilson 
Road & Longley Crescent. 

 

 

Executive summary 
 

2. In accordance with approved policy that all roads within new residential 
developments in the county will have a 20mph speed limit order, a consultation 

was carried out on a proposed 20mph speed limit on the roads as shown in 
Annex 1 within a development to the west of the existing Bretch Hill residential 

area in Banbury.  Additionally in order to avoid the potential obstruction and 
road safety hazards arising from parking, the proposals also include no waiting 
at any time restrictions on Wilson and Longley Crescent as shown in Annex 2. 

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation on the proposals and their implementation if approved 
has been provided by the developers.  
 

 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

 

Page 235

Agenda Item 11



            

     
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help facilitate the safe movement of pedestrians, cyclists 

and motor traffic within the new areas of the residential estate. 
 
 

Formal consultation  
 

6. The Formal consultation was carried out between 5 January to 3 February 
2023. A notice was published in the Banbury Guardian newspaper, and an 
email sent to statutory consultees, including Thames Valley Police, the Fire & 

Rescue Service, Ambulance service, local bus operators, countywide transport, 
access & disabled peoples user groups, Cherwell District Council, Banbury 

Town Council  and the local County Councillor representing the Banbury 
Ruscote division. Additionally, letters were sent directly to approximately 165 
adjacent premises in the immediate vicinity. 

 
7. 32 responses were received during the formal consultation period, and these 

are summarised in the table below:  
 

Proposal Support Object Concerns 
No objection 
or opinion 

Total 

‘No Waiting at Ant Time’ 
restrictions (DYLs) 

9 (28%) 15 (47%) 3 (9%) 5 (16%) 32 

20mph speed limit 18 (56%) 3 (9%) 4 (13%) 7 (22%) 32 

 
8. The responses are shown at Annex 2, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 

 

Officer response to objections/concerns  
 
9. Thames Valley Police expressed no objection to the parking restrictions but did 

raise concerns about the 20mph speed limit. Reiterating their stance that 

20mph speed limits should be self-enforcing, and that speed limits should be 
considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and 

improve road safety. They also suggested that changes to the highway 
(narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the road) may be 
required to encourage lower speeds in addition 

 
10. Banbury Town Council, Cherwell District Council and Stagecoach Bus 

Company all responded expressing no objection to either proposal. 
 

11. The local member supports both proposals.  

 
12. The remaining responses were all from members of the public, almost all of 

whom were residents of the roads the proposals relate to. 
 

13.  The proposed 20mph speed limit received widespread support. 

Page 236



            

     
 

 

14. However, for the waiting restrictions the balance of opinion within the responses 
was not supportive, with fifteen objections and three concerns, compared to 

eight responses in support. 
 

15. The objections and concerns focussed on the limited parking available for 

residents and visitors and the inconvenience caused both to those living 
adjacent to the proposals and also those living in neighbouring roads where 

parking may be displaced to.  
 

16. Noting the above, while it is accepted that there is a risk of some displacement, 

the current parking is judged to be obstructive, and it is recommended that the 
waiting restrictions are approved but monitored to assess their impact. In the 

longer term a residents permit parking scheme might be appropriate to more 
effectively  and equitably manage parking provision in  this area. 

 

 
Bill Cotton 

Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1 & 2 Consultation Plans  

 Annex 3: Consultation responses  
  
  

  
Contact Officers:  Chloe Kirby  07919 175889   

     
 
 

February 2023  
  

Page 237



            

     
 

  

ANNEX 1

Page 238



            

     
 

  

ANNEX 2

Page 239



          
  

ANNEX 3 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
DYL – No objection 
20mph – Concerns 

 
Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and acknowledge that 
20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be desirable for 
communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage greater 
diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 

P
age 240



                 
 

• existing traffic speeds 
• road environment 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Banbury Town Council 

 
DYL – No objection 
20mph – No objection 

 
This was considered by the Council’ s Planning Committee on 1st February at which meeting they  resolved to raise 
no objections to the proposal.  
 

(3) Head of Strategic 
Development & the Built 
Environment, 
(Stagecoach Bus 
Company) 

 
DYL – No objection 
20mph – No objection 

 
This relates to a new development entirely off line of any existing or proposed bus route. Thus in line with our general 
practice, I am again happy to confirm that Stagecoach has no comments or observations to make and offers no 
objection to these proposals. 
 

(4) Local County Cllr, 
(Banbury Ruscote 
division) 

 
DYL – Support 
20mph – Support 

 

P
age 241



                 
 

As local member for Banbury Ruscote on Oxfordshire County Council I support proposals for implementation of new 
20 mph speed limits . With reference to Bloor homes housing development roads west of Bretch Hill (Edinburgh way, 
Dover Avenue). 
 
Includes waiting restrictions at Wilson road and Langley Crescent allowing for due process of public construction. 
 

(5) Cherwell District 
Council 

 
DYL – No objection 
20mph – No objection 

 
Upon review of the information forming part of the consultation, we confirm that Cherwell District Council has no 
objections and no observations to make with regard to the above. 
 

(6) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Banbury) 

 
DYL - Object     

The Banbury Traffic Advisory Committee was told at the last meeting that it would be for the Town Council to indicate 
the areas where 20 mph restrictions would be sought.  So far as can be established no such request has been 
authorised by the Town Council. 
 
In any event, the area proposed is relative recent in construction,  so is the County Council now saying that its own 
highway standards are now inadequate for current usage ? Visual inspection reveals that the highways are barely 
adequate for normal day -to-day use by refuse collection vehicles and removal  /delivery vans - goodness knows what 
will happen is a serious emergency occurs because fire appliances and ambulances will nor have a clear way to the 
event.     
 
20mph - Object     

The relatively new roads are already inadequate for normal use and it is unlikely that speeds in excess of 20 mph are 
possible given the incidence of on-street parking and visits by delivery / refuse vehicles 
 

(7) Rather not say, 
(Banbury, Wilson Way) 

 
DYL - Object     

Because there are no visitors parking areas for Longley Crescent and Wilson way area and putting parking restrictions 
there will be unfair for residents      
 
20mph - Object     

P
age 242



                 
 

It a bad idea for home owners who can’t have visitors with cars to visit them due to lack of parking spaces for visitors  

(8) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Witney, Oxford 
Hill) 

 
DYL - Object    There is no need for a parking restriction. What about visitors to neighbouring houses or are we 

having a Council that does not believe in social needs but preaches socially elsewhere!?     
 
20mph - Object     

It is undemocratic, unethical, divisive and disrespectful for communities of whom can see no need to change the 
speed limits. Why is that? Because there is no such report advising that the road through the Villages, Cities or Towns 
for example is at 80% risk of death or serious injury if the speed limit is not changed. This consultation if anybody 
wants to call it that (clearly not) is going to undoubtedly ignore public opinion like Witneys because the Councillors 
cannot kick the habit, they appear to bitterly hate anybody that has to do an essential journey in a car. There are other 
ethical and more sensible approaches to cycle and walk more. For example increasing public path space to signal 
where a pedestrian and cyclist can have their own lane including encouragement notices on local notice boards. 
 
20mph limits are as depressing as the distress of the dystopian 20 mph signs from a nearby Town that are as 
comparable as Russian Z symbols you see in a Russian street every 100 yards where it made a walk locally at home 
a utterly bitter and depressing experience knowing that these 20mph signage changes are a political decision and not 
a road safety decision. A political decision that has no public support and has built residential resistance (civilly 
making the points why they should be changed back are taking place as I write this). I don't take it lightly to compare 
the Russian Z symbol to a 20mph sign but if the reader googles a Russian City or Town and what it looks like with the 
Z symbol in that county it is as comparable as the 20mph sign easily shown every 100 yards or less. It is regretful but 
the honest truth especially as these 20mph signs are within even dead end streets that have no through roads as well 
making it even more frustrating.   
 
I hope many residents and within Oxfordshire will come with me to make a stand and that is to say no. No to such 
depressing road signs and money wasted taking away our future generations common sense, personal responsibility 
and the basic human right to choose how we cycle, walk and drive to places. We will be ashamed of what horrid path 
this Council has chosen, the decision to ignore public opinion and rule within minuit management by edict with no 
supportive evidence of this change and one that has no loyal compliance even after that. This will undoubtedly 
depress many residents psychologically seeing how needless this was, how robbed their community is of having 
common sense and a sense of personal responsibility as per the Highway code and is depressing for passionate 
motorists that can see that even the study Belfast University did to show that slower speeds don't reduce road 
incidents either, link here if the individual or senior management are interested in reading. Some will sadly ignore this 

P
age 243



                 
 

objection to the proposal but some I hope will take back these genuine points to senior bosses of whom are trying to 
fight against this nonsenical anti-car movement. www.transportxtra.com/publications/local-transport-
today/news/72511/university-study-questions-impact-of-20mph-limits-in-belfast-city-centre 
 
Lets not forget either that this is the same County Council of whose senior official said to the Sunday Times, "Traffic 
Filters in Oxford is going to happen definitely" implying the scheme would go ahead whether public opinion opposed or 
unopposed leading me to my point that this is the same with the speed limit changes. This Council and their staff 
should ask this, is it worth continueing this ruinous scheme that will create further political distrust toward local 
authorities. Is it worth creating distress to residents living there to see these signs every 100 yards as comparable as 
propaganda. Future generations will be unfortunately robbed of sensible common sense and will see this for what it is. 
The Highway Code officials do not see a need to amend speed limits so cannot understand this political movement 
against the motorist. Why have we got a Council that has been voted in to attack the Motorist? If this is because of a 
personal experience then we are living in very dangerous territory democratically.  
 
Is this healthy for a car and the pedestrian to remain at 20mph? No because it does not matter if your driving 20mph 
or 30mph the emissions remain the same, the air does not get any cleaner in fact because you are slowing down 
traffic you are simply making the air worse. At 30mph emission fumes retreat a lot quickly especially on a straight road 
where somebody does not need to drive slower especially when there is no obstacle to hit. Even Councillors know that 
despite pushing for this 20mph crusade (apparently prioritising signage instead of road surfacing improvements from 
what I been advised within the industry). Road accidents will not be eradicated so the ideology thinking we will 
eradicate road incidents/fatalities I am afraid are kidding themselves. 
 
I do not oppose 20mph signs by a School, Town Square or Retirement Community within the road of a settlement but 
I am deeply against a blanket speed restriction across a Town, City or Village when the public opinion is ignored for 
political purposes. This creates mistrust in local politics where even sensible people will be asking like they did in other 
national scandals "Why should the public listening to their Council or on the News do things when people working 
within their Council are not prepared to listen to their Communities?" 
 

(9) Local resident/Member 
of public, (Banbury, 
Wilson Road) 

 
DYL – Object 
20mph – No opinion 
 

Today, there is very little parking available on the new estate, and the few visitor spaces are frequently full and also a 
significant distance from my property. Furthermore, some of my relatives are registered disabled and therefore cannot 

P
age 244



                 
 

walk the distance from the allocated visitor parking located down the hill on Bailey road (this parking is intended for 
visitors of residents in Phase 2 - Bailey Road). 
 
As such, the proposed parking restrictions would pose a significant impact on myself and family, prohibiting visitors to 
my home and did not form part of the original plan/contract I signed when purchasing the house. These restrictions 
would have been prohibitive to me purchasing this property. 
 
I would recommend you come and visit the site yourself, as I know you will immediately understand my concerns and 
the challenges this will present. 
 
I presume these restrictions are to accommodate an additional 250 homes in ‘phase 4’, which is still undergoing 
planning approval, and something which was not advised when I purchased the property. Again, the roads  here are 
not suitable for an additional circa 500 vehicles and an additional access road must be installed. 

(10) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, Longley 
Crescent) 

 
DYL - Object     

I completely object to this proposal for the following reasons; 
1) with this restriction there would be insufficient visitor parking and lay bys, cars will park blocking other roads. 
2) the road was poorly planned - it is not a wide enough road to hold volume of traffic for another phase- alternative 
access should be planned. An additional access road would spread the additional traffic throughout the bretch hill 
area. 
3) implementation- the bretch hill estate has several parking restrictions (double yellow lines) around Bradley arcade 
and Prescott avenue which are ignored and not enforced leading to safety concerns. Suggestion would be to consider 
alternative options (e.g. Road calming) that require little enforcement. 
 
Are Bloor homes trying to get permission early to take advantage of less residents in the estate (potential objections) 
and as a way of reducing necessary investment in local infrastructure?     
 
20mph - Support     
I support the 20mph limit  
 

(11) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, Wilson 
Road) 

 
DYL - Object     

I’m not getting a fine for parking outside my own house. That’s if anyone will come round and check. Also you haven’t 
put any double yellow lines on the first 2 phases so why does phase 3 need them? The site entrance 
Isn’t on Wilson Road so the vehicles shouldn’t be coming down the road. It’s a complete waste of money.      

P
age 245



                 
 

 
20mph - Support     

safety is important for anyone who is walking around this area. 
 

(12) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, Wilson 
Road) 

 
DYL - Object     
I wish to object to proposed parking restrictions, as I can foresee no significant benefit from the proposed change. 
There are no parking spaces for visitors/local residents and surely private driveways won't accommodate such number 
of vehicles i.e. in case of family visit.     
 
20mph - Support     

20 mph speed limit in Residential Area is good for safety reasons 
 

(13) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, Wilson 
Road) 

 
DYL - Object     

The double yellow lines will be directly outside my brother and sister in laws home, meaning the only way to visit them 
would be parking all the way down the round in the parking bays, which are always full with residents parking.      
 
20mph - Support     

We are aware that a lot of the new homes house children, so a 20mph speed limit will help keep them safe.  

(14) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, Longley 
Crescent) 

 
DYL - Object     

20MPH speed limit I am completely in support of. 
Double yellow lines between the two junctions of Longley Crescent - I completely object to this proposal for the 
following reasons; 
1) with this restriction there would be insufficient visitor parking (no lay-bys)  this would move potential issues to other 
areas of the estate. 
2) the road was poorly planned - it is not a wide enough road to hold volume of traffic for another phase- alternative 
access should be planned. An additional access road would spread the additional traffic throughout the bretch hill 
area. 
3) implementation- the bretch hill estate has several parking restrictions (double yellow lines) around Bradley arcade 
and Prescott avenue which are ignored and not enforced leading to safety concerns. Suggestion would be to consider 
alternative options (e.g. Road calming) that require little enforcement. 
 

P
age 246



                 
 

Are Bloor homes trying to get permission early to take advantage of less residents in the estate (potential objections) 
and as a way of reducing necessary investment in local infrastructure?     
 
20mph - Support     

20mph limit a good idea for safety reasons  
 

(15) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, Wilson 
Road) 

 
DYL - Object     

I purchased a home in Wilson Road which is a new build, and Friday I received notice about the proposed parking 
prohibitions on Wilson Road. 
 
I would like to object to the action. Today, there is very little parking available on the new estate, and the few visitor 
spaces are frequently full and also a significant distance from my property. Furthermore, some of my relatives are 
registered disabled and therefore cannot walk the distance from the allocated visitor parking located down the hill on 
Bailey road (this parking is intended for visitors of residents in Phase 2 - Bailey Road). 
 
As such, the proposed parking restrictions would pose a significant impact on myself and family, prohibiting visitors to 
my home and did not form part of the original plan/contract I signed when purchasing the house. These restrictions 
would have been prohibitive to me purchasing this property. 
 
I would recommend you come and visit the site yourself, as I know you will immediately understand my concerns and 
the challenges this will present. 
 
I presume these restrictions are to accommodate an additional 250 homes in ‘phase 4’, which is still undergoing 
planning approval, and something which was not advised when I purchased the property. Again, the roads here are 
not suitable for an additional circa 500 vehicles and an additional access road must be installed. 
 
I would welcome the opportunity to discuss further should you have any comments or questions. 
     
20mph - Support     

Safer roads for all 
 

(16) Local 
resident/Member of 

 
DYL - Object     

P
age 247



                 
 

public, (Banbury, Wilson 
Road) 

Double yellow lines would have a huge impact on visitors car parking and delivery drivers,, I visit my elderly parents 
and daughter that has a young family and there would be no parking to put my car, totally ridiculous and unnecessary      
 
20mph - Support     

Totally understand and agree, families should feel safe with children playing outside and 20 mile an hour is what all 
built up areas should be  
 

(17) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, Wilson 
Road) 

 
DYL - Object     

No parking for guest to come to my house.  
I do not want double yellow lines out side my home. This was not put in place when I brought the house.  
Phase 1 + 2 do not have double yellow lines.  
The main site entrance should not be through a housing estate.      
 
20mph - Support     

It slows down traffics and safety should come first. 
 

(18) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Kineton, St 
Peter’s Road) 

 
DYL - Object     

I object to this as it would As there is nowhere to park so I think double yellow lines are a ridiculous idea. Also if you 
have cars parked on the road it also stops silly drivers speeding and driving recklessly      
 
20mph - Support     

Great idea and definitely needed 
 

(19) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, Longley 
Crescent ) 

 
DYL - Object     

I am concerned that with the new parking restrictions, this will force visitors of those residents or those with additional 
cars to park on to adjoining streets. I live on a part of Longley Crescent where there will be no restrictions and I 
suspect people will start parking outside my home. It can already be difficult to access my narrow driveway, so the 
possibility of added vehicles parking on the road is something I won’t support.      
 
20mph - No opinion     

The main roads along Tony Humphries Road and Bailey Road are constantly congested with cars and with the large 
speed bumps, it’s not really possible to go over 20/25 mph anyway  

P
age 248



                 
 

 

(20) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, Longley 
Crescent ) 

 
DYL - Object     

Regarding putting yellow lines in a RESIDENTIAL area, all you will be doing is pushing visiting and parking cars into 
parts of the estate that don’t have them, causing further congestion and blocking other roads. This is just  just moving 
the problem around instead of solving the cause. I live on Longley crescent, the visitors that wouldn’t be able to park 
outside Wilson road will now just park down Longley crescent, stopping any visitors we may have from parking, so 
they’d have to go park in other parts of the estate, whilst asap causing potential blockages for any and all emergency 
services trying to get past. I have no issue with the speed limit but putting double yellow lines in a residential area isn’t 
the best idea.      
 
20mph - No opinion     
No comments. 
 

(21) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, Bailey 
Road) 

 
DYL - Concerns     

There is not enough visitors spaces around these roads and this would lead to residents parking in the  visitors spaces 
in other areas of the development and therefore defeating the purpose of them being for visitors     
 
20mph - Concerns     

I have concerns about any signage, I do not not want it it to be near my house as we often get vandalised. I would be 
happy as long as the signage remained right and the beginning of the development entrance  
 

(22) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, Fivash 
Close) 

 
DYL - Concerns     

Agree to the objective     
 
20mph - Concerns     

Cars do speed by the Banbury Rise Estate especially taking kids to school and those who park on the pavements not 
using their own driveways 
 

P
age 249



                 
 

(23) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, George 
Parish Road) 

 
DYL - Concerns     

Whilst it's clear that there are some major issues with the parking and trunk road situation, any parking restrictions 
should only be done where they do not have a significant impact on current residents. For example a new 
development where residents have at least two allocated spaces, should not be built at the expense of other local 
residents being forced to park a long way from their homes, in particular where they are elderly or vulnerable.     
 
20mph - Support     
There should be no complaints for a proposal which will no doubt improve safety for pedestrians and cyclists in a busy 
residential area. 
 

(24) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, Bennett 
Drive) 

 
DYL - No opinion     
I think the residents will be unhappy if parking is not available on their side. Parked cars should be on the pavement 
side to protect pedestrians      
 
20mph - Concerns     

The bends in the banbury rise deveopment need to be changed to t junctions the speed even at 20 wouldnt help. They 
are dangerous and mosr do not feel 2 cars can pass it. It is an accident waiting to happen. If you drop to 20 people will 
still use the roads at speed. Those who do 20 I have seen a lot of them pay attention to their surroundings more 
because they are going much slower and not paying attention to the roads. I feel 20mp should be imposed certain 
times a day with flashing lights most people forget roads are now 20 because of being on auto pilot.  

(25) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, Bailey 
Road) 

 
DYL - Support     

Some of the current parking is dangerous and would restrict emergency services responses     
 
20mph - Support     

On the section that is already set to 20mph some cars are still doing 30-40 over the speed bumps and it is dangerous 
 

(26) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, Bailey 
Road) 

 
DYL - Support     

The speed bumps that were put in do not slow people down they still speed through the estate, the 20mph speed limit 
would hopefully improve this. Also the double yellow parking will stop people parking on the corner coming on to 
Wilson road, parking there is a risk for drivers coming round the corner as it is already a blind corner      
 

P
age 250



                 
 

20mph - Support     
People constantly speed in the estate, the speed bumps do not help 
 

(27) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, George 
Parish Road) 

 
DYL - Support     

It’s chaos down there     
 
20mph - Support     

People speed through residential areas as it is I mar make them think more 
 

(28) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, George 
Parish Road) 

 
DYL - Support     

Because parking on roads is a nightmare and so is speeding. REALLY wish this was going to be for whole 
development not just the roads mentioned. I guess it will make parking on the rest of the development worse      
 
20mph - Support     

People drive too fast.  
 

(29) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, Fivash 
Close) 

 
DYL - Support     

I am a resident at Bretch Hill and these proposals will benefit my family and our friends who have called Banbury our 
home.     
 
20mph - Support     
I am a resident 
 

(30) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, Longley 
Crescent) 

 
DYL - Support     
Blocking traffic because of on road parking      
 
20mph - Support     

Avoid over speeding  
 

P
age 251



                 
 

(31) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, Bennett 
Drive) 

 
DYL - Support     

It is safer for residents crossing the street and clears the traffic.     
 
20mph - Support     

lt is safer for residents, especially kids and elderly. 
 

(32) Local 
resident/Member of 
public, (Banbury, Longley 
Crescent) 

 
DYL - Support     

Supporting as at the moment there is a lot of on road parking being utilised throughout the estate when the roads are 
only narrow. For example, we have trouble exiting our driveway because people are parked on the road.  
I would support this for more areas in the estate     
 
20mph - No opinion     

No comments. 
 

 

P
age 252



   

   
   
   

Divisions affected: Abingdon East; Abingdon North; Abingdon South 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 FEBRUARY 2023 

 
ABINGDON: PROPOSED 20MPH & 30MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the proposed introduction of 20mph and 30mph speed limits in 

Abingdon as advertised.  
 
 

Executive summary 

 

2. This report presents responses received to a statutory consultation on the 
proposed introduction of 20mph and 30mph speed limits in Abingdon as shown 
in Annex 1.   

 
3. Responses were originally presented to the Cabinet Member for Highway 

Management on 17 November 2022 but following concerns that the 
recommendations – influenced by strong bus operator petitions – did not fully 
reflect either the County Council policy on 20mph speed limits or the proposals 

as advertised. A revised report is therefore now submitted, with the proposals 
as advertised remaining the same. 

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

4. Funding for consultation on the proposals has been provided by the County 

Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 
 
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

5. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 
 

 

Sustainability Implications 
 

6. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within Abingdon by 

making them safer and more attractive. 
 

Page 253

Agenda Item 12



            

     
 

 

Formal consultation  
 

7. Formal consultation was carried out between 31 August and 30 September 
2022. A notice was published in the Oxfordshire Herald Series & Oxford Times 
newspapers, and an email sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, 

including Thames Valley Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, 
Bus operators, countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, 

Vale of White Horse District Council, the local District Cllrs, Abingdon Town 
Council, Drayton, Radley, Culham, and St Helen Without parish councils, and 
the local County Councillors representing the Abingdon South, Abingdon North, 

Abingdon East, Sutton Courtenay & Marcham, and the Berinsfield & Garsington 
divisions.  
 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
8. The five statutory consultee responses are outlined in Annex 2. The Oxford 

Bus Company (OBC) made the only objection citing the need for buses to make 

progress where they can, in order to be a viable and attractive alternative to 
private cars and help to achieve the council's stated objectives to remove 1-in-
4 car journeys. OBC claim the proposals will probably lead to a material 

reduction in bus services. Their detailed response covers all strategic routes 
including those proposals they support. Stagecoach no longer serve Abingdon 

and limit their formal response to express concerns closely aligning with those 
of OBC. They add that dialogue with operators is now well underway at senior 
level in OCC and understand conversation with OBC regarding Abingdon is 

progressing positively. OCC Public Transport Development Team’s viewpoint 
again aligns closely with that of the bus operators.  

 
9. Thames Valley Police have re-iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and 

practice regarding 20mph speed limits and again wish their response to be 

considered as ‘having concerns’ rather than an objection. Abingdon Town 
Council support the proposals in their entirety. 

 
Other Responses: 

 

10. 278 responses (including the Oxford Bus Company response) were received 
via the online consultation survey during the course of the formal consultation 

are summarised in the table below: 
 

Proposal Object Concerns Support No opinion/ 
objection 

Total 

20mph speed 

limit 

109 

(39%) 

40 

(14%) 

127 

(46%) 

2 

(1%) 

278 

‘Ring Road’ 

30mph 

128 

(46%) 

27 

(10%) 

110 

(39.5%) 

13 

(4.5%) 

278 

 

11. The majority of these were mainly from members of the public but did include 
those from: four businesses, three local representatives, and five groups 

Page 254



            

     
 

/organisations. While one business objected to both 20mph and 30mph 

proposals the other ones supported both; the three local representatives 
supported all proposals. Of the organisations, three supported the 20mph 

proposals but two expressed concerns; for the 30 mph proposals, two stated 
support while two expressed concerns and one objected. In summary: 

 

 84 respondents objected to both aspects, 

 91 supported both, 

 7 expressed concerns over both, 

 27 supported the 20mph aspect, but not the 30mph proposals, and 

 11 supported the 30mph, but not the 20mph proposals. 
 

12. The table below provides a synopsis of the reasons for the objections 
expressed by Members of the Public, and the corresponding number of 
responses which mentioned them: 

 

Reason 20 mph 
30 mph 
(Peripheral Roads) 

Peripheral road designed for higher speeds to 
allow progress and encourage avoidance of 
town centre 

n/a 52 

Unnecessary / Waste of money / Will not work  49 16 

Will reduce access / business efficiency / Longer 

journey times / Will deter visitors 
25 4 

Increased congestion and delays 19 8 

Accident Reduction - no effect or not a problem 19 6 

Increased emissions 16 7 

Will not be enforced 15  

Increases hazard from driver frustration / 
looking at speedometer 

17 6 

Place only where needed i.e. outside schools (5) 
and only residential roads (4) 

13 1 

Anti-Car 4 2 

Other 20 mph Limit Objections:  

30 easier to drive (1), Pedestrian complacency 
(1), Traffic calming is preferable (1), Do not 

compromise bus services (1), Forces people 
onto bikes or buses (1), Ban all vehicles from 

town centre instead (1) 

6  

 

13. Those who responded online, were also asked whether if the 20mph speed limit 
proposals were implemented, would it likely influence a change to their mode 

of travel in the area, the results of which are shown below: 
 

Page 255



            

     
 

Travel Change Number 

Yes – walk/wheel more 27 (10%) 

Yes - cycle more 63 (23%) 

Yes – scoot more 1 (0.5%) 

No 165 (59%) 

Other 22 (8%) 

 

14. Additionally, three emails were received – with two raising concerns, and one 
supporting. 
 

15. The responses are shown in Annex 3, and copies of the original responses are 

available for inspection by County Councillors.  

 
 

Response to objections and other comments 
 

16. Officers acknowledge the concerns raised in the objections but note a close 

majority support for the 20mph limits remains from the public, although they do 
express slightly more objections than support for the 30mph proposals. The 
Town Council strongly support all proposals and the Police do not object.   

 
17. The main purpose of the scheme is to encourage greater use of active travel 

by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.  The aim of reducing speed 
limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make speeding socially unacceptable 
and make more environmentally friendly modes of travel such as walking and 

cycling more attractive – and also reduce the Counties carbon footprint. This 
forms part of a countywide programme of works that seeks to deliver ‘a safer 

place with a safer pace’. 
 

18. The authority considers objections along the lines of it being unjustified, anti-

car, a waste of money, not enforceable or pointless to not warrant amendments 
to a proposal. As such the authority has not addressed any specific comments 

made of this nature in this report. 
 
19. The major bus operator raises the sole statutory consultee objection which 

relates to proposed 20mph limits on several radial routes with mirrored strong 
concerns by another operator who does not serve Abingdon. Our Public 

Transport Development Team share these concerns. These responses clearly 
outline the potential for adverse consequences from reducing some radial route 
limits. However, County Council policy is clear in that 20mph limits should be 

set if the community as a whole seek them. In addition to the bodies who 
support the proposals as outlined below, the majority of the public respondents 

also do so. 
 

Page 256



            

     
 

20. Abingdon Town Council have been firm in their resolve for “a blanket 20mph 

limit across Abingdon and a 30mph limit on the peripheral roads”. Both Local 
Members also support the proposals. Cyclox and Sustrans petitioned strongly 

for universal 20mph speed limits and when the proposals were initially 
considered last November speakers from each stressed the need for a 20mph 
limit on all radial routes and Ock Street. The nature of accidents recently 

recorded in Ock Street suggests the proposals would also make vulnerable 
users safer and would especially complement the County Local Cycling and 

Walking Improvement Plan (LCWIP) which is to fund cycling improvements on 
Drayton Road and Ock Street.   
 

21. The Abingdon LCWIP has been developed with the expectation that 20mph 
speed limits will be rolled out in Abingdon soon after its adoption. This 

expectation has shaped some of the proposals made in the LCWIP. The 
proposed speed limit reductions are expected to improve road safety (including 
perceived safety – thereby encouraging modal shift to walking and cycling) for 

all road users – especially for people walking and cycling – and would support 
the provision of further improvements for walking and cycling, by facilitating the 

use of some different types of infrastructure (e.g., the use of a zebra or parallel 
crossing instead of a signalised crossing, which may be less appropriate in a 
higher-speed environment). 

 
22. It is highly desirable to ensure that the peripheral road, as a more appropriate 

route for through traffic, retains a higher speed limit than the alternative routes 

through the town itself to deter drivers from choosing the more direct internal 
routes which would adversely affect walking and cycling conditions in Abingdon. 

 
23. In terms of maximising understanding of and compliance with the new 20mph 

speed limits, it is likely to be beneficial to limit the number of exceptions to the 

20mph speed limit within the peripheral road. 
 

24. It is recommended the proposals be implemented as advertised. 
 
 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan  
 Annex 2: Officer comments in response to statutory 

consultees   
Annex 3: Consultation responses 

  
  
  

  
Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 

    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 
 
February 2023 

Page 257



          
  

  

ANNEX 1

P
age 258



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

Ref Respondent Statutory Consultee View Officer Response 

1 

Oxford Bus 
Company  

(Interim Managing 
Director) 
 

Object 

Outline individual strategic routes, affirming some proposals but objecting to others. 
The roads involved constitute movement corridors where frequent and planned 
mixing between traffic and vulnerable road users does not happen to a level 
justifying the introduction of the 20mph limit; negative impact on bus journey times 
that would result.  
Buses need to make progress where they can, in order to be a viable and attractive 
alternative to private cars and to attract patronage in order to help to achieve the 
council's stated objectives to remove 1 in 4 car journeys. Proposals will be highly 
likely to lead to a material reduction in bus services in Abingdon. 

We acknowledge bus operator 
concerns and suggest amending 
proposals to accommodate these 
concerns. It would provide 
opportunity to monitor, compare, 
and contrast the effect on bus 
operations with those in Witney 
where similar concerns were 
expressed but 20 mph limits were 
introduced on all major routes. 

2 

Stagecoach Bus 
Company 

(Head of Strategic 
Development)  

Concerns 

Stagecoach ceased operating in this area in January 2022 so limit their formal 
response to say that they consider the manner in which the 20mph policy is applied 
in and around larger settlements is especially crucial for the ongoing sustainability 
of bus services in and through these localities. Dialogue with bus companies is now 
well underway at senior level in the Council and understand conversation between 
20 Team and OBC regarding Abingdon, is progressing positively.  

 
See row 1 above 

3 

Thames Valley 
Police 

(Traffic 
Management 
Officer) 

Concerns 

TVP wish their response to be logged as ‘having concerns’. Police view remains 
that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing and issue a 
reminder that Fixed Safety Cameras within the 20 limit can no longer function.   

 
Noted 

4 

Public Transport  
Development 
Team 
(Principal 
Transport Planner) 

Viewpoint 

Seek acknowledgement of potential negative impact of this scheme on buses which 
could lead to lower service levels on key bus routes in Abingdon, going against 
council policy to promote buses as an attractive mode of transport. Reply considers 
each strategic route in turn and approves some routes. 

 
See row 1 above 

5 

Abingdon Town 
Council 

(Town Clerk) 

Support Noted 

 

P
age 259



                 
 

ANNEX 3 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 
acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on 
threat of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. 
There should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set 
too low as this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional 
resources available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be 
discouraged. Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - 
GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce 
the burden of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 
• road environment 
 

P
age 260



                 
 

However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 
I would like the following noted: 
 
All Fixed Safety Cameras within the 20 limit  can no longer function. This point was raised at early Strategy Group 
meetings when it was agreed this would not happen.  
 
The County removed itself from National Guidance of Setting Speeds Limits in 20s. This did not apply to any other 
speed limit change, and clearly Guidance is now being ignored. 
 

(2) Abingdon Town 
Council 

 
Support – At a meeting of Abingdon Town Council which took place on 29 September 2022 the council strongly 

supported the proposals set out in the consultation. 
 
The Town Council has since September 2019 had a policy that 20mph zones should be introduced in Abingdon.  
The adoption of the new policy in October 2021 by Oxfordshire  
County Council as highway authority provided a mechanism for this, backed by funding.  The council has very 
carefully considered appropriate speed limits in the town; in  
November 2021, the council established a working group to consider the introduction of 20mph and 30 mph speed 
limits in Abingdon.   
 
The working group included members of the wider community.  The group considered that lower speed limits in 
Abingdon would help address the climate change emergency by 
reducing carbon emissions and encouraging people to use other modes of transport i.e. walking and cycling. Walking 
and cycling would become safer because of the lower  

P
age 261



                 
 

speed limits.  The evidence suggests that with vehicles travelling at 40mph there is a 90% fatality rate for 
pedestrians; this reduces to 50% at 30mph and 10% at 20mph.  The  
lower speed limits will reduce accidents by increasing reactions times for road users whilst reducing the impact of 
accidents. These factors outweigh the inconvenience which  
this in motorised vehicles might feel from slightly longer journey times within the town. 
 
Following the report of the working group and its consideration by the Town Infrastructure Committee, the matter was 
considered by the full Council at its meeting of 26 January 2022.  It was resolved Oxfordshire County Council should 
be requested to introduce “a blanket 20mph limit across Abingdon and a 30mph limit on the peripheral roads – 
Audlett Drive, Twelve Acre Drive, Dunmore Road, Copenhagen Drive and Colwell Drive.” 
 
The council is pleased to support the progressive policy of the county council in taking forward the policy and 
allowing parish councils and their communities to have their say.  Abingdon Town Council supports this policy and 
the proposals for Abingdon and has set aside a budget of £15,000 to meet the costs of speed indicator devices. 
 
Thank you for consulting with the town council on this matter. 
 

(3) Oxford Bus Company 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Oxford Bus Company and Thames Travel (collectively the Go-Ahead companies in Oxfordshire) would like to 
register object to these proposals. 
We are supportive of the following points in the proposal: 
Proposed introduction of 20mph limits on Peachcroft Road and residential roads on Peachcroft and Dunmore estates 
Proposed introduction of 30mph limits on Dunmore Road, Audlett Drive, Copenhagen Drive and Colwell Drive 
Proposed introduction of 20mph limits in central Abingdon around the Vineyard, Stratton Way, Stert Street, High 
Street and Ock Street between the junctions of Bath Street and Stratton Way 
Proposed introduction of 20mph limits in Caldecott Road, Saxton Road and residential roads in Caldecott estate 
Proposed introduction of 20mph limit on Oxford Road between Tesco Express at 15 Oxford Road and roundabout 
with Radley Road. 
However,  we cannot support and wish to object to the following proposals: 
Proposed introduction of 20mph limit on Oxford Road between Tesco Express at 15 Oxford Road and Peachcroft 
Roundabout. This section of road is a major movement corridor with 6 buses per hour for large parts of the week, 
with regular bus services late into evenings and on Sundays. 
Proposed introduction of 20mph limit on Ock Street between Stratton Way and Marcham Road. Again this is a major 
movement corridor carrying multiple bus services including service X2 (3bph), X1 (2bph), 41 (1bph), 45 (1bph) as 

P
age 262



                 
 

well as buses from other operators. This corridor has very wide road widths and these should be a focus for bus 
priority measures rather than introduction of unnecessarily low speed limits to slow buses down. 
Wootton Road between Dunmore Road and Stratton Way. Again this is a major movement corridor carrying bus 
services X1 (2bph), 33 (1bph) as well as buses from other operators and numerous school / college buses to John 
Mason School and Abingdon College. 
B4017 between Stonehill Lane and Ock Street. This is a major movement corridor between Abingdon and Didcot 
and carries bus route X2 (3bph) as well as numerous school services to Didcot schools. Large sections of this 
corridor have sufficient space to implement bus priority measures, as we have already suggested to the council and 
we believe this should be the focus on this corridor. 
The rationale for our objection is set out in a joint bus operator letter which was sent to Councillor Gant and various 
other officers of the county council on Monday 12th September by ourselves and Stagecoach, the other large bus 
operator in Oxfordshire. Our conjecture would be that each of the examples listed in our points of objection above, 
the roads involved constitute movement corridors where frequent and planned mixing between traffic and vulnerable 
road users does not happen on these corridors to a level which would justify the introduction of the 20mph limit, and 
the deleterious impact on bis journey times that would result from this.  
Buses need to make progress where they can, in order to be a viable and attractive alternative to private cars and to 
attract patronage in order to help to achieve the council's stated objectives to remove 1 in 4 car journeys. Following 
this policy on speed limits will not achieve this and will be highly likely to lead to a material reduction in bus services 
in Abingdon which will have long term negative impacts on a large number of the residents of the town. 
Therefore we urge the council in the strongest possible terms to review and amend these proposals. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

With increasing development in this area, particularly to the North and West of Abingdon the existing 40mph limits 
are no longer appropriate and we agree should be reduced to 30mph 
 
Travel change: Other 

This will lead to a reduction in bus use, particularly for interurban journeys such as Abingdon - Oxford and Abingdon 
- Didcot due to the extended bus journey times that will result. It is likely that this would lead to a reduction in bus 
services, due to the reduced patronage and revenue that would result and this would cause likely further reductions 
in future - a vicious circle. The impact would be to increase car use which is contrary to the council's plans for modal 
shift. 
 

(4) Stagecoach Bus 
Company 

 
Concerns – Stagecoach West has since January 2022 ceased operating buses in this locality. 

 

P
age 263



                 
 

While we are not an operator here, we are naturally extremely interested in the application of the policy in this locality 
inasmuch as this indicates the evolving thinking of the Council in its approach with much more broad implications. 
Were we still to be an operator, we would be making strong representations, along similar lines to the response we 
submitted to the Witney consultation.  
 
We limit our formal response to say that we consider the manner in which the 20mph policy is applied in and around 
larger settlements is especially crucial for the ongoing sustainability of bus services in and through these localities. 
Abingdon is evidently one such locality. 
 
We are apprised that Oxford Bus Company/Thames Travel have already made their own technical representations 
raising similar themes to those we raised for Witney and in accordance with wider issues raised in a joint letter sent 
to the Council on the 20mph policy.  
 
I trust you are aware that dialogue with both bus companies is now well underway at senior level in the Council. We 
are apprised that the 20mph Team has reverted to OBC regarding their representations on Abingdon, and we can 
confirm our understanding that at this writing, the conversation is progressing positively. 
 

(5) County Cllr, (Abingdon 
North division) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Road safety (hundreds of collisions in the past 5 years), reductions in noise pollution, encouraging modal shift and 
making people think about alternatives to driving. Allowing the community to breathe. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Road safety (hundreds of collisions in the past 5 years), reductions in noise pollution, encouraging modal shift and 
making people think about alternatives to driving. Allowing the community to breathe. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(6) County Cllr, (Jericho & 
Osney division) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Slower traffic is safer and more pleasant for all. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - No opinion 
Don't know. 
 

P
age 264



                 
 

Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
 

(7) Local Cllr, (Abingdon, 
Hillview Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

This will be a major improvement - roads will be safer for all our residents (drivers, cyclists and pedestrians). As the 
town grows we need to ensure all these road users can travel safely. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

The ring road is changing in nature - it is now an access road to several new estates, and traffic traveling at 40mph 
will make joining the road much harder now that access roads robin on both sides. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(8) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Dundas Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

There is no evidence to support the suggestion that lowering the speed limit will reduce the number of accidents. 
There are very few accidents across the roads where speed limit reductions are proposed and Government statistics 
show that speeding is a factor in only 7% of road traffic accidents. Distraction and poor driving standards are 
significantly higher causes of accidents. A 'blanket approach' is not the answer and simply makes changes affecting 
a huge number of road users with little to no improvement in the behaviour of a few.  Safe drivers will be forced to 
reduce their speed with no improvement in safety.  Unsafe drivers ignore current speed limits and there is no 
evidence that suggests their driving will be any safer with a lower speed limit.  In effect safe driving at 30MPH or 
40MPH will become a crime. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

There is no evidence to support the suggestion that lowering the speed limit will reduce the number of accidents. 
There are very few accidents across the roads where speed limit reductions are proposed and Government statistics 
show that speeding is a factor in only 7% of road traffic accidents. Distraction and poor driving standards are 
significantly higher causes of accidents. A 'blanket approach' is not the answer and simply makes changes affecting 
a huge number of road users with little to no improvement in the behaviour of a few.  Safe drivers will be forced to 
reduce their speed with no improvement in safety.  Unsafe drivers ignore current speed limits and there is no 
evidence that suggests their driving will be any safer with a lower speed limit.  In effect safe driving at 30MPH or 
40MPH will become a crime. 
 
Travel change: No 

P
age 265



                 
 

 

(9) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Lammas 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Abingdon does not go at this speed 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

Most days you can't get up to 30 anyway 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(10) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Willow Brook) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Abingdon can be a progressive forward looking pleasant market town with a distinguished history.  Lets not be a 
quagmire of nimby old codgers whom nobody in their right mind would go to. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

At commuter times, it is a traffic queue anyway so nothing is gained from speed limits.  At night time and after hours, 
40+ mph in places seems better suited than 30. 
 
Travel change: Other 

I already walk and cycle.  In a 20 zone I'd worry about whether I'll be speeding (quite rarely) on a bicycle.  The 20 
limit would discourage best cycling. 
 

(11) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Sellwood 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I feel that the existing 30mph limit on residential roads does not cause me or my family any issues at present, and 
we live in Abingdon on a road where the proposed reduction in speed limit would be applied. 
Furthermore, the journey time for my work commute (for which I need a car for work-related travel) will increase, 
along with numerous other social/family engagements. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

I think the speed limit on the roads which are not bounded by houses on both sides should not be reduced. I don't 
see this as a safety concern. 

P
age 266



                 
 

The areas which are developed with the new housing developments in North Abingdon should not have decisions 
made until at least 75% of those houses have been filled. At that point only should this be consulted upon, so the 
eventual residents of those houses (who these changes will affect most) have the opportunity to express their 
concerns and feelings. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(12) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Twelve Acre 
Drive) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Existing speed limits are fine, although need to be enforced at their current level. I could see the argument for 
making the road speed 20mph around the schools in the town. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 
I think that by reducing the speed limits on the ring road that pollution will be increased. As it is, I don't feel I can 
comfortably open my windows during the day. I live in a property directly backing on to the ring road and can assure 
you that existing speed limits are largely observed throughout the day. However, in the early hours of the morning 
and at night the road becomes more of a race track. If you can enforce the existing limits at non peak times, then this 
would be adequate. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(13) Member of public, 
(Didcot, Cole Court) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Lower speed limits result in complacent drivers, higher emissions and greater west on vehicles. Environmentally, 
lowering the speed limit to this level does not make sense. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

As per my previous description, lower speeds result in complacent drivers, greater emissions and greater wear on 
vehicles. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(14) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Ock Street) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Traffic is already a huge problem and reducing the speed limit won’t improve that. 

P
age 267



                 
 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

See no benefit in further hampering the motorist. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(15) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, The Hyde) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Whilst there is a case for some 20mph zones  in Abingdon the blanket coverage is totally over the top as usual from 
our county and district councils. Also the blanket reduction of the excuse for a ring road is just another over reaction. 
I have lived in Abingdon for 35 years and everything the council does fails to address the main problem it's a 
medieval road layout and it needs a COMPLETE ring road that stops almost all traffic going through the centre. A 
few thousand pounds on new road signs and road markings is a big copout and not a solution to the problem. In the 
meantime large lorries, tipper trucks and HGV driving school vehicles run through the town centre all day and are a 
greater danger 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

Why call it a ring road it's just access to building development land and cannot in anyway be called a ring road 
especially as it runs one end on to Radley Road 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(16) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Hadland Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The main cause of traffic and by further extent pollution in the Abingdon area is mainly due to the lack of entrances 
and exits to the A34 and other routes out of Abingdon for example the work on the bridge by the Nags head causes 
major traffic in the morning. This won't be remedied by lowering the speed limit of the roads as it has no affect on the 
amount of people who will be using the road at times of high traffic. I think by adding in a slip road to the A34 by 
lodge hill garage and adding in more routes as well as support for other routes out of Abingdon (like at Nags head 
and south Abingdon) it will cause less stationary traffic at busy times of the day. Included in this I would extend the 
nags head bridge to include a drop off section for deliveries which blocks a whole lane of the bridge causing traffic. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

P
age 268



                 
 

The ring road isn't classed as a residential area and is a means of getting around the traffic through the town centre, 
if this speed is lowered then it'll take longer to get around town which affectively adds to the pollution instead of 
lowering it. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(17) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Thornley 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The speed limit is not the biggest safety issue. The pot holes, cracks and mounds in the roads cause real issues for 
cyclists. Its got so bad I no longer cycle into town after getting a wheel in a crack and falling off. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - No opinion 

The roads are generally quite congested so traffic doesn't seem to go above 30mph anyways. There are the usual 
suspects racing around at night but i feel dropping the limit will not stop this sort of behaviour. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(18) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Hobbs Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

It means journeys take longer, therefore cars are running for longer. More frustrated drivers causing issues. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - No opinion 

Not sure it would make much difference 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(19) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Shelley Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

People need to be driving to the conditions. Also there are many hazards (parked cars, etc) which require your 
concentration to be on the road ahead and not your speedo! 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The ring road is perfectly fine at 40. Wide verges and pavements. Again, need to concentrate on the road, not your 
speedo! 
 

P
age 269



                 
 

Travel change: No 
 

(20) As a business, 
(Abingdon/ Appleford) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The impact of slowing many of the speed limits in Oxfordshire is really significant. We are a care business and our 
carers who encounter 20mph speed limits will take 50% longer to reach their destinations. This impacts on the care 
they provide and reduces their earnings 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The impact of slowing these speed limits in Abingdon from 40mph to 30mph is really significant. We are a care 
business and our carers who encounter 30mph speed limits will take 25% longer to reach their destinations. This 
impacts on the care they provide and reduces their earnings 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(21) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Wootton Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The data does not support a town the size of Abingdon going to 20mph.  The environmental argument is unproven, 
the cost of enforcement is not available and the unnecessary signage will be a huge eyesore.  The road accident 
data does not support the change 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Completely unnecessary. Visibility is great.  30mph will simply generate revenue for the council from cameras 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(22) Member of public, 
(Radley, Lower Radley) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Too much attention to speedo and not enough attention to the road will lead to accidents.  Pedestrians take more 
risks in lower speed areas stepping out thinking drivers will brake but if the driver has his eyes fixed on his speedo 
he might well miss the hazard .  Cars will use more petrol as lower gears needed and thus higher emissions.  
Slowing down traffic causes congestion to build up, again with higher emissions.  Do not believe this blanket roll out 
of lower speeds will benefit the public.  It is money ill spent when potholes and pavements are in a parlous state and 
the ruling Council party is applying political motives and are not acting on the wishes of the majority of motorists.  We 
have cycle lanes in Abindon which few cyclists ever use.  They say they are not convenient. 

P
age 270



                 
 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Most of the route is negotiable with no danger at 40 mph.  Traffic lights are installed for pedestrians to cross safely.  
There is no justifiable reason to decrease the limit 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(23) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Thesiger) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Slows down traffic which adds to polution 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Keeps traffic out of the centre of Abingdon 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(24) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Alexander 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
The blanket approach to 20 mph speed limits appears more to do with forcing people to use cycles or public 
transport rather than a targeted approach to safety issues on specific roads. I do not see any specific data about 
improvements in safety for this, just general comments about it is safer to drive at a lower speed - this could apply to 
any roads including dual caridgeways and major roads, so hence is not sufficiently credible. I suggest this is more 
about Oxfordshire councillors having a personal agenda because they are in favour of cycling and are trying to 
restrict car usage. I do not make unnecessary car journeys and feel this is a restriction on my movements at a safe 
speed. The specific accident data needs to be shown for all roads with a proposed 20 mph limit. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

There is no specific accident data in support of this proposal, and I have only seen general comments about lower 
speeds are safer from councillors. This generalist approach is not sufficiently credible for reducing a speed limit. This 
is particularly the case given that the south facing slip roads at Lodge Hill have not been completed, and hence the 
ring road is used to transit around Abingdon. There are no private gardens, schools, or other risks areas  ajoining the 
40 mph limits on the Dumore Road and Twelve Acre Drive, so I see no reason to reduce the 40 mph limit. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 271



                 
 

(25) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Ethelhelm 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I object to blanket reduction of speed limits it should be based on data and facts by each road 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

It is not necessary to reduce the speed limit unless data and facts are brought to bear on that particular road 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(26) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Evelin Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Please provide evidence of the accidents in the proposed areas due to 30MPH speed? Who will police the limits, 
Abingdon has many drivers exceeding the current limits and driving very unsafely. South Abingdon have chicanes 
whilst North has speed humps, neither work!  
I experienced the Abingdon Road this morning, had to drop my wife off to catch coach, It is now 20MPH. I was 
overtaken by a cyclist whilst adhering to the speed limit. I also checked my MPG, as I used to do this trip regularly. 
There was virtually no traffic on the road and I returned 28.8MPH. Could see the MPG dropping significantly in the 
20 limit. I keep a very close eye on diesel usage, prior I used to get in excess of 40MPG, a 28% reduction!!!! With the 
current price of diesel I am now paying over double for that same journey previously from Abingdon to Oxford. In 
addition I use cruise control to maintain a constant speed but it only, like other cars, works at 20MPG plus. Think 
again, we need facts, figures and evidence that it’s going to work, as this is adding to global warming, fossil fuel 
usage, driving costs, and more pollution! I cannot afford to change my car to electric. Please reconsider but only 
introduce in school areas. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Same as previous. Optimum efficient speeds for most cars are between 50 and 60 MPG. This is impossible in built 
up areas but must be considered on other less dangerous roads. There are graphs on line to prove my numbers, so 
let’s stay as we are and save the planet! 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(27) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Audlett drive) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
At the times I use the roads, they are relatively clear, and it is perfectly safe to go at current speeds. To go slower will 
cause higher petrol consumption, therefore higher emissions over a longer time. Frustration will build up at being 

P
age 272



                 
 

held back (given safe conditions) therefore a higher potential for human error to creep in as many peoples pulse rate 
rises in frustration . If there are any cyclists, this will make the manoeuvre of overtaking more difficult and dangerous 
as the speed of car and bike will be closer, so a further distance required. It is scheme's like this that drive a bigger 
wedge between cyclists and drivers (majority driving rather than cycling) and it won't encourage significant uptake of 

cycling (this is the UK, rain is common, and we are all time poor. First World problems I know 😊). Please don't do it, 

suicide rates are already up, we don't need more depressing news to add to the general woes we all already face 
(Russian wars, cost of living crisis, general post covid etc), we need positive news for the masses, not for the few 
this would ultimately benefit. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

At the times I use the roads, they are relatively clear, and it is perfectly safe to go at current speeds. To go slower will 
cause higher petrol consumption, therefore higher emissions over a longer time. Frustration will build up at being 
held back (given safe conditions) therefore a higher potential for human error to creep in as many peoples pulse rate 
rises in frustration . If there are any cyclists, this will make the manoeuvre of overtaking more difficult and dangerous 
as the speed of car and bike will be closer, so a further distance required. It is scheme's like this that drive a bigger 
wedge between cyclists and drivers (majority driving rather than cycling) and it won't encourage significant uptake of 

cycling (this is the UK, rain is common, and we are all time poor. First World problems I know 😊). Please don't do it, 

suicide rates are already up, we don't need more depressing news to add to the general woes we all already face 
(Russian wars, cost of living crisis, general post covid etc), we need positive news for the masses, not for the few 
this would ultimately benefit 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(28) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Bath Street) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

No justifiable reason to reduce below 30 mph - adds to congestion and therefore carbon emissions. Negligible 
difference in safety of pedestrians and cyclists. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Again entirely unnecessary. Negligible benefits and likely negative consequences in terms of congestion and 
greenhouse gas emissions. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 273



                 
 

(29) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Metcalfe 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I don't feel it's necessary to reduce the speed limit to 20mph. Traffic in Abingdon is atrocious at the best if times, I 
feel reducing the speed limit will just make this worse. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Again, I don't feel it is necessary to reduce the speed limit on the ring road. I feel cyclists and pedestrians are already 
catered for with a wide footpath and separate cycle lane. There is no need for cyclists or pedestrians to be on the 
road. There are a number of dedicated light controlled crossing points for cyclists and pedestrians to use when 
crossing the road. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(30) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Duffield Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Where is the evidence of accidents that were caused by travelling at 30 or 40 mph?  
Waste of money changing all signs and road markings. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Where is the evidence of accidents that were caused by travelling at 30 or 40 mph?  
Waste of money changing all signs and road markings. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(31) Member of public, 
(Sunningwell, Church 
Farm) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

It will cause more pollution. Most cars won’t comply with it. It will lead to frustration from more aggressive motorists. It 
won’t be policed. 
 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

It’s not necessary. The public transportation isn’t there to encourage alternative travel. Buses are too expensive. 
It’s a ring road. 
 
Travel change: No 

P
age 274



                 
 

 

(32) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, St Amand 
Drive) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Speed limits (of any value) are only useful if they are obeyed and enforced. 20mph speed limits are incredibly difficult 
to enforce. While traffic management systems can be used, they just cause speeding up and slowing down. The 
section of Marcham Rd between the Esso garage and the A34 was changed from national speed limit to 30mph over 
20 years ago, but this still hasn't and doesn't stop at least 30% of drivers speeding on this road. The data on 
incidence and injury of traffic accidents, leads to confusing conclusions. While lower speeds cause less sever 
injuries, the incedence of accidents is also higher. It implies low speed traffic probably leads pedestrians to be less 
aware and cautious of the dangers. By increasing 20mph zones, overall accidents will actually increase. There is a 
school of thought that says, increase all speed limits to 60mph, and pedestrians would learn to cross roads safely. 
While accidents would almost always be fatal, there would be less pressure on NHS resource due to no injuries to 
care for. I'm not actually advocating this, but the data drives this conclusion as well. In terms of risk managent, 
20mph roads hold the same risk factor that 60mph roads do. If you are involved in an incident it is far more likely at 
will be at 20 or 30mph though the injury is likely not to be fatal. While it is quite unlikely the incident would be at 
60mph but the injury almost always fatal. 
A better solution is better driver and pedestrian education. Proper integrated transport solutions that keep vehicles 
and pedestrians apart as much as possible, and only allow them to cross at safely managed intersections. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
The ring road has relatively little pedestrian/vehicle interaction. It has wide pavements and designated cycle lanes. 
The aim of the ring road was and is to keep traffic out of the town that doesn't need to be there. Leaving the speed 
limit at 40 would encourage this even more if the other roads were changed to 20mph. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(33) Member of public, 
(Grove, Mallard Way) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Slowing down the traffic in an already congested town is not the answer. Crossings would be a much better 
alternative. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
I do not believe that speeding is an issue in that area and I do not think that there would be any benefits to reducing 
the speed limit 

P
age 275



                 
 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(34) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Masefield 
Crescent) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Where is the evidence that the assertions made in the proposal are true?? 
This is a typical waste of money by the council all such schemes are expensive & achieve little as most people will 
be criminalised as they ignore such limits. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Same comment as for 20mph 
Waste of money! 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(35) Member of public, 
(Wootton, Arthur Evans 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Not nessesary 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Not nessesary 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(36) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Letcombe 
Avenue) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Increased journey times. Frustrated driver. No impact on safety. Will not be enforced anyway. Waste of public 
money. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
There have never been any issues so why waste public money changing what is not a problem? Increased journey 
time, frustration, being over taken by those who will not know what the limit is. How is that improving safety? 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 276



                 
 

(37) Member of public, 
(Prefer not to say) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

No benefit and enormous frustration and inefficient travel 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

30 is too slow for a wide road with housing set back 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(38) Member of public, 
(Wantage) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

You’ll do it anyway, so no need for a comment. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

As above 
 
Travel change: Other 

Avoid the area. Spend less money there. Vote you out. 
 

(39) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Dundas Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I do not think that reducing the speed limit to 20mph is necessary. Unless cameras are placed everywhere motorists 
will not stick to the speed limit, it is far too slow. 30mph is sufficient to prevent accidents and any lower than this is 
excessive. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The 40mph roads are away from pedestrian areas and there are plenty of crossing with traffic lights for those who 
wish to cross the road, as well as cycle paths for cyclists. There is no need to reduce the speed limit and it will cause 
congestion on already busy roads. 
 
Travel change: No 

 
(40) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Nuneham 
Square) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

P
age 277



                 
 

Abingdon is often at a standstill as it IS, and cutting the speed limit will just mean cyclists getting tail-gated and even 
more standing traffic. Pollution is shocking in the town center, even with all the efforts made to criminalise the car 
driver for daring to actually use it. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

We lobbied hard, many years ago, for a ring road to relieve traffic coming through the town. There haven't been any 
accidents on the road for years, and even then they were caused by faulty cycles or cyclists not paying attention. I 
absolutely cannot understand this move, particularly in light of the new houses. People will get angry, drivers will 
ignore the limit or tailgate those who do acknowledge it, and pedestrian crossings and cycle paths are already in 
place! It makes me want to move out of Abingdon and will further deter people who don't want to come as the bridge 
has not been mended, neither has the multi-storey car park, and free parking has been reduced. Demonising the 
motorist is NOT the way forward!!! 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(41) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Radley Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The current speed limits are adequate. It is dogfight to maintain a steady speed at 20mph, especially in large roads. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Same as my previous answer 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(42) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Nuneham 
Square) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I'm already regularly tailgated driving at 30mph, those same people will be very angry stuck behind me at 20. There 
are no police around to enforce the 20 zones, so the people want to will just happily break the limit and those who 
follow the limit will end up being intimidated everywhere they go. 20mph also makes overtaking cyclists more 
dangerous, so you'll have an increase in dangerous overtakes of people on bikes. I would rather have cars get their 
overtake done quickly, than slowly cruise past and end up veering into me because they misjudged how slow a 
20mph overtake is. I get you're trying to convince people to walk/bike, but forcing them by making the roads awful to 
drive on is not the way. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

P
age 278



                 
 

The whole point of the ring road is to convey traffic around the outskirts at a higher speed and flow than the gridlock 
in town. Reducing the speed will reduce this effect for no gain at all. The pedestrian path is a safe enough distance 
from the road that I'm not aware of any incidents on the ring road involving pedestrians. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(43) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Kysbie Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I am objecting because I do not believe the council will stop at applying the 20mph limit to just residential roads. I 
believe they will apply it across abingdon carte blanche. For years there was talk of a new bridge to alleviate the 
traffic issues in Abingdon. It was never forthcoming. Instead we had traffic lights on the old bridge causing further 
conjestion in Abingdon. There is no investing in Abingdon, instead the green agenda is rolled out time and time again 
and this is just part of that. Closing down part of the multistorey car park, reducing free time in car parks from 2 hours 
to 1 hour. Abindgon town centre is dying. Instead of concentrating on that, the council titivates under the guise of 
doing something for the environment and safety to appease the vocal minority. What is your reasoning for reducing 
the speed limit? How about publishing facts on around number of deaths, and serious accidents involving speed as a 
contributing factor. The population could then make informed decisions on the roads where these deaths occured 
and these should be looked at as to whether speed limits would make them safer.  However, I am sure none of this 
will be done - please prove me worng. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
The ring road includes dunmore road. Which is a 40. Reducing it to 30 will be because there are more housing being 
built on this road. This was only agreed if the lodge hill junction was made into a diamond junction therefore reducing 
the number of cars requireinf to drive through dunmore road. Of course the building of houses has gone ahead, and 
ther eis no movement on the diamon junction. As there is no movement on forcing the developers to provde 
additional infrastructure suchs as schools, doctors surgeries or dentists. These should have been part of the orginial 
negotiations, and would mean that kids would not be required to cross Dunmore road from the new estates, and that 
their parents cars would not require to drive along dunmore raod as they could walk their children to school. Again, 
the council has let the developers do what they like. Why do not the councillers and town planners hold themselves 
responsible for creating the problem. Instead, stick up some 30mph signs, a big hearty slap on their backs, blinkers 
on and saying oooh didn't we do a good job. 
 
Travel change: Other 

Yes. I will not come into Abingdon. 

P
age 279



                 
 

Why is this answer not an option? Instead all your options above will enable you to put a positive spin on it.  You 
survey design is knowling biased as your marketing know most people will just click a given radio button rather than 
spend time given a written response. 
 

(44) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, The Warren) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
20mph zones are impossible to stick to. Clifton Hampdon and Milton Park are prime examples of this. This will 
negatively impact people's journeys adding time and causing further congestion in Abingdon. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

There is no need to reduce the speed of the ring road. I don't believe the logic used to support this. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(45) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Foster Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

20mph will cause more problems with the increasing  traffic in the local area 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

A ring road doesn't need to be as slow as 30mph. It will cause more traffic issues rather than make it safer 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(46) Member of public, 
(Didcot) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

As a regular visitor to Abingdon 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

As a regular visitor to Abingdon 
 
Travel change: Other 

It will not change my mode of transport, but I would actively avoid coming to Abingdon, which might suit the agenda 
anyway 
 

P
age 280



                 
 

(47) Member of public, 
(Didcot, Grange Beck) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

It is based on flawed reasoning and generic thinking. Let us see the real statistics for Abingdon on how many people 
have been killed on the proposed roads and how many lives it will save. It also means that cyclists face more danger 
as they will not be subject to the 20 mph limits due to no way of enforcement therefore will mean they move 
progressive against vehicles and come into more contact as cars do not expect cyclist to overtake them. 
Stop messing up all our towns the same way as oxford, which is now a nightmare for businesses and not worth 
visiting. Can’t wait for south oxford to pull out and become a unitary authority to stop these stupid plans.  
You do consultations and then ignore them 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Leave all limits as they are, maybe just change limits within a set distance of schools to 20, but this needs to only be 
the immediate area, like 100 metres 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(48) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Westfields) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

It will make congestion and pollution worse around abingdon. It will discourage more people to come to abingdon 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
Will increase congestion and pollution. It will turn people away from coming to abingdon 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(49) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, St Johns 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Although I would welcome a 20 mph limit in residential roads I don't think it would make any difference in practice. 
There's a 30 mph limit in my road and people still race along it. We'd just have a load more street signs ( = cost and 
unsightliness) and no improvement 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The ring road offers a possibility of going a bit faster. Desperately needed for those of us who live in North Abingdon 
and need to go south on the A34. It is a wide road with a well defined cycle path. There is no need to reduce speeds. 
 

P
age 281



                 
 

Travel change: No 
 

(50) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Gainsborough 
Green) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

There is no need or evidence to support the need for this change. I don't object in the immediate roads adjacent to a 
school but elsewhere there is no need. It will just cause frustration and aggravation and I'm sure the sole purpose of 
this will be to later install speed checks and generate revenue from fines. There are more important issues like 
building more roads to support the growing number of vehicles and direct them away from the town centre, more 
access to A34, bypass roads (A415 Culham to A34). The town is already gridlocked most school runs so changing 
the speed limit won't help. Drivers running late and frustrated from insufficient roads are more of a risk as it causes 
road rage etc that a 20mph limit will not help. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

There is no need or evidence to support the need for this change. It will just cause frustration and aggravation and 
I'm sure the sole purpose of this will be to later install speed checks and generate revenue from fines. There are 
more important issues like building more roads to support the growing number of vehicles and direct them away from 
the town centre, more access to A34, we need bypass roads (A415 Culham to A34). The town is already gridlocked 
most school runs so changing the speed limit won't help. Drivers running late and frustrated from insufficient roads 
are more of a risk as it causes road rage etc that a 20mph limit will not help. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(51) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, South Avenue) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

By all means, 20mph where there is a need, backed by data to suggest a road is dangerous but not every road 
within the boundary to 20mph, surely grinds us more to a halt than ever?! 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The majority of the ring road is not pedestrian or cycle heavy, there is already a cycle/footpath for most of the 
northern perimeter. The majority has few junctions which are very clearly visible. Making this a 30mph road serves 
no useful purpose at all, other than frustrating motorists, unless there is evidence of accident or safety black spots. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

P
age 282



                 
 

(52) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Oxford Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Greater congestion 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Greater congestion 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(53) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Meadowside) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

As someone who travels mainly by foot or bicycle, I find that the function of a road network is to allow people to 
travel as quickly as it is safe to do so, not to provide an attractive environment or a space principally aligned to the 
interests of cyclists.  
The problem of congestion in Abingdon will not be solved by this new speed limit (instead, likely effective strategies 
could be to repair Abingdon bridge back to two lanes of traffic, or add another access point to A34 at Lodge Hill. 
Perhaps the option most certain to address congestion would be to limit any further population growth of our town, 
possibly lobbying national government to invest in 'the North' as they often suggest).  
As for the impact of a lower speed limit on pollution and carbon footprint: this is entirely dependent on the types of 
vehicle using the roads not their maximum speed. If every road user drove an electric vehicle (car or bike) local 
pollution would be negligible whether or not people drove at 20 or 30 miles per hour 
I would rather local and indeed national government concentrated on more pressing issues than road speed limits. 
Perhaps a focus on education, law and order, and addressing exceedingly high inflation to name but three. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

A ring road that provides for the rapid movement of people around the town, avoiding the centre, has clear benefits 
regarding easing congestion. No less importantly such a ring road clear benefits for facilitating day to day life in our 
town. 
This ring roads currently have wide cycle paths next to them and reducing the speed limits on these roads simply 
makes them less useful for very little if any benefit. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(54) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Wootton) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

P
age 283



                 
 

I don't believe the accident rate is that which would need to lower the speed limit so drastically. And as for the 
greener planet excuse, cars would be on the road for longer periods of time, thereby not reducing their emissions.  
30mph is a reasonable speed to travel at within towns, 20 is just ridiculously slow and probably not very good for the 
car, or one's patience 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The ring road has a cycle track and  pedestrian path, therefore not much reason to reduce the speed. I have found 
most drivers to be courteous and let other drivers to join the traffic. Really no need to reduce the speed limit 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(55) Member of public, 
(Prefer not to say) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
A blanket 20mph restriction is not appropriate, it needs to be focussed on areas of risk.  When the limit is imposed 
without discretion I tend to find I've drifted off when driving - it is well known that inappropriate speed limits are 
disrespected and cause driver inattention.  Focus a very low limit in an area of risk and you're highlighting that risk to 
drivers and are highly likely to get great compliance - do it everywhere and you reduce that impact so likely making 
roads more dangerous, not less. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The 'ring road' is a wide, well designed road with an excellent segregated cycle path and foot path.  It is perfectly 
designed for and entirely safe at 40mph and anything lower will be disrespected and, if adhered to, will have 
negative impacts for journey times and so efficiency and economic output. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(56) Member of public, 
(Radley, Radley College) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

These proposals are anti-car rather than part of a holistic strategy. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Motorists are not the enemy - they are ordinary people trying to get to work. Until there are comprehensive 
improvements to public transport we need to stop bashing motorists and let people get on with their lives. These 
roads are designed for and safe at 40mph 
 

P
age 284



                 
 

Travel change: No 
 

(57) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Marina Way) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The traffic in and around Abingdon is already a huge problem so lowering the speed limit will only increase this,also 
it is difficult to achieve a speed of over 20mph in most areas of Abingdon due to the traffic so I don't feel that it would 
be beneficial at all. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I don't feel it would be of any benefit and will increase the traffic build up and increase the road rage of drivers 
resulting in more possible accidents. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(58) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Orpwood Way 
& Alexander Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Queuing all around abingdon is already an issue and this would likely further disrupt the issue as well as being 
completely unnecessary. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The ring road is on a whole used to get around the town quicker rather than going through and would be completely 
unnecessary. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(59) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Alexander 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

It will increase journey time, and as many drivers will drive with no regard for the changes there is the possibility of 
an increased number of incidents and near misses. It is also unnecessary, as it does not increase road safety and 
has a negligible environmental impact. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

As mentioned before, this will not benefit the roads with regards to either safety or environmental impact, and may 
cause an increased number of incidents due to larger speed differences. 
 

P
age 285



                 
 

Travel change: No 
 

(60) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Thesiger 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

It doesn't tackle the real issues or root causes of danger to cyclists and why cyclists feel unsafe.  For example, poor 
road junction design, poor road surface, close passing, inconsiderate driving, lack of policing, etc. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Unnecessary.  It is used as an illusion of doing something rather than tackling to root cause.  Why for example does 
the ring road not have double giveways at each side road T junction to protect cyclists on the cycle path and 
encourage more use? 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(61) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Mill Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

There is no need for this. Quite often traffic is moving much slower, I feel it will just result in frustration which gould 
be far more dangerous. I have also travelled in other towns where this limit is already in operation. Very often it is 
ignored and there are no visible signs of any enforcement cameras etc. So it is just a waste of money. Also it is my 
opinion that if it is imposed it will not result in more people using other forms of transport. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I see no reason to justify this. It is a ring road intended to keep traffic flowing. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(62) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, South Avenue) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Absolutely stupid idea, all councils are doing their very best to get cars off the road.  30MPH limts have been in use 
for years. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

With the traffic situation in Abingdon its almost impossible to get above 40mph anyway. And when the news houses 
are all built it will be mayhem. Get the junction onto the A34!! 
 

P
age 286



                 
 

Travel change: No 
 

(63) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Masefield) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Traffic is already slow with many traffic jams, 20 unnecessary particularly on the ring road 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Much of the ring road is only used by cars. 40 is fine. It does however need more crossing areas. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(64) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Spring Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

20mph speed limit is unnecessary. Traffic flow around Abingdon is already slow. More focus should be placed on 
improving the bus routes, and ensuring a diamond junction at North Abingdon to reduce town centre congestion. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

See previous comment. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(65) Member of public, 
(Shippon, Faringdon 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

A blanket imposition is unnecessary. Select thd roads where there is the greatest need.The volume of traffic already 
self regulates the speed. If all is flowing smoothly there is no need go reduce the speed from 30 to 20. Also no point 
in putting in new speed limits when the existing limits are not enforced! 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Unnecessary. Where is the evidence? It will create more traffic jams 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(66) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Pagisters 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

P
age 287



                 
 

Where there are already 20mph roads in various places in Oxfordshire, I find I spend too much time looking at my 
speedometer rather than the road. It is quite difficult to drive at 20mph. I would rather it was 30mph and leave me 
able to watch the road the whole time without worrying about going over 20mph. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

40mph works well on the ring road currently. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(67) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Tower Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

There is absolutely no need to drop the speed limit on any of the main roads. This will just lead to more congestion in 
and around the town. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Keep it at 40mph that is a fair speed for the ring road. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(68) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Caldecott 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

20mph speed limits must by nature, must be self enforcing and combined with further traffic calming measures. A 
costly project. Specialising in traffic matters as a profession, I can say with certainty that the  notion of reducing 
speed limits in turn makes roads safer is false, poor driver training and not paying attention is what makes roads 
dangerous, not speed. Abingdons residential roads are already self enforcing due to road layout/traffic calming and it 
is often not possible to do 30mph. Changing what’s displayed on a sign will not make a difference. To enable 
effective flow through the town the major roads including the ring road should not be changed. This council should 
focus on sorting our road layout to improve flow, not waste time with this silly idea. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Must stay as it is to maintain effective flow around the town. If it is reduce there will be not benefit of a “ring road” and 
people may switch to inner town roads. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 288



                 
 

(69) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Villeboys 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Traffic in Abingdon is chaotic as it is without further tinkering 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Traffic is slow enough as it is without further restriction. The point of the ring road is to enable a smooth flow of traffic 
without having to go through the town centre. DO NOT ALTER THIS 
 
Travel change: Other 

Already walk as a preference, only use a car to carry loads not possible on foot 
 

(70) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, The 
Chestnuts) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
Traffic will inevitably slow down. Air pollution will be worse as engines labour at low speeds 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The ring road should be an efficient bypass of the town centre. It already takes longer to traverse the town from one 
end to the other by ring road. This will make things worse. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(71) Member of public, 
(Wootton, Home Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

There is no need to reduce the limits. The current limits are safe and the number of serious accidents is low. It would 
be better to make the traffic flow properly rather than just slow it down 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The road flows reasonably well at 40mph. The new housing and the new traffic measures including crossings will 
slow the traffic where there is a population need. 
 
Travel change: Other 

No it will just make Abindon less attractive and will clog up the roads. It will be bad for the environment and for local 
business as I will be more likely to shop on-line or elsewhere. 
 

P
age 289



                 
 

(72) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Victoria) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I feel the traffic situation in abingdon is terrible before looking at reducing limits sort out lodge hill junction to elevate 
the volume of vehicles coming through which will in turn naturally reduce speed because abingdon will not be used 
so much as a rat run. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Please see previous reason 
 
Travel change: Other 

I use my car for work in and around abingdon/Oxfordshire weekdays.  
Walking mainly at weekends.  
 
 

(73) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Sellwood) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

A ring road is supposed to improve traffic flow and make things quicker by taking traffic away this will make me stay 
in the streets around it 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

As before ringroads are supposed to improve flow this will encourage short cuts 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(74) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Buckland 
Mews) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Car driving at 20mph uses more fuel than the car going at 30mph. Lowering speed limit will increase air pollution. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Car going at 20mph uses more fuel than at 30mph. Lowering speed limit will increase air pollution 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 290



                 
 

(75) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Lammas 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

It is usually impossible to do more than 20mph in Abingdon. Some of the roads proposed to have a speed cut to 
30mph do not have pedestrians crossing except in very rare circumstances e g Copenhagen Drive , Audlett Drive 
and Peachcroft Road. Therefore any new restrictions are pointless. How many pedestrians have been injured or 
killed on the above named roads? I cannot remember any. The main danger to life is to those cyclists who insist on 
cycling on the road instead of using designated cycle paths 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

As detailed before 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(76) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Staniland 
Court) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Cost  - My assumption is this will cost into the hundreds of thousands pounds in order to put these measures in 
place. At this time of cost of living crisis are there not better ways to help the public than projects which will have little 
to no impact on speed limits due to people just not following the new limits. 
Enforceability - likely to be as enforceable as a 30 mph limit which is not always followed / always possible to 
enforce. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

See same reasons as previous answers 
 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(77) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Hadland Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I don't see the need for this and it will increase emissions. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I don't see the need for this and it will increase emissions. 
 
Travel change: No 

P
age 291



                 
 

 

(78) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Marcham 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

30 is already adequate. If we reduce to 20 what next? 10? 5? Rather than 20, I would support a ban on motors in the 
town centre. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

40 is perfectly adequate on a wide and open well lighted road.  30 would seem too slow and would be largely 
ignored. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(79) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Herman Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

No supporting evidence of accidents, fatalities, or incidents has been submitted in support of this change. 
Further, slowing traffic will lead to increased congestion and therefore pollution (non-polluting cars will not be all 
pervasive for many years) 
Slowing the circular (Dunmore, 12 acre, Audlett) to 30 is excessive and will not promote its usage any more than 
present. 
Targetted 20MPH in danger zones (eg. Town centre, School entrances) would be a much better approach and could 
be supported more widely. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Is there any evidence of accidents, fatalities or incidents suggesting this year round, 24/7 change will reduce such 
incidents?  Personally, I do not hear of such accidents etc.  So what is the evidence? 
Running traffic slower will increase congestion at peak periods and therefore pollution where engines idle in traffic 
jams/junctions. 
Considering the new housing along Dunmore it would be better to place more light controlled crossings than to limit 
speeds to 30mph or provide pedestrian underpasses. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 292



                 
 

(80) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Francis Little 
Drive) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Because it is not necessary and will not be enforced so it's just a waste of public money. Please find some real 
things to do. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The speed limit is fine. I moved to Abingdon from Oxford specifically to get away from these idiotic traffic changes. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(81) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Francis Little 
Drive) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

In no particular order I strongly obkect to these rules for the following reasons: it seems an unnecessary limit on 
already slow journeys and an unnecessary expense for the tax payer. The lack of enforcement of existing 20mph 
zones indicates to me that an increase in those zones is simply further increasing the number of rules which will be 
disobeyed. When in a 20mph zone I do stick to the limit, however silly it is, and have a number of times been 
overtaken unsafely making me feel unsafe on those roads. This more rarely happens in a 30mph. Additionally as a 
cyclist as well as a driver I observe the most frequent and blatant flouting of the highway code by cyclists rather than 
drivers. E.g. the running of red lights including at padestrian crossings. I therefore think that the safety of local people 
would be better improved by improving compliance with the highway code from cyclists and drivers with the existing 
rules and structures rather than introducing yet more rules to be disobeyed. Furthermore, the majority of sensible 
drivers will go 20mph rather than 30mph when safety dictates it rendering the reduction of the speed limit 
unnecessary. Additionally my experience of cycling is that the majority of local drivers are aware and considerate 
around cyclists. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

As above. Seems completely unnecessary and a waste of money. The proposals, amongst others in the county 
make it seem as though most journeys undertaken are unnecessary. With the high cost of fuel and the heavy traffic it 
is unreasonable to think we all just drive around for fun. If the council were truly concerned with reducing the number 
of cars on the road then more money would be invested in the alternatives, such as improving the rather poor bus 
services. Instead the strategy seems to be simply to make it more difficult for ordinary people to go about their lives 
freely and as they see fit 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 293



                 
 

(82) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Penlon Place) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I am objecting the proposals because the main issue with the roads in Abingdon is the traffic and congestion, and 
this new speed limit will only make the issue worse. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Again, this will only make the traffic worse 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(83) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Parsonmead) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

No need for it plus your not gonna listen to the public as usual 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

It’s a ring road  30 is too slow  
How many deaths  has there been ? 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(84) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Quakers 
Court) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The proposal is harmful and unnecessary. Traffic flow thorugh Abingdon is already very poor, this will only make it 
worse. Forcing drivers to drive relatively long distances at 20 mph generates frustration and is likley to increase 
accidents. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The limit is uneccessary. This is a wide, clear road with good visibility and surface. The present limit of 40 mph is 
perfectly acceptable. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(85) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Abbott Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Completely unnecessary on almost all roads in towns 

P
age 294



                 
 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Not necessary, the current limit is not a problem 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(86) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Thesiger) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Artery roads throughout Oxfordshire are running slower & slower with no real reason and are they safer ? (as 90% 
drivers ignore them anyway eg a415 through to dorchester.  
While on residential estate eg on peachcroft, roads like boreford rd, mattock way etc, a 20mph limit may be ok, the 
link roads eg peachcroft road shoud remain with current limits. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Why ?? 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(87) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Harding Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Slowing down traffic will increase congestion and pollution.  Drivers will ignore the speed limits.  It is hard to drive at 
20mph! 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Ring roads exist to keep traffic moving around towns.  Reducing the speed limit makes no sense. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(88) Member of public, 
(Drayton, Sutton Wick 
Lane) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
Because it will not change the state  of the roads that are not maintain by the occ correctly. It will also extend the 
time of travel during picking up and dropping off children from school. I don’t think that parents can afford it. This is 
another ridiculous project that you are trying to enforce just for the sake of it.  Let’s be honest you don’t care too 
much about the environment. 
 

P
age 295



                 
 

20mph Speed Limit - Object 
Another ridiculous idea that will cause more traffic. Stop giving permission to build new developments and maintain 
and prepare infrastructure for changes and then force rules like 30 mph on a ring road. Reduce traffic by putting 
children in school closer to their homes this will be real benefit for the environment as parents will not need to travel 
twice in a day to the others site of the town! 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(89) Member of public, 
(Drayton, Sutton Wick 
Lane) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

With inevitable increased traffic following new housing developments, this would lead to severe delays during rush 
hour. Most people who I’ve spoken to who have lived in Abingdon all their life are happy with the way things already 
are 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I am forced to travel to Abingdon to take my children to school due to the local primary being over subscribed. This 
would lead to a lot of frustration for residents in this position 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(90) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Lambrick Way) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Increased travel time for no benefit in safety 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
Increased travel time with no benefit in road safety 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(91) Member of public, 
(Grove, Wantage, 
Collinsmith Drive) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

A lower limit makes life miserable for car drivers while achieving your alternative transport goals. 
Rather than pissing everyone off, why not do it properly and make routes properly safe for alternative transport? 
No, you’d rather pretend to do something, change a few speed limits and signs and then wonder why no cyclists 
want to use the roads. 

P
age 296



                 
 

Do it properly. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

As before if you want I safer and promoting alternative transport do it properly, don’t just make life miserable for cars 
and fail to make it better for alternative transport. 
 
Travel change: Other 

Yes, I’ll avoided Abingdon as much as possible. 
 

(92) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Tatham Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Traffic density limits the speed in the Town,  reducing speed exacerbates the congestion already limiting the flow of 
traffic,  A first approach should be to returning the inner  ring,  Stert Street, Oct Street and Stratton way to one 
directional roads, making Stratton Way bi-directional was always a crazy idea; it creates  a dangerous situation at the 
exit from the multi-story car park. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

No evidence that it will improve safety 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(93) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Coleridge 
Drive) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Can understand limiting to 20 on housing estates and by schools but all 30’s moving to 20 and the 40’s to 30 feels 
overkill! 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Will increase congestion in an area there are not lots of accidents 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(94) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Hamble Drive) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I feel it will cause more accidents as people get impatient from going too slow, it will cause congestion and stop the 
flow of traffic and will deter people from coming near Abingdon and will suffocate our already struggling town centre. 

P
age 297



                 
 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

As previous answer. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(95) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Alexander 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

There are some places that may warrant 20mph speed limits such as outside schools but it does not need a blanket 
approach, don't continously penalise car drivers 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

40mph is fine, keep the traffic moving out of the town 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(96) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Curtis Avenue) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
It’s not the speed limit that’s currently an issue, driving too slowly means people concentrating on the speedo not the 
road. 20mph outside schools is great though, but too much everywhere. Also the ring road needs to be 40mph until 
lodge hill is a full interchange! 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Lodge hill needs to be a full interchange before any speed limits are lowered 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(97) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Wootton Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

These proposed speed limits are unenforceable and would be a ridiculous waste of police time.  The safety benefits 
are marginal and there other other things that should take priority over this mad proposal. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

As previous comment. 
 

P
age 298



                 
 

Travel change: No 
 

(98) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Thornley 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Where required traffic calming is a much better method. Slowing journeys down and increasing emissions is bad 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

*Vast* majority of the road has large , sufficient foot paths and cycle lanes. How does this make anything safer? To 
improve safety, maybe encourage cyclists to actually use the cycle lane? 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(99) Member of public, 
(Drayton, Sutton Wick 
Lane) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The problem with Abingdon is not speed, but continuous approval of housing estates with no additional 
infrastructure.  There is NO NEED to reduce speed as most cars can't get over this speed anyway in central areas 
and reducing limit will seriously impede traffic when it actually can flow. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
Just why? The purpose of a ring road is to divert traffic by providing an easier and faster route, around the center 
and so reduce traffic there. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(100) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Eney Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Driving at 20 mph will increase air pollution and use more fuel. There is absolutely no requirement to reduce speed 
limits. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

It's perfectly safe driving at 40 mph. There are wide footpaths and dedicated cycle path running parallel to the road 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 299



                 
 

(101) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, South Avenue) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

There is no safety issue on the roads in question. Motorists need to drive at an appropriate speed for the conditions, 
not be limited to the ridiculously low 20mph speed on the main roads. In the centre of the town most people drive at 
20 mph or less anyway. Any change is an obscene waste of public money in hard times. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

40 mph is perfectly reasonable. Changing to 20 serves no purpose other than to satisfy those members of the 
councils who are carrying out a hate campaign against motorists. 
I was a qualified driving instructor until 4 years ago and I have been a member of the Institute of Advanced Motorists 
for 22 years. I think I am better qualified to make judgements on this than most or all of the councillors involved. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(102) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Elizabeth 
Avenue) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

20mph limits are unnecessary and cause frustration. More important would be to enforce the 30mph already in place 
in residential areas. These are slow enough when observed by most decent motorists, but too many people ignore 
them. The same people will ignore a 20 limit, and the rest of us will still suffer. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
40mph is safe enough and reasonable for the type of road. Traffic is slower in busy times anyway, but 30mph will 
appear painfully slow when road clear. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(103) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, St Helen's 
Court) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

From living in Abingdon the past couple of months, and hoping to be for many more years, it's clear to me that 
lowering speed limits will not reduce traffic. There is already considerable amounts of traffic at peak times and 
causing people to slow down isn't going to improve this situation at all. The time added to a commute out or into the 
town as a result of a 20mph speed limit will be extremely frustrating for those of us who commute. It currently takes 
approx 5 minutes to get from the st helens church area out to the a34 north junction at 30mph. With the 20mph limit 
this will easily jump to 7/8 minutes. Over the course of a year that's a lot of additional time spent driving in and out of 
abingdon. While I would love to jump on a bus - my 1 year old can't really get herself to nursery. 

P
age 300



                 
 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

It's already busy. It's great having a ring road that's faster than the traditional 30mph. Not really a ring road if it's 30. It 
becomes the boundary line of an estate. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(104) Member of public, 
(Didcot) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

This is not the way to improve safety on the roads in Abingdon. The way forward is to reduce traffic jams and 
therefore reduce road users having to use residential and back streets to avoid the jams in the first place. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
The purpose of a ring road is to avoid the town centre. Do not make it less attractive to road users, find ways to 
make it 
More attractive thereby reducing town centre traffic 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(105) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Bath Street) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I don't believe it will be helpful. Bad drivers will disregard the new limit, as they already do the existing one. Good 
drivers will abide by the existing limit and will just be aggravated by having to go slower. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
40mph is perfectly fine for a road like this, with little pedestrian traffic, whose main object is to get from A to B 
comfortably and safely. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(106) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Boulter Drive) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

unneccessary, waste of time and money 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

P
age 301



                 
 

unnecessary, a waste of time and money 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(107) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Vintner Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
I do not believe it is required 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I do not believe the current 40 mph limit is an issue 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(108) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Lammas 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I object as I don't feel a 20mph limit is needed in Abingdon. Abingdon residential areas are a better design and layout 
than other towns/cities, making it much safer for pedestrians and cyclists. 
It feels like Abingdon is starting to follow Oxford with vehicle restrictions, will it be the dreaded LTNs next? 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The ring road is perfectly safe at 40mph as it is a wide road with ample sized verges, pavements, cycle tracks and 
crossings where they are needed. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(109) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Norris Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

These lower speed limits are not needed. You have to queue in traffic most of the time anyhow.  The argument that it 
will encourage people to use local transport is simply wrong. Nobody owning a car is going to wait at a bus stop, 
regardless of what the speed limits are.  All this will do is just make life more frustrating.  It's simply not needed!  
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I don't understand this question.  Haven't I just answered this in question 3? - These lower speed limits are not 
needed. You have to queue in traffic most of the time anyhow.  The argument that it will encourage people to use 

P
age 302



                 
 

local transport is simply wrong. Nobody owning a car is going to wait at a bus stop, regardless of what the speed 
limits are.  All this will do is just make life more frustrating.  It's simply not needed! 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(110) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Warwick 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

From experience of living in an Oxford road with a similar limit, I I do not see how such a limit would be enforced. 
The current limits are not policed in the town. And frankly, as a pedestrian I feel more at risk from cyclists riding at 
speed on the footpaths. Unlike cycles, cars make a noise and stay on the road. Sort out the rogue cyclists rather 
than this unnecessary speed limit for motorists. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
Unnecessary. Works ok at 40 mph 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(111) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Inkerman 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Appropriate only near schools during school hours. Will slow traffic across town and disrupt businesses with 
economic consequences. Much more effective to analyse where danger points are (roundabouts) and solve that. 
Sadly most people will only obey these signs when there are speed cameras and police. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The ring road is safe with adequate crossing points and there is no point in slowing traffic. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(112) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Elwes Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
I do not support blanket 20mph on key bus routes including Oxford Road, Drayton Road, Ock Street, Radley Road or 
Wootton Road and their implementation should be more nuanced. 
I support implementation of 20mph in residential estate streets, in the town centre and on key radial roads by schools 
only. 

P
age 303



                 
 

Bus journey times will be significantly impacted by this scheme which may lead to service reductions as journeys are 
not able to be made in the required time, for little benefit. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I do not believe that Audlett Drive, Twelve Acre Drive, Dunmore Road, Copenhagen Drive and Colwell Drive should 
be 30mph. Retaining these as 40mph will make them comparatively more attractive to use than driving through the 
town centre. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(113) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Lovelace 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Speed limits have to strike a balance between the safety of all users safety and mobility in the interests of the 
economic well being of all. There is no indication in the consultation papers that achieving such a balance has been 
reviewed during the promulgation of these proposals - there are simply unspecific, very generalised concerns about 
safety. There does not appear to have been any attempt to undertake an objective assessment. 
The proposals are clearly politically motivated - speed limits should be about safety, not politics, and uncontroversial. 
While safety concerns may readily outweigh the economic imperative of mobility in relation to residential streets, that 
isn't obviously the case in relation to main roads, particularly major bus routes - the papers ignore entirely the needs 
and interests of public transport users. The Council needs to bear in mind that more people use buses than cycle 
and it is essential for all manner of reasons that buses are as attractive an option as possible - this includes journey 
times. The major bus routes serving Abingdon are subject to all manner of service perturbations and reducing 
speeds to 20 (30 in the case of the X1) on their routes will further reduce the limited opportunities they have to 
recover lost time. The reductions will do nothing to make bus travel more attractive. 
The major bus routes particularly affected are Oxford Road, Drayton Road and Wootton Road. All of these have 
significant lengths of service roads. Safety could be improved where objectively assessed as necessary, by installing 
cycle paths utilising the service roads and redesigning junctions. Absent any objective safety and cost benefit 
analysis in connection with the proposals, particularly in relation to those 3 roads, I submit that they should remain 
30mph roads (in the case of Wootton Road, from the college northwards, in the case of Drayton Road, from the 
Caldecott Road junction southwards).   
In relation to the "ring toad", Audlett Drive and Twelve Acre Drive were originally 60 mph roads and presumably 
designed as such. There is no evidence, at least in the public domain, to suggest they are not safe at 40. Very few 
houses directly front onto either and they have segregated cycle/footpaths. Copenhagen Drive has only recently 
been assessed in connection with the new housing development and 40mph was retained for most of its length, 
presumable because it was assessed as safe - it is surely the epitome of an urban 40mph road, of modern design, 

P
age 304



                 
 

segregated cycle/footpath and not fronted by any residential properties. It should remain 40 as at present, because 
mobility needs  must outweigh safety considerations in the absence of evidence to the contrary. 
If there were an objective case for Dunmore Road being 30 then a temporary limit would have been introduced for 
the seemingly endless roadworks connected with housebuilding, involving numbers of workers in the road with 
40mph traffic passing (death/injury to roadworkers being a very major safety issue, the Council ought to know). The 
fact that no such temporary limit has been introduced speaks volumes. Significant traffic calming will result from the 
new signalled crossings. houses do not front directly onto it and again, there is a segregated cycle/footpath. The 
case for 30 hasn't been made out. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

See detailed comments under 3 above, repeated below. 
In relation to the "ring toad", Audlett Drive and Twelve Acre Drive were originally 60 mph roads and presumably 
designed as such. There is no evidence, at least in the public domain, to suggest they are not safe at 40. Very few 
houses directly front onto either and they have segregated cycle/footpaths. Copenhagen Drive has only recently 
been assessed in connection with the new housing development and 40mph was retained for most of its length, 
presumable because it was assessed as safe - it is surely the epitome of an urban 40mph road, of modern design, 
segregated cycle/footpath and not fronted by any residential properties. It should remain 40 as at present, because 
mobility needs  must outweigh safety considerations in the absence of evidence to the contrary. 
If there were an objective case for Dunmore Road being 30 then a temporary limit would have been introduced for 
the seemingly endless roadworks connected with housebuilding, involving numbers of workers in the road with 
40mph traffic passing (death/injury to roadworkers being a very major safety issue, the Council ought to know). The 
fact that no such temporary limit has been introduced speaks volumes. Significant traffic calming will result from the 
new signalled crossings. houses do not front directly onto it and again, there is asegregated cycle/footpath. The case 
for 30 hasn't been made out.  
 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(114) Member of public, 
(Sutton Courtenay, High 
Street) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I believe 20mph should be in places off main streets and thoroughfares. However the carte blanched approach is in 
my opinion too restrictive 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I thought it was for large parts as this is or soon will be cutting through housing estates 

P
age 305



                 
 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(115) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Caldecott 
Chase) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

30 is easier to drive 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

30 is better 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(116) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Woodley 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

The flow of traffic through and around Abingdon is already stifled by the volume of traffic V's the woefully 
underfunded infrastructure. We need a diamond junction at Lodge Hill as the top priority not slowing down the 
existing roads. I'd like to understand what the volume of accidents/incidents (involving the speed of the vehicle/s as 
the cause of the accident) per year are in order that this proposal can be justified in any form? 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

How many accidents have there been on the ring road as a result of it being a 40mph limit (rather than 30)? It feels 
like a very safe road as it is with a 40mph limit, and I say that as a motorist, cyclist and pedestrian. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(117) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Sellwood 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

I’m generally supportive of reducing the speed limit on residential roads whilst retaining the 30mph limit on roads like 
Oxford road. 
I’m also concerned that there will be insufficient funding to enforce the speed limit changes 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

I’m concerned that reducing the limit for the ring road before the Lodge Hill interchange is sorted out is going to 
create even more frustration for north abingdon residents especially once the new houses are occupied.  
 

P
age 306



                 
 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(118) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Park Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

While I neither support nor totally object to a 20mph limit, I do think it is psychologically difficult to crawl along at 
20mph at times when roads are empty and 30mph would be safe. However, I live bordering onto Spring Road - and 
the number of vehicles that speed through - especially inadequately silenced motorbikes - is a noise concern. I would 
also question how the 20mph limit would be enforced. I do not support more speed cameras in the town. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

What is wrong with keeping the existing 40mph limit on this road?  There are plenty of crossing places with traffic 
lights or islands. Most bus stops are inset. The traffic flows fine for the most part and people don't speed too much. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(119) Local 
group/organisation, 
(GreenSpeed) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 
These comments are being made on behalf of GreenSpeed a campaign to lower the national speed limits to 55mph 
and 20mph.  There are significant advantages with lower speeds but there are parts of the Council’s “Statement of 
Reasons” which are unsound and should not be relied on. 
1.  “… 20mph speed limits will help reduce casualty rates and improve road safety.”. That is true, if the Council also 
understand that differential speeds is a cause of highway danger.  Unless the lower limits are combined with physical 
changes that prevent of strongly encourage lower speeds by all vehicles, the 20mph could result in dangerous 
overtaking by those who expect to avoid detection.  Research has shown that for compliance with 20mph roads have 
to be re-engineered until cars are repowered to reduce their maximum limits (to about 55mph instead of well over 
70mph).  
2.  “Additionally, the existing 40mph speed limits on the ‘ring road’ will also be reduced to 30mph, which will help 
encourage the use of the ring road as the main bypass route…”. This does not sound right. Reducing the limit on the 
ring road is likely to make through town routes more attractive.  The lower limit is not justified on highway safety 
grounds and would reduce air quality (ICEs are more efficient and emissions are lower at around 50mph). 
  
3.  “The proposals seek an improvement of road safety for all users, and a reduction of the Counties(sic) carbon 
footprint,…” The 20mph limits could increase rather than decrease carbon emissions until electrification is more 
advanced (with zero emissions at tail pipe) as ICEs emit more carbon at lower speeds.  The increase of smooth flow 

P
age 307



                 
 

and less stop/start driving could compensate for this.  The engineering of the roads and the junctions and light 
controls are all important to securing lower emissions.  The lower speed limit is not enough and could have 
unintended consequences. 
4. The better way to deal with speed is to reduce the higher limit to 50mph to encourage the re-engineering to make 
the car less polluting at lower speeds, including electrification.  
Daniel Scharf MRTPI  
 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

see above - but primarily that ICEs are more polluting at lower speeds and 40pmph is more appropriate for the 
Abingdon ring road. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(120) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Lucca Drive) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

Main radial traffic routes (A415, B4017 etc) should be exempted in their entirety. This will help maintain traffic flows, 
including buses, and a differential speed limit will help deter rat running on other residential streets. The B4017 south 
of Saxton Road is largely segregated from purely residential streets and a speed limit which is perceived as being 
artificially low will be difficult to enforce. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

Reducing the relative attractiveness of a largely segregated route puts additional pressure on other more residential 
streets and the town centre. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(121) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Oxford Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

How will this be enforced? many cars can't stick to the current speed limits, the boundary house junction gets a lot of 
people speeding during quieter times 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 
the current roadworks are already causing major delays getting from one side of the town to the other. Better access 
in and out of North Abingdon should be sorted first at Lodge hill junction 

P
age 308



                 
 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(122) Member of public, 
(Abingdon)  

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

As someone who uses their car around town for their job, I spend a lot of time being caught in traffic in the centre of 
town. I feel that when I get to a point where I can actually get into second gear, a 30mph speed is fine. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

I think 40mph is fine for these roads. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(123) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Ashenden 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

I think the proposal will limit the ability of Abingdon to function as a town. Whilst limiting residential speed limits is 
appropriate, further limiting the ring road and arterial roads will only drive traffic onto the residential roads. Instead 
these should all remain at 30 and 40 as they currently are. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

Makes going via other roads quicker. Which isn’t what is needed. Instead these roads should all be 40 to ensure that 
they remain the fastest routes.  
Also slowing down traffic makes Abingdon less attractive as a place to come for work. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(124) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Drayton Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

Only necessary on certain roads so no need for a blanket limit, serious concerns over emissions caused by slower 
driving, won't be policed, very few serious accidents are caused in Abingdon by cars travelling at 30mph - where are 
the figures? Will it apply to cyclists and how will that be measured? Far more important issues to spend money on. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - No opinion 

Only support because of the growth in housing and therefore extra junctions and traffic on this road. 
 

P
age 309



                 
 

Travel change: No 
 

(125) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Jackman 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

Traffic is already bad in Abingdon, slowing the traffic down will cause more bottlenecks  and congestion. Surely this 
will generate more emissions. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

It will reduce flow of traffic, especially at peak time 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(126) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Wilsham) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

How is it going to be enforced? With 30mph there are lots of people speeding. Changing the signs to say 20 won't 
change this. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Most of these areas have cycle paths. Why change the speed? 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(127) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Selwyn 
Crescent) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 
The adjustment from 30mph to 20mph needs to be proportionate to risk and benefits.  For example, there is little 
evidence that carbon footprint savings will be made sufficiently over time in proportion to the social rate of adoption 
of electric vehicles.  Would the expense of the scheme be better spent subsidising or making free bus transport for 
local residents around the town or on secure bicycle storage in car parks to encourage bicycle use? Are we sure that 
20mph is adequate at ALL times of day, or should this be only applicable between peak times?  I feel more work 
needs to be done to strengthen a need for this proposal, which will affect thousands, or tens of thousands  of road 
users, daily, and may increase congestion. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The Abingdon ring road is the main affected route.  As with the 30mph to 20mph comments made, this needs to be 
proportionate.  Areas of the route have recently been reduced where new housing has been developed.  Whilst this 

P
age 310



                 
 

makes sense, it has degraded the effectiveness of the 'bypass', extending journey times from one side of the town to 
the other - currently 15-20mins. As part of one recent Local Authority approved development,  a Southbound entry 
ramp at the current northern A34 junction was to be constructed, allowing for a more local 'escape' from Abingdon, 
reducing traffic on the ring road and in Abingdon.  This has not yet been built.  Once developed, congestion may 
diminish in contrast with the greater occupation of residents for new houses, and it may then be appropriate to 
reduce speeds of the then 'internal' route. 
Therefore, at the moment and until alternative effective traffic management solutions are in place, I object to this 
proposal. 
 
Travel change: Other 

Not unless alternative incentives (safer, free,  cycle storage facilities and/or free local bus transport) is implemented 
to compliment the scheme. 
 

(128) Member of public, 
(Wootton, Cumnor Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

I haven't seen exactly which roads are included, but should only be ones that don't form a main route somewhere 
abd are likely to only be used by residents of those roads. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The design of the road is perfectly suitable for speeds of 40mph and probably higher. In some parts even 50 would 
be quite safe. There's very little need for pedestrians to be crossing either so very low risk from that perspective and 
many of the junctions have waiting lanes for exiting to the right. 
Lowering the speed limit would cause unnecessary frustration and lead to even lower compliance than it already has. 
The stated aim is to encourage use but lowering the limit would clearly have the opposite effect. I certainly would be 
more likely to use Wootton Road or Oxford Road instead. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(129) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Gall Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

I don’t agree with a 30mph limit on the ring road - it is used to keep traffic out of the centre and moving quicker - 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

P
age 311



                 
 

It doesn’t need to be that low - maybe on the approach to the roundabouts- but it was built to allow traffic to move 
quickly around the outskirts of the town. There is no need to go as low as 30 - it is not a pedestrian route and there 
are cycle routes. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(130) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Boreford) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

Shouldn't include the major roads such as Oxford and Radley as it will seems all the traffic to the boundary road 
which is busy enough 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I object to reducing speed on the boundary road as it will  mean further delays getting  anywhere and  there are 
plenty of ways of active travelling without this.  Plus there is a real need to get the diamond junction in pave on the 
North junction to get rid of heavy traffic.  Also put buses through Abingdon to Didcot and round the boundary road as 
well as more bike racks which are more secure 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(131) Local 
group/organisation, 
(Abingdon Freewheeling 
Cycle Club) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

If drivers respected the need for everyone to use the roads, there would be no need to introduce this. Also, how 
many people have been injured on the roads in Abingdon to warrant this? 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
As a peripheral road, a 40mph speed limit needs to continue, there are no valid reasons to change this. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(132) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Wick Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

As a regular cyclist and driver, and a parent of small children, I hope I can offer a balanced view on this. 
Most of the 30mph roads in residential areas are quiet and I feel safe cycling on them now, so I don't think a reduced 
limit would help much here either. Maybe it would be helpful when riding with children. 

P
age 312



                 
 

The only roads in Abingdon that I don't feel safe cycling along are the busy ones through the town centre, particularly 
Ock Street and Marcham Road which are dangerous to ride on. It's the amount of traffic that's the problem rather 
than the speed. What we really need here is a continuous off road cycle path all the way from the town centre to the 
McDonald's roundabout, rather than the current route which is unclear and goes on and off the road. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

As a regular cyclist and driver, and a parent of small children, I hope I can offer a balanced view on this. 
The ringroads that currently have a 40mph limit already have good off road cycle paths, so reducing the limit wouldn't 
improve safety. I'm happy taking my children along there now. 
The main effect would be to annoy drivers and slow down travel times. Remember not all journeys can be made by 
bike or public transport; you don't want to cause resentment among the people who you're trying to help. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(133) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Cotman Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

It’s a good idea but a waste of time and more importantly, public money. The current speed limits are never policed 
in spite of  Preston Rd and Gainsborough Green being speeding hotspots. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I think 40mph is ok as it is. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(134) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Masefield) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

I’m happy for all housing areas to be 20mph but think the main roads should stay at 30mph because these become 
busy and idling an engine in a low gear isn’t good for the car plus it will no doubt cause more pollution. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I’m not sure why this needs to be reduced?  Not many pedestrians cross this road like they do in the town centre, 
though my guess is it’s because the new estate on our green belt has been built ………… 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 313



                 
 

(135) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Alexander 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

I can see that a lower speed limit might increase safety, but I worry that it might increase pollution. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The ring road is an important through route in the absence of a proper A34 junction at Lodge Hill.  I have a sense 
that the 'natural' speed for much of this road, where there are few or no side roads is 50mph, and as such even 
40mph is a compromise. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(136) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Kennet Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 
I don't feel it's really necessary and don't believe everyone would abide by these limits and not sure if the police have 
the ability to enforce these. It may make those breaking the speed limits more of a danger to those not aware. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I don't feel this is necessary at all. The ring road is fairly wide and most has a wide path with a grass verge so i'm not 
sure what this would achieve in terms of safety? Potentially the addition of traffic islands in places could be seen as 
safer if there is a constant flow of traffic, as slower traffic would still make it difficult to cross. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(137) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Sellwood 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 
Doesn't seem necessary. Encourages people to do silly things when they're plodding on an empty road at 20 mph or 
following a car. Slows cars down, but that doesn't automatically make it safer for cyclists or in any way cost effective 
to use public transport. It's hard to overtake cyclists at 20mph and I find that stressful as a cyclist and again 
encourages people to do silly things. Use the money to improve cycle routes, especially for double trailers. Then 
consider the speed limits. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Where pedestrians are commonly crossing the ring road, there are mostly crossings in place or will be soon. It 
seems completely unnecessary to slow cars down there. Cyclists and pedestrians have great dedicated paths so 

P
age 314



                 
 

they don't need to be on the road. It may change with the new development and become less of a ring road. Wait 
and see what the effect of the new development is and then decide what is appropriate. 
 
Travel change: Other 

No. We already only use the car when it is necessary. 
 

(138) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Hillview) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

People don’t stick to the limit of 30.. they will not stick to 20 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

This will just increase traffic round the ring road 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(139) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Duffield Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

Abingdon’s speed limits work perfectly fine with minimal accidents or traffic hot spots 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The speed limit adequate it’s not an overbuilt area highly used by pedestrians, the diamond at lodge hill being built is 
priory over anything else 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(140) Member of public, 
(Wantage, Mably Grove) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

20mph is rarely exceeded in most residential roads anyway, adding even more street furniture to every street is an 
enormous cost for dubious gain. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Very few areas of Abingdon ring road have housing opening directly opening onto the ring road, by all means restrict 
speed limits in those areas but leave the rest be. Fuel, noise and safety improvements would be minimal.  Plus, why 
change speed limits if there's no enforcement action from TVP? No to mention the enormous cost of removing or 
modifying street furniture and signage. 

P
age 315



                 
 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(141) Member of public, 
(Longcot, Downlands) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

Speed limits only really work by consent.  I support changes to make roads safer including lower speed limits where 
existing limits are too high, but these appear to be blanket, unrealistically low limits, that no one wants, which will do 
little for road safety. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Speed limits only really work by consent.  I support changes to make roads safer including lower speed limits where 
existing limits are too high, but these appear to be blanket, unrealistically low limits, that no one wants, which will do 
little for road safety. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(142) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Austin Place) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 
I support 20mph on the small residential roads 
I do not support 20mph on the main roads into the town, e.g. Wootton Road and Oxford Road 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

THere is no need to reduce it 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(143) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Spring) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

Safer, but concerned with the number of roads impacted 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

This is a non-congested area most of the time, and feels safe at this speed limit already 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 316



                 
 

(144) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Mandeville) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

I support 20mph near schools and places where people congregate but do not support restriction of flow of traffic 
otherwise 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

There is no ring road with the houses being built.  Another ring road will need to be built to lessen the strain on 
existing roads. This will mean further intrusion into the Green Belt.  Cyclists do not keep to the cycle tracks provided 
they. come on to the road and hold up traffic as they are not prepared to stop at junctions.  Traffic needs to move 
freely around a ring road and the current plans put the roads around the town into residential areas not for what they 
were originally meant for. 
 
Travel change: Other 

There will be no change to mode of travel because over a certain age it is far too late to get a bike out and learn to 
cycle. 
 

(145) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Loyd Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

Residential streets should be 20mph for road safety reasons. 
Arterial roads, such as Oxford Road and Wootton Road, where the houses are laid back from the road should remain 
at 30mph to allow a more welcoming access to the town centre, otherwise even more people will go elsewhere to 
shop. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Should remain at 40mph to allow access around town, otherwise there is no disincentive to drive through the middle. 
Roads accessing Dunmore Road, such as Boulter Drive, need mini roundabouts now to give safer access to the 
Dunmore Road even if existing traffic was at 30mph, before the additional demand from the new houses. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(146) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Tatham Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

I object to the blanket approach and think changes should be more thoughtful and selective. 20 mph in residential 
side roads is one thing, and around schools would be desirable, but for main through roads such as Oxford Road 
from Peachcroft towards town this would seem unnecessary as apart from peak times this is not a busy road. Oxford 

P
age 317



                 
 

City has not used this approach and their traffic problems are far, far worse. On the Iffley Road there is a 20 mph 
limit only on the section approaching The Plain and this road has a constant massive volume of traffic including vast 
number of cyclists far exceeding anything seen on Oxford Road and others in Abingdon. Would it not be feasible to 
reduce to 20 mph closer to and in the town centre? 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The point of a ring road is to move traffic around the outskirts away from the town and personally I have never 
witnessed many pedestrians or cyclists on these three roads at any one time and there are pedestrian/cyclist lanes 
separate to the road already. These roads could surely remain at the current limit. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(147) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Curtis Avenue) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

I agree with 20mph on side residential streets and estates-but 20 on main roads through Abingdon such as Ock 
street and Oxford Road is too slow - people will become furstrated and won't stick to the speed limit - 30 is plenty 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

with all the houses being built around Dunmore Road, I think 30 will be necessary to allow people to pull out from the 
housing estates safely - it will be frustrating round Twelve Acre and Audlett but not a huge problem (although you 
don't get many accidents on those roads!) 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(148) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Knollys Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

Copenhagen Drive between Mons Way and Colwell Drive should remain 40 mph.  There are no road junctions and 
the pavement is wide. Why is 30 mph needed here? 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Exiting Boulter Drive and similar junctions is a dangerous nightmare. We have to join high speed traffic and miss 
pedestrians and cyclists crossing the junction. Often with poor visibility with the low sun and the road curvature. 
 
Travel change: Other 

I already walk and cycle 

P
age 318



                 
 

 

(149) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Alexander 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

I do support 20mph but initially I would suggest this could be introduced between the hours of 7am and 7 pm. When 
there is little traffic 20mph is a crawl, and could feel intimidating to a female pedestrian.( I occasionally walk back 
from friends along the Oxford Rd Abingdon- and it’s often v quiet.)  
Additionally integrate this with other schemes to discourage car use, eg  make all-electric local bus routes, visiting 
residential estates, frequent and free or very cheap, say 20p a ride. Or, better still,  give all residents a free bus pass 
to encourage use of public transport instead of a car. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Increasing traffic from new build roads, eg on Dunmore Rd. Will help cars turn out of side roads and reduce queues 
and traffic fumes. 
 
Travel change: Other 

Maybe 
 

(150) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Thomas Way) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

Cars go really fast and overtake cyclists in an unacceptable way. I fell once because of that 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I support cyclists who have to ride near there 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(151) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Gardiner 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

I have concerns that any speed limits won’t be monitored as per other local roads ie Audlett Drive where the average 
speed is now more than 50 and it is a  40limit road 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I support it if it is enforced - the current 40 limit is currently ignored and the average speed is >50mph 
 

P
age 319



                 
 

Travel change: No 
 

(152) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Hendred Way) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

We need to reduce carbon emissions and make cycling more viable for short journeys - the volume and speed of 
traffic puts me off, and I want my children to be safer cycling. Reducing speed limits would achieve this. I fully 
support the proposal but have 1 concern which is that the Oxford Road should be included!! It is AWFUL to cycle 
down with cars coming too close and too fast, and no cycle lanes. Please lower the limit here too. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

It won’t be a ring road much longer! Hundreds of houses being built on the field side, therefore it will be a central 
route for many people and past lots of houses. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(153) Member of public, 
(Steventon, High Street) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

20 is good for some roads, but not all in Abingdon: it should be implemented on Bridge Street, High Street, Stratton 
Way, Vineyard, Stert Street and many residential roads ( I cannot specify which residential roads as I live outside 
central Abingdon and don't use these residential roads). 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

This is not a dual carriageway and it has various roundabouts and junctions 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(154) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Hound Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

Not all roads need to be 20mph. Blanket approach not appropriate. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 
I live on the edge of the existing 'ring road' around Abingdon. The increase in traffic volume and noise has blighted 
any property adjacent to this route. The safety at junctions is being compromised by the speed and volume of traffic 
on this route. 
 

P
age 320



                 
 

Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(155) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, The 
Chestnuts) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

Concerned to know how the changes will be made and to ensure that all members of public are aware of the 
proposed changes and properly informed as and when changes are made. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I can see that there are benefits of this proposal. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(156) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Pagisters 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - No opinion 

Na 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

I’m not sure of the rationale behind this proposal as they roads all have dedicated cycle tracks I think 40 mph is 
correct 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(157) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, South Avenue) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - No opinion 
Whilst a broadly support a 20 mph proposal for back residential streets, I'm concerned that over use of such limits 
will make a mockery of them and will be more inclined to be ignored (take the 30 mph limit outside the European 
School for instance). A more targeted approach may make for a better result. Also, retaining a 40 mph limit on the 
ring road would increase the benefit to using the ring road opposed to taking shortcuts through the town centre or 
Nortcutt Road. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 
I think it would reduce the benefit of using the ring road vs taking rat runs through residential streets or going through 
the town centre. How about leave it, see how it goes, then look at it again in a year? 
 
Travel change: No 

P
age 321



                 
 

 

(158) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Boxhill Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I live on Boxhill road and 30 is dangerous with kids playing. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I just don’t think it’s needed. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(159) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Norman 
Avenue) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Some drivers go well over the limit in my road. There are kids going to kids. I am concerned for the safety of children. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I think the 40 limit around the ring road if fine. It may slow down the traffic too much and cause traffic jams. (More 
traffic jams) 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(160) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Picklers Hill) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Experience from Germany has been very positive to have low speed limits in residential areas, and higher speeds on 
motorways. I’m all for that. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I would wish to offset the  slower journey times in residential routes with reasonable speeds on the ring road. 
PLEASE DELIVER LODGE HILL JUNCTION 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(161) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Fitzharrys 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

P
age 322



                 
 

It 8s important that roads close to schools are safe for those who want to walk or cycle to school. Big roads should 
be at 40mph though. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

It is unnecessary and will put people off from coming to Abibgdon. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(162) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Andersey 
Way) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I drive, cycle and I am also a firefighter and I have seen the damage 30MPH can do to another vehicle I wouldn't 
want to be hit by a car doing 30MPH while I was on my bike. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

why? make it all 20 its much better than keep moving between both. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(163) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Private road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

It is both good for the environment and for safety 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I would prefer this to also go to 20MPH 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(164) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Villeboys 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Safety reasons 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

Rather it was twenty 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

P
age 323



                 
 

 

(165) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Coopers Lane) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I agree a reduction in residential streets could be beneficial and help reduce accidents, in areas where children may 
be. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I feel 40mph on a ring road is sufficient 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(166) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Norris Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

No comment 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

I would support 30mph limit on dunmore road but not on the rest of the ring road. Dunmore road has a lot more 
access roads and hence need for the lower speed limit to allow drivers to join and leave the road 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(167) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Willowbrook) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 
If by residential roads you mean roads where there are houses with direct access to the road in question...NOT 
roads  like Oxford Road/Audlett Drive etc which are  " through roads" 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Object 

The idea of a ring road surely was to divert traffic away from the narrow streets of Abingdon "town centre" and allow 
lorries etc to pass with less interference 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 324



                 
 

(168) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Northcourt 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Less noise and air pollution, and will hopefully stop the revving of engines, speeding and ‘street racing’ that has 
become the norm in Abingdon. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

I am concerned and quite frankly very disappointed that “sections” of the Oxford Road, Wootton Road, and Drayton 
Road will not be included in this speed reduction as they are three of the main race track roads around Abingdon. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(169) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Larkhill Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 
Improved safety, less noise, making it more pleasant to cycle 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

20mph on residential roads seems very sensible, but the purpose of the ring road is to enable cars to get around 
bypassing the middle of town. It's generally well segregated from pedestrian and bicycle traffic, so I think this should 
remain at 40mph. 
 
Travel change: Other 
Probably won't change it, but will make it more pleasant! 
 

(170) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Orpwood Way) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 
The estate I live on experiences vehicles travelling too fast for an area where people are walking around and children 
and pets are crossing roads. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

Some parts of the ring road have wide paths and cycle paths, and crossings for pedestrians and so travelling at 40 
mph isn't a risk. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

P
age 325



                 
 

(171) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Norris Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I think the proposals are reasonable for the residential roads proposed 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

I do not consider that the 'ring road' can be considered as a single entity, the roads concerned have significant 
differences. They should be the encouraged routes for passage around the town. Even with the new north junction, if 
/ when this is actually built, this should not be considered a routing for local traffic. The default case should be 40 
mph. 
In the cases of Audlett Drive and Twelve Acre Drive particularly there are good junctions and housing designed away 
from the road.  
I do see that, now housing is built to the north side and there a large number of more difficult junctions, there is 
probably a case for a 30 mph limit 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(172) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Evelin Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Think this is a great idea but the speed limit is currently 30 and not many drivers can stick to that .  
How will this be policed ? 
 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

Not sure this needs to happen. 
Better , wider paths for cyclists and pedestrians 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(173) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Hedgemead 
Avenue) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Generally very supportive but it isn’t accurate to claim these are all residential roads. Some may think such non 
residential roads require a 20 mph speed limit. Will certainly make me more confident about allowing my child to 
cycle in residential areas and to school etc 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

P
age 326



                 
 

Not clear this is needed on these roads. Perhaps more for climate and noise reasons but please make the evidence 
and rationale clear 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(174) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Larkhill Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Safer speed, especially on the narrower roads where there is on-street parking 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

There is a wide pedistrian path and cycle path away from the main carriageway. The road is wide. Bus stops are 
recessed off the road. There are light-controlled pedestrian crossings. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(175) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Galley Field) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Safety particularly for children. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

I think for most of the ring road a 40 mph limit would be more reasonable and also mean less people would break the 
limit. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(176) As part of a 
group/organisation, 
(Sustrans) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

The Sustrans mission is to make it easier for people to walk and cycle, and reducing the speed limit within a town 
such as Abingdon, that lends itself well to the 20 minute neighbourhood concept, should encourage greater modal 
shift by making the streets safer for those who wish to walk and cycle for daily, short journeys. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Concerns 

In principle, this is supported as the ring road has greater traffic flows and 30mph allows for less vehicle build up and 
dangerous overtaking. However, this needs to be matched with good quality walking and cycling infrastructure. For 

P
age 327



                 
 

the majority, the ring road has good shared use paths, but there is a lack of continuity in certain areas, especially 
around junctions and crossings, which make the ring road inaccessible for those with low mobility in particular. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(177) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Alexander 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I think in terms or noise, pollution and safety reducing the speed limit particularly the ringroad to 30 will have a good 
impact on our quality of life. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Living close to Dunmore Road i hear a lot of speedy acceleration from the roundabout as well as see that it has 
caused safety concerns. I have also lost 2 cats that were hit by cars on the road which may not have happened if 
slightly slower. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(178) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Boxhill Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

The number of intersections with traffic coming out of turnings into roads which have pedestrians of all 
sorts..children..elderly…cyclists….”wobbly” ones…mental health…means that uninhibited speed limit means 
basically traffic speeds up.   
1. Along Oxford road on approach to Boxhill Road…making the difficult turning into it..(cars parked every which 
way)….tricky. 
There is so much going on at that junction.  The surround needs to be 20 miles. 
2. And a deal of the considerable traffic which feeds into Boxhill road , from the estate behind, as well as football 
club, school run, motorbikes going over the foot bridge delivery vans, seem to assume a straight road is one to put 
your foot flat.   So even 30 miles is not respected. 
I’m often nearly wiped out getting into and out of my car. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

If the who area is slowed down..40 to 30. 
It makes taking 30 down to 20 more likely. 
Everyone can get to places twice as quick  if everyone goes half as fast. 
The noise pollution is reduced, let alone fumes, and fuel,consumption. 

P
age 328



                 
 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(179) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Wootton Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I support 20 mph limits in the town centre, residential roads and around schools  to improve safety and give priority 
to pedestrians and cyclists. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

It should make it easier for traffic joining from the side roads and also reduce noise on the ring road 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(180) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Fitzharrys 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I wholeheartedely support the reduction in speed limits to 20mph for residential roads. As someone who cycles and 
walks around Abingdon, this would help both me and me family feel safer (and encourage us all to cycle and walk 
more often). 
Increasingly I feel drivers breach the existing 20mph limits, and any reduction to help reduce the risk of accidents 
and deaths must be welcome. We need a safe, welcoming and pleasant Abingdon. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I believe that a reduction in speed to 30mph for the 'ring road' (which isn't actually a ring road) will help residents of 
Abingdon who cycle and walk on or alongside the road feel safer and more secure. Such a reduction could lead to 
an increase in cycling and walking trips, and also ensure a consistent approach to speed reduction across Abingdon 
if the 20mph reduction goes ahead. 
I fear that without this dual move, drivers who exit 20mph zones may be somewhat frustrated and see the ring road 
as their chance to drive 'fast' again - and maybe exceed the existing 40mph limit. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(181) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Lumberd 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

It would reduce noise and air pollution. 
 

P
age 329



                 
 

20mph Speed Limit - Support 
It would reduce air and noise pollution. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(182) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Appleford 
Drive) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Roads would be safer for pedestrians, cyclists and even car drivers if speeds were reduced. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

With more people needing to cross this road a slower speed would be safer 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(183) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Thames View) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Low speed limits in other towns means more relaxed driving with less stopping and starting. Other road users and 
especially kids less likely to be killed if hit by a car. Motorbikes often drive too fast and noisily. It doesn't add much 
time to your journey and it's safer and uses less fuel than stopping and starting. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Controlled slower speeds lead to fewer traffic jams. It's quieter for local residents. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(184) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Welford 
Gardens) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Believe it would be a lot safer 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 
A lot safer 
 
Travel change: No 

 

P
age 330



                 
 

(185) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Knollys Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

In favour of making roads safer for vulnerable road users and reducing car dominance 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Road is currently terrifyingly fast and horribly noisy 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
 

(186) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Lashford Lane) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I live on Lashford Lane, there is a primary school here and many horses on the road - yet still people continue to 
speed over and above the 20 limit. It is a matter of time before someone gets hurt. 
I lived in Reading 7 years ago and all roads with schools on were a 20mph limit (unless it was a main road 
strangely). 
I would like to see the same measures for school roads, all around Oxfordshire. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

40mph has always seemed too fast for such residential areas 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(187) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Gibson Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Lower speed limits improve traffic flow, encourage active travel and make us all safer 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

It will improve traffic flow and be less disruptive to residents 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(188) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, South Avenue) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I cycle into Abingdon and believe this would make the roads safer 
 

P
age 331



                 
 

20mph Speed Limit - Support 
With all of the new build houses I think the road will have more pedestrians on and think 30 mph will keep it safe 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(189) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Cemetery 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I live on Cemetery Road, off Spring Road. The speed with which people drive on a major residential road like Spring 
Road is already insane. The speed with which people drive on a small residential cul-de-sac like Cemetery Road is 
unacceptable, dangerous and unnecessary. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

30 is plenty so I support this as a speed limit. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(190) Member of public, 
(Appleford, Main Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 
it has been widely proven that a 20mph speed limit improves highway safety, in addition it will help and support use 
of active travel modes 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

sensible speed limit, 40mph is too high in urban locations 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(191) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, St Johns 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Anything to reduce accident and injury has to be a good thing. As a cyclist, it should make cycling on the road safer 
and more enjoyable (though better cycling infrastructure would be even more welcome) 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

This is not a 'proper' ring road, so the traffic isn't segregated from pedestrians and cyclists. As it runs through a built-
up area, there is no reason for it not to be 30mph. 
 

P
age 332



                 
 

Travel change: No 
 

(192) Member of public, 
(Dean Court, Eynsham 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Gives improved safety with little negative effect on journey times 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Improves safety with little effect on journey times over such short distances 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(193) As a business, 
(Abingdon, Vineyard) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I own a shop on the vineyard and cars speed up and down this road on a daily basis making it extremely dangerous 
for people. There is no pedestrian crossing or cycle lanes here adding to the danger 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

30 mph is plenty now the new houses are being built 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(194) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Abbott) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Improves safety for all road users, whether drivers, pedestrians or cyclists Likely to encourage more cycling and 
walking. Efficient way to reduce air pollution 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Ring road has large number of crossings and turns. 40 mph limit outdated 
 
Travel change: Other 

No change to own habits but will allow me to let my children go out more independentky 
 

(195) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Bostock Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

P
age 333



                 
 

The reduced speed limit will make the roads safer for crossing the roads when walking, and for cycling. It should also 
reduce pollution and noise, including climate change emissions. It's a really positive thing to be doing. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

There are often speeding cars on the ring road, and it is unpleasant to walk by, or cycle by or on. I don't think the 30 
limit will reduce speed to 30 all the time, but I expect a 'guilty 35' instead of a 'guilty 45', which will be a lot better. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
 

(196) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Darrell Way) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

It will encourage more cycling because potential cyclists will think the roads safer 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Support because there is an adequate cycle path near the "ring road" so cyclists won't have to be concerned with the 
30mph traffic 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(197) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Champs 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I cycle a lot and having slower speeds would mean I would be more comfortable with letting my children cycle on the 
roads 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 
Lower speeds means less accidents (if policed).  It will mean those who don't care and speed will instantly stand out 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(198) Member of public, 
(Shippon, Dart Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I regularly cycle and walk in Abingdon and would feel much safer if the speed limit were slowed down. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

It would make cycling and walking more appealing if the traffic were slowed 

P
age 334



                 
 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(199) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Ypres Way) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Making Abingdon a mostly 20mph zone would massively improve the local environment, making cycling safer, 
walking more pleasant and improving air quality. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I have chosen not to own a car, so commute to work and into the town centre on foot or by bike. I also ride weekly 
with a local cycling club. I have personal experience of the danger of high speeds on residential roads and have 
friends who have been impacted in collisions involving careless drivers. Movement on the road network in and 
around Abingdon must be significantly calmed to make it safer for cyclists and pedestrians and a more pleasant 
environment for residents. 
 
Travel change: Other 

I already cycle and walk everywhere but a 20mph limit would help me to feel safer using roads. 
 

(200) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Winsmore 
Lane) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Road safety, protect pedestrians, curb bad driving. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

The ring roads are close to built up housing estates and a reduced speed limit is required to protect pedestrians. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(201) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Prince Grove) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Safety and enhanced traffic flow. Less stop start. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Residential area. Reduce noise and pollution. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

P
age 335



                 
 

 

(202) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Loddon Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Need to make roads safer for cyclists, particularly children, and for pedestrians. Narrow roads in Abingdon mean it is 
unsafe to drive over 20 mph anyway. Long overdue change 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Some parts are already 30 mph so it confusingly present. Better to standardise on 30 mph. More housing in this area 
means more traffic merging from side roads. Area around Larkmead needs to be safer for children cycling to school. 
There have generalities among children cycling to school via the back way along the ring road 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(203) Member of public, 
(Drayton, Eastway Park) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

To improve safety of pedestrians and cyclists. Many car drivers speed on the 30mph roads and if the speed limit 
were reduced any caught speeding would hopefully be going a safer speed 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Safety 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(204) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, South Avenue) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I am a cyclist 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

30 mph is safer. 25 percent longer is only a couple of mins. Benefit outweighs dissadvantage 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

P
age 336



                 
 

(205) Local 
group/organisation, 
(Abingdon, Ypres way) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

For safety and health reasons. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Safety and health 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(206) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Kysbie close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I commute by bicycle and have young children. I especially support reducing the 40mph ring road to 30. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

It’s hard to cross and dangerous for young children on the adjacent cycle path 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(207) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Bailie Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

We live in an environment where it is very (too) easy to choose to hop in the car for short, local journeys. As well as 
incentives to walk/cycle/scoot by making areas more user friendly for those not protected by metal boxes, there need 
to be disincentives for those who find it harder to make the switch to forms of active travel. I whole-heartedly support 
initiatives that make it easier for people to make greener and healthier choices as part of their everyday routines. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

With increased housing facing the 'ring road' there will, hopefully, be increased non-car traffic. Lower speed limits will 
make it safer for new resident to make the choice to walk/cycle (and use & support local services) from the very start 
of their residency. I suspect measures may need to be taken to ensure the new limit is adhered to. Currently, the ring 
road is viewed by the minority as a race track - dangerous and off-putting for residents, pedestrians and cyclists. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(208) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Radley Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

P
age 337



                 
 

Reduce carbon emissions; create safer and more pedestrian friendly places. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Sensible complement to the 20 mph limit in the town centre 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(209) Member of public, 
(Abingdon (Peachcroft), 
Hound Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Having lived on Peachcroft for 40 years it has always been a concern that the main road through the estate has been 
30mph, as often cars go far too fast on the bends and approaching junctions sometimes in excess of 30 (particularly 
in recent years). It is only a matter of time before there is an accident and someone is injured. Also slower speeds 
will reduce the noise level for residents. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Having lived on Peachcroft for 40 years and always on the edge of the estate near the 'ring road', it has becoming 
increasingly busy and with all the new developments will get busier still. Reducing the speed to 30mph will certainly 
help when turning in and out of the estate as often currently some drivers exceed 40 and it is more difficult to find a 
safe gap to pull in/out. Also it will help to reduce noise levels as currently it can significantly impact the quality of life 
both living nearby and when walking/cycling along the 'ring road' path. Crossing the road to get to Peachcroft farm 
can also be quite dangerous given the speed limit. Appreciate some drivers will still exceed 30mph but expect the 
majority will abide by it and even those who don't might stay at 40 where currently 50+ can be the norm for some! My 
only concern is enforcement of the new limit, it would need cameras along the 'ring road' particularly at approaches 
to the turning on to Peachcroft and Mattock Way. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(210) Member of public, 
(Steventon, The Green) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

lower speed limit will improve air quality and road safety 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Safer 
 
Travel change: No 

P
age 338



                 
 

 

(211) Member of public, 
(Steventon, The Green) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

supporting active travel, road safety, pollution reduction 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

supporting road safety, reducing pollution, provides appropriate transition to 20 mph zones 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(212) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, East Saint 
Helen Street) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Safer, less pollution and reduced fuel consumption 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Same as previous 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(213) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Letcombe 
Avenue) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

A lower speed limit would help "set the tone" for travel on Abingdon roads and make them safer for non-car drivers 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

If the limit continued at 40mph there would be too great a disparity between ring road speeds and those on the roads 
which join it 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(214) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Evenlode 
Park) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Safer roads, better environment 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

P
age 339



                 
 

The road can be busy to cross.  In addition, with increasing development outside the ring road, it is becoming more 
of a local residential road 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(215) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Spring Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Abingdon speeding is a huge problem with very little control. Outside of the few roads with speed cameras, speeding 
and extreme-speeding are common place. Roads like Spring Road, Faringdon Road and Bath St. are frightening for 
pedestrians, cyclists, dog walkers etc. Accidents are common, deaths have occurred and near-misses (including 
near fatal) are commonplace. Many drivers 'enjoy' a foot to the floor mentality with no-fear of speed enforcement or 
prosecution. Cycling is unsafe as a result in Abingdon. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

The 40mph limit outside of the speed camera means speeds upwards of 50mph or higher are driven on roads such 
as Copenhagen Drive and Dunmore Road. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(216) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Jackman 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Too many cars are speeding over the current limit and it's dangerous for everyone 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I live near Auddlet drive and car here speed over the 40 limit and they don't reduce speed when the signs shows 30 
by the snake & ladders 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(217) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Swinburne 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Safety for school children 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Safety for school children 

P
age 340



                 
 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(218) As a business, 
(Abingdon, Bailie Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

The proposed change will make Abingdon safer for residents and visitors, reduce harmful emissions including 
carbon dioxide, and will make the town more attractive to potential employees ofnour business. We support the 
measure wholeheartedly! 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

See my comments regarding the 20 mph limit 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(219) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Alexander 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

As a driver, I've found it a more relaxed experience navigating the existing 20mph areas in Oxford (e.g. top of Iffley 
Road).  
As an aunt and great-aunt - there will be kids in the new estates to the north, the ring road has GOT to come down to 
30mph.  
As a pedestrian and cyclist - it's just easier on everyone if the speed limits are lower, as we all get more time to react. 
Traffic gets less hectic -> parents happier letting kids get to school on their own -> less traffic -> easier for the people 
who have no choice but to drive (trades, commuting to odd areas, disabled etc). 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 
See earlier 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(220) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Cherwell 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Parent of young children and want them to be able to be more active, cycle and walk to school in a safer cleaner 
environment. I currently cycle to work and this will also improve my own safety and experience. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

P
age 341



                 
 

The shared use path round the ring round is not very nice to use. Cars travel too fast round the ring road and there 
are too many entrances and exits where cars have right of way. Reducing the speed limit will go some way to 
improving this but steps should also be taken to improve the shared path by segregating pedestrians from cyclists 
properly and giving path users right of way over minor roads round the ring road (this should be clearly demonstrated 
by road markings) 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(221) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Boulter Drive) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Safety and congestion concerns 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 
Safety and congestion concerns 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(222) Member of public, 
(Wantage, Brundle Way) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

In residential areas parked cars will always be an obstacle for all road users and they certainly narrow the available 
road width to passing road traffic, and as such must be negotiated with due care. 
Cyclists typically max out at a steady average of 12 mph whereas motorists will be willing to reach 30mph and will 
have strong desire to pass, but this must be done safely. 
Motorists will assess the risk before conducting the pass manoeuvre, but mistakes do happen. 
Reducing the limit to 20mph will reduce the speed differential and grant better opportunity to rationally assess the 
real risks before impatience takes over, at least with the vast majority of road users. 
I acknowledge there will be exceptions; people do break the rules, especially if the risk of being caught is close to 
zero. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Consistent speed limits across the broader area may help reduce risks. 
In this sense I am suggesting that entering a zone that is entirely limited to 30 means you have no need to accelerate 
(hard or gently) into the 40 zone, or brake (hard or gently) as you leave the 40 zone and enter the 30 zone. 

P
age 342



                 
 

There is a tendency for drivers to push the limits of what is acceptable, but keeping it one speed limit will make road 
users' behaviour far more predictable, with only slightly more sedate a journey but significantly less harmful in the 
event of a collision. 
 
Travel change: Other 

I really want safe cycle routes from Wantage to Abingdon as a commuter, but sadly the present infrastructure is 
lacking and the roads are unsafe. 
I will not cycle to work as things stand, but I look to the future...if Wantage has cycling infrastructure then I will be 
using Abingdon routes. 
 

(223) Member of public, 
(Shippon, Barrow Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

30 mph is too fast. The transport hierarchy places pedestrians 1, cyclists 2 and private cars at the bottom. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Pedestrians and cyclists have been ignored for too long. The priority cars receive has produced a toxic environment 
that opposes active transport. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(224) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Radley Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Concerns about the environment, concerned about health and safety of children in Abingdon, and also the safety of 
vulnerable road users. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Because sometimes pedestrians need to cross the road, eg to Peachcroft or to travel to Sunningwell and the new 
estates there.  It is very hard to do this when traffic is coming past at 40mph.  Also because it makes walking or 
cycling around the ringroad very polluted, noisy and unpleasant. 
 
Travel change: Other 

Both walk, wheel and cycle more. 
 

P
age 343



                 
 

(225) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Thesiger 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

20mph is safer 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

safer 
 
Travel change: Other 
Already cycle and walk, as no longer own a car 
 

(226) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Galley Field) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Safety of pedestrians and cyclists. To encourage more people to travel on foot and by bike and bus. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Reduces pollution and makes it safer for pedestrians to cross. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(227) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Loddon Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I am a big fan of the policy of cutting speed limits on Oxfordshire's roads, and as a resident of Abingdon have wanted 
this for a long time as I cycle and walk a lot and it will make it a safer environment. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 
This should make it slightly more pleasant along the cycle/pedestrian path along the ring road as the cars will be less 
noisy. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(228) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Foster Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

In the town centre it can be difficult to cross the high street due to fast moving traffic. Often parts of Abingdon are 
used as a race track. Not everyone adheres to the 30 speed limit, but by reducing it further may make some 

P
age 344



                 
 

difference. The peripheral road definitely be reduced to 30 mph, especially with new homes being built on oppositr 
side of the road, there is no way it shoulx be 40 mph anymore. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

With homes being built on both sides of the road, it should now be classed as a residential area. Dunmore Rd should 
be reduced to 20mph in line with other residential areas. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(229) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Spring Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Reduce accident rates make residential areas a better place to live 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

30 is plenty 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(230) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, St Helen 
Street) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Abingdon is an old town with narrow roads. Anyone trying to drive at 30 mph along Abingdon High Street needs their 
head examined. And their licence taken away. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

This is a road used by pedestrians and cyclists - the cyclepaths alongside are not fit for purpose, forcing cyclists to 
use the road - and 30 mph is much safer than 40. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(231) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, St Amand 
Drive) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

A reduction in cars speed will be safer and reduce the dominance of cars and allow people to have a better 
experience of walking or cycling around abingdon 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

P
age 345



                 
 

Often 30 miles an hour is what can be driven, this is better for the environment, better fuel consumption and better or 
drivers 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(232) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Penlon Place) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

This is a small measure (other countries have tighter speed limits) with a large number of well-known, well-
researched, common-sense benefits and few downsides other than motorist rage. My safety trumps your 
convenience. Also, I anticipate opposition to this, so I want to be at least one supporting datum. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

This is a small measure (other countries have tighter speed limits) with a large number of well-known, well-
researched, common-sense benefits and few downsides other than motorist rage. My safety trumps your 
convenience. Also, I anticipate opposition to this, so I want to be at least one supporting datum. 
 
Travel change: Other 

No - I already walk for most journeys. However, I would appreciate the reduction in risk to life and limb I am exposed 
to for taking this radical form of transport. If there is a reduction in car traffic I might take the bus more - what is the 
point of a bus that is stuck in traffic? 
 

(233) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Hamble Drive) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

It is much safer to limit speed 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Cyclists for some reason refuse to use cycle tracks 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(234) Local 
group/organisation, 
(Oxfordshire Cycling 
Network) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

We strongly support the proposal. There are already many people cycling in Abingdon, as evidenced by the high 
level of cycling in Vale of White Horse in the DfT/Sport England Active Lives Survey (Abingdon is the largest town in 
VoWH). A 20mph speed limit will make cycling safer and more comfortable for them, and will make it more attractive 

P
age 346



                 
 

to current non-cyclists. It will also reduce traffic through the town because sat-navs will tend to selects alternative 
quicker routes. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

We support speed reductions on the ring road because the cycle tracks along the ring road are narrow and with 
interruptions, so many cyclists choose to use the main carriageway - this will make that choice safer.  
It will also improve safety and comfort for cyclists using the tracks alongside the ring road. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(235) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, South Avenue) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

As a regular pedestrian and cyclist I find the vehicular traffic alarming and over dominant.  The current system 
favours car drivers and it is dangerous and unpleasant for other road users.  The noise of vehicles is intrusive and 
roads in the centre in particular are polluted.  Any measures that give greater priority to pedestrians and cylists are 
welcome and if they deter avoidable journeys in residentail areas and the middle of town that will also be beneficial. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Since the ring road no longer marks the outer boundary of the town (a very poor decision in my view) speeds should 
be reduced as there will be more pedestrian flows across the road. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(236) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, River Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 
It's still dangerous for families to cycling on the road. 20mph would allow parents to feel a bit safer for their kids 
before safe cycling path setting up in Abingdon south. There is no cycling path in Wilsham road which is part of the 
n5 and nearby the Thames. Could be a lovely road if it would be safer and also free of the wild carterpillar car park. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

The slower the better. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

P
age 347



                 
 

(237) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Pytenry Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I support the proposals to bring about much-needed improvements to the quality of life of residents of Abingdon in 
terms of noise pollution, air quality and road safety. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I support the proposals to bring about much-needed improvements to the quality of life of residents of Abingdon in 
terms of noise pollution, air quality and road safety. This is especially so for the many people with the misfortune of 
living near to one of the increasingly busy so-called ring roads. I sincerely hope that additional measures will also be 
taken to reduce the very common tendency to exceed the speed limit on these roads, often massively (and very 
noisily) exceeded! 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(238) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Bowler 
Gardens) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

30mph is far too fast on the small residential streets in Abingdon, many of which have no appropriate visibility or 
crossing points for pedestrians. PLEASE reduce the speed limit outside St Edmunds RC Primary School to 20mph - 
we are in desperate need for this and I see near misses every single day on the school run. It’s a very serious 
situation and I’m very worried as a parent. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

30MPH is plenty. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(239) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Rose Avenue) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

20mph in towns is plenty fast enough. a car hitting a child at 20 has a better chance of survival than being hit by a 
car at 30. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Cars, lorries etc often travel at much higher speeds than 40 on these roads, maybe a 30 limit will make drivers think 
twice before speeding. also it will produce less polution. 
 

P
age 348



                 
 

Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
 

(240) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Kingfisher 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

local roads need more control 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

The ring road? what Ring road... yes please build a real one! 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(241) Member of public, 
(Oxford, Rymers Lane) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

safer streets for residents 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

less pollution, safer streets 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(242) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Market Place) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I live in Abingdon town centre and do all my errands on foot around town. There are many areas lacking in safe 
crossings (such as in front of the County Hall) where a reduced traffic speed would improve safety. I am also kept 
awake by cars and motorcycles revving their engines around the town, notably down Stert Street and High Street, 
though I do not think a reduced speed will help much with this issue. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Much the same as the answer submitted previously. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
 

(243) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Wilsham road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

P
age 349



                 
 

I live along Wilsham road and it attracts a lot of visitors and local families, I am constantly concerned about the 
speed some people travel. We have recently had a drop kerb because parking on the road means crossing the busy 
road, while the County Councillor was here approving the application he commented on how busy the road was and 
suggested I spoke to our local councillor because he was concerned. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

If it's 30 then maybe people will do 40 as currently it's such a fast road 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(244) Member of public, 
(Cowley, James Wolfe 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

To increase comfort for walking and cycling - Including accessibility for people with impairments. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Reduced congestion and noise pollution benefits. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(245) Member of public, 
(Kennington, River View) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Abingdon as a historic town has limited road space and it must be shared safely with all users 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I occasionally cycle on the carriageway to avoid the frequent side street dangers to the cycle path, so a lower limit 
will make that safer 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(246) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Fitzharrys 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

This is an excellent proposal to help support future grown in Walking and Cycling. Whilst a confident cyclist myself, 
my wife and children are scared of cycling around Abingdon because of the speed of vehicles. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

P
age 350



                 
 

With the new development proposed this road would function less like a ring road and more like a local distributor 
road. Reducing the speed with reduce the severance between the new development and the existing town. Priority 
side road crossings should be provided on the cycle path though to encourage greater use of this facility. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(247) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Curtis Avenue) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Number of cars parked on residential streets and often on pavements means 30mph is too fast.  Often have to go 
onto street with my young kids to get round cars on pavement.  Also, crossing road view is blocked by parked cars. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Bike/footpaths next to ring roads not physically separated and in parts quite narrow - 40mph doesn't allow sufficient 
time to react if something happens.  Also - noise - noticeable difference between vehicles, especially lorries , 
travelling at 40mph and 30mph.  Finally, I don't see 40mph as being necessary.  Length of ring road means 
difference in time taken 30/40mph negligible. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(248) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Saxton Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Cars are dangerous. There's too many cars parked by the side of the road for 30mph to be safe through residential 
areas. Slower and fewer cars make areas more pleasant to live in due to less pollution and noise, and making it 
easier for neighbours to get to know each other. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Cars are dangerous. Lower speeds are better. Reduces pollution, danger to pedestrians, cyclists, and other road 
users, and makes everywhere nicer to live. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(249) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Sellwood 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Safety 
 

P
age 351



                 
 

20mph Speed Limit - Support 
Safety 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(250) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Abbott) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I regularly cycle with the children and it is terrifying. This can only help. 
Will reduce noise and pollution in addition. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

No need for 40, 30 saves fuel and reduces noise 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(251) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Sellwood 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Small, but busy town, lots of families, schools and through traffic. Completely appropriate to reduce speeds locally. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Slowing people down a little will not impact their lives, commutes, jobs. It will save lives from serious injuries in road 
accidents. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(252) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Sellwood 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

The roads are too dangerous for cyclists and cars currently. 20 is a much safer speed in built up areas and will be 
better for everyone 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

The roads need to be safe for all users, the difference between 30 and 40 on semi residential roads is hardly 
noticeable but would have a huge impact on other users and if there were accidents 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

P
age 352



                 
 

 

(253) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Appleford 
Drive) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

We live on Appleford Drive which becomes a race track twice a day when parents deliver/collect from Rush Common 
School 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

We live on Appleford Drive which becomes a race track when children are delivered/ collect from school 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(254) Member of public, 
(Milton, Willow Lane) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

We need to take practical steps to discourage avoidable car journeys and encourage cycling and walking where 
possible to save energy, limit the impacts of climate change and make roads safer - I want to relearn how to cycle as 
an adult and I want my child to be safe getting around 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 
Slow cars down and get fewer on the roads where poss 
 
Travel change: Other 

I hope walk/cycle more, but could be part of getting my household to try bus instead of car too just being all part of 
positive alternatives to driving everywhere 
 

(255) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Bourlon Wood) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

In general, I think 20mph throughout towns is a good thing. I previously lived in Edinburgh and whilst it was initially 
frustrating, you do adjust quickly. It also brings a ‘calmer’ feel to the environment. 
In reality, plenty of people exceed speed limits, so with 20mph it’s more likely that people will drive under 30mph. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Same reason as for 20mph. I live off Copenhagen drive, and whilst the limit drops to 30mph close to the roundabout 
people are accelerating up to 40 so there is a ‘rush’ to get up to speed. 

P
age 353



                 
 

We are going to have more cars using these roads as the mass of housing is completed, so dropping the limit to 30 
is just going to create a calmer environment for the town, I think. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(256) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Virginia Way) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

The speeding behaviour of some people around my home estate (south Abingdon) is largely out of hand. People 
speed above 30mph. I do not feel save as a cyclist, pedestrian and most of all I'm worried for the health and safety of 
my two small children. I hope that the new speed limit would be supported by regular speed controls / enforcement 
and static radar traps around Preston road. This will not only be good for the environment but also the road safety. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 
Most of the time the traffic is so bad due to poor civil road planning and congestion that you will not be going any 
faster anyways. Increases road safety for all road users 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(257) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Sellwood 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Safety of community. Better for environmental pollution. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Safety of community. Lower emissions. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(258) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Willow Brook) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Twenty mph zones have been proven to enhance public safety, reduce air pollution and not impede traffic flow. 
There is no good faith argument against them. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Reduced speed limits have been proven to enhance public safety, reduce air pollution and not impede traffic flow. 
There is no argument against this. 

P
age 354



                 
 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(259) Member of public, 
(Sutton Courtenay, 
Barretts Way) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Strongly support a 20mph limit on residential streets to make them safer and less intimidating for cyclists and 
pedestrians. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Generally support a reduction in speed limit but I don't think 40mph is untoward on these roads. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(260) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Picklers Hill) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Lower speed = safer, quieter, less polution 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 
30mph needs to happen. the current 40mph is not enforced and the HGV speeds with all the new houses being built 
is excessive, dangerous and polluting 
 
Travel change: Yes – scoot more 

 

(261) As a business, 
(Abingdon, Victoria Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Pedestrians and cyclists need priority within the town. It's difficult to cross roads. Drivers need to be less aggressive. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Houses nearby and safety is comprimised by 40. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(262) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Lovelace 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

P
age 355



                 
 

Having lived here for 20+ years, I have become aware of how much more traffic there is in the area, and also how 
many motorists exceed the current speed limits.  I feel that 20mph in many areas will greatly reduce the risk of 
injury/death to pedestrians, cyclists & animals as well as reduce pollution..  I think that the introduction of 30mph limit 
on the Abingdon ring road is essential for safety for both road users & pedestrians with the new housing 
developments along these  roads. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I live adjacent to Dunmore Road, currently many motorists drive at speeds of 50mph or more, especially at night.  
Trying to drive on to the Dunmore Road from Boulter Drive has been a challenge for many years. especially in the 
rush hours, and at this particular junction the scene of a significant number of motor vehicle accidents.  I believe a 
reduction to 30 mph will be necessary given that we are currently having 900+ houses being built alongside the 
Dunmore Road & with a very welcome frequent bus service to/from Oxford introduced. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(263) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, River Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

1. Cars and other vehicles cannot easily react for a child jumping on the road, this drives parent a necessary 
constant attention to them. 
2. Cars are noisy at larger speed 
3. Fast cars drives tends not to respect security distances overtaking cyclist 
4. Fast cars tends to pick the risky choice of overtaking cyclist or other cars when it should have stoped to avoid 
slowing down. For example there is cyclist on both sides of Wilsham road (no space for overtaking them with more 
than 1 m) but the car choose to overtake. 
5. These remarks are aggravated when raining (for some reason) 
6. Lower speed lowers the amount of acceleration and hence reduce the city carbon footprint. 
7. There only a million reasons to reduce the speed of the cars to add space to people in our cities!  
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

This limit feels less important than the previous 20 mph as cyclist and pedestrian are safely separated from the road. 
But I am still strongly in favour of it as it will benefit in noise reduction, make the road crossing safer and reduce the 
carbon footprint of individuals 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

P
age 356



                 
 

(264) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Compton 
Drive) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

An easy individual response to the health and climate crisis is to cycle more. Most people are discouraged from 
cycling by the perception that it is dangerous. When public highways are safer, people will cycle, so it is incumbent 
on the Council to LEAD on this. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

30mph is often an aspirational limit, when the new developments are occupied and Aldi is open, that will become 
even more the norm. When the new developments are occupied the 'ring road' will not be a ring road, it will be much 
closer to a regular street and I would argue for 20mph on that basis. For those who wish to get from one end of 
Abingdon to the other in a hurry, they will soon have the full junction on Lodge Hill. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(265) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Orpwood Way) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Within a residential area, I don't feel there is any reason to be traveling at more than 20. It would hopefully 
discourage people from using residential roads as shortcuts, make roads safer, and decrease noise and actual 
pollution within those areas which are often populated with older people or families. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 
It isn't a road I use frequently. I think it is currently 40? I would have no issue with it being 30 and perhaps with would 
make it safer for cyclists. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(266) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Thornley 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Safer for cycling. Also may encourage local distance car users to switch to other forms of travel 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Safer for pedestrians crossing the roads 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

P
age 357



                 
 

(267) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Lindsay Drive) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

I want the roads to feel safer for myself and my family. I also want to reduce noise and polution. It is hard to cross the 
"ring road" right now with the current 40mph speed limit, which many drivers treat as motorway and drive much 
above this. My daughter is scared of going near the ring road because it is so fast and loud. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

It is hard to cross the ring road at the current speed limit. It is also very loud and polluted. My daughter is scared of 
going near the rind road because it is so fast and loud. Some drivers treat it like a motorway. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(268) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Turberville 
Close) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

There are so many children walking and cycling to school who I want to be safe 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

by having it a faster route, drivers may chose the ring road rather than coming through the town centre 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(269) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Ock Street) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Vehicles, particularly cars and motorbikes, routinely significantly break the speed limit on Ock Street where I live 
(near Domino's Pizza), sometimes at 60 mph, usually 40+ mph. Several people have been killed here, including a 20 
yr old man outside my home. I was nearly run down by a car doing 60 mph. Every effort should be made to stop this 
dangerous behaviour. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Most vehicles routinely break the speed limit. Reducing it to 30 mph would help to ensure most drivers at least slow 
down, even if they don't comply with the limit. To ensure that their is greater compliance, traffic calming measures 
like speed bumps and speed cameras will be needed throughout Abingdon. Even then, many drivers would seek to 
break the limit by for instance driving fast over speed bumps. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

P
age 358



                 
 

 

(270) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Chestnuts) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

No material impact on travel times in the town, but safer and less pollution 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

As above 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(271) Member of public, 
(Northcourt, Darrell Way) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

We live on Darrell Way between all the schools and the college. We have a single lane road due to cars parked on 
the road, but regularly have cars racing around our quiet road as a cut through. There are schoolchildren walking 
through here all the time, crossing the road and the speeding cars are DANGEROUS. We need a reduction of the 
speed limit AND speed bumps. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 
With all the new housing going up in the north, there will be more pedestrians crossing the roads. Also slowing the 
traffic will reduce emmissions. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(272) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Eason Drive) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Almost all traffic using Audlett Drive and Twelve Acre Drive exceeds 40mph.  In particular motor bikes seem to be at 
full throttle!  The speed camera is switched off/does not work. I have never known/seen a police speed check. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Almost all traffic, and especially motor bikes, appears to ignore the 40mph limit. Indeed, unless the 30mph limit is 
policed I fear the 30mph will never be adhered to. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

P
age 359



                 
 

(273) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Radley Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

There is too much fast traffic in Abingdon 
 
20mph Speed Limit - No opinion 

I don’t use that road 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(274) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Spring Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

We live on Spring Road, the traffic here goes way too fast as it is a long straight road, the speed of cars needs to be 
reduced considerably. So many children have to cross or walk along Spring Road to get to school and it is incredibly 
dangerous. I would also support a pelican crossing level with the entrance to Park Road to ensure the road can be 
crossed safely when needed. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - No opinion 

I have no issue with the current speed limit in the ring road 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(275) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Appleford 
Drive) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

We regularly cycle with children in Abingdon and are aware of the improvements to safety from a 20mph limit. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - No opinion 

Given the increase in junctions off the ring road, this seems appropriate. Improved segregated cycle pathways would 
help reduce the need for a lower limit. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(276) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Radley Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

P
age 360



                 
 

So many schools with lots of kids walking and cycling to and from. so would be much safer. We need safer roads!!! 
Talking from personal heartache of watching my best friend being hit by a taxi at 18 and being brain damaged ever 
since… 
 
20mph Speed Limit - No opinion 

Abingdon ring roads should be 30 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(277) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Fitzharrys 
Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Supporting. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - No opinion 

support 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(278) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Harcourt Way) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Make it safer and promote active travel 
 
20mph Speed Limit - No opinion 

Given the bike lanes, leaving the 40mph limit may make the 20s more palatable to drivers with minimal difference. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(279) Member of public, 
(Cholsey, Charles Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Improved safety for pedestrians and cyclists. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - No opinion 

Seems appropriate if well enforced. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

P
age 361



                 
 

 

(280) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Abbott Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

Improve car driver awareness of pedestrians and cyclists 
 
20mph Speed Limit - No opinion 

No view, already many cycle paths available 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(281) Member of public, 
(Abingdon, Larkhill Road) 

 
20mph Speed Limit - Support 

As an Abingdon resident, I am strongly in favour of these proposals. It is abundantly clear that many drivers pay little 
heed to the current 30mph limit and I have lost count of the number of near misses I have witnessed in the town 
involving pedestrians. The proposed changes would at least begin to redress the current imbalance between traffic 
and pedestrians. 
 
20mph Speed Limit - No opinion 
I have no pressing worries regarding the current 40mph limit on the ring road. However, I believe it is right that the 
views of residents of the area concerned be prioritised. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(282) Email response, 
(unknown) 

 
Concerns – Why is Oxford Rd excluded? This is a busy, fast main road which, with all the new build north of 

Abingdon and the proposed opening of the new A34 slip roads, will probably become busier. 
It is very intimidating and dangerous for anyone choosing to cycle and will become worse. Surely the few minutes 
lost by slightly slower traffic is worth it. The only reasons why there aren’t more accidents are that some choose to 
cycle in the pavement and others just won’t use bikes on that road. 
Unless you plan to create a proper cycle route ( not paint in the gutter) 20mph limit is essential. 
 

(283) Email response, 
(unknown) 

 
Concerns – I consider that the ring road 12 acre drive/ Dunmore road etc were originally built to draw traffic away 

from the centre of town. It would be a waste of time and money to reduce this to 30 There is only one crossing 

P
age 362



                 
 

Immediately after the Dunmore road roundabout. Which is the only area that I would consider needing attention at 
this time. As for the town the traffic goes so slowly anyway there is no need to drop the speed limit until the bridge is 
fixed and the additional one built .Any apparent danger is caused by these works. It would be wiser to use the money 
to open the Abbey Meadows Swimming pool when it is hot in the late spring. 
 

(284) Email response, 
(Abingdon) 

 
Support – I am a resident of Abingdon and strongly support  the proposals set out in the consultation. Lower speed 

limits in Abingdon will help address the climate change emergency by reducing carbon emissions and encouraging 
people to use other modes of transport i.e. walking and cycling. Walking and cycling will be safer  if there are lower 
speed limits.  The evidence suggests that with vehicles travelling at 40mph there is a 90% fatality rate for 
pedestrians; this reduces to 50% at 30mph and 10% at 20mph.  The lower speed limits will reduce accidents by 
increasing reactions times for road users  whilst reducing the impact of accidents. These factors outweigh the 
inconvenience which I might, as a motorist,   feel from slightly longer journey times within the town. The proposed 
lower speed limits will also greatly improve the environment.  I understand that government policy is somewhat 
lagging in terms of the ability of councils to enforce 20mph limits but would hope that government catches up 
although i know that this is not in the control of the county council. 
 

 

P
age 363



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Hendreds & Harwell 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 FEBRUARY 2023 

 
CHILTON: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised.  
 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Chilton as shown in Annex 1.  

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 

the County Council’s 20 mph Speed Limit Project 
 

 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within Chilton by 
making them safer and more attractive. 
 
 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 12 October and 14 November 

2022. A notice was published in the Oxfordshire Herald Series newspaper, and 
an email sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames 

Valley Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, 
countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, Vale of White 
Horse District Council, the local District Cllrs, Chilton parish council, and the 

local County Councillor representing the Hendreds and Harwell division.  

Page 365

Agenda Item 13



            
     
 

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
7. Three responses were received from statutory consultees. Thames Valley 

Police responded by re-iterating their views concerning OCC’s policy and 
practice regarding 20mph speed limits and consider their response as ‘having 
concerns’ rather than an outright objection. Stagecoach Bus Company 

responded but had no comments to make. Chilton Parish Council has no 
objections but would wish the existing 40mph limit joining the village to the A34 

link road reduced to 30mph. 
 

Other Responses: 

 
8. Fifteen responses were received from members of the public with 13 in support, 

one expressing concerns, and one objection. The concern echoed the parish 
council’s wish for the link road to be reduced from 40mph to 30mph; the objector 
also mirrored this view, but their objection centred around the 20mph limit being 

unnecessary given the environment will dictate 20mph speeds in most areas 
and where it doesn’t it will be ignored given the inevitable lack of enforcement. 

 
9. Those who responded online, were also asked whether if the 20mph speed limit 

proposals were implemented, would it likely influence a change to their mode 

of travel in the area, the results of which are shown below: 
 

Travel Change Number 

Yes – walk/wheel more 5 (33%) 

Yes - cycle more 2 (13%) 

No 7 (47%) 

Other 1 

 

10. The responses are shown in Annex 2, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 

 
 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

11. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 

greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               
The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 
speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 

of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 
County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 

that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  
 
12. The police concerns are noted. The objection raises no fresh points and in 

essence challenges much of the philosophy behind the democratically agreed 
decision to promote 20mph speed limits in communities. The proposal to retain 

Page 366



            
     
 

the approach road at 40mph reflects the open environment it passes through 
and its function of enabling efficient progress in connecting the village to the 

A34 link road. 
 

 
Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 

 Annex 2: Consultation responses   
  
   

Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 
    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 

 
February 2023 

Page 367



          
  

  

ANNEX 1

P
age 368



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states. 
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 
• road environment 
 

P
age 369



                 
 

However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch . 
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing 
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Chilton Parish Council 

 
No objection – Chilton Parish Council have no objections to the proposed 20mph speed limits and are pleased that it 

will come in, they were concerned though about the decision for Lower Road to go from 30 mph at the roundabout, to 
40 mph and then to 20mph at the Village entrance. They had felt and had hoped that it would be 30 mph along Lower 
Road to the Village entrance. 
 

(3) Head of Strategic 
Development and the Built 
Environment, 
(Stagecoach Bus 
Company) 

No objection – Stagecoach confirms that it has no observations or representations to make on the proposals for 

Chilton. 

() Local Cllr, (Chilton, 
Newbury Road) 

 
Support - It reduces the No of accidents. It’s good for environment. Good for people walking with their kids & pets. 

Also these are not the roads where it’s even feasible to drive more than 20 mph. 
 
We need 20mph on Newbury Road as well. We are struggling big time here as people from Chilton Garden Center & 
Primary school drives very fast while I am walking with my kids and pet. They don’t even slow down after seeing 
pedestrians. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

() Member of public, 
(Chilton, South Row) 

 

P
age 370



                 
 

Object - I live in (old) Chilton. And I walk, run, cycle, and drive in/out and around Chilton. 
 
The problem with this proposal as it stands is two-fold: first, it is a sledgehammer to crack a nut and, second, it 
singularly fails to address safety at one of the most dangerous points in the village. 
 
I have no problem with 20 mph zones where there is a clear and obvious benefit to having them (eg, outside schools, 
care homes, medical facilities, etc), or where they discourage rat-running through residential streets (eg, some of the 
roads between the Iffley & Cowley Roads in Oxford). But neither of these are factors in (old) Chilton. Indeed, the 
village roads are often so cluttered with parked vehicles that progress can be tortuous anyway. That said, I do 
acknowledge that Church Hill, and Lower Road between its junctions with South Row and The Paddock, do present 
genuine concerns. But I have lived in the village for almost 20 years and in all that time the OCC/Parish Council have 
done nothing to improve safety on these sections. However, this is not in itself an argument for imposing a blanket 
speed reduction throughout the village. The concern I have is that none of the consultation documentation mentions 
how the proposed 20 mph zones will be enforced. If there is no enforcement then proceeding with this proposal is 
pointless. Since our PCSO will be far better employed pursuing other crimes, and speed cameras are expensive to 
install/maintain, the only logical conclusion I can come too is that if this proposal goes ahead the village will, in short 
order, find its roads fitted with speed humps. I would not welcome these for many reasons, and residents in favour of 
this proposal should weigh carefully the consequences of this happening (eg, damage to their vehicles, or the loss of 
the bus service). 
 
My other issue with this proposal is that it at the very time it is seeking to amend speed limits, it is NOT going to 
amend the limit on the one stretch of road that surely needs an amendment: why is the section of Lower Road 
between the A34 Footbridge and the onward continuation of the path to the Village Hall remaining a 40 mph zone? If 
anywhere needed to be in a 30 mph zone this must? At the present we have the 40/30 transition on a blind sweeping 
bend with a junction (The Paddock) and where the footpath ends! Why not move the 30 mph limit back up Lower 
Road beyond the footpaths, or just make all of it 30 mph? 
 
For these reasons I cannot support this proposal in its current form. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

() Member of public, 
(Chilton, Crafts End) 

 
Concerns - As a resident I support the introduction of a 20 mph zone for the village of Chilton east of the A34, but 

have a concern regarding the detailed layout.  As proposed, there will remain a 40 mph section of Lower Road 
between the roundabout for the A34 sliproad and the start of the 20 mph zone.  As proposed this short section of road 

P
age 371



                 
 

will be sandwiched between an existing 30 mph limit at the roundabout and the new 20 mph zone. This is the only 
section of road in the immediate locality that is not already limited to 30 mph. As currently proposed traffic will be 
approaching the 20mph zone from a 40 mph speed limit. This section of Lower Road is crossed by pedestrians, 
including children walking to school, coming from Chilton village along the foothpath adjacent to the playing fields and 
wanting to cross the A34 by the Jubilee footbridge. In order to improve safety of pedestrians, reduce widely varying 
speed restrictions in short sections of road, and to make the new 20 mph more likely to be respected, I propose that 
as part of this scheme the speed limit along this section of Lower Road is reduced from 40 mph to 30 mph. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

() Member of public, 
(Chilton, Church Hill) 

 
Support - I live on Church Hill, a very narrow section of the road with no footpath. I see and hear the cars, buses and 

lorries that regularly speed past my house, sometimes too fast to stop quickly should a pedestrian be in the way. I 
doubt all traffic would keep to a 20 mph limit, but I would expect it to reduce speed overall. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

() Member of public, 
(Chilton, Crafts End) 

 
Support - The roads of Chilton include significant lengths with no or limited pathway, putting pedestrians in the road. 

 
Travel change: No 

 

() Member of public, 
(Chilton, Crafts End) 

 
Support - Support for 20 mph. Our village of Chilton has many old people and young children. Anything that protects 

them is worth doing. Like imposing a 20mph limit within the village 
 
Travel change: No 

 

() Member of public, 
(Chilton, Fieldside) 

 
Support - Chilton is not a 'through' village. As such it would be or little impact in terms of extra time it would take 

people to drive in the village. There are some areas where there is no pavement and Main Street often has parked 
cars which make driving safely more challenging. With some drivers exceeding 30 within the village there is a need to 
reduce the limit for everyone's safety. 
 
Travel change: No 

P
age 372



                 
 

 

() Member of public, 
(Chilton, Limetrees) 

 
Support - 20mph residential streets are the appropriate speed for the road environments in the village. 

However, Lower Road speed limit should be reduced to 30mph due to kids crossing the road to go over/under the A34 
to/from school. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

() Member of public, 
(Chilton, Crafts End) 

 
Support - Support in favour of safety for children, pedestrians, elderly, walkers, dog walkers, cyclists, running clubs 

and the local community who are regular users of roads in the village 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

() Member of public, 
(Chilton, Fieldside) 

 
Support - Chilton village has a few area without pavements which are extremely dangerous to walk along as a 

pedestrian. There are often children running, walking or cycling along there on their way to school and was always a 
concern for me when my children were younger.  
 
There’s a blind bend near the pub and traffic needs to go very slow there 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

() Member of public, 
(Chilton, Limetrees) 

 
Support - There are no pathways adjacent to some stretches of road within the village. This results in pedestrians 

having to walk on the road, with buses, cars and bicycles going past in both directions. Reducing the speed limit to 
20mph on ALL roads within the ‘old’ village would provide some level of safety in these circumstances. On the ‘new’ 
side of Chilton village, due to lack of sufficient parking provision within the boundaries of each property (my opinion), 
as part of the Planning process, many residents park on the, as yet, unadopted roads. Again, for safety and logistical 
reasons, a 20mph speed limit would be desirable. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

() Member of public, 
(Chilton, South Row) 

 

P
age 373



                 
 

Support - I always drive slower through tight villages which Chilton is but many people rag it through so it was be 
good to make official. There    aren’t many paths so school have to walk in the road. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

() Member of public, 
(Didcot, Scots Pine Way) 

 
Support - It is unsafe to go above 20 in much of the village and this will encourage sensible behaviour 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

() Member of public, 
(Oxford, Richards Lane) 

 
Support - I would like to see Oxford become a car free; and bike and pedestrian friendly city. 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

() Member of public, 
(Curridge, Berks) 

 
Support - The proposed roads are part of  horse riding routes around the village and up to the Ridgeway national Trail 

 
Travel change: Other 

I will feel safer as I ride my horse through Chilton when i use the adjacent  rights of way network. 
 

 

P
age 374



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Kingston & Cumnor 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 FEBRUARY 2023 

 
CUMNOR (INCLUDING FARMOOR): PROPOSED 20MPH & 30MPH 

SPEED LIMITS  
 

Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to defer a 

decision to approve the following proposals as advertised, pending further 
discussions to assess the acceptability of reduced proposals that meet the 
needs of all parties: 

 
a. 20mph speed limit in Cumnor, 
b. 20mph speed limit in Farmoor, and 

c. 30mph speed limit on the B4044 Eynsham Road in Farmoor. 
 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Cumnor and Farmoor and a 30mph speed 
limit on the B4044 Eynsham Road in Farmoor, as shown in Annexes 1 to 2.  

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 
the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 

 
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 

respect of the proposals. 
 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within Cumnor by 
making them safer and more attractive. 
 

Page 375

Agenda Item 14



            
     
 

 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 05 January and 03 February 

2023. A notice was published in the Oxford Times newspaper, and an email 
sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames Valley 
Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, 

countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, Vale of White 
Horse District Council, the local District Cllrs, Cumnor, and North Hinksey 

parish councils, and the local County Councillor representing the North 
Hinksey, and the Kingston & Cumnor divisions.  

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 

7. Three responses were received from statutory consultees. Thames Valley 
Police re-iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and practice regarding 
20mph speed limits; they consider their response as ‘having concerns’ rather 

than an outright objection. Thames Travel support much of the proposal but 
object to the introduction of a 20mph speed limits on Glebe Road, the section 

of Oxford Road to the east of the junction of Glebe Road and the section of 
Abingdon Road southeast of its junction with Glebe Road where they observe 
road widths are wider and with minimal active frontages to encourage or lead 

to frequent and planned mixing between vulnerable road users and motorised 
traffic. They also express concerns about the 20mph limit proposed for 

Appleton Road and High Street with similar arguments as above but where the 
impact of the proposals on services are anticipated to be too modest to maintain 
an objection.  Cumnor Parish Council support all the proposals. 

  
Other Responses: 

 

8. 108 responses were received via the online survey during the course of the 
consultation, and these are summarised in the table below:  

 

Proposal Object Concerns Support 
No opinion/ 

objection 
Total 

20mph Cumnor 17 (16%) 7 (6%) 80 (74%) 4 (4%) 108 

20mph Farmoor 14 (13%) 11 (10%) 71 (66%) 12 (11%) 108 

30mph B4044 
Eynsham Road 

20 (19%) 9 (8%) 69 (64%) 10 (9%) 108 

 

9. Three local councillors and 78 members of the public either expressed support 
or had no opinion for the proposals in Cumnor and Farmoor. There were also 
an additional 5 expressions of support solely for the Cumnor proposals. Both 

areas each received around 28 objections. Cumnor proposals prompted 11 
expressions of concern and Farmoor prompted 15.  

 
10. An objection was received from a member of the public from Witney who railed 

against the proposal in principle suggesting it was a dark day for democracy 

Page 376



            
     
 

and the start of a dystopian future with 20mph signs akin to the ‘Z’ sign 
displayed universally across Russia.  

 
11. The following analysis is taken from the remaining 19 respondents who offered 

focussed objections to the proposals.  
 

Reason No. of Comments 

Unnecessary 18 

Waste of money  4 

Safe enough as it is 3 

Increased congestion and delays 3 

Will make driving more difficult 3 

Increased emissions 3 

Will not be enforced 3 

Frustrating and divisive 3 

Just a political gesture 1 

  

12. Those who responded online (108 responses), were also asked whether if the 
20mph speed limit proposals were implemented, would it likely influence a 

change to their mode of travel in the area, the results of which are shown below: 
 

Travel Change Number 

Yes – walk/wheel more 14 (13%) 

Yes - cycle more 24 (22%) 

No 60 (56%) 

Other 10 (9%) 

 
13. The responses are shown in Annex 3, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 

 
Officer response to objections/concerns 

 
14. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 

greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents. 
The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 
speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 

of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 
County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 

that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  
 
15. The responses from members of the public indicate around 80% support with 

objections from the remaining 20% focussing on the usual concerns. The 

Page 377



            
     
 

unfocussed objection raised no new pertinent points and challenges much of 
the philosophy behind the democratically agreed policy to promote 20 mph 

speed limits in communities, as such there is no obligation to consider it further. 
The remaining objections are comparable to those expressed and considered 

in earlier similar schemes and were not seen as warranting a change in those 
previous proposals given the explicit intention of the County Council’s 20mph 
limit policy.  

 
16. The nature of the Thames Travel objection suggests it should be considered 

carefully. While Cumnor Parish Council support the proposals there may be 
merit in further discussions with both local councils and the local member to 
assess the acceptability of reduced proposals that meet the needs of the bus 

operator and pose no threat to the operational viability of services.  
 

 
Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1-2: Consultation Plans 

 Annex 3: Consultation responses   
  
   

Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 
    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 

 
February 2023 

Page 378



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 379



                 
 

 

ANNEX 2

P
age 380



                 
 

ANNEX 3 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – that National Guidance has not been followed regarding other speed limit changes  

 
Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and acknowledge 
that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be desirable for 
communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage greater 
diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, 
as opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being 
less safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the 
system of speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on 
threat of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where 
appropriate. There should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a 
speed limit is set too low as this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there 
are no additional resources available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not 
enforce need to be discouraged. Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - 
GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to 
reduce the burden of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 

P
age 381



                 
 

• existing traffic speeds 
• road environment 
 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect 
full compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need 
for increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Cumnor Parish Council 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Cumnor Parish Council put forward the proposal following concerns from residents over school children, 
pedestrians and driver safety. The reduction along Oxford Road/Cumnor Road, Farmoor has been a concern for 
many years. 
 
Travel Change: Other 

Residents would be more inclined to cycle/walk/scoot if the roads are safer. 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Fatalities and near misses have been recorded at the mini roundabout, School children trying to cross the road to 
catch the bus are in danger from being hit due to the volume and speed of traffic using this road. Reducing the 
speed will hopefully make drivers more aware of their surroundings and drive in a safe and courteous manner. 
 

(3) Business Development 
and Partnerships 
Manager, (Thames Travel) 

 
Support – We have no problem with and support these proposals where they do not affect bus services.   
  

P
age 382



                 
 

Cumnor has good bus service provision including buses up to every 20 minutes on the Stagecoach S9 between 
Oxford and Wantage and hourly buses on Thames Travel service 33 between Oxford, Abingdon, Didcot and 
Wallingford via Wootton. Additionally Thames Travel service 63 between Oxford and Southmoor also serves the 
village.  
  
We believe the introduction of a 20 mph speed limits on Abingdon Road between the junctions of Glebe Road and 
High Street and on Oxford Road between the junctions of High Street and Glebe Road are sensible suggestion, 
given the road widths, narrow pavements and the fact that it is unlikely buses are able to operate much faster than 
20 mph currently. We therefore support 20mph speed limits on these sections of road. 
 
Concerns – We have concerns about the 20mph to be applied to Appleton Road and High Street. In these areas, 

road widths are wider and there are minimal active frontages that would encourage or lead to frequent and 
planned mixing between vulnerable road users and motorised traffic. The impact of the proposals on our 63 
service are nevertheless anticipated to be modest, sufficient that we do not consider that an objection should be 
maintained.    
 
Object – We object to the introduction of a 20mph speed limits on Glebe Road, the section of Oxford Road to the 

east of the junction of Glebe Road and the section of Abingdon Road southeast of its junction with Glebe Road. In 
these areas also, road widths are wider and there are minimal active frontages that would encourage or lead to 
frequent and planned mixing between vulnerable road users and motorised traffic. These roads are served by up 
to four buses per hour in each direction.   
   
It is important that buses are able to make progress where it is safe for them to do so. Unlike a private motorist 
that may typically go along the road once in each direction in a day, buses operate along the above roads up to 67 
times a day in each direction and so the impact is that much greater. Slowing journeys makes bus services less 
attractive to passengers and would serve to encourage negative modal shift from public transport to private motor 
vehicles, which is contrary to the council's policies. Ultimately if journey times become too great, either, extra bus 
and driver resource needs to be added to maintain the same level of service (i.e. increased cost for no increased 
revenue) or alternatively timetables need to be trimmed so that they can be operated with the existing resource 
(i.e. reduced revenue from the same operating cost). This could lead to services becoming financially 
unsustainable and so could lead to service reductions.  
    
Given the nature and the distance involved it is unlikely that cycling or walking will make up significant mode share 
on the Cumnor to Abingdon, Southmoor or Abingdon corridors and only limited mode share on the Cumnor to 

P
age 383



                 
 

Oxford corridor. Therefore the council should be seeking to maximise support for public transport on these 
corridors to help achieve our decarbonisation objectives.    
 

(4) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

There is no history of accidents in Cumnor to justify 20mph limits. I've seen no study of current speeds but latest 
research suggests little to no benefit in Cumnor. 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/757307/20mph-
headline-report.pdf 
 
North Hinksey: 
The section parallel to the service road could safely be a 40 limit, no pavement, no crossings, no frontages. There 
is no reason to reduce the limit to 20mph. Compliance of the existing 30mph is already poor due to the low risk of 
higher speeds. 
 
The rest of the areas indicated already have lower speeds and traffic calming measures.Farmoor, no particular 
knowledge or opinion of the residential parts as I'm not familiar with them. 
 
Travel Change: No 
 
B4044 30mph – Object 

It's a main road with good visibility and separation from frontages. 
There have been no accidents along the 40mph stretch so no justification for lowering the limit. 
 

(5) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Robsart 
Place) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

As a parent of 2 children in Cumnor I am happy that the current speed limit is safe, my youngest walks herself to 
school and eldest cycles to secondary school. The time and expense to change what is realistically at most a 
miner risk isn't justifiable. 
 
Travel Change: No 

P
age 384



                 
 

 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

No strong opinion but all the houses are set well back from the main road, so don't see that any change would 
make Farmoor safer! 
 

(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Oakwood 
Way) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

It doesn’t need to be lowered to 20 mph in Cumnor 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

No comments 
 

(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Hawthorn 
Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Unnecessary in Cumnor, but the roads around North Hinksey are narrow with plenty of bends, often without good 
pavements 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

40mph seems the right balance. There's no large amount of pedestrians close to the road. 
 

(8) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Crozier 
Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

I simply do not support the 20MPH initiate.  Driving round Oxford is quite frankly dangerous because you are 
constantly looking around for the speed changes, both signs and then checking your speed.   The number of times 
it changes in such short distances is a joke.   And I cannot see how it achieves anything other than causing even 

P
age 385



                 
 

more congestion and frustration to drivers.   Enough is enough of the anti-driver mentality of OCC.  I will never 
support it (and don’t know many who do - silent majority!) 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Concerns 

Yet another random change.   I assume this refers to just the part of the road that passes the houses in Farmoor?   
Or is it the whole road from Botley to Eynsham?  If the latter I fully object.   If the former then it raises the question 
- why not 20mph? Why change at all?   There are fields the other sides so what is the justification?   If lots of 
accidents and injuries then I would support.   Otherwise it is just picking on drivers yet again. 
 

(9) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Laburnum) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

I cycle and drive. Demonising drivers (who may have very good reasons for driving) at a time when everyone’s life 
could just do without added constraints is just pointless. Improve schools. Improve social care. Stop focusing on 
things that make very little difference in reality. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Concerns 

A separate cycle Lane is needed, as has been campaigned for for years. This just penalises commuters. 
 

(10) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Lime road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

Further waste of money. Teach people how to cross the road properly rather than reducing speeds. A lot of this is 
more about political agendas than need. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

Is OK as it is. 

P
age 386



                 
 

 

(11) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Turner 
Drive) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 
The reduction in speed is not necessary in these areas. The speed limits are unlikely to be enforced so everyone 
will continue to drive at 30 mph. Therefore the replacement of the speed limit signs will be wasted. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

If a proper cycle path was built then there would be no need to reduce the speed limit 
 

(12) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Eynsham 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

Unnecessary to reduce from 30mph 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

Safe enough as it is 
 

(13) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Cumnor 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

It is dangerous to be driving so slowly as far as cars are concerned. . It creates more emissions and is dangerous 
to health. It is a necessary and impossible to police. It will create a very divisive community. Locals will be 
extremely frustrated. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 

P
age 387



                 
 

B4044 30mph – Object 
It won’t be policed or enforced regularly enough for drivers to stick to. 
 

(14) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Robsart 
Place) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

Don't have a problem with current speed of vehicles in these areas. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

Current speed limit is adequate for the road. 
 

(15) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Robsart 
Place) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 
Not needed 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

Ridiculous 
 

(16) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Witney, Oxford 
Hill) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

It is undemocratic, unethical, divisive and disrespectful for communities of whom can see no need to change the 
speed limits. Why is that? Because there is no such report advising that the road through the Villages, Cities or 
Towns for example is at 80% risk of death or serious injury if the speed limit is not changed. This consultation if 
anybody wants to call it that (clearly not) is going to undoubtedly ignore public opinion like Witneys because the 
Councillors cannot kick the habit, they appear to bitterly hate anybody that has to do an essential journey in a car. 
There are other ethical and more sensible approaches to cycle and walk more. For example increasing public path 

P
age 388



                 
 

space to signal where a pedestrian and cyclist can have their own lane including encouragement notices on local 
notice boards. 
 
I visit the Village of Farmoor sometimes to have a walk around the Reservoir and drive through within the current 
speed limits when safe to do so to get away from the distress of the dystopian 20 mph signs from a nearby Town 
that are as comparable as Russian Z symbols you see in a Russian street every 100 yards where it made a walk 
locally at home a utterly bitter and depressing experience knowing that these 20mph signage changes are a 
political decision and not a road safety decision. A political decision that has no public support and has built 
residential resistance (civilly making the points why they should be changed back are taking place as I write this). I 
don't take it lightly to compare the Russian Z symbol to a 20mph sign but if the reader googles a Russian City or 
Town and what it looks like with the Z symbol in that county it is as comparable as the 20mph sign easily shown 
every 100 yards or less. It is regretful but the honest truth especially as these 20mph signs are within even dead 
end streets that have no through roads as well making it even more frustrating.   
 
Devastating to see Farmoor, a place that has brought great joy to communties either sitting on the bus going past 
the Village towards Oxford or Eynsham or to visit the Reservoir to see that despite seeing zero road incidents 
within the Village, have such a change needlessly taking place that the Police cannot cope with enforcing 
especially when local Politicians pushing for these changes will undoubtedly carry on going past 20mph as will 
emergency service personnel (when not on emergency calls) including public transportation which of course, 
highlights a hidden hypocrisy that will take place when the consulation ignores public opinion. If its ok for them it is 
ok for the rest of us and I hope many residents and within Oxfordshire will come with me to make a stand and that 
is to say no. No to such depressing road signs and money wasted taking away our future generations common 
sense, personal responsibility and the basic human right to choose how we cycle, walk and drive to places. We 
will be ashamed of what horrid path this Council has chosen, the decision to ignore public opinion and rule within 
minuit management by edict with no supportive evidence of this change and one that has no loyal compliance 
even after that. This will undoubtedly depress many residents psychologically seeing how needless this was, how 
robbed their community is of having common sense and a sense of personal responsibility as per the Highway 
code and is depressing for passionate motorists that can see that even the study Belfast University did to show 
that slower speeds don't reduce road incidents either, link here if the individual or senior management are 
interested in reading. Some will sadly ignore this objection to the proposal but some I hope will take back these 
genuine points to senior bosses of whom are trying to fight against this nonsenical anti-car movement. 
www.transportxtra.com/publications/local-transport-today/news/72511/university-study-questions-impact-of-
20mph-limits-in-belfast-city-centre 
 

P
age 389



                 
 

Farmoor when visiting has great access for cycling and walking safely so does not make sense and urge all 
residents to write to MPs, maintain pressure on Councillors and the County Council that for as long as those in 
charge have one rule for themselves it is ok for the rest of us to decide to drive near to 30mph with competent 
common sense just as seen over the decades when even our Grandparents drove safely. No card can be played 
to ignore this as hope to explain further.  
 
On the road towards Botley as one example shows there is massive space between the road, houses and 
pathways where traffic can pass safely. Therefore there is no risk to the pedestrians and suggestions the Parish 
Council concerns appear to possibly be a political false flag that is simply justifying the Council's next attack on the 
Motorist but interestingly also to Bus passengers. Surprised the Parish Council never wrote about it ten or twenty 
years ago the urgency to change the speed limit until now. As a Bus passenger the 20mph roads put me and my 
Fiancee off personally travelling on the bus. Why does a 20mph road in a Town/Village put us off? Let me explain 
in case your interested. The longer Bus journey because of this speed limit imposed makes it more frustrating 
when sat on the Bus, first because on the Bus, the Passengers, Bus drivers and Stagecoach officials can see 
there is no risk on the road ahead, second is because when going through Eynsham for example (which even 
TVP objected the speed limit change!), it takes longer to get through the Village. Takes longer for ourselves to 
complete our journeys so thoughts go out those that have jobs in the City, going through Witney or wherever 
where their Bus schedules are forced to change drastically making the journey even more miserable for the 
people that your Council seem to clap for encouraging to use Public Transport. Meaning you are also putting 
Passengers off from coming to Oxford as well because the Bus is forced to run as slow as cars. Maybe a Train 
ride now is more attractive than a Bus going a miserable 20mph (unless the Bus companies join residents in civilly 
ignoring as they have done). After our Bus journey with the new speed limits experienced we simply decided we 
would only go to Oxford when having a drink with friends but not to shop and likely never again even by car. Even 
Swindon are more welcoming than the Council are in Oxford (with cheaper parking arrangements) making it a 
disappointing remark because we love Oxford but clearly the Council do not reciprocate that for its residents at the 
moment. Hopefully the sun will shine on Oxford like it did under the previous administrations. 
 
Lets not forget either that this is the same County Council of whose senior official said to the Sunday Times, 
"Traffic Filters in Oxford is going to happen definitely" implying the scheme would go ahead whether public opinion 
opposed or unopposed leading me to my point that this is the same with the speed limit changes. This Council 
and their staff should ask this, is it worth continueing this ruinous scheme that will create further political distrust 
toward local authorities. Is it worth creating distress to residents living there to see these signs every 100 yards as 
comparable as propaganda. Future generations will be unfortunately robbed of sensible common sense and will 
see this for what it is. The Highway Code officials do not see a need to amend speed limits so cannot understand 

P
age 390



                 
 

this political movement against the motorist. Why have we got a Council that has been voted in to attack the 
Motorist? If this is because of a personal experience then we are living in very dangerous territory democratically.  
Is this healthy for a car and the pedestrian to remain at 20mph? No because it does not matter if your driving 
20mph or 30mph the emissions remain the same, the air does not get any cleaner in fact because you are slowing 
down traffic you are simply making the air worse. At 30mph emission fumes retreat a lot quickly especially on a 
straight road where somebody does not need to drive slower especially when there is no obstacle to hit. Even 
Councillors know that despite pushing for this 20mph crusade (apparently prioritising signage instead of road 
surfacing improvements from what I been advised within the industry). Road accidents will not be eradicated so 
the ideology thinking we will eradicate road incidents/fatalities I am afraid are kidding themselves. 
 
I do not oppose 20mph signs by a School, Town Square or Retirement Community within the road of a settlement 
but I am deeply against a blanket speed restriction across a Town, City or Village when the public opinion is 
ignored for political purposes. This creates mistrust in local politics where even sensible people will be asking like 
they did in other national scandals "Why should the public listening to their Council or on the News do things when 
people working within their Council are not prepared to listen to their Communities?" 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

No need for speed limit to change. 40mph has been fine throughout and explain this again further in depth below. 
Plenty of space between the road, pathways and safe distance from houses and private driveways. Again not 
expecting any interest in taking this matter seriously as the Council seems uninterested in engaging with anybody 
that disagrees with their ideology. 
 

(17) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Deanfield 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 
Because the 30mph currently in place in adequate. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Because the road is too fast for a road with hazards, hidden entrances and sharp bends 
 

P
age 391



                 
 

(18) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Chawley 
Lane) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

A large percentage of these roads will never have more cyclists or pedestrians on them - the topography, 
demographics and location all mitigate against this ever happening. Reduced limits are a great idea in fully built up 
residential areas - housing estates, densely populated streets, etc but not in sparsely populated semi-rural areas. 
Reducing the limits in all the proposed areas will just frustrate most people - 20mph is too slow on an 'open' road 
when trying to journey from A to B. An unintended consequence of this reduction may well be more accidents and 
not fewer, has this been considered?  
 
And what of the environmental considerations? For many vehicles 20mph will mean a lower gear with higher 
engine revolutions and thus pollution - and we don't want more pollution do we? 
If the Council is keen to make our roads more pleasant places to be, then fixing all the huge potholes would be the 
best place to start. Many of the current potholes are big enough to cause serious injury (at best) to cyclists, 
potentially killing motorcyclists, and damage to cars too. Please start with fixing these! 
We are all already enduring a miserable time at the moment , please don't add to it with an unnecessary and 
undoubtedly costly, measure! 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

30mph seems a reasonable speed here. 
 

(19) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Hurst 
Lane) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 
No value to road safety or fuel consumption. Meaningless gesture that makes driving difficult 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Reasonable speed limit 
 

P
age 392



                 
 

(20) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Appleton, 
Badswell Lane) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Concerns 

The whole of Oxfordshire is becoming overwhelmed with 20mph speed limits. These limits are often in 
inappropriate places, plus the police do not have the resources to enforce these traffic management schemes. 
OCC would be better placed trying to make the roads suitable for all users. Fixing potholes etc. 20 mph zones are 
creating more bad driving habits than they are solving, those of us adhering to the speed limits as being tail gated 
and over taken making the roads more dangerous. I would suggest pedestrians start to pay more attention to 
roads, by removing ear phones and stop using mobile phones.  
 
This is a costly exercise along with the travel gates the only people who win are OCC who will I’m sure find a way 
to impose fines on those exceeding 20mph. I would point out I keep to relevant speed limits. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Due to the nature of this road and volume of traffic plus no where for cyclists as the hoped for cycle way was 
abandoned 
 

(21) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Meadow 
Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Concerns 

With the school and proximity to the A420, it makes sense to reduce the speed limit in Cumnor. Farmoor isn't as 
built up and doesn't have a school. The main road is a connecting road between Botley and Eynsham and is very 
lightly populated in comparison to Cumnor and North Hinksey. Not only does it not need a reduction in the speed 
limit, any reduction put in place would likely worsen the issues with through traffic buildup during busy times. The 
connecting Eynsham Road between Dean Court and Farmoor should definitely not have a speed limit reduction 
(currently 50mph). 
 
I have fewer concerns about reducing the limit in North Hinksey, however it is still a main road, so 30mph should 
be adequate. 
 
Travel Change: No 

P
age 393



                 
 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

This is a relatively rural road, so 50mph is appropriate. I have frequently witnessed erratic driving and near misses 
when drivers have been going significantly below the current 50mph speed limit, closer to 30mph, as other drivers 
attempt to overtake. What this road really needs is a cycle lane, not a reduced speed limit. 
 

(22) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Hinksey, 
Hazel Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Concerns 

Cumnor - residential roads, tight with parked cars so 20 is ok 
Farmoor, the road is the main route to/from eynsham should stay at 40 or at 30 
North Hinksey - Eynsham road was 40mph until recently now 30 with zero justification for reduction to 20. If 
desired to reduce traffic route it onto A420 and close road to access &busses only. 
 
Travel Change: Other 

Will avoid area and take my money elsewhere 
 
B4044 30mph – Object 

Its the main arterial road and reducing speed will increase congestion and pollution 
 

(23) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Hurst Rise 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – No opinion 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 
They are unnecessary. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Concerns 

I'm not convinced it's necessary. 
 

(24) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Concerns 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 

P
age 394



                 
 

public, (Eynsham, 
Hazeldene Close) 

North Hinksey 20mph – Concerns 
20 mph is good on residential roads and in stretches adjacent to schools. However, on main roads 30 mph would 
be far more suitable. Blanket 20 mph speed limits are pointless - see the effect it has in Witney where cars are 
crawling along and inpatient drivers are overtaking on these roads. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Concerns 
30 mph through this stretch is fine although most people adhere to the current speed limit. The only thing that 
would make that stretch of road safer is to build the cycle path. I live in Eynsham and drive along that route every 
day. I would cycle but will not feel safe doing so until the cycle path is built. Reducing speed limits will have no 
impact on making it feel safer to cycle. 
 

(25) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Henwood, Cumnor 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Concerns 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 
North Hinksey 20mph – Concerns 

Whilst I support 20 limits on the side roads and residential roads, I believe the main trunk roads through these 
areas should remain at the limit they are, with the exception of Cumnor, where around the school and church area 
(before the roundabout) would be effective. 
 
Re: Botley area, Making Eynsham road a 20 limit would not be a good idea as it is a main trunk road and I do not 
see the justification of it, but side roads like Dean Court I support 20 as they are highly residential. 
Re: Farmoor, I see no point in making the small stretch from Cumnor direction to the double roundabout a 20, but 
would support changing the road through Farmoor becoming a 30. 
 
Re: Cumnor I support the limit changing to 20 from the roundabout up to the school and church, but beyond this 
(on the roads towards Appleton and Farmoor) I don’t see much point as again the level of residential housing 
drops off.  
 
To summarise, the plans are too extensive in their ambitions to make the whole areas 20, and I believe it should 
be confined to side roads and areas where there is a justifiable need to make it 20 rather than blanket-changing 
the speed limit over the whole area to be lower. Trunk roads should not be included in this proposal. 
 
Travel Change: No 

P
age 395



                 
 

 
B4044 30mph – Concerns 

This change from 40 to 30 makes sense to me, there is a bus service with crossings and residential properties 
which justifies it. However I would like to see a study on impact of congestion from changing this limit down as it is 
a busy trunk road. 
 

(26) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, The Garth) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Concerns 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 
North Hinksey 20mph – Concerns 

Whilst a 20mph limit might be appropriate for smaller roads within the area, I don’t think it’s a good idea for the 
bigger roads (e.g Westminster Way) 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

The road isn’t in a built up area and the proposed cycleway would be a better solution to improve safety along the 
Eynsham Road 
 

(27) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Concerns 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 
North Hinksey 20mph – Concerns 

There should be more exact areas like outside schools should be reduced speed limits not a blanket over all roads 
in the areas 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

Busy road which has always has a lot of traffic passing through 
 

(28) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Appleton 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Concerns 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 
North Hinksey 20mph – Concerns 

P
age 396



                 
 

Concerns about adding to traffic congestion 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

As a regular cyclist along this dangerous road anything that improves cycle safety should be encouraged 
 

(29) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Halls 
Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Concerns 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

No comments. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

No comments. 
 

(30) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Conifer 
Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Concerns 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Farmoor and north hinksey are both narrow roads and vehicles often go far to fast along there, especially where 
no pavements for pedestrians.    Cumnor in the main is Ok at the current speed limit (and i used to live and travel 
that way daily for 40+ years), the village has pavements on at least one side if not both for most of the way.  on 
the arterial roads then i think the current limit is Ok as people know to take care. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

30 is about right for the road conditions (and people will still exceed it in all probability). 
 

(31) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Cumnor 20mph – No opinion 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 

P
age 397



                 
 

public, (Farmoor, 
Eynsham Road) 

North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 
I live on the b4044 where there is a 50 mph zone yet this is not being reduced even though there is a residential 
home, a camp Site, houses on both sides of the road and a farm. Several Cars have gone in the ditch and there 
have been two fatalities in the last few years. I do not agree That the b4044 40 mph zone needs to be reduced to 
30 as there are only houses on one side of the road for the majority.  The 50 mph should 
Be reduced first! 
 
Travel Change: No 
 
B4044 30mph – Concerns 

As outlined ealier 
 

(32) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Bertie) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – No opinion 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

The question is so generalised I can’t answer 
 
Travel Change: Other 

I will drive at 20 or below 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

40 is too fast to react to cyclist farm traffic bnds etc especially at night 
 

(33) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Oakes 
lane) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – No opinion 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

Because it will be dangerous for residents without this speed limit 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 
It should be 20mph 
 

P
age 398



                 
 

(34) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Dean 
Court Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

My children go to Cumnor school and it is not safe with cars going past at 30+ mph. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

There are not very many houses so the current 50mph is appropriate. It does need a cycle lane. 
 

(35) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Cumnor 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

I live in farmoor, in valley farm barns, and often struggle to cross the road due to speeding cars and especially 
trucks, last week I was walking in the road as I couldn’t walk on the over grown, flooded swampy grass, and a 
truck came around the corner next to the national speed limit sign, it’s a good thing I wasn’t on my phone as he 
didn’t even slow down and I had to jump onto the grass. Or I would’ve been run over. 
 
Travel Change: Other 
It would mean not only would I be able to get the bud more frequently but also cycle without the feet of being hit, 
as lots of bikes have been hit near where I live 
 
B4044 30mph – Object 

Because it’s unsafe, and I a teenager have to walk home everyday from the bus stop and often am out in 
dangerous situations due to speeding vans and lorry’s 
 

(36) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Abingdon 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

High pedestrian usage especially at school entry/exit times. The villages should not be used as "rat runs" 
 
Travel Change: No 

P
age 399



                 
 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

High volume of traffic where the residences are located further back 
 

(37) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Oakes 
Lane) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I support the implementation of the 20mph speed limits. However, re: Farmoor, to not extend the 20mph zone a 
short distance to the entirety of the existing 40mph zone would not only be grossly unfair to the residential 
properties at that end of the village, but more importantly, an extremely dangerous move which will very likely 
result in accidents in the future. Specifically, the point at which the proposal suggests the 20mph speed limit stops 
on the Cumnor Road is at the top of a blind hill crest, which is just above a busy crossing point for wildlife (foxes, 
deer, badgers and hedgehogs etc) and at the bottom of which fog often sits (a low point near the reservoir) around 
the busy main entrance to the Thames Water facility. This wide entrance is regularly used as a turning point for 
cars and lorries who often sit in the middle of the road waiting to turn right. Furthermore, on the other side of the 
road in quick succession are 3 residential turnings and the very busy entrance to the Farmoor Court business park 
(to say nothing of the proposed entrance to an enormous solar power plant currently under consultation). It is for 
this very reason that highways/ the council have in the past refused planning permission on the land directly 
opposite the Thames Water entrance at the bottom of the blind hill. We regularly hear the screeching of brakes as 
people brake to avoid animals, or cars dawdling in the middle of the road as they turn into or exit Thames Water, 
so if this now becomes the point where drivers, (impatient at coming from a 20mph zone and keen to make up 
time) begin to rapidly accelerate with their foot on the accelerator, it will actually become even more dangerouns 
than it already is. We're aware of at least 3 accidents in the past on this very spot and many more close shaves. 
For this very reason weve been requesting a reduced speed limit for years. In the other direction (towards 
Farmoor), the same blind crest has resulted in at least 2 accidents we know of in the past, where speeding cars 
have ploughed into the back of parked cars on the left by the end of Mayfield Road. I therefore urge you to do the 
logical thing and extend the zone to the whole of the existing 40mph area, and indeed slightly further beyond the 
entrance to Valley Farm Barns and the proposed solar farm construction entrance (approx 20m beyond Valley 
Farm Barns), which is where an extension of the existing pavement has been proposed to run for the last few 
years. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

P
age 400



                 
 

The entirety of the current 40mph zone should be 20mph. 
 

(38) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Hinskey, 
Raleigh Park Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
It is safer at 20. Residential areas should be 20 
 
Travel Change: Other 

no because i have mobility issues so I have to use my car unfortunately 
 
B4044 30mph – Object 

Too fast really, although not much need to cross the road there as most of the houses are on one side. 
 

(39) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford Cumnor 
Hill) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I think the one in Farmoor should be extended further 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

A dangerous and difficult road, no cycle lane many bikes use it 
 

(40) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Cumnor 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

My family and I, along with other residents and business users  we have spoken to have substantial concerns 
regarding the double standards that seem to be being adopted by Oxfordshire Highways along the B4017 Cumnor 
Road whilst still within Farmoor.  
 
The proposals limit the speed only from the round about to Mayfield Road. The road corridor beynid this is used 
by a range of users,  workers for local businesses walking from the bus stop, residents and their children, the 

P
age 401



                 
 

camp site users and walkers from the reservoir.  Usage is despite limited pavement in the area. The road is 
already a speed risk with either accelerating vehicles out of the village towards Cumnor, after the blind slope, or 
de-accelerating as they approach. The area is heavily used with visitors to the reservoir, Thames Water and as a 
cut through to the A420. 
 
Any speed limit should apply for the full extent of the 40 miles per hour restriction up to the village sign. Not doing 
so provides double standards and will  further impair the safety of the villages who live along the road. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Its a positive step 
 

(41) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Cumnor 
Road B4017) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I fully support the proposed 20mph speed limit along the section of the B4017. There is a narrow pedestrian 
pathway from the roundabout at the junction of the B4044 to the junction with Mayfield Road.  It can be very 
dangerous to walk along this path (especially on bin day) with the traffic travelling from the direction of Cumnor 
frequently exceeding the current speed limit of 40mph.  It is also becoming increasingly difficult to exit and enter 
our drive safely. 
 
A policed 20mph speed limit should hopefully improve these dangers. However, the proposed 20mph limit from 
the 40mph limit is on a 'blind hill' and traffic often doesn't decelerate for several hundred yards.   It would make far 
more sense to extend this 20mph speed limit to at least the developed farm buildings at Sabine Barn entrance.  
Here traffic calming measures such as those in other villages (i.e. gated and give way to vehicles leaving the 
villages) could be safely installed and hopefully have the desired effect of reducing the speed to 20mph. 
 
The proposed route for all construction traffic for Red House Solar Farm (and possibly Botley West Solar Farm) is 
via this section of the Cumnor Road (and not directly off the Eynsham Road or or through Cumnor) - entering the 
site at a field opposite the reservoir.  It is imperative that these vehicles travel at 20mph along the whole of this 
stretch for safety and noise concerns. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

P
age 402



                 
 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

It will be safer entering the roundabout from all directions especially from the B4017. 
As the B4044 is straight, traffic frequently exceeds the current speed limit of 40mph, and traffic from Oxford does 
not always slow on approach to the roundabout. 
 
 

(42) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (farmoor, oakes 
lane) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I think that the 20 MPH or at a minimum 30mph limit should be extended passed the water works entrance on 
Cumnor road in Farmoor up to where the current 40mph limit ends. Vehicles enter and leave the village far too 
fast and there are several entrances along this road. People will see the end of the 20 limit and speed right up . 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

40mph is too fast with people crossing road for bus stops 
 

(43) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor - 
Abingdon, Bertie Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

Cars drive far too fast past the Cumnor primary school, nursery and park. It would be an easy fix to drop the 
speed to 20mph around the school/church/park. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

 
(44) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, High 
Street) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

P
age 403



                 
 

Regularly witness fast moving heavy goods vehicles through cumnor village centre past school/church/post office) 
passing cm from people on pavements on narrow roads. Also causing vibrations and noise through properties 
from as early as 5 am. Slowing down to 20 will reduce risk to public especially at school times and improve quality 
of life for residents. The high street/oxford road/Abingdon road desperately need the change. 
 
Travel Change: Other 

May allow my children to cycle more often. Right now roads are lethal with the truck rat run. 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

With no cycle path it is a very dangerous road. Cycle path or 30. 
 

(45) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, High 
Street) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

It will slow down the traffic coming through - particularly HGVs who increasingly use Cumnor high street as a 
bypass 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 
Will make things much safer for cyclists. Minor inconvenience to other transport is worth it 
 

(46) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Hutchcomb 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

20MPH would bring greater safety to local roads, reduce noise pollution and be better for the environment, 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

Don't know enough about this one. 
 

P
age 404



                 
 

(47) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Oxford) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Should be 20mph near schools 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

 

(48) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Cumnor 
Hill) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Narrow roads in both N Hinksey and Cumnor. Both villages have schools. Drivers often use these roads as a 
shortcut and drive considerably faster than 30mph through them. Farmoor at least has a two sided carriageway 
but because residential a drop in speed limit to 30mph seems sensible 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 
Residential area. Bus stops on other side of road, school children and others  have to cross road 
 

(49) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, 
Tumbledown) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

HGVs in particular go too fast along High St, the backdraught has been known to knock cyclists off their bikes and 
an elderly lady on the pavement. We need to change the mindset of drivers through this village. It is being used as 
a cut through when the A34 is congested, drivers need reminding that this isn’t just a route from A to B but a place 
where people live. 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

P
age 405



                 
 

This road is dangerous. One fatality is too many. Two is unacceptable. The mini roundabout has a very low 
visibility splay and consequently is like playing car v bike roulette. 
 

(50) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Cumnor 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

I have lived on Cumnor Road in Farmoor for over 30 years.  I've therefore used the roads of Farmoor and Cumnor 
for all that time and have seen on numerous occasions the dangers of traffic going too quickly (even within speed 
limits), especially when moving out to go past parked cars.  I also have had one cat knocked down and killed on 
Cumnor Road, and another hit and injured. 
In my view, the 20mph scheme for Cumnor Road, Farmoor should extend down the rise and past the first 
entrance to Thames Water.  The rise creates a blind spot for traffic coming into Farmoor from Cumnor and cars 
are often parked at the top of the rise.  In addition, the works access to the solar farms will be from Cumnor Road, 
so traffic exiting Farmoor towards Cumnor will have a blind spot if the speed limit stays at 40mph at the top of the 
rise. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Traffic goes far too fast near the roundabout 
 

(51) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Meadow 
Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

I think these will help make a safer area for walking and cycling in the villages and area of Botley. Minimal 
increase in travel times for cars. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Houses join on to this road and there’s a couple of bus stops here too, making it 30 will help make it safer and 
quieter. 
 

P
age 406



                 
 

(52) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Oxford 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

Houses close to road in both Cumnor and Farmoor.  Both have pedestrians walking along and crossing roads.  
Current limits are unsafe - especially 40 mph in Farmoor. 
 
Travel Change: No 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Pedestrians walk along and cross this road.  Current 40 mph is dangerous. 
 

(53) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Appleton 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I want it to be safer for pedestrians and cyclists to use our local roads. There are no crossings to help safely cross. 
I’ve run into a few drivers that get impatient with vulnerable road users, they seem to think that the aim is to get 
through as quickly as possible rather than safely. Having the roads designated as 20 will help set expectations 
when route planning to help stop frustration. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Concerns 

Support but the rest of the road should be 40   It’s bendy with hidden dips. With 50 as an expectation drivers are 
impatient with those that use caution, or with cyclists and frequently don’t slow to 30 when signed to at Botley. 
Also get aggressive when leaving Botley as they see the 50 sign and want to instantly be going fast. My concern 
is that the same behaviour will happen both sides of Farmour leading to more accidents in those areas, we 
already have one memorial in that area. 
 

(54) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Hinksey, 
Beech Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Safer driving, no need to be rushing - what's the hurry. Save lives without too much inconvenience. 

P
age 407



                 
 

 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Concerns 

Nobody adheres to that because it's too close to the 50 zone. Plus there are cyclists there, make it safer for 
cycling. 
 

(55) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Hinksey, 
Laburnum Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Sensible but placing some traffic measures to assist like rumble strips to know you are entering  a different area 
would help unlike Witney when you go from National Speed limit to 20mph and have the wrong size entry signs to 
the zone 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Concerns 

Won’t help the cyclists if that is the thinking behind this. 
 

(56) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Hutchcomb 
road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

For a safer, quieter and cleaner community 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

Not sure of what the arguments are for this 
 

(57) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Oxford 
Rd) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

P
age 408



                 
 

20mph zones have been proven to increase safety for all road users and pedestrians. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

Don’t feel strongly about this issue 
 

(58) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Norreys 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Pedestrian safety, especially around schools 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

 

(59) Local 
Resident/Member of public 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I am sopporting because I think it's a good idea to have the 20mph speed limits 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

I would not say 
 

(60) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Arnolds 
Way) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Safety, health and environmental conerns 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

P
age 409



                 
 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Safety, health and environmental concerns 
 

(61) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, 
Hutchcomb) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I believe our roads are unsafe while the speed limit remains at 30 mph. Some drivers even exceed that speed, 
particularly on the hills which is extremely dangerous. I would expect a reduction to result in a safer environment 
especially for children and cyclists. 
 
Travel Change: No 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Safer for residents 
 

(62) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Hutchcomb 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

A lower speed limit will make the roads safer for pedestrians and cyclists 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

A lower speed limit will make the road safer for cyclists 
 

(63) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Hutchcomb 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I am in support of lower speed limits as narrow roads in bad condition, no or too narrow pavements and no cycle 
paths make walking or cycling unsafe with cars passing at high speed. 
 

P
age 410



                 
 

Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

See above. 
 

(64) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Hutchcomb 
road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Safety of children walking and cycling the same roads 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

People drive too fast along there 
 

(65) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, 
Sweetmans) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Cars drive too fast, so dangerous! There are many children in these areas. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 
Current 50mph is too fast as no cycle lane safety for cyclists 
 

(66) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Maple) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I am generally in support of lowered speed limits in built up areas. However, I am unsure how much difference this 
will actually make. In Botley for example, the speed on the estate roads is probably around 20mph anyway, due to 
the twisting roads and huge number of parked cars which limit visibility. I honestly don't think that this will actually 
make a lot of difference in our area. Removing the cars parked on the pavements would make it nicer to walk, and 

P
age 411



                 
 

now affordable and reliable public transport world make me more likely to take the bus- the speed limit doesn't 
affect this. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

This does seem fairly sensible to make the roundabout easier to manoeuvre around. There are very small 
numbers of pedestrians or cyclists here, do perhaps this will help. 
 

(67) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Laburnum 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
It will be much safer for local residents and consistency across all areas is much easier for drivers. There is no 
need to drive faster in these areas 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

I presume this is the slowest rate possible for this area 
 

(68) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Oxford, 
Laburnum Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
It is a predominantly residential area including elderly people and families with children. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Too many accidents 
 

(69) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 

P
age 412



                 
 

public, (Cumnor, Norreys 
Road) 

North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
I have 2 small kids who are just learning to cycle. We cycle to the Cumnor school and pre school daily and its a 
permanent worry that an HGV that is driving way too fast for the small roads in Cumnor will clip them and cause 
them to fall into the road. At school drop off and pick up times the pavements are also very congested (not helped 
by cars that mount the kerb). Cars drive down the road past the school at  top speed regardless of all the kids and 
parents around and it feels like a disaster waiting to happen. If we want to encourage kids to walk or ride to school 
then we need to make it as safe and easy for them as possible. At the moment this is not the case. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

I use this road regularly and almost daily see cars trying to overtake cyclists when it's unsafe. I don't know why 
anyone would want to cycle on this road at present. I would fear for my life doing so. 
 

(70) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Abingdon 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Living in these areas with small children, I feel cars and (more worryingly) lorries travel too fast through these 
villages. There is no need to pass through them at 30mph (and often faster). 20 is plenty 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

I believe traffic going slower along these roads will benefit residents as reduce issues on these roads 
 

(71) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Arnold’s 
Way) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Residential area should be for residents, not cars 
 
Travel Change: No 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

P
age 413



                 
 

Slower is safer 
 

(72) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Cumnor 
Hill) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
I have lots of concerns about both road safety and pedestrian safety across this Parish that 20mph limits would do 
a lot to address 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Given recent history of accidents , injuries and sadly fatalities this is a very welcome initiative for this road 
 

(73) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Cumnor 
Hill) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

These are quiet family communities with plenty of young children. There is no need for the speed limit to be set at 
30mph or more when a very real threat exists for the safety of all residents. The recent 30mph restriction on 
Cumnor Hill is still too generous and the road remains dangerous to cross in many places. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

30mph is an appropriate speed limit. 
 

(74) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Cumnor 
Hill) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
I live on Cumnor Hill. The speed limit here was recently reduced from 40 to 30. It has not worked - in particular 
lorries and vans still exceed 40. In part I believe this is due to a lack of signage. I sometimes cycle to work and 
particularly on the hill, even worse when it is being used as an alternative to the A420, traffic behaviour is 
alarming. 

P
age 414



                 
 

 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Really this road needs a cycle path but in the absence of that this is better than nothing. 
 

(75) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Cumnor 
Hill) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

To make the villages safer for cyclists and quieter for residents. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

To make it safer for cyclists. 
 

(76) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Glebe 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I live opposite the park in Cumnor with a young family, and the 30mph limit is far too quick for children potentially 
running out of the park or out of the school. Drivers regularly go over this limit and our family and local families are 
very concerned about a child getting hit by a vehicle. It must be changed as quickly as possible. 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

There are many cyclists who are constantly being pressured to pull over to allow vehicles past. We need to make 
it safe for them and not allow vehicles to try and overtake. 
 

(77) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, High 
Street) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

P
age 415



                 
 

Because there have been serious accidents in Cumnor involving school children. This could easily happen 
anywhere with a speed limit of 30-40mph. Bringing it down to 20mph could reduce the number and severity of 
accidents. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

It creates safer roads. 
 

(78) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, High 
Street) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
I live in the centre of cumnor village and I’m constantly seeing people struggling to cross the road. My son also 
cycles to school so safety of children travelling to school. On this stretch of road, there is a school, shop, breakfast 
and after school club, pub, old people’s home and residential properties. It should absolutely be a 20mph! 
Damage has also been caused to our property from vehicles speedy through the village, particularly HGVs which 
are using the village as a rat run 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

There has already been a death on that road 
 

(79) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, High 
Street) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I support the lowering of speed limits to 20 mph for safety and environmental reasons. In Cumnor heavy goods 
vehicles use the village as a cut through. The narrow pavements and roads combine to make travel to and from 
school potentially dangerous for school children. Slower traffic means vehicles are less likely to kill or seriously 
injure a child in the event of an accident. Due to the twisting roads and prevalence of parked cars, drivers 
generally already drive quite slowly in the village centre, but a lower speed limit would encourage those who 
speed and don’t stop at junctions or the mini round about to drive more safely. 
 

P
age 416



                 
 

Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Safer for cyclists. 
 

(80) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, 
Kimmeridge Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Child at Cumnor Primary. The narrow road passing the school needs speed reduction for child safety 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Through traffic ignoring the roundabout at Cumnor Road at speed has nearly caused accidents 
 

(81) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Norreys) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

To make our roads safer.. especially by cumnor school the lorries hurtle along … 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 
Make the road safer 
 

(82) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Norreys 
road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

It will bring much needed safety, environmental and noise reduction benefits to the communities 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

P
age 417



                 
 

B4044 30mph – Support 
It will being much needed safety improvements to this stretch of road for road users, residents and children 
crossing for school buses 
 

(83) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Sands 
Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I live I'm Cumnor with my children and it's for their safety and that of others 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 
Safety 
 

(84) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, The 
Glebe) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

the roads need to be safer in the village of cumnor 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

would like the area to be a safer place to walk, drive etc 
 

(85) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Abingdon 
Rd) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
Living on the Abingdon Rd our house shakes when lorries go past at 30mph to the point pictures fall off. This is 
similar for friends in farmoor and NH. Also, the villages have younger families than 50/60 years ago so a lot more 
chance of a youngster being hurt.  Many near misses on our road. 
 
Travel Change: No 

P
age 418



                 
 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Such a dangerous road. So many blind corners, families wanting to walk to various places and cyclists going 
between villages.  Driving on it most days, I’m amazed there’s not more casualties. 
 

(86) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Cumnor 
Hill) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Two areas have schools and Farmoor is full of cyclists 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Very fast road and lots of cyclists 
 

(87) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Oxford 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

The section by Cumnor school is particularly dangerous for pedestrians 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 
To make the road safer for cyclists, since you refuse to fund a cycle path 
 

(88) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor Cumnor 
Hill) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I'm a parent living on Cumnor Hill and it's shocking the way the children are endangered getting to Cumnor 
Primary school every day. They need a safe speed limit in the village of Cumnor and regular monitoring and 
enforcement of the limit in Cumnor and on Cumnor Hill to avoid more accidents. 
 

P
age 419



                 
 

Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Again the safety of our children has to be prioritised over the convenience of motorists. 
 

(89) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, High 
Street) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

For the safety of cyclists, pedestrians and, in particular, children on their way to school, I think 20mph is sufficient. 
Furthermore, in Cumnor many heavy lorries come through the village at speed, which is (a) terrifying when 
walking kids to school and (b) causes vibrations in our house. Hopefully a 20 mph speed limit will encourage such 
drivers to take more care. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

For the many cyclists that use this road a reduction in speed, even for part of it would be of benefit. 
 

(90) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Bushy Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Happy to support slowing cars on cumnor hill because I wouldn't dare cycle up there I usually get off my bike!  
 
Travel Change: Other 

Yes I would both walk / cycle more. 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

I support the proposals because cars absolutely fly down eynsham road past deanfield road at well over 30mph. It 
puts me off cycling because I know people go for risky overtakes to get in front before the crossing island.itll help 
speed buses up too. I strongly suggest this speed limit on eynsham road is enforced with a speed camera on after 
the turn in to eynsham road off the b4044 cumnor hill. You would make a fortune. 
 

P
age 420



                 
 

(91) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Dean Court 
ward,Cumnor, Stone 
Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I want the roads to be a safer space for pedestrians and cyclists and reducing the speed limits to 20 mph will help 
to achieve that. 
 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

The reduction to 30 mph will allow the school children to cross the road to the bus stops as the school bus has 
been removed. 
 

(92) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Eynsham Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

As a botley resident I see children going to school & old people trying to cross the roads this is urgently needed 
 
Travel Change: Other 
Bus 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

As it is urgently needed 
 

(93) Local Cllr, (Farmoor, 
B4044) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

As a resident of Farmoor the 40mph limit through Farmoor needs to be reduced to 30mph as people regularly 
travel through the village at speeds greater than 40mph.  Residents (some elderly) have to cross the main road to 
get to two of the bus stops currently in situ, and in the absence of any zebra crossing / traffic lights this can be 
hazardous. 
 

P
age 421



                 
 

Travel Change: No 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

This is a residential village with a high volume of traffic rat running through the village at speeds higher than 
40mph.  Many residents have to cross the road to the bus stops, lack of zebra crossing or traffic lights make this 
hazardous and difficult especially for older people. 
 

(94) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Cumnor 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I strongly believe that 20 mph is the appropriate speed for residential/built up areas. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

The road is dangerous and off putting for cyclists.  Reducing speed would be a big help. 
 

(95) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Cumnor 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Living in Farmoor the 40mph is too high. People do not slow down for roundabout or allow for children possibly 
crossing the road for bus stops. As a residential area and used as an alternative route when A34 busy or closed 
speed limit needs to be lower 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Roundabout, bus stops, people crossing main road and vehicles using it as an alternative route to A34 
 

(96) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Cumnor 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

P
age 422



                 
 

I believe this is a more appropriate limit for a built up area 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Cars travel too fast over the mini roundabout at the junction with Cumnor Road making it dangerous to pull out 
onto Eynsham Road 
 

(97) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Cumnor 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

The proposed 20mph on the B4017 is directly in front of our house. 
The speed and frequency of traffic on this road has increased.  It is becoming more difficult  even to enter or leave 
our own driveways. 
 
In addition here is only a narrow footpath between the corner of Mayfield Road and the Eynsham Road.  The 
volume and speed of traffic makes walking along this path dangerous. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

It will make the approach to the roundabout safer. 
 

(98) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Meadow 
close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

These are family communities, with narrow roads, lots of kids, dogs and walker and it would be great for them to 
be even safer.  It does also help with noise reduction which makes these even better places to live. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

P
age 423



                 
 

Cars drive way above 40mph, bus services are on the opposite side and crossing can be difficult, noise reduction 
is a benefit, safer for all 
 

(99) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Oakes 
Lane) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I would like to see this speed limit extended to the proposed entrance of the Red house solar farm development 
which would include the houses and businesses beyond the Mayfield Rd cut off point 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 
There is a lot of traffic flow on this part of the road including cyvlists 
 

(100) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, 
Eynsham Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Traffic regularly speeding in all areas. Botley is getting more built up and therefore more hazardous to navigate 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Traffic regularly speeds way past 50mph on this stretch. No speed cameras have been seen. Very dangerous for 
the residents and  walkers/cyclists using this road 
 

(101) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Valley 
Farm Barns) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

The speed limit must reach and include the 4 houses in Valley Farm Barns.I have an elderly Mum, a toddler and 4 
older children.We all have experience of dangerous speeding cars and heavy stone trucks in Farmoor.Cumnor 
Road is also used as a racetrack by motorbike groups.All residents here need to cross the road to walk our dogs 

P
age 424



                 
 

or catch a bus.In summer there are scores of young sailors also who walk from the bus on Eynsham Rd to 
Farmoor reservoir. 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Multiple accidents occur on this road because it has no space for cycles,pedestrians crossing and because the 
sun blinds early morning going east and evening going west. 
 

(102) Local Cllr, (North 
Hinksey, Conifer Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
20mph limits improve air quality and road safety 
 
Travel Change: Other 

Both walk and cycle more 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Support for road safety reasons 
 

(103) Local Cllr, (North 
Hinksey, Hutchcomb 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
20mph is crucial for improving road safety in North Hinksey and the neighbouring villages. This is a step in the 
right direction in helping pedestrians and cyclists feel more confident using the highways network. I fully support. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

This should help make cyclists feel a little safer, however the B4044 Community Path is still very much needed to 
ensure people in North Hinksey can access Hill End and Valley Farm Pizza, the Care Home and other 
communities on foot or bike. 
 

P
age 425



                 
 

(104) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Hinksey, 
North HInksey Lane) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Makes it safer to walk and cycle 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Makes it safer to walk and cycle; plus it's a dangerous road with lots of lorries etc. 
 

(105) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Eynsham 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I think cars travel far too fast along the roads in our local district 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Vehicles often exceed the existing speed limit 
 

(106) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, North 
Hinksey Lane) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Narrow pavements and cycle lanes in places mean pedestrians/bikes are often pushed out into the road (North 
Hinksey Lane). Reducing traffic speeds generally makes for a safer environment and encourages active travel for 
those that are able. 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 
This road section runs through a residential area. Lower road speeds make travel for residents safer and also help 
to improve safety for cyclists travelling through from Eynsham to Oxford. 

P
age 426



                 
 

 

(107) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Springfield 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
Safer for local residents. Discourages driving and encourages cycling/walking 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Encourages cycling 
 

(108) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Springfield 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Safety. It should help to reduce accidents. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

As long as this includes the stretch of road around the mini roundabout, this will improve safety. 
 

(109) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, 
Hutchcomb Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Even small reductions can save lives. With more cars on the road it’s more important than ever for people to 
reduce speeds to reduce the number of accidents and injuries on the roads. 
 
Travel Change: Other 

I try to take alternative modes of transport to car where possible anyway. 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

P
age 427



                 
 

I wholeheartedly support this. My 11 year old daughter needs to cross this road daily and there are no safe 
crossings so anything that can be done to reduce speeds is a good thing. She also travels by bus along this road 
and ha so commented many times that some bus drivers go very fast and she feels unsafe, particularly as she 
often does not get a seat on the bus. 
 

(110) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sutton, New 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Lowering speed on residential roads saves lives 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

It will make little difference to travel times, but should reduce issues at the roundabout 
 

(111) Email response, 
(unknown) 

 
Support – We endorse the proposed 20 mph limit in Cumnor. Especially the 2 footpath exits from St. Michael’s 
Church are hazardous, we have experienced problems with traffic when crossing the road there, there is a 
downward hill on the road and even cyclists go past with much speed.  Additionally, the Cumnor Primary School is 
nearby and a danger to children and parents crossing the road to visit the shop and Post Office. 
 

(112) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor) 

 
Support – I am writing to express my support for the 20mph speed limit proposals for Cumnor and North Hinksey 

parishes. I tried to complete the survey online but it wouldn't load for me. 
 
I am writing as someone who lives in this area and drives, cycles and walks regularly. The reason for my view is 
that traffic speeds need to be reduced to increase the safety of cyclists and pedestrians and to encourage people 
to use active ways of getting around. At present many vehicles exceed the current 30 mph limit and this is 
dangerous for other users particularly where the road space is limited or where the road surface is in a bad state 
of repair. A 20mph speed limit would give a better chance or reducing traffic speeds to a level where other users 
would feel safer. Even if a driver slightly exceeds the new proposed limit they will still be travelling slower than the 
current speeds of around 35mph. 
 

P
age 428



                 
 

(113) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley) 

 
Support – wish to contact you to provide the strongest possible support for the reduced speed limits, and to urge 

OCC to adopt these proposals. I would in fact go further, given that there has still been no progress on the B4044 
segregated path for pedestrians and cyclists. In the absence of such a path alongside the B4044, and thus the 
extreme danger posed to pedestrians and cyclists by traffic, the B4044 should have a speed limit of 20mph 
continuously from Cumnor hill to Eynsham. The 20mph limit should also be applied throughout the residential 
areas of Cumnor, Botley and Farmoor (and the rest of the county), including, for example, Cumnor Hill. 
 
A major reason for the low numbers of vulnerable road users on the B4044 is precisely because of the danger 
imposed by vehicles. The statement on the consultation web page that 'existing 30mph, 40mph & 50mph speed 
limits will remain in place, with Officers having taken the current road environment & traffic usage into account’ 
suggests that this catch 22 situation for vulnerable road users has not been taken into account. 
 
Retaining a 50mph limit on the B4044 is in conflict with both the urgent need to reduce carbon emissions, 
including by promoting sustainable transport, and OCC’s commitment to Vision Zero. If and when segregated  
infrastructure for vulnerable road users is installed it may then be appropriate to review the speed limit, but up until 
that point it is impossible to see how retaining a 50mph limit is compatible with the wider objectives of the council. 
 

 

P
age 429



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Faringdon 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 FEBRUARY 2023 

 
FARINGDON: PROPOSED 20MPH & 50MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to defer a 
decision to approve the following proposals as advertised pending further 
discussions to assess the acceptability of reduced proposals that meet the 

needs of all parties: 
 

a. New 20mph speed limit for Faringdon, and 
b. Extended 50mph speed limit on the A4095 Radcot Road. 

 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Faringdon, and the extension of the 

existing 50mph speed limit on the A4095 Radcot Road by 40 metres in order to 
help facilitate the 20mph proposals, as shown in Annex 1.  

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 

the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 
 
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within Faringdon by 

making them safer and more attractive. 
 
 

Page 431

Agenda Item 15



            
     
 

 
Formal consultation  

 
6. Formal consultation was carried out between 05 January and 03 February 

2023. A notice was published in the Oxford Times newspaper, and an email 
sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames Valley 

Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, 
countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, South 
Oxfordshire District Council, the local District Cllrs, Faringdon Town council, 

and the local County Councillor representing the Faringdon division.  
 

Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
7. Four responses were received from statutory consultees. Thames Valley Police 

responded by re-iterating their views concerning OCC’s policy and practice 
regarding 20mph speed limits and consider their response as ‘having concerns’ 

rather than an outright objection. Stagecoach and Thames Travel bus 
companies both objected and provided detailed responses, the Stagecoach 
submission is particularly comprehensive and merits close study. The OCC 

Public Transport Development Team’s viewpoint aligns closely with that of the 
bus companies. The local member supports the proposals. 

 
8. The bus operators share similar concerns. While both support the proposals in 

the central core and residential areas, they believe the proposals to be unduly 

extensive with safety benefits not equally achieved over the extent of the 
proposed Order. Stagecoach claims the extended journey times will erode the 
attractiveness of the service and undermine its sustainability in Faringdon and 

the whole A420 corridor. Operators urge that the existing 30mph limit is retained 
along Coxwell Road, probably beyond the Highworth Road junction and 

certainly beyond Fernham Road. They also ask that the 20mph limit on Park 
Road stops just south of the pedestrian crossing at Old Sawmill Road. 

 

9. Stagecoach advises that if a similar approach to 20 limits were applied to other 
communities along the A420 corridor they would serve notice to withdraw the 

service entirely from High Street Watchfield, and the loop around Faringdon 
Town Centre, as this would become operationally unfeasible in its current form.  
 

Other Responses: 

 

10. 30 responses were received via the online survey during the course of the 
consultation, and these are summarised in the table below:  
 

Proposal Object Concerns Support 
No opinion/ 

objection 
Total 

20mph Faringdon 10 (33%) 4 (13%) 16 (53%) - 30 

50mph on A4095 
Radcot Road 

4 (13%) 2 (7%) 18 (60%) 2 30 

 

Page 432



            
     
 

11. The local District councillor and 15 members of the public expressed support, 
4 respondents had concerns while 9 registered objections. An objection was 

also received from a member of the public from Witney who railed against the 
proposal in principle suggesting it was a dark day for democracy and the start 

of a dystopian future with 20mph signs akin to the ‘Z’ sign displayed universally 
across Russia. The following analysis is taken from the 9 respondents who 
offered focussed objections to the proposals. 

  

Reason No. of Comments 

Unnecessary 6 

Designed to increase fines revenue 3 

Will not be enforced 3 

Will increase driver frustration 3 

Will increase danger 2 

Increased emissions 2 

Increased congestion and delays 1 

Waste of money  1 

 

12. Those who responded online (30 responses), were also asked whether if the 
20mph speed limit proposals were implemented, would it likely influence a 
change to their mode of travel in the area, the results of which are shown below 

 

Travel Change Number 

Yes – walk/wheel more 4 (13%) 

Yes - cycle more 9 (30%) 

No 16 (53%) 

Other 1 

 
13. The responses are shown in Annex 2, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 

 
 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

14. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 

greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents. 
The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 

speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 
of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 

Page 433



            
     
 

County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 
that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  

 
15. The responses from members of the public indicate around 53% support with 

33% objecting and 14% with concerns. The unfocussed objection raised no new 
pertinent points and challenges much of the philosophy behind the 
democratically agreed policy to promote 20 mph speed limits in communities,  

as such there is no obligation to consider it further. The remaining objections 
are comparable to those expressed and considered in earlier similar schemes 

and were not seen as warranting a change in those previous proposals given 
the explicit intention of the County Council’s 20mph limit policy.  

 

16. The nature of the bus operators mirrored objections suggests they should be 
considered carefully especially with the risk of a reduction in service. There may 

be merit in further discussions with the local council and local member to gauge 
the acceptability of reduced proposals that meet the needs of the bus operators 
and pose no threat to the operational viability of services.  

 
 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 
 Annex 2: Consultation responses   

  
   
Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 

    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 
 

February 2023 

Page 434



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 435



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns - Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 

P
age 436



                 
 

• road environment 
 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

() Local County Cllr, 
(Faringdon division) 

Support – Great news. 

() Head of Strategic 
Development and the Built 
Environment, 
(Stagecoach Bus 
Company) 

 
Object – While we accept that there is a case for some extension of 20mph limits beyond the town centre we once 

again must highlight the effects of this on bus running time, especially when looked at cumulatively. We continue 
therefore to urge the Council to pursue a more rigorous evidence-based approach in applying this policy. 
 
[See full response in Annex 3] 

 

() Business Development 
and Partnerships 
Manager, (Thames 
Travel) 

 
Object – Faringdon has good bus service provision including buses up to every 15 minutes on the Stagecoach S6 

between Oxford and Swindon and hourly buses on Thames Travel service 67 between Faringdon and Wantage via 
Stamford in the Vale. Faringdon Community Transport also operate town service 61. The level of service has been 
steadily built up over recent years.  
  
We have no problem with and generally support these proposals where they do not affect bus services. However we 
are very concerned that the proposals appears to be a blanket implementation of 20mph speed limits on virtually all 
roads in Faringdon without any consideration of the nature of individual roads and their function.  
  
In particular we object to the introduction of 20 mph speed limit along Park Road from the proposed start of the 20mph 
zone in the south east to the junction of Bromsgrove in the north west. This section of Park Road forms part of the 

P
age 437



                 
 

A417 and has wide carriageway and pavements. There are few active frontages that would encourage or lead to 
frequent and planned mixing between vulnerable road users and motorised traffic. Whilst there is a Tesco 
supermarket on this section of Park Road the frontage is actually on to the supermarket car park rather than directly 
on to the road. As well as access via Park Road there is also access to the supermarket car for pedestrians and 
cyclists via the path between Southampton Street and Park Road. Other than the Tesco other businesses along this 
section of Park Road are geared to motorists or the building trade and so are unlikely to generate much in the way of 
pedestrian or cycle movements.  
  
We also object to the introduction of 20 mph speed limit along Coxwell Road from the proposed start of the 20mph 
zone in the south west to the junction of Coxwell Gardens in the north east. Whilst the Thames Travel 67 only 
operates along Coxwell Road twice a day there are many more buses operated by Stagecoach and this is a main 
transport corridor. Again there are few active frontages that would encourage or lead to frequent and planned mixing 
between vulnerable road users and motorised traffic.  
  
It is important that buses are able to make progress where it is safe for them to do so. Slowing journeys makes bus 
services less attractive to passengers and would serve to encourage negative modal shift from public transport to 
private motor vehicles, which is contrary to the council's policies. Ultimately if journey times become too great, either, 
extra bus and driver resource needs to be added to maintain the same level of service (i.e. increased cost for no 
increased revenue) or alternatively timetables need to be trimmed so that they can be operated with the existing 
resource (i.e. reduced revenue from the same operating cost). In either case this could lead to services becoming 
financially unsustainable and so could lead to service reductions. 
 

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon  
,Coleshill Way) 

 
20mph - Object     
Totally unenforceable.  The current 30mph limit is ignored by so many people already.  There’s not enough evidence 
the 20mph limit reduces accidents or even reduces the speed of traffic. 
 
50mph - Concerns      
No good reasons supported by data to get my support      
 
Travel change: No      
 

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon ,Elm) 

 
20mph - Object    The existing speed limit is sufficient as it does not mean that you have to reach 30mph. You just 
cannot exceed it. Drivers should be driving to a safe speed based on the surroundings anyway based on the highway 

P
age 438



                 
 

code, which may be even lower than 20mph during certain times of the day. Therefore lowering the speed limit in 
order to justify issuing fines under the illusion of safety is not needed. People will choose to drive anyway and making 
their trip longer will only ADD to pollution and not cut it. I do believe that there are better ways to encourage alternative 
forms of transport and sustainable travel. 
 
50mph - No opinion      
Extending the limit of 50mph is ok.     
 
Travel change: No      
 

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon 
,Gloucester Street) 

 
20mph - Object     
It is unnecessary and will lead to increased motorist frustration, which could make the roads more, not less, 
dangerous for cyclists.  
 
50mph - No opinion      
As previously explained.     
 
Travel change: No      
 

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon ,Kiln 
Cottages) 

 
20mph - Object     
Pointless as it won't be policed. There is very  very rarely any sort of police presence in Faringdon. Assume you'll put 
up speed cameras, so then it becomes a money making venture rather than a safety issue. Try mending the roads 
instead, that would be good. 
 
50mph - No opinion      
It won't be policed so what is the point? Those who speed will still speed.  See comment earlier about speed cameras 
and making money     
 
Travel change: No      
 

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon 
,Stallard close ) 

 
20mph - Object     
All ready to much congestion  

P
age 439



                 
 

 
50mph - Object      
Road isn’t residential      
 
Travel change: Other      
Speed more  
 

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon. 
,Chambers Court ) 

 
20mph - Object     
A 20 mph speed limit should only be applied near schools or where there have been frequent accidents because they 
cause more pollution and frustration for drivers. 
 
50mph - Object      
As far as I'm aware there is a 50 mph limit for the entire road between Faringdon and Radcot and in fact it extends all 
the way to Clanfield, so I'm not sure where you mean. This is unnecessary because that road has clear visibility for 
almost its entire length. The only place a 50 mph limit is justified would be the bends before the Thrupp turn, as you 
travel away from Faringdon, where there are two farm roads intersecting with the A4095.     
 
Travel change: No      
 

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Witney ,Oxford 
Hill) 

2 
0mph - Object    Within the square having the 20mph zone not unreasonable given the shops, communities and buses 
within the area that was fine but for the rest of Faringdon is completely absurd, disturbing and depressing for the 
community. It is undemocratic, unethical, divisive and disrespectful for communities of whom can see no need to 
change the speed limits. Why is that? Because there is no such report advising that the road within the Folly road for 
example is at 80% risk of death or serious injury if the speed limit is not changed. This consultation if anybody wants 
to call it that (clearly not) is going to undoubtedly ignore public opinion because the Councillors cannot kick the habit, 
they bitterly hate anybody that has to do an essential journey in a car.  
 
I grew up in Faringdon for two years of my childhood and myself and my Fiancee regular visit Faringdon as we love 
the community surroundings, its walks, sights such as the Folly and housing. We visit regularly to get away from the 
dystopian 20 mph signs from a neighbouring town that look like Russian Z symbols you see in a Russian street where 
it made a walk locally at home an utterly bitter and depressing experience knowing that these 20mph signage changes 
are a political decision and not a road safety decision. I don't take it lightly to compare the Russian Z symbol to a 
20mph sign but if the reader googles a Russian city or town what it looks like with the Z symbol in that county it is as 

P
age 440



                 
 

comparable as that easily. It is regretful but the honest truth.   
 
Devastating to see Faringdon that despite seeing zero road incidents wothin the town have such a change needlessly 
taking place that the Police cannot cope with enforcing especially when local Politicians pushing for these changes will 
undoubtedly carry on going past 20mph as will emergency service personnel  
 
Faringdon has great access for cycling and walking safely so does not make sense and urge all residents to write to 
MPs, maintain pressure on Councillors and the County Council that for as long as those in charge have one rule for 
themselves it is ok for the rest of us to decide to drive near to 30mph with competent common sense.  
 
50mph - Object      
No change required see previous answer as to why. No need for this because the road surfacing as far more 
important than the changes proposed to speed limits.      
 
Travel change: No      
 

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon 
,Fernham Road) 

 
20mph - Object    It is not necessary given the amount of traffic that passes through Faringdon especially the less 
used residential streets. 30mph works fine and there majority of drivers adhere to this. When driving it is very difficult 
to maintain driving at speeds below 20 mph. 
This is purely a scheme to raise money in fines and penalise  car drivers in favour of cyclists etc who do not pay road 
tax. It is unlikely to reduce accidents. In fact is more likely to cause them. 
 
50mph - Support      
This seems eminently sensible given the road traffic conditions.     
 
Travel change: No      
 

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (faringdon 
,Spinage Close) 

 
20mph - Object    Damn stupid idea. This seems to be part of the OCC plan to get rid of cars. I have lived in Faringdon 
for almost 20 years and never yet seen any incidence involving a car and pedestrian. I know this is a sham 
consultation and OCC will do whatever they want as they have done in Oxford and elsewhere. Cars that are speeding 
will do it anyway whatever the speed limit and there are no police to look after it anyway. If this is an attempt to screw 
the motorist out of yet more money then as always one can see it as part of the OCC Liberal agenda. 
 

P
age 441



                 
 

50mph - Support      
The limit there should have been 60 anyway but if we can get the speed limit on a longer stretch that is at least 
something.     
 
Travel change: No  
     

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon  ,No) 

 
20mph - Object     
No need, traffic heavy so speeding isn't possible.  
 
50mph - Support      
Road is safe to drive at this speed      
 
Travel change: No      
 

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon 
,Lower Greensands ) 

 
20mph - Concerns     
Don’t think the proposals go far enough. Unsure why some roads will avoid a reduction in speed. What will benefit? 
Can’t see there being much encouragement to walk/cycle when Coxwell &amp; Park Rd remain at 30 (especially 
when users breach this limit anyway).  
To encourage people to walk &amp; cycle more then better maintained footpaths and proper cycle routes (not just 
paint on the road) should be considered and implemented; especially between Gt Coxwell &amp; the Faringdon 
schools.  
Also, how will these limits be enforced, will there be average speed cameras, more traffic monitors, or just a few signs 
up? 
 
50mph - Object      
Makes no sense to extend a faster road limit before reducing it by so much. Not sure of the reasoning behind going 
faster for longer before having to go even slower.     
 
Travel change: No     
  

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon 
,Coleshill Drive) 

 
20mph – Concerns 

P
age 442



                 
 

Traffic coming off the A420 from Swindon at the Great Coxwell exit onto Coxwell Street rarely respect the 30mph 
signs, and 20mph will be similarly ignored without enforcement or traffic calming. Entering the town from this direction 
is the only direction without any traffic calming, which when considering the new housing, presence of school children 
and bus stops next to bollards which block half of the road, is a greater priority than a speed sign. 
 
50mph - Support      
Road layout restrict speed     
 
Travel change: No      
 

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon  
,Coxwell Road ) 

 
20mph - Concerns     
I very much support the proposal but would prefer it to extend along the Coxwell Road to include the  new housing 
developments (this is currently proposed as ‘buffer zone’). 
The 30mph is frequently ignored due to the open plan of the road layout (i.e the indirect calming effect of parked cars 
or road furniture is not present). It’s more an acceleration zone from being in the confines of town or a gradual braking 
zone until cresting the hill. Anecdotally, I have seen a few near misses as people have turned out from faringdon fields 
estate into the path of cars travelling in excess of the 30mph speed limit. Thinking pragmatically as enforcement is not 
realistic,  changing this to 20mph I would hope that if adherence was still poor, it might mean that vehicles 
approaching town are at 30 rather than what appears to be in the region of 40+ 
 
I cycle into town occasionally and walk twice daily for nursery drop off/pickup. I would prefer to make it as safe as 
possible ahead of my children using the route for school.  
 
50mph - Support      
I’ve had too many near misses as a cyclist as drivers take a chance. Reducing speed limit brings them closer to my 
speed and hopefully discourage dangerous overtaking  
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more   
    

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Farringdon  
,ParkRoad) 

 
20mph - Concerns     
Supportive of proposal - but very concerned the current retained 30mph buffer on ParkRoad is too long and should be 
reduced to 100m from junction with A420 to stop before the residential junction with PalmerRd due to the children 
walking and cycling to schools and town 

P
age 443



                 
 

 
50mph - Support      
No comment     
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
      

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Stanford in the 
Vale ,Joyce's Road ) 

 
20mph - Support     
I cycle often in the area and lowering the speed limits increases safety for everyone  
 
50mph - Concerns      
Will drivers slow down in time  for the junction if not required to?      
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more      
 

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon 
,Highworth Road ) 

 
20mph - Support     
20 is a safe speed for pedestrians in town and makes the town more pedestrian friendly.  
 
50mph - No opinion      
I don't use this road much and didn't know about the proposal 
     
Travel change: No     
  

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon 
,London Street) 

 
20mph - Support    I support the speed limit and welcome its introduction.  I wish to make comment on the detail of its 
implementation regarding signage to ensure the attractive historic town is conserved. 
 
When the Town Centre 20mph speed limit was introduced last year signage was installed without a great deal of care 
for the appearance or character of the historic area.  For example, signs at the entry to the 20mph area on London 
Street interrupted views of the historic street toward the Market Place and were placed without attention to immediate 
buildings (i.e. they are not aligned with divisions of buildings or other features to make them less jarring). 
 
One benefit, alongside highway opportunities, of the proposed widening of the speed limit area is that the entry/exit 
signs will be further removed from the historic town centre to areas with more space for careful positioning.  We note 

P
age 444



                 
 

the Council's Highway Management Policy on Decluttering requires that the existing speed limit entry/exit signs be 
removed (and hopefully re-used elsewhere to avoid waste) to minimise street clutter.  Many signs were mounted on 
new poles which we trust will also be removed to avoid needless clutter on the footway where repeater signs can be 
mounted on longstanding lamposts, telegraph poles, etc. 
 
We welcome the proposed change and trust it will be implemented in a manner which allows benefits to be realised 
for the historic environment, fulfilling the Council's duties to conserve heritage assets. 
 
50mph - No opinion      
 
Travel change: No     
  

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon  
,Coxwell street) 

 
20mph - Support     
Child safety 
 
50mph - No opinion      
Haven't noticed an issue      
 
Travel change: No      
 

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon 
,Bromsgrove) 

 
20mph - Support     
Restricting traffic speed would make the streets safer and reduce pollution 
 
50mph - Support      
It should make the road safer     
 
Travel change: No      
 

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon 
,Coxwell Road) 

 
20mph - Support     
Make roads safer for pedestrians and reduce fuel consumption 
 
50mph - Support      

P
age 445



                 
 

Make it safer     
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more    
   

() As part of a 
group/organisation, 
(Faringdon ,Coxwell 
Road) 

 
20mph - Support     
I believe 20mph throughout the town will make it safer for everyone on our roads, especially pedestrians, mobility 
scooters/wheelchairs, parents with buggies and cyclists. Risk of fatality is significantly reduced with a 20mph vs 
30mph limit 
 
50mph - Support      
Over 50mph on a country road like this is excessive speed and more likely to result in accidents     
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more      
 

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon 
,Leamington Drive) 

 
20mph - Support     
A step in the right direction towards creating shared spaces/living streets  for ALL users 
 
50mph - Support      
60mph is dangerous along that stretch of road.       
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more      
 

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon 
,Leamington Drive) 

 
20mph - Support    Faringdon town centre has narrow streets and pavements and a lot of parked cars. There are 
many schoolchildren crossing roads in the centre to get to school and elderly people who need time to cross safely. A 
20 mph limit would make a huge difference. As a regular cyclist I would also feel safer if the traffic passed me at a 
slower speed. 
 
50mph - Support      
It is a favourite route for cyclists and being passed at 50mph is a lot less scary than 60. There are a lot of bends and 
farm entrances along the road.     
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more    

P
age 446



                 
 

   

() Local Cllr, (Faringdon 
,London St) 

 
20mph - Support     
Faringdon is a small market town which is perfectly sized for walking or cycling as the main modes of transport, but 
the transport system is totally car dominated. A 20 mph speed limit will start to address this and improve safety in local 
streets which are not suitable for 30mph driving. 
 
50mph - Support      
People just ignore speed limits oif they start too soon.     
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more      
 

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon 
,London street ) 

 
20mph - Support     
We have to encourage non car modes of transport, slowing motorised vehicles will do this. 
 
50mph - Support      
Seems sensible      
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
      

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon 
,Westland Road) 

 
20mph - Support     
I've already seen the benefits of 20mph limit in the Market Place and believe town and residents will benefit 
enormously with the limit being extended to the wider residential areas. 
 
50mph - Support      
Cars do travel too fast on that particular stretch     
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more   
    

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon  
,Coxwell Road ) 

 
20mph - Support     
Road safety, calmer environment, pedestrian safety, fuel saving by cars, contributing to fighting climate change. 
 

P
age 447



                 
 

50mph - Support      
Makes sense as part of wider scheme.     
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more    
   

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon  
,Coxwell Road ) 

 
20mph - Support     
A significant proportion of traffic along Faringdon’s main arteries within the currently designated 30mph zone 
significantly exceed that limit endangering the lives of pedestrians and cyclists. Not only is a reduced speed limit 
required over the full extent proposed but speed reduction measures (carriageway narrowing) are needed along the 
lines of those introduced several years ago in Shrivenham. These are needed on Coxwell Road near to its junction 
with Coxwell Gardens, on Lechlade Road near to the entrance into the town, and on London Street uphill of Stanford 
Road. 
 
50mph - Support      
Again much traffic arrives at the town limits travelling above the speed limit.     
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more     
  

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (Faringdon  
,London Street ) 

 
20mph - Support     
As a London Street resident I am concerned that 30 mph is too fast given the level of pedestrian, cycle and animal use 
and the many parked cars and delivery vehicles in the street. In particular there are frequent near misses at the 
Stanford Road / Church Street junction which is heavily used by people of all ages accessing the popular local 
amenity of Folly Hill. The proposal to start the 20 mph zone the other side of Sudbury House makes perfect sense and 
reflects the current good practice of prudent residents familiar with the road. 
 
50mph - Support      
Reflect sensible driving practice.     
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more      
 

() Local Resident/Member 
of public, (near Watchfield 
on a farm ,B4019) 

 
20mph - Support     
I think the move towards slower speeds is better for communities and the environment 

P
age 448



                 
 

 
50mph - Support      
This road can actually be a little dangerous so would help.     
 
Travel change: No     
  

  

P
age 449



   
   

   
   

 

Page 450



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Hanborough & Minster Lovell 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 FEBRUARY 2023 

 
HANBOROUGH (CHURCH HANBOROUGH): PROPOSED 20MPH 

SPEED LIMITS  
 

Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 

approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised.  
 
 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Church Hanborough as shown in Annex 
1.  

 

 
Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 

the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 
 

 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within Church 

Hanborough by making them safer and more attractive. 
 

 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 17 November and 16 December 
2022. A notice was published in the Oxford Times newspaper, and an email 

sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames Valley 
Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, 

Page 451

Agenda Item 16



            
     
 

countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, West 
Oxfordshire District Council, the local District Cllrs, Hanborough Parish Council, 

and the local County Councillor representing the Hanborough & Minster Lovell 
division.  

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 

7. Five responses were received from statutory consultees. Thames Valley Police 
re-iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and practice regarding 20mph 

speed limits; they consider their response as ‘having concerns’ rather than an 
outright objection. Stagecoach Bus Company had no objection but noted that 
the village has no bus service, and one is unlikely to be reinstated in the 

foreseeable future. The local member, Hanborough Parish Council, and West 
Oxfordshire District Council all support the proposals. 

 
Other Responses: 

 

8. A further online respondent supported the proposals. Two objections were also 
received: one from a member of the public from South Oxfordshire who 

routinely expresses a standard objection to most 20mph proposals. They 
consider the proposals would actually increase danger and frustration and 
could prompt the strange scenario of cyclists being held up and lead to 

accidents as cyclists overtook cars. The other objector cited concerns around 
driver frustration and considers the proposals unnecessary.  

 
9. The responses are shown in Annex 2, and copies of the original responses are 

available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 
 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

10. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 

greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.  
The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 

speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 
of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 
County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 

that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  
 

11. The Police concerns are noted. The two objections are comparable to those 
expressed and considered in earlier similar schemes and were not seen as 
warranting a change in those previous proposals.   

 
 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 
 Annex 2: Consultation responses   

  
  

Page 452



            
     
 

   
Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 

    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 
 

February 2023 

Page 453



          
  

  

ANNEX 1

P
age 454



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 
• road environment 

P
age 455



                 
 

However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Local County Cllr, 
(Hanborough & Minster 
Lovell division) 

 
Support – I have already conducted an informal consultation with Church Hanborough who were in support of this 

proposal. 
 

(3) Hanborough Parish 
Council 

 
Support – Councillors supported this proposal when discussed in meetings 
 

(4) West Oxfordshire 
District Council 

 
Support – In the interests of pedestrian and road safety, West Oxfordshire District Council supports the proposed 20 

mph speed at the Land South of Church Road, Church Hanborough. 
 
This information is based on the details supplied in the Public Notice, Consultation Plan, Draft Order and Statement of 
Reasons that accompanied the enquiry. 
 

(5) Head of Strategic 
Development and the Built 
Environment, 
(Stagecoach Bus 
Company) 

 
No objection – Church Hanborough was served by bus services run under contract to the County Council for many 
years, running as often as hourly in both directions. The budget for this was withdrawn in July 2016 and since that 
date there has been no bus service through the village. Given the very limited use that was made of the service when 
it did run, we see no likelihood that a service will be reinstated in the foreseeable future. 
 
Notwithstanding this, we consider that the proposals are proportionate having regard to the character of the village 
and the criteria set out in the Stockholm Declaration.  
 

P
age 456



                 
 

Hypothetically, were some kind of "demand-responsive" service ever be introduced in this area - and we are aware of 
no plans to do so - we do not consider that these proposals would prejudice that kind of operation either. 
 
Stagecoach thus offers no objection to the proposals. 
 

(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Hanborough, Corn 
Hide) 

 
Object – This is absolutely not needed. It’s bad enough driving round Witney at 20. When most of the drivers sit on 

your tail waving there hands because your not now speeding. Why extend this to the wider villages.  I have found over 
the past week that this is causing huge queues in the town centre for a small village that already has to much traffic 
this isn’t going to help 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Moulsford, Ferry 
Lane) 

 
Object – This proposal for 20mph limit is in nobody's interest. As a motorist I always strive to strictly observe 20mph 

limits just as I observe other limits, but it usually leads to a very unpleasant driving experience owing to tailgaters, and 
often leads to dangerous overtakes by less patient drivers.  
 
As a pedestrian, when stepping into or crossing a road I certainly won't simply assume that oncoming traffic is 
crawling along at 20mph, just because there's a 20mph sign. Most will be going much faster and and therefor there is 
absolutely no benefit to the pedestrians - we still have to treat all traffic as travelling at similar speeds to a 30mph limit.  
Even worse, just occasionally, a vehicle will turn out to be actually driving at 20mph thereby causing me to wait longer 
for it to pass, before I can safely cross behind it.  
 
Regarding speed limit TROs,  they  have no legal significance for cyclists, yet many reasonably fit cyclists often 
exceed 20mph. This will give rise to the bizarre situation whereby those few motorists who actually observe the limit 
could find ourselves tailgated by impatient cyclists and when assisted by a slight gradient, perhaps even overtaken by 
cyclists - which is highly unlikely to be a safe manoeuvre. It may also give rise to a further temptation for cyclists to 
illegally ride on the footway, if it allows them to get past 20mph traffic more easily. 
 
Travel change: No 

 
(8) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Long 

 

P
age 457



                 
 

Hanborough, Regent 
Drive) 

Support – Church Hanborough is a little village with a narrow roadway and no pedestrian footway in places. It should 
have an appropriate speedlimit for these circumstances to keep pedestrians and cyclists safe! Strongly support 20mph 
speed limit. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

 

P
age 458



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Kirtlington & Kidlington North, Kidlington South 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 FEBRUARY 2023 

 
KIDLINGTON AND GOSFORD & WATER EATON: PROPOSED 

20MPH & 30MPH SPEED LIMITS  
 

Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 

approve as advertised the following proposals: 
 

a. 20mph speed limit in Kidlington, and Gosford & Water Eaton, 

b. 30mph speed limits on the A4260 Banbury Road & Oxford Road. 
 
 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph and 30 mph speed limits in Kidlington and Gosford & 
Water Eaton as shown in Annex 1.  

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 
the County Council’s 20 mph Speed Limit Project 
 

 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within Kidlington and 

Gosford & Water Eaton by making them safer and more attractive. 
 

 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 15 December 2022 and 20 
January 2023. A notice was published in the Oxford Times newspaper, and an 

Page 459

Agenda Item 17



            
     
 

email sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames Valley 
Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, 

countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, Cherwell District 
Council, the local District Cllrs, Kidlington, Gosford & Water Eaton, and Yarnton 

parish councils, and the local County Councillor representing the Kirtlington & 
Kidlington North, and the Kidlington South divisions.  
 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 
 

7. Two  responses were received from statutory consultees. Thames Valley Police 
re-iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and practice regarding 20mph 
speed limits; they consider their response as ‘having concerns’ rather than an 

outright objection. Cherwell District Council who had no observations to make. 
 

Other Responses: 

 
8. Cyclox support the proposals but would like to see a 20 mph limit placed along 

the whole length of the A4260 Oxford and Banbury Roads. Five online 
responses were received with 4 expressing support and with a routine objection 

submitted by a member of the public from Witney who railed against the 
proposal in principle suggesting it was a dark day for democracy and the start 
of a dystopian future with 20 signs akin to the ‘Z’ sign displayed universally 

across Russia.  
 

9. The responses are shown in Annex 2, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 

 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

10. The sole objection was unfocussed, raised no fresh pertinent points, and in 
essence challenged much of the philosophy behind the democratically agreed 

policy to promote 20 mph speed limits in communities, as such it merits no 
further consideration. The small response numbers, especially lack of 

observations from the bus companies, is noted. This may reflect the proposal 
to retain higher speeds on most of the main A4260 Oxford and Banbury Roads, 
something that concerns Cyclox.  

 
11. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and to encourage 

greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               
The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 
speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 

of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 
Counties carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 

that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 460



            
     
 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 

 Annex 2: Consultation responses   
  
   

Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 
    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 

 
February 2023

Page 461



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 462



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to 
encourage greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, 
as opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being 
less safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the 
system of speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on 
threat of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where 
appropriate. There should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a 
speed limit is set too low as this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there 
are no additional resources available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not 
enforce need to be discouraged. Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - 
GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to 
reduce the burden of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 
• road environment 
 

P
age 463



                 
 

However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect 
full compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need 
for increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Cherwell District 
Council, (Development 
Management) 

No objection – The Council has no observations to make in respect of the proposal. 

(3) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Witney, Oxford 
Hill) 

 
Object – It is undemocratic, unethical, divisive and disrespectful for communities of whom can see no need to 

change the speed limits. Why is that? Because there is no such report advising that the road through the Villages, 
Cities or Towns for example is at 80% risk of death or serious injury if the speed limit is not changed. This 
consultation if anybody wants to call it that (clearly not) is going to undoubtedly ignore public opinion like Witneys 
because the Councillors cannot kick the habit, they appear to bitterly hate anybody that has to do an essential 
journey in a car. There are other ethical and more sensible approaches to cycle and walk more. For example 
increasing public path space to signal where a pedestrian and cyclist can have their own lane including 
encouragement notices on local notice boards. 
 
I visit the Town of Kidlington sometimes to have a walk and drive through within the current speed limits when 
safe to do so to get away from the distress of the dystopian 20 mph signs from a nearby Town that are as 
comparable as Russian Z symbols you see in a Russian street every 100 yards where it made a walk locally at 
home a utterly bitter and depressing experience knowing that these 20mph signage changes are a political 
decision and not a road safety decision. A political decision that has no public support and has built residential 
resistance (civilly making the points why they should be changed back are taking place as I write this). I don't take 
it lightly to compare the Russian Z symbol to a 20mph sign but if the reader googles a Russian City or Town and 
what it looks like with the Z symbol in that county it is as comparable as the 20mph sign easily shown every 100 
yards or less. It is regretful but the honest truth especially as these 20mph signs are within even dead end streets 
that have no through roads as well making it even more frustrating.   

P
age 464



                 
 

 
Devastating to see Kidlington hat despite seeing zero road incidents within the Town have such a change 
needlessly taking place that the Police cannot cope with enforcing especially when local Politicians pushing for 
these changes will undoubtedly carry on going past 20mph as will emergency service personnel when not on 
emergency calls highlighting a hidden hypocrisy that will take place when the consulation ignores public opinion. If 
its ok for them it is ok for the rest of us and I hope many residents and within Oxfordshire will come with me to 
make a stand and that is to say no. No to such depressing road signs and money wasted taking away our future 
generations common sense. We will be ashamed of what horrid path this Council has chosen, the decision to 
ignore public opinion and rule within minuit management by edict with no supportive evidence of this change and 
one that has no loyal compliance even after that. This will undoubtedly depress many residents seeing how 
needless this was, how robbed their community is of having common sense and q sense of personal responsibility 
as per the Highway code and is depressing for passionate motorists that can see that even the study Belfast 
University did to show that slower speeds don't reduce road incidents either, link here if the individual or senior 
management are interested in reading. Some will sadly ignore this objection to the proposal but some I hope will 
take back these genuine points to senior bosses of whom are trying to fight against this nonsenical anti-car 
movement. www.transportxtra.com/publications/local-transport-today/news/72511/university-study-questions-
impact-of-20mph-limits-in-belfast-city-centre 
 
Kidlington when visiting has great access for cycling and walking safely including along the Canal path so does 
not make sense and urge all residents to write to MPs, maintain pressure on Councillors and the County Council 
that for as long as those in charge have one rule for themselves it is ok for the rest of us to decide to drive near to 
30mph with competent common sense just as seen over the decades when even our Grandparents drove safely. 
No card can be played to ignore this as hope to explain further.  
 
Lets not forget either that this is the same County Council of whose senior official said to the Sunday Times, 
""Traffic Filters in Oxford is going to happen definitely"" implying the scheme would go ahead whether public 
opinion opposed or unopposed leading me to my point that this is the same with the speed limit changes. This 
Council and their staff should ask this, is it worth continueing this ruinous scheme that will create further political 
distrust toward local authorities. Is it worth creating distress to residents living there to see these signs every 100 
yards as comparable as propaganda. Future generations will be unfortunately robbed of sensible common sense 
and will see this for what it is. The Highway Code officials do not see a need to amend speed limits so cannot 
understand this political movement against the motorist. Why have we got a Council that has been voted in attack 
the Motorist? 
 

P
age 465



                 
 

Is this healthy for a car and the pedestrian to remain at 20mph? No because it does not matter if your driving 
20mph or 30mph the emissions remain the same, the air does not get any cleaner in fact because you are slowing 
down traffic you are simply making the air worse. At 30mph emission fumes retreat a lot quickly especially on a 
straight road where somebody does not need to drive slower especially when there is no obstacle to hit. Even 
Councillors know that despite pushing for this 20mph crusade (apparently prioritising signage instead of road 
surfacing improvements from what I been advised within the industry).  
 
I do not oppose 20mph signs by a School, Town Square or Retirement Community within the road of a settlement 
but I am deeply against a blanket speed restriction across a Town, City or Village when the public opinion is 
ignored for political purposes. This creates mistrust in local politics where even sensible people will be asking like 
they did in other national scandals ""Why should the public listening to their Council or on the News do things 
when people working within their Council are not prepared to listen to their Communities?" 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(4) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Kidlington, Maple 
Avenue) 

 
Support – The total disregard of the 30mph limit by the majority of drivers, so 20mph may get us somewhere near 

a sensible speed? 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(5) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Kidlington, 
Brasenose Drive) 

 
Support – It would make it much safer to cycle in Kidlington and would make me as a parent more confident in 

letting my child cycle to school. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Kidlington, 
Brasenose Drive) 

 
Support – People drive way too fast. Children can't be out on their own. People cycle on the pavements just to 

avoid agressive drivers. What't the hurry, the last few hundred yards to get home? 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 

P
age 466



                 
 

public, (Thrupp, Canal 
Road) 

Support – I walk and cycle in Kidlington most days and reducing the traffic speed will make the village much 
safer, less noisy and less polluted. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

 

P
age 467



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Shrivenham 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 FEBRUARY 2023 

 

KINGSTON LISLE & FAWLER: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS  
 

Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised.  
 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Kingston Lisle and Fawler as shown in 
Annex 1.  

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 
the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 

 
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 

respect of the proposals. 
 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within Kingston Lisle 
and Fawler by making them safer and more attractive. 
 

 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 04 January and 03 February 

2022. A notice was published in the Oxfordshire Herald Series newspaper, and 
an email sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames 
Valley Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, 

countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, Vale of White 

Page 469

Agenda Item 18



            
     
 

Horse District Council, the local District Cllrs, Kingston Lisle parish council, and 
the local County Councillor representing the Shrivenham division.  

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
7. Three responses were received from statutory consultees. Thames Valley 

Police re-iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and practice regarding 

20mph speed limits; they consider their response as ‘having concerns’ rather 
than an outright objection. Stagecoach Bus Company responded but had no 

objections or comments to make. Kingston Lisle Parish Council had no 
objections but would wish the section of road between the main village and 
Fawler to be reduced to 20mph rather than remain at 30mph; they also sought 

30mph buffer limits on each approach.  
 

Other Responses: 

 
8. A single objection was received from a member of the public from Witney who 

railed against the proposal in principle suggesting it was a dark day for 
democracy and the start of a dystopian future with 20mph signs akin to the ‘Z’ 

sign displayed universally across Russia.  
 

9. The responses are shown in Annex 2, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 

 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

10. A buffer limit to separate the main village from Fawler was a deliberate proposal 
to make the 20mph limit in each community more distinct and enable drivers to 

better associate it with built-up areas; doing otherwise would dilute the 
effectiveness of the proposals. The use of buffer limits was considered at the 
outset of the 20 Project but concluded only to be necessary where it enhanced 

the effectiveness of the 20mph limits. The Project is specifically intended to 
place 20mph limits where people live and where vulnerable road users may use 

the carriageway in measurable numbers. A 30mph limit is widely associated 
with urban areas and would not be fitting in a wholly rural environment without 
strong reason and there no tangible benefit is seen in this instance. The need 

to ensure good advance conspicuity of the 20mph terminal signs is always 
essential. 

 
11. The sole objection is unfocussed, raises no fresh pertinent points, and in 

essence challenges much of the philosophy behind the democratically agreed 

policy to promote 20mph speed limits in communities.  
 

12. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and to encourage 
greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               
The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 

speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 
of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 

Counties carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 
that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  

Page 470



            
     
 

 
 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 
 Annex 2: Consultation responses   

  
   

Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 
    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 
 

February 2023

Page 471



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 472



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states. 
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 
• road environment 
 

P
age 473



                 
 

However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch . 
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing 
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Kingston Lisle Parish 
Council 

 
Support – The Kingston Lisle & Fawler Parish Council (PC) strongly supports the proposal to introduce a 20mph limit 

to Kingston Lisle and Fawler. 
 
However, the PC is of the very strong opinion that the 20mph limit should also cover the 275m stretch between the 
two villages (proposed to remain at 30mph) for the following reasons: 
 
• There is a well-used pavement along this stretch on the west side, on a hill. Near the Kingston Lisle end pedestrians 
have to cross the road to continue on the pavement on the other side of the road. This is on a bend with poor visibility 
for both drivers and pedestrians. Therefore, it makes little sense to allow vehicles to speed up to 30mph for 250m as 
they approach this crossing point. 
 
• The same logic applies to vehicles going in the other direction, this time downhill, where there is no pavement for 50-
75m at the start of Fawler. Here, pedestrians have to leave the pavement near the bottom of the hill and walk on the 
road for this distance before crossing to pick up the pavement on the other side. 
 
• The flow of pedestrians is increased beyond that of local residents because of the public footpath access point at the 
top of the 275m stretch. 
• It is presumed there will be a cost saving by not having to erect new large 30mph signs at either end of this stretch. 
Currently, the 30mph limit goes on through this stretch between the two villages and is marked by smaller 30mph 
signs, Presumably, the posts for these signs could be used for the new 20mph signs. 
 

P
age 474



                 
 

• There was, it is thought, a cyclist fatality on this stretch some 20-30 years ago. The PC does not have a record of 
this but Oxfordshire County Council may well have.  
 
Turning to the overall proposal, the PC would strongly urge, and request, that a “shoulder” of a 30mph stretch of road 
should be added to all three 20mph start points at the extremities of the two villages. This is a particularly acute 
requirement for the stretch of road running downhill and on a bend in a northerly direction from the proposed 20mph 
sign on the unnamed road running north to Baulking Lane. This road is used on a daily basis by horses and riders as 
they move between stables and gallops, or for recreational purposes. The hedge on the inside of the bend makes it 
impossible for car drivers to see horses until they are almost upon them, requiring sharp braking and the possibility of 
passing the horses at too high a speed. The recent re-opening of the public footpath at the foot of the hill has attracted 
an increase in walkers using this stretch of road as well. 
 

(3) Head of Strategic 
Development and the Built 
Environment, 
(Stagecoach Bus 
Company) 

No objection – In line with our general practice, I am again happy to confirm that Stagecoach has no comments or 

observations to make and offers no objection to these proposals. 

(4) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Witney, Oxford 
Hill) 
 

 
Object – Another possible political false flag from Parish Council. Driven through this road and shows no risk to the 

public within the speed limit. Same goes to the County Council staff and officials going past it. If they were that 
frightened why did they not slow down to 20mph? These consultations are a joke. Dark day for democracy. 
 
It is undemocratic, unethical, divisive and disrespectful for communities of whom can see no need to change the 
speed limits. Why is that? Because there is no such report advising that the road through the Villages, Cities or Towns 
for example is at 80% risk of death or serious injury if the speed limit is not changed. This consultation if anybody 
wants to call it that (clearly not) is going to undoubtedly ignore public opinion like Witneys because the Councillors 
cannot kick the habit, they appear to bitterly hate anybody that has to do an essential journey in a car. There are other 
ethical and more sensible approaches to cycle and walk more. For example increasing public path space to signal 
where a pedestrian and cyclist can have their own lane including encouragement notices on local notice boards. 
 
20mph limits are as depressing as the distress of the dystopian 20 mph signs from a nearby Town that are as 
comparable as Russian Z symbols you see in a Russian street every 100 yards where it made a walk locally at home 
a utterly bitter and depressing experience knowing that these 20mph signage changes are a political decision and not 
a road safety decision. A political decision that has no public support and has built residential resistance (civilly 
making the points why they should be changed back are taking place as I write this). I don't take it lightly to compare 

P
age 475



                 
 

the Russian Z symbol to a 20mph sign but if the reader googles a Russian City or Town and what it looks like with the 
Z symbol in that county it is as comparable as the 20mph sign easily shown every 100 yards or less. It is regretful but 
the honest truth especially as these 20mph signs are within even dead end streets that have no through roads as well 
making it even more frustrating.   
 
I hope many residents and within Oxfordshire will come with me to make a stand and that is to say no. No to such 
depressing road signs and money wasted taking away our future generations common sense, personal responsibility 
and the basic human right to choose how we cycle, walk and drive to places. We will be ashamed of what horrid path 
this Council has chosen, the decision to ignore public opinion and rule within minuit management by edict with no 
supportive evidence of this change and one that has no loyal compliance even after that. This will undoubtedly 
depress many residents psychologically seeing how needless this was, how robbed their community is of having 
common sense and a sense of personal responsibility as per the Highway code and is depressing for passionate 
motorists that can see that even the study Belfast University did to show that slower speeds don't reduce road 
incidents either, link here if the individual or senior management are interested in reading. Some will sadly ignore this 
objection to the proposal but some I hope will take back these genuine points to senior bosses of whom are trying to 
fight against this nonsenical anti-car movement. www.transportxtra.com/publications/local-transport-
today/news/72511/university-study-questions-impact-of-20mph-limits-in-belfast-city-centre 
 
Lets not forget either that this is the same County Council of whose senior official said to the Sunday Times, ""Traffic 
Filters in Oxford is going to happen definitely"" implying the scheme would go ahead whether public opinion opposed 
or unopposed leading me to my point that this is the same with the speed limit changes. This Council and their staff 
should ask this, is it worth continueing this ruinous scheme that will create further political distrust toward local 
authorities. Is it worth creating distress to residents living there to see these signs every 100 yards as comparable as 
propaganda. Future generations will be unfortunately robbed of sensible common sense and will see this for what it is. 
The Highway Code officials do not see a need to amend speed limits so cannot understand this political movement 
against the motorist. Why have we got a Council that has been voted in to attack the Motorist? If this is because of a 
personal experience then we are living in very dangerous territory democratically.  
 
Is this healthy for a car and the pedestrian to remain at 20mph? No because it does not matter if your driving 20mph 
or 30mph the emissions remain the same, the air does not get any cleaner in fact because you are slowing down 
traffic you are simply making the air worse. At 30mph emission fumes retreat a lot quickly especially on a straight road 
where somebody does not need to drive slower especially when there is no obstacle to hit. Even Councillors know that 
despite pushing for this 20mph crusade (apparently prioritising signage instead of road surfacing improvements from 
what I been advised within the industry). Road accidents will not be eradicated so the ideology thinking we will 
eradicate road incidents/fatalities I am afraid are kidding themselves. 

P
age 476



                 
 

 
I do not oppose 20mph signs by a School, Town Square or Retirement Community within the road of a settlement but 
I am deeply against a blanket speed restriction across a Town, City or Village when the public opinion is ignored for 
political purposes. This creates mistrust in local politics where even sensible people will be asking like they did in other 
national scandals "Why should the public listening to their Council or on the News do things when people working 
within their Council are not prepared to listen to their Communities?" 
 

 

P
age 477



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Charlbury & Wychwood 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 FEBRUARY 2023 

 
MILTON UNDER WYCHWOOD: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised.  
 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Milton under Wychwood as shown in 
Annex 1.  

 

 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 
the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 

 
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 

respect of the proposals. 
 

 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within Milton under 
Wychwood by making them safer and more attractive. 
 
 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 14 December and 20 January 

2022. A notice was published in the Witney & West Oxfordshire Gazette 
newspaper, and an email sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, 
including Thames Valley Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, 

Bus operators, countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, 
West Oxfordshire District Council, the local District Cllrs, Shipton-under-

Page 479

Agenda Item 19



            
     
 

Wychwood, and Milton-under-Wychwood parish councils, and the local County 
Councillor representing the Charlbury & Wychwood division.  

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
7. Only one response was received from a statutory consultee. Thames Valley 

Police responded by re-iterating their views concerning OCC’s policy and 

practice regarding 20mph speed limits and consider their response as ‘having 
concerns’ rather than an outright objection.  

 
Other Responses: 

 

8. One member of the public registered support for the proposals and a single 
objection was received from a member of the public from Witney who railed 

against the proposal in principle suggesting it was a dark day for democracy 
and the start of a dystopian future with 20mph signs akin to the ‘Z’ sign 
displayed universally across Russia.  

 
9. The responses are shown in Annex 2, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 
 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

10. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 
greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               
The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 

speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 
of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 

County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 
that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  

 

11. The Police concerns are noted. The sole objection is unfocussed, raises no 
fresh pertinent points, and in essence challenges much of the philosophy 

behind the democratically agreed policy to promote 20mph speed limi ts in 
communities; as such it merits no further consideration.  
 

 
Bill Cotton 

Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 

 Annex 2: Consultation responses   
  

   
Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 
    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 

 
February 2023

Page 480



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 481



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 
• road environment 

P
age 482



                 
 

However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing. Speed limits should be 
considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road safety. Changes to the 
highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the road) may be required to 
encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be more expensive, they are 
more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for increased police 
enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Witney, Oxford 
Hill) 

 
Object – It is undemocratic, unethical, divisive and disrespectful for communities of whom can see no need to change 
the speed limits. Why is that? Because there is no such report advising that the road through the Villages, Cities or 
Towns for example is at 80% risk of death or serious injury if the speed limit is not changed. This consultation if 
anybody wants to call it that (clearly not) is going to undoubtedly ignore public opinion because the Councillors cannot 
kick the habit, they bitterly hate anybody that has to do an essential journey in a car. There are other ethical and more 
sensible approaches to cycle and walk more. 
 
I visit the Village to have a walk and drive through within the current speed limits when safe to do so to get away from 
the distress of the dystopian 20 mph signs from a nearby town that are as comparable as Russian Z symbols you see 
in a Russian street every 100 yards where it made a walk locally at home an utterly bitter and depressing experience 
knowing that these 20mph signage changes are a political decision and not a road safety decision. A political decision 
that has no public support and resistance (civil obviously making the points why they should be changed back are 
taking place as I write this). I don't take it lightly to compare the Russian Z symbol to a 20mph sign but if the reader 
googles a Russian City or Town and what it looks like with the Z symbol in that county it is as comparable as the 
20mph sign easily. It is regretful but the honest truth especially as these 20mph signs are within even dead end 
streets that have no through roads as well making it even more frustrating.   
 
Devastating to see Milton Under Wychwood that despite seeing zero road incidents within the Village have such a 
change needlessly taking place that the Police cannot cope with enforcing especially when local Politicians pushing 
for these changes will undoubtedly carry on going past 20mph as will emergency service personnel when not on 
emergency calls highlighting a hidden hypocrisy that will take place when the consulation ignores public opinion. If its 
ok for them it is ok for the rest of us and I hope many residents and within Oxfordshire will come with me to make a 
stand and that is to say no. No to such depressing road signs and money wasted taking away our future generations 

P
age 483



                 
 

common sense. We will be ashamed of what horrid path this Council has chosen, the decision to ignore public opinion 
and rule within minuet management by edict with no supportive evidence of this change and one that has no loyal 
compliance even after that. This will undoubtedly depress many residents seeing how needless this was, how robbed 
their community is of having common sense as per the Highway code and is depressing for passionate motorists that 
can see that even the study Belfast University did to show that slower speeds don't reduce road incidents either, link 
here if the individual or senior management are interested in reading. Some will sadly ignore this objection to the 
proposal but some I hope will take back these genuine points. www.transportxtra.com/publications/local-transport-
today/news/72511/university-study-questions-impact-of-20mph-limits-in-belfast-city-centre 
 
Milton Under Wychwood when visiting has great access for cycling and walking safely so does not make sense and 
urge all residents to write to MPs, maintain pressure on Councillors and the County Council that for as long as those in 
charge have one rule for themselves it is ok for the rest of us to decide to drive near to 30mph with competent 
common sense just as seen over the decades when even our Grandparents drove safely. No card can be played to 
ignore this as hope to explain further.  
 
Lets not forget either that this is the same County Council of whose senior official said to the Sunday Times, ""Traffic 
Filters in Oxford is going to happen definitely"" implying the scheme would go ahead whether public opinion opposed 
or unopposed leading me to my point that this is the same with the speed limit changes. This Council and their staff 
should ask this, is it worth continuing this ruinous scheme that will create further political distrust toward local 
authorities. Is it worth creating distress to residents living there to see these signs every 100 yards as comparable as 
propaganda. Future generations will be unfortunately robbed of sensible common sense and will see this for what it is. 
The Highway Code officials do not see a need to amend speed limits so cannot understand this political movement 
against the motorist. 
 
I do not oppose 20mph signs by a School, Town Square or Retirement Community within the road but I am deeply 
against a blanket speed restriction across a Town, City or Village when the public opinion is ignored for political 
purposes. This creates mistrust in local politics where even sensible people will be asking like they did in other 
national scandals "Why should the public listening to their Council or on the News do things when people working 
within their Council are not prepared to listen to their Communities?" 
 

(3) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Upper Milton, 
Unnamed Road) 

Support - Footpaths are small in places (non-existent in Upper Milton). Blind entrances to housing. Our two cats were 

both knocked down by cars. Not safe for children to cycle. 

 

P
age 484



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: North Hinksey 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 FEBRUARY 2023 

 
NORTH HINKSEY: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve proposals for 20mph speed limits in North Hinksey as advertised. 

 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in North Hinksey, as shown in Annex 1. 

 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 
the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 

 
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 
 

 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within North Hinksey 
by making them safer and more attractive. 
 
 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 05 January and 03 February 

2023. A notice was published in the Oxford Times newspaper, and an email 
sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames Valley 

Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, 
countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, Vale of White 
Horse District Council, the local District Cllrs, Cumnor, and North Hinksey 

Page 485

Agenda Item 20



            
     
 

parish councils, and the local County Councillor representing the North 
Hinksey, and the Kingston & Cumnor divisions.  

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
7. Two responses were received from statutory consultees. Thames Valley Police 

re-iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and practice regarding 20mph 

speed limits; they consider their response as ‘having concerns’ rather than an 
outright objection. Cumnor Parish Council support all the proposals. 

  
Other Responses: 
 

8. 108 responses were received via the online survey during the course of the 
consultation, and these are summarised in the table below:  

 

Proposal Object Concerns Support 
No opinion/ 

objection 
Total 

20mph North 
Hinksey 

15 (14%) 8 (7%) 71 (66%) 14 (13%) 108 

 

9. 79 members of the public either expressed support or had no opinion for the 
proposals, 23 objected, and 5 respondents expressing concerns.  

 

10. An objection was received from a member of the public from Witney who railed 
against the proposal in principle suggesting it was a dark day for democracy 
and the start of a dystopian future with 20mph signs akin to the ‘Z’ sign 

displayed universally across Russia.  
 

11. The following analysis is taken from the remaining 19 respondents who offered 
focussed objections to the proposals: 
 

Reason No. of Comments 

Unnecessary 18 

Waste of money  4 

Safe enough as it is 3 

Increased congestion and delays 3 

Will make driving more difficult 3 

Increased emissions 3 

Will not be enforced 3 

Frustrating and divisive 3 

Just a political gesture 1 

  
12. Those who responded online (108 responses), were also asked whether if the 

20mph speed limit proposals were implemented, would it likely influence a 
change to their mode of travel in the area, the results of which are shown below:  
 

Page 486



            
     
 

Travel Change Number 

Yes – walk/wheel more 14 (13%) 

Yes - cycle more 24 (22%) 

No 60 (56%) 

Other 10 (9%) 

 
13. The responses are shown in Annex 4, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

14. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 

greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents. 
The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 

speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 
of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 
County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 

that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  
 

15. The responses from members of the public indicate around 73% support with 
objections from 21% focussing on the usual concerns. The unfocussed 
objection raised no new pertinent points and challenges much of the philosophy 

behind the democratically agreed policy to promote 20 mph speed limits in 
communities, as such there is no obligation to consider it further. The remaining 

objections are comparable to those expressed and considered in earlier similar 
schemes and were not seen as warranting a change in those previous 
proposals given the explicit intention of the County Council’s 20mph limit policy.  

 
 
Bill Cotton 

Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 
 Annex 2: Consultation responses   
  

   
Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 

    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 
 
February 2023 

Page 487



          
  

  

ANNEX 1

P
age 488



                 
 

ANNEX 4 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – that National Guidance has not been followed regarding other speed limit changes  

 
Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and acknowledge 
that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be desirable for 
communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage greater 
diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, 
as opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being 
less safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the 
system of speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on 
threat of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where 
appropriate. There should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a 
speed limit is set too low as this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there 
are no additional resources available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not 
enforce need to be discouraged. Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - 
GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to 
reduce the burden of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 

P
age 489



                 
 

• existing traffic speeds 
• road environment 
 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect 
full compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need 
for increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(4) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

There is no history of accidents in Cumnor to justify 20mph limits. I've seen no study of current speeds but latest 
research suggests little to no benefit in Cumnor. 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/757307/20mph-
headline-report.pdf 
 
North Hinksey: 
The section parallel to the service road could safely be a 40 limit, no pavement, no crossings, no frontages. There 
is no reason to reduce the limit to 20mph. Compliance of the existing 30mph is already poor due to the low risk of 
higher speeds. 
 
The rest of the areas indicated already have lower speeds and traffic calming measures.Farmoor, no particular 
knowledge or opinion of the residential parts as I'm not familiar with them. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

P
age 490



                 
 

It's a main road with good visibility and separation from frontages. 
There have been no accidents along the 40mph stretch so no justification for lowering the limit. 
 

(5) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Robsart 
Place) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

As a parent of 2 children in Cumnor I am happy that the current speed limit is safe, my youngest walks herself to 
school and eldest cycles to secondary school. The time and expense to change what is realistically at most a 
miner risk isn't justifiable. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

No strong opinion but all the houses are set well back from the main road, so don't see that any change would 
make Farmoor safer! 
 

(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Oakwood 
Way) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

It doesn’t need to be lowered to 20 mph in Cumnor 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

No comments 
 

(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Hawthorn 
Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Unnecessary in Cumnor, but the roads around North Hinksey are narrow with plenty of bends, often without good 
pavements 
 

P
age 491



                 
 

Travel Change: No 
 
B4044 30mph – Object 

40mph seems the right balance. There's no large amount of pedestrians close to the road. 
 

(8) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Crozier 
Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

I simply do not support the 20MPH initiate.  Driving round Oxford is quite frankly dangerous because you are 
constantly looking around for the speed changes, both signs and then checking your speed.   The number of times 
it changes in such short distances is a joke.   And I cannot see how it achieves anything other than causing even 
more congestion and frustration to drivers.   Enough is enough of the anti-driver mentality of OCC.  I will never 
support it (and don’t know many who do - silent majority!) 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Concerns 

Yet another random change.   I assume this refers to just the part of the road that passes the houses in Farmoor?   
Or is it the whole road from Botley to Eynsham?  If the latter I fully object.   If the former then it raises the question 
- why not 20mph? Why change at all?   There are fields the other sides so what is the justification?   If lots of 
accidents and injuries then I would support.   Otherwise it is just picking on drivers yet again. 
 

(9) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Laburnum) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

I cycle and drive. Demonising drivers (who may have very good reasons for driving) at a time when everyone’s life 
could just do without added constraints is just pointless. Improve schools. Improve social care. Stop focusing on 
things that make very little difference in reality. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Concerns 

A separate cycle Lane is needed, as has been campaigned for for years. This just penalises commuters. 

P
age 492



                 
 

 

(10) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Lime road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 
Further waste of money. Teach people how to cross the road properly rather than reducing speeds. A lot of this is 
more about political agendas than need. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

Is OK as it is. 
 

(11) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Turner 
Drive) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

The reduction in speed is not necessary in these areas. The speed limits are unlikely to be enforced so everyone 
will continue to drive at 30 mph. Therefore the replacement of the speed limit signs will be wasted. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

If a proper cycle path was built then there would be no need to reduce the speed limit 
 

(12) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Eynsham 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

Unnecessary to reduce from 30mph 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

P
age 493



                 
 

Safe enough as it is 
 

(13) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Cumnor 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 
It is dangerous to be driving so slowly as far as cars are concerned. . It creates more emissions and is dangerous 
to health. It is a necessary and impossible to police. It will create a very divisive community. Locals will be 
extremely frustrated. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

It won’t be policed or enforced regularly enough for drivers to stick to. 
 

(14) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Robsart 
Place) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 
Don't have a problem with current speed of vehicles in these areas. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

Current speed limit is adequate for the road. 
 

(15) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Robsart 
Place) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

Not needed 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

P
age 494



                 
 

Ridiculous 
 

(16) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Witney, Oxford 
Hill) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 
It is undemocratic, unethical, divisive and disrespectful for communities of whom can see no need to change the 
speed limits. Why is that? Because there is no such report advising that the road through the Villages, Cities or 
Towns for example is at 80% risk of death or serious injury if the speed limit is not changed. This consultation if 
anybody wants to call it that (clearly not) is going to undoubtedly ignore public opinion like Witneys because the 
Councillors cannot kick the habit, they appear to bitterly hate anybody that has to do an essential journey in a car. 
There are other ethical and more sensible approaches to cycle and walk more. For example increasing public path 
space to signal where a pedestrian and cyclist can have their own lane including encouragement notices on local 
notice boards. 
 
I visit the Village of Farmoor sometimes to have a walk around the Reservoir and drive through within the current 
speed limits when safe to do so to get away from the distress of the dystopian 20 mph signs from a nearby Town 
that are as comparable as Russian Z symbols you see in a Russian street every 100 yards where it made a walk 
locally at home a utterly bitter and depressing experience knowing that these 20mph signage changes are a 
political decision and not a road safety decision. A political decision that has no public support and has built 
residential resistance (civilly making the points why they should be changed back are taking place as I write this). I 
don't take it lightly to compare the Russian Z symbol to a 20mph sign but if the reader googles a Russian City or 
Town and what it looks like with the Z symbol in that county it is as comparable as the 20mph sign easily shown 
every 100 yards or less. It is regretful but the honest truth especially as these 20mph signs are within even dead 
end streets that have no through roads as well making it even more frustrating.   
 
Devastating to see Farmoor, a place that has brought great joy to communties either sitting on the bus going past 
the Village towards Oxford or Eynsham or to visit the Reservoir to see that despite seeing zero road incidents 
within the Village, have such a change needlessly taking place that the Police cannot cope with enforcing 
especially when local Politicians pushing for these changes will undoubtedly carry on going past 20mph as will 
emergency service personnel (when not on emergency calls) including public transportation which of course, 
highlights a hidden hypocrisy that will take place when the consulation ignores public opinion. If its ok for them it is 
ok for the rest of us and I hope many residents and within Oxfordshire will come with me to make a stand and that 
is to say no. No to such depressing road signs and money wasted taking away our future generations common 
sense, personal responsibility and the basic human right to choose how we cycle, walk and drive to places. We 

P
age 495



                 
 

will be ashamed of what horrid path this Council has chosen, the decision to ignore public opinion and rule within 
minuit management by edict with no supportive evidence of this change and one that has no loyal compliance 
even after that. This will undoubtedly depress many residents psychologically seeing how needless this was, how 
robbed their community is of having common sense and a sense of personal responsibility as per the Highway 
code and is depressing for passionate motorists that can see that even the study Belfast University did to show 
that slower speeds don't reduce road incidents either, link here if the individual or senior management are 
interested in reading. Some will sadly ignore this objection to the proposal but some I hope will take back these 
genuine points to senior bosses of whom are trying to fight against this nonsenical anti-car movement. 
www.transportxtra.com/publications/local-transport-today/news/72511/university-study-questions-impact-of-
20mph-limits-in-belfast-city-centre 
 
Farmoor when visiting has great access for cycling and walking safely so does not make sense and urge all 
residents to write to MPs, maintain pressure on Councillors and the County Council that for as long as those in 
charge have one rule for themselves it is ok for the rest of us to decide to drive near to 30mph with competent 
common sense just as seen over the decades when even our Grandparents drove safely. No card can be played 
to ignore this as hope to explain further.  
 
On the road towards Botley as one example shows there is massive space between the road, houses and 
pathways where traffic can pass safely. Therefore there is no risk to the pedestrians and suggestions the Parish 
Council concerns appear to possibly be a political false flag that is simply justifying the Council's next attack on the 
Motorist but interestingly also to Bus passengers. Surprised the Parish Council never wrote about it ten or twenty 
years ago the urgency to change the speed limit until now. As a Bus passenger the 20mph roads put me and my 
Fiancee off personally travelling on the bus. Why does a 20mph road in a Town/Village put us off? Let me explain 
in case your interested. The longer Bus journey because of this speed limit imposed makes it more frustrating 
when sat on the Bus, first because on the Bus, the Passengers, Bus drivers and Stagecoach officials can see 
there is no risk on the road ahead, second is because when going through Eynsham for example (which even 
TVP objected the speed limit change!), it takes longer to get through the Village. Takes longer for ourselves to 
complete our journeys so thoughts go out those that have jobs in the City, going through Witney or wherever 
where their Bus schedules are forced to change drastically making the journey even more miserable for the 
people that your Council seem to clap for encouraging to use Public Transport. Meaning you are also putting 
Passengers off from coming to Oxford as well because the Bus is forced to run as slow as cars. Maybe a Train 
ride now is more attractive than a Bus going a miserable 20mph (unless the Bus companies join residents in civilly 
ignoring as they have done). After our Bus journey with the new speed limits experienced we simply decided we 
would only go to Oxford when having a drink with friends but not to shop and likely never again even by car. Even 
Swindon are more welcoming than the Council are in Oxford (with cheaper parking arrangements) making it a 

P
age 496



                 
 

disappointing remark because we love Oxford but clearly the Council do not reciprocate that for its residents at the 
moment. Hopefully the sun will shine on Oxford like it did under the previous administrations. 
 
Lets not forget either that this is the same County Council of whose senior official said to the Sunday Times, 
"Traffic Filters in Oxford is going to happen definitely" implying the scheme would go ahead whether public opinion 
opposed or unopposed leading me to my point that this is the same with the speed limit changes. This Council 
and their staff should ask this, is it worth continueing this ruinous scheme that will create further political distrust 
toward local authorities. Is it worth creating distress to residents living there to see these signs every 100 yards as 
comparable as propaganda. Future generations will be unfortunately robbed of sensible common sense and will 
see this for what it is. The Highway Code officials do not see a need to amend speed limits so cannot understand 
this political movement against the motorist. Why have we got a Council that has been voted in to attack the 
Motorist? If this is because of a personal experience then we are living in very dangerous territory democratically.  
Is this healthy for a car and the pedestrian to remain at 20mph? No because it does not matter if your driving 
20mph or 30mph the emissions remain the same, the air does not get any cleaner in fact because you are slowing 
down traffic you are simply making the air worse. At 30mph emission fumes retreat a lot quickly especially on a 
straight road where somebody does not need to drive slower especially when there is no obstacle to hit. Even 
Councillors know that despite pushing for this 20mph crusade (apparently prioritising signage instead of road 
surfacing improvements from what I been advised within the industry). Road accidents will not be eradicated so 
the ideology thinking we will eradicate road incidents/fatalities I am afraid are kidding themselves. 
 
I do not oppose 20mph signs by a School, Town Square or Retirement Community within the road of a settlement 
but I am deeply against a blanket speed restriction across a Town, City or Village when the public opinion is 
ignored for political purposes. This creates mistrust in local politics where even sensible people will be asking like 
they did in other national scandals "Why should the public listening to their Council or on the News do things when 
people working within their Council are not prepared to listen to their Communities?" 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

No need for speed limit to change. 40mph has been fine throughout and explain this again further in depth below. 
Plenty of space between the road, pathways and safe distance from houses and private driveways. Again not 
expecting any interest in taking this matter seriously as the Council seems uninterested in engaging with anybody 
that disagrees with their ideology. 
 

P
age 497



                 
 

(17) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Deanfield 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

Because the 30mph currently in place in adequate. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Because the road is too fast for a road with hazards, hidden entrances and sharp bends 
 

(18) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Chawley 
Lane) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

A large percentage of these roads will never have more cyclists or pedestrians on them - the topography, 
demographics and location all mitigate against this ever happening. Reduced limits are a great idea in fully built up 
residential areas - housing estates, densely populated streets, etc but not in sparsely populated semi-rural areas. 
Reducing the limits in all the proposed areas will just frustrate most people - 20mph is too slow on an 'open' road 
when trying to journey from A to B. An unintended consequence of this reduction may well be more accidents and 
not fewer, has this been considered?  
 
And what of the environmental considerations? For many vehicles 20mph will mean a lower gear with higher 
engine revolutions and thus pollution - and we don't want more pollution do we? 
If the Council is keen to make our roads more pleasant places to be, then fixing all the huge potholes would be the 
best place to start. Many of the current potholes are big enough to cause serious injury (at best) to cyclists, 
potentially killing motorcyclists, and damage to cars too. Please start with fixing these! 
We are all already enduring a miserable time at the moment , please don't add to it with an unnecessary and 
undoubtedly costly, measure! 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

30mph seems a reasonable speed here. 
 

P
age 498



                 
 

(19) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Hurst 
Lane) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

No value to road safety or fuel consumption. Meaningless gesture that makes driving difficult 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Reasonable speed limit 
 

(20) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Appleton, 
Badswell Lane) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Object 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Concerns 

The whole of Oxfordshire is becoming overwhelmed with 20mph speed limits. These limits are often in 
inappropriate places, plus the police do not have the resources to enforce these traffic management schemes. 
OCC would be better placed trying to make the roads suitable for all users. Fixing potholes etc. 20 mph zones are 
creating more bad driving habits than they are solving, those of us adhering to the speed limits as being tail gated 
and over taken making the roads more dangerous. I would suggest pedestrians start to pay more attention to 
roads, by removing ear phones and stop using mobile phones.  
 
This is a costly exercise along with the travel gates the only people who win are OCC who will I’m sure find a way 
to impose fines on those exceeding 20mph. I would point out I keep to relevant speed limits. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 
Due to the nature of this road and volume of traffic plus no where for cyclists as the hoped for cycle way was 
abandoned 
 

(21) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Meadow 
Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Concerns 

P
age 499



                 
 

With the school and proximity to the A420, it makes sense to reduce the speed limit in Cumnor. Farmoor isn't as 
built up and doesn't have a school. The main road is a connecting road between Botley and Eynsham and is very 
lightly populated in comparison to Cumnor and North Hinksey. Not only does it not need a reduction in the speed 
limit, any reduction put in place would likely worsen the issues with through traffic buildup during busy times. The 
connecting Eynsham Road between Dean Court and Farmoor should definitely not have a speed limit reduction 
(currently 50mph). 
 
I have fewer concerns about reducing the limit in North Hinksey, however it is still a main road, so 30mph should 
be adequate. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

This is a relatively rural road, so 50mph is appropriate. I have frequently witnessed erratic driving and near misses 
when drivers have been going significantly below the current 50mph speed limit, closer to 30mph, as other drivers 
attempt to overtake. What this road really needs is a cycle lane, not a reduced speed limit. 
 

(22) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Hinksey, 
Hazel Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Object 
North Hinksey 20mph – Concerns 
Cumnor - residential roads, tight with parked cars so 20 is ok 
Farmoor, the road is the main route to/from eynsham should stay at 40 or at 30 
North Hinksey - Eynsham road was 40mph until recently now 30 with zero justification for reduction to 20. If 
desired to reduce traffic route it onto A420 and close road to access &busses only. 
 
Travel Change: Other 

Will avoid area and take my money elsewhere 
 
B4044 30mph – Object 

Its the main arterial road and reducing speed will increase congestion and pollution 
 

(23) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Cumnor 20mph – No opinion 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 

P
age 500



                 
 

public, (Botley, Hurst Rise 
Road) 

North Hinksey 20mph – Object 
They are unnecessary. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Concerns 

I'm not convinced it's necessary. 
 

(24) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Eynsham, 
Hazeldene Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Concerns 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 
North Hinksey 20mph – Concerns 

20 mph is good on residential roads and in stretches adjacent to schools. However, on main roads 30 mph would 
be far more suitable. Blanket 20 mph speed limits are pointless - see the effect it has in Witney where cars are 
crawling along and inpatient drivers are overtaking on these roads. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Concerns 

30 mph through this stretch is fine although most people adhere to the current speed limit. The only thing that 
would make that stretch of road safer is to build the cycle path. I live in Eynsham and drive along that route every 
day. I would cycle but will not feel safe doing so until the cycle path is built. Reducing speed limits will have no 
impact on making it feel safer to cycle. 
 

(25) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Henwood, Cumnor 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Concerns 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 
North Hinksey 20mph – Concerns 

Whilst I support 20 limits on the side roads and residential roads, I believe the main trunk roads through these 
areas should remain at the limit they are, with the exception of Cumnor, where around the school and church area 
(before the roundabout) would be effective. 
 
Re: Botley area, Making Eynsham road a 20 limit would not be a good idea as it is a main trunk road and I do not 
see the justification of it, but side roads like Dean Court I support 20 as they are highly residential. 

P
age 501



                 
 

Re: Farmoor, I see no point in making the small stretch from Cumnor direction to the double roundabout a 20, but 
would support changing the road through Farmoor becoming a 30. 
 
Re: Cumnor I support the limit changing to 20 from the roundabout up to the school and church, but beyond this 
(on the roads towards Appleton and Farmoor) I don’t see much point as again the level of residential housing 
drops off.  
 
To summarise, the plans are too extensive in their ambitions to make the whole areas 20, and I believe it should 
be confined to side roads and areas where there is a justifiable need to make it 20 rather than blanket-changing 
the speed limit over the whole area to be lower. Trunk roads should not be included in this proposal. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Concerns 

This change from 40 to 30 makes sense to me, there is a bus service with crossings and residential properties 
which justifies it. However I would like to see a study on impact of congestion from changing this limit down as it is 
a busy trunk road. 
 

(26) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, The Garth) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Concerns 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 
North Hinksey 20mph – Concerns 

Whilst a 20mph limit might be appropriate for smaller roads within the area, I don’t think it’s a good idea for the 
bigger roads (e.g Westminster Way) 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 
The road isn’t in a built up area and the proposed cycleway would be a better solution to improve safety along the 
Eynsham Road 
 

(27) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Concerns 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 
North Hinksey 20mph – Concerns 

P
age 502



                 
 

There should be more exact areas like outside schools should be reduced speed limits not a blanket over all roads 
in the areas 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

Busy road which has always has a lot of traffic passing through 
 

(28) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Appleton 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Concerns 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 
North Hinksey 20mph – Concerns 

Concerns about adding to traffic congestion 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

As a regular cyclist along this dangerous road anything that improves cycle safety should be encouraged 
 

(29) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Halls 
Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Concerns 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

No comments. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

No comments. 
 

(30) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Conifer 
Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Concerns 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

P
age 503



                 
 

Farmoor and north hinksey are both narrow roads and vehicles often go far to fast along there, especially where 
no pavements for pedestrians.    Cumnor in the main is Ok at the current speed limit (and i used to live and travel 
that way daily for 40+ years), the village has pavements on at least one side if not both for most of the way.  on 
the arterial roads then i think the current limit is Ok as people know to take care. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 
30 is about right for the road conditions (and people will still exceed it in all probability). 
 

(31) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, 
Eynsham Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – No opinion 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

I live on the b4044 where there is a 50 mph zone yet this is not being reduced even though there is a residential 
home, a camp Site, houses on both sides of the road and a farm. Several Cars have gone in the ditch and there 
have been two fatalities in the last few years. I do not agree That the b4044 40 mph zone needs to be reduced to 
30 as there are only houses on one side of the road for the majority.  The 50 mph should 
Be reduced first! 
 
Travel Change: No 
 
B4044 30mph – Concerns 

As outlined ealier 
 

(32) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Bertie) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – No opinion 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

The question is so generalised I can’t answer 
 
Travel Change: Other 

I will drive at 20 or below 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

P
age 504



                 
 

40 is too fast to react to cyclist farm traffic bnds etc especially at night 
 

(33) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Oakes 
lane) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – No opinion 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 
Because it will be dangerous for residents without this speed limit 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

It should be 20mph 
 

(34) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Dean 
Court Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

My children go to Cumnor school and it is not safe with cars going past at 30+ mph. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

There are not very many houses so the current 50mph is appropriate. It does need a cycle lane. 
 

(35) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Cumnor 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Object 

I live in farmoor, in valley farm barns, and often struggle to cross the road due to speeding cars and especially 
trucks, last week I was walking in the road as I couldn’t walk on the over grown, flooded swampy grass, and a 
truck came around the corner next to the national speed limit sign, it’s a good thing I wasn’t on my phone as he 
didn’t even slow down and I had to jump onto the grass. Or I would’ve been run over. 
 
Travel Change: Other 

P
age 505



                 
 

It would mean not only would I be able to get the bud more frequently but also cycle without the feet of being hit, 
as lots of bikes have been hit near where I live 
 
B4044 30mph – Object 

Because it’s unsafe, and I a teenager have to walk home everyday from the bus stop and often am out in 
dangerous situations due to speeding vans and lorry’s 
 

(36) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Abingdon 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

High pedestrian usage especially at school entry/exit times. The villages should not be used as "rat runs" 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

High volume of traffic where the residences are located further back 
 

(37) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Oakes 
Lane) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I support the implementation of the 20mph speed limits. However, re: Farmoor, to not extend the 20mph zone a 
short distance to the entirety of the existing 40mph zone would not only be grossly unfair to the residential 
properties at that end of the village, but more importantly, an extremely dangerous move which will very likely 
result in accidents in the future. Specifically, the point at which the proposal suggests the 20mph speed limit stops 
on the Cumnor Road is at the top of a blind hill crest, which is just above a busy crossing point for wildlife (foxes, 
deer, badgers and hedgehogs etc) and at the bottom of which fog often sits (a low point near the reservoir) around 
the busy main entrance to the Thames Water facility. This wide entrance is regularly used as a turning point for 
cars and lorries who often sit in the middle of the road waiting to turn right. Furthermore, on the other side of the 
road in quick succession are 3 residential turnings and the very busy entrance to the Farmoor Court business park 
(to say nothing of the proposed entrance to an enormous solar power plant currently under consultation). It is for 
this very reason that highways/ the council have in the past refused planning permission on the land directly 
opposite the Thames Water entrance at the bottom of the blind hill. We regularly hear the screeching of brakes as 
people brake to avoid animals, or cars dawdling in the middle of the road as they turn into or exit Thames Water, 

P
age 506



                 
 

so if this now becomes the point where drivers, (impatient at coming from a 20mph zone and keen to make up 
time) begin to rapidly accelerate with their foot on the accelerator, it will actually become even more dangerouns 
than it already is. We're aware of at least 3 accidents in the past on this very spot and many more close shaves. 
For this very reason weve been requesting a reduced speed limit for years. In the other direction (towards 
Farmoor), the same blind crest has resulted in at least 2 accidents we know of in the past, where speeding cars 
have ploughed into the back of parked cars on the left by the end of Mayfield Road. I therefore urge you to do the 
logical thing and extend the zone to the whole of the existing 40mph area, and indeed slightly further beyond the 
entrance to Valley Farm Barns and the proposed solar farm construction entrance (approx 20m beyond Valley 
Farm Barns), which is where an extension of the existing pavement has been proposed to run for the last few 
years. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

The entirety of the current 40mph zone should be 20mph. 
 

(38) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Hinskey, 
Raleigh Park Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

It is safer at 20. Residential areas should be 20 
 
Travel Change: Other 

no because i have mobility issues so I have to use my car unfortunately 
 
B4044 30mph – Object 

Too fast really, although not much need to cross the road there as most of the houses are on one side. 
 

(39) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford Cumnor 
Hill) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I think the one in Farmoor should be extended further 
 
Travel Change: No 

P
age 507



                 
 

 
B4044 30mph – Object 

A dangerous and difficult road, no cycle lane many bikes use it 
 

(40) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Cumnor 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

My family and I, along with other residents and business users  we have spoken to have substantial concerns 
regarding the double standards that seem to be being adopted by Oxfordshire Highways along the B4017 Cumnor 
Road whilst still within Farmoor.  
 
The proposals limit the speed only from the round about to Mayfield Road. The road corridor beynid this is used 
by a range of users,  workers for local businesses walking from the bus stop, residents and their children, the 
camp site users and walkers from the reservoir.  Usage is despite limited pavement in the area. The road is 
already a speed risk with either accelerating vehicles out of the village towards Cumnor, after the blind slope, or 
de-accelerating as they approach. The area is heavily used with visitors to the reservoir, Thames Water and as a 
cut through to the A420. 
 
Any speed limit should apply for the full extent of the 40 miles per hour restriction up to the village sign. Not doing 
so provides double standards and will  further impair the safety of the villages who live along the road. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Its a positive step 
 

(41) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Cumnor 
Road B4017) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I fully support the proposed 20mph speed limit along the section of the B4017. There is a narrow pedestrian 
pathway from the roundabout at the junction of the B4044 to the junction with Mayfield Road.  It can be very 
dangerous to walk along this path (especially on bin day) with the traffic travelling from the direction of Cumnor 

P
age 508



                 
 

frequently exceeding the current speed limit of 40mph.  It is also becoming increasingly difficult to exit and enter 
our drive safely. 
 
A policed 20mph speed limit should hopefully improve these dangers. However, the proposed 20mph limit from 
the 40mph limit is on a 'blind hill' and traffic often doesn't decelerate for several hundred yards.   It would make far 
more sense to extend this 20mph speed limit to at least the developed farm buildings at Sabine Barn entrance.  
Here traffic calming measures such as those in other villages (i.e. gated and give way to vehicles leaving the 
villages) could be safely installed and hopefully have the desired effect of reducing the speed to 20mph. 
 
The proposed route for all construction traffic for Red House Solar Farm (and possibly Botley West Solar Farm) is 
via this section of the Cumnor Road (and not directly off the Eynsham Road or or through Cumnor) - entering the 
site at a field opposite the reservoir.  It is imperative that these vehicles travel at 20mph along the whole of this 
stretch for safety and noise concerns. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

It will be safer entering the roundabout from all directions especially from the B4017. 
As the B4044 is straight, traffic frequently exceeds the current speed limit of 40mph, and traffic from Oxford does 
not always slow on approach to the roundabout. 
 
 

(42) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (farmoor, oakes 
lane) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Concerns 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I think that the 20 MPH or at a minimum 30mph limit should be extended passed the water works entrance on 
Cumnor road in Farmoor up to where the current 40mph limit ends. Vehicles enter and leave the village far too 
fast and there are several entrances along this road. People will see the end of the 20 limit and speed right up . 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

40mph is too fast with people crossing road for bus stops 
 

P
age 509



                 
 

(43) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor - 
Abingdon, Bertie Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

Cars drive far too fast past the Cumnor primary school, nursery and park. It would be an easy fix to drop the 
speed to 20mph around the school/church/park. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 
 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

 

(44) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, High 
Street) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

Regularly witness fast moving heavy goods vehicles through cumnor village centre past school/church/post office) 
passing cm from people on pavements on narrow roads. Also causing vibrations and noise through properties 
from as early as 5 am. Slowing down to 20 will reduce risk to public especially at school times and improve quality 
of life for residents. The high street/oxford road/Abingdon road desperately need the change. 
 
Travel Change: Other 
May allow my children to cycle more often. Right now roads are lethal with the truck rat run. 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

With no cycle path it is a very dangerous road. Cycle path or 30. 
 

(45) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, High 
Street) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

It will slow down the traffic coming through - particularly HGVs who increasingly use Cumnor high street as a 
bypass 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 

P
age 510



                 
 

B4044 30mph – Support 
Will make things much safer for cyclists. Minor inconvenience to other transport is worth it 
 

(46) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Hutchcomb 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

20MPH would bring greater safety to local roads, reduce noise pollution and be better for the environment, 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

Don't know enough about this one. 
 

(47) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Oxford) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
Should be 20mph near schools 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

 

(48) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Cumnor 
Hill) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – No opinion 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Narrow roads in both N Hinksey and Cumnor. Both villages have schools. Drivers often use these roads as a 
shortcut and drive considerably faster than 30mph through them. Farmoor at least has a two sided carriageway 
but because residential a drop in speed limit to 30mph seems sensible 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

P
age 511



                 
 

Residential area. Bus stops on other side of road, school children and others  have to cross road 
 

(49) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, 
Tumbledown) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 
HGVs in particular go too fast along High St, the backdraught has been known to knock cyclists off their bikes and 
an elderly lady on the pavement. We need to change the mindset of drivers through this village. It is being used as 
a cut through when the A34 is congested, drivers need reminding that this isn’t just a route from A to B but a place 
where people live. 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 
This road is dangerous. One fatality is too many. Two is unacceptable. The mini roundabout has a very low 
visibility splay and consequently is like playing car v bike roulette. 
 

(50) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Cumnor 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 

I have lived on Cumnor Road in Farmoor for over 30 years.  I've therefore used the roads of Farmoor and Cumnor 
for all that time and have seen on numerous occasions the dangers of traffic going too quickly (even within speed 
limits), especially when moving out to go past parked cars.  I also have had one cat knocked down and killed on 
Cumnor Road, and another hit and injured. 
In my view, the 20mph scheme for Cumnor Road, Farmoor should extend down the rise and past the first 
entrance to Thames Water.  The rise creates a blind spot for traffic coming into Farmoor from Cumnor and cars 
are often parked at the top of the rise.  In addition, the works access to the solar farms will be from Cumnor Road, 
so traffic exiting Farmoor towards Cumnor will have a blind spot if the speed limit stays at 40mph at the top of the 
rise. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Traffic goes far too fast near the roundabout 

P
age 512



                 
 

 

(51) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Meadow 
Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 
I think these will help make a safer area for walking and cycling in the villages and area of Botley. Minimal 
increase in travel times for cars. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Houses join on to this road and there’s a couple of bus stops here too, making it 30 will help make it safer and 
quieter. 
 

(52) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Oxford 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – No opinion 
Houses close to road in both Cumnor and Farmoor.  Both have pedestrians walking along and crossing roads.  
Current limits are unsafe - especially 40 mph in Farmoor. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Pedestrians walk along and cross this road.  Current 40 mph is dangerous. 
 

(53) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Appleton 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
I want it to be safer for pedestrians and cyclists to use our local roads. There are no crossings to help safely cross. 
I’ve run into a few drivers that get impatient with vulnerable road users, they seem to think that the aim is to get 
through as quickly as possible rather than safely. Having the roads designated as 20 will help set expectations 
when route planning to help stop frustration. 

P
age 513



                 
 

 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Concerns 

Support but the rest of the road should be 40   It’s bendy with hidden dips. With 50 as an expectation drivers are 
impatient with those that use caution, or with cyclists and frequently don’t slow to 30 when signed to at Botley. 
Also get aggressive when leaving Botley as they see the 50 sign and want to instantly be going fast. My concern 
is that the same behaviour will happen both sides of Farmour leading to more accidents in those areas, we 
already have one memorial in that area. 
 

(54) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Hinksey, 
Beech Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Safer driving, no need to be rushing - what's the hurry. Save lives without too much inconvenience. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Concerns 

Nobody adheres to that because it's too close to the 50 zone. Plus there are cyclists there, make it safer for 
cycling. 
 

(55) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Hinksey, 
Laburnum Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Sensible but placing some traffic measures to assist like rumble strips to know you are entering  a different area 
would help unlike Witney when you go from National Speed limit to 20mph and have the wrong size entry signs to 
the zone 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Concerns 
Won’t help the cyclists if that is the thinking behind this. 
 

P
age 514



                 
 

(56) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Hutchcomb 
road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

For a safer, quieter and cleaner community 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

Not sure of what the arguments are for this 
 

(57) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Oxford 
Rd) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

20mph zones have been proven to increase safety for all road users and pedestrians. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

Don’t feel strongly about this issue 
 

(58) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Norreys 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Pedestrian safety, especially around schools 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

 

(59) Local 
Resident/Member of public 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 

P
age 515



                 
 

North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
I am sopporting because I think it's a good idea to have the 20mph speed limits 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – No opinion 

I would not say 
 

(60) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Arnolds 
Way) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Safety, health and environmental conerns 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Safety, health and environmental concerns 
 

(61) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, 
Hutchcomb) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I believe our roads are unsafe while the speed limit remains at 30 mph. Some drivers even exceed that speed, 
particularly on the hills which is extremely dangerous. I would expect a reduction to result in a safer environment 
especially for children and cyclists. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Safer for residents 
 

(62) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 

P
age 516



                 
 

public, (Botley, Hutchcomb 
Road) 

North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
A lower speed limit will make the roads safer for pedestrians and cyclists 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

A lower speed limit will make the road safer for cyclists 
 

(63) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Hutchcomb 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I am in support of lower speed limits as narrow roads in bad condition, no or too narrow pavements and no cycle 
paths make walking or cycling unsafe with cars passing at high speed. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

See above. 
 

(64) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Hutchcomb 
road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Safety of children walking and cycling the same roads 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

People drive too fast along there 
 

(65) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, 
Sweetmans) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

P
age 517



                 
 

Cars drive too fast, so dangerous! There are many children in these areas. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Current 50mph is too fast as no cycle lane safety for cyclists 
 

(66) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Maple) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I am generally in support of lowered speed limits in built up areas. However, I am unsure how much difference this 
will actually make. In Botley for example, the speed on the estate roads is probably around 20mph anyway, due to 
the twisting roads and huge number of parked cars which limit visibility. I honestly don't think that this will actually 
make a lot of difference in our area. Removing the cars parked on the pavements would make it nicer to walk, and 
now affordable and reliable public transport world make me more likely to take the bus- the speed limit doesn't 
affect this. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 
This does seem fairly sensible to make the roundabout easier to manoeuvre around. There are very small 
numbers of pedestrians or cyclists here, do perhaps this will help. 
 

(67) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Laburnum 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

It will be much safer for local residents and consistency across all areas is much easier for drivers. There is no 
need to drive faster in these areas 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

I presume this is the slowest rate possible for this area 

P
age 518



                 
 

 

(68) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, Oxford, 
Laburnum Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
It is a predominantly residential area including elderly people and families with children. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Too many accidents 
 

(69) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Norreys 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I have 2 small kids who are just learning to cycle. We cycle to the Cumnor school and pre school daily and its a 
permanent worry that an HGV that is driving way too fast for the small roads in Cumnor will clip them and cause 
them to fall into the road. At school drop off and pick up times the pavements are also very congested (not helped 
by cars that mount the kerb). Cars drive down the road past the school at  top speed regardless of all the kids and 
parents around and it feels like a disaster waiting to happen. If we want to encourage kids to walk or ride to school 
then we need to make it as safe and easy for them as possible. At the moment this is not the case. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

I use this road regularly and almost daily see cars trying to overtake cyclists when it's unsafe. I don't know why 
anyone would want to cycle on this road at present. I would fear for my life doing so. 
 

(70) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Abingdon 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

P
age 519



                 
 

Living in these areas with small children, I feel cars and (more worryingly) lorries travel too fast through these 
villages. There is no need to pass through them at 30mph (and often faster). 20 is plenty 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

I believe traffic going slower along these roads will benefit residents as reduce issues on these roads 
 

(71) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Arnold’s 
Way) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Residential area should be for residents, not cars 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Slower is safer 
 

(72) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Cumnor 
Hill) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I have lots of concerns about both road safety and pedestrian safety across this Parish that 20mph limits would do 
a lot to address 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Given recent history of accidents , injuries and sadly fatalities this is a very welcome initiative for this road 
 

(73) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Cumnor 
Hill) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

P
age 520



                 
 

These are quiet family communities with plenty of young children. There is no need for the speed limit to be set at 
30mph or more when a very real threat exists for the safety of all residents. The recent 30mph restriction on 
Cumnor Hill is still too generous and the road remains dangerous to cross in many places. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

30mph is an appropriate speed limit. 
 

(74) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Cumnor 
Hill) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
I live on Cumnor Hill. The speed limit here was recently reduced from 40 to 30. It has not worked - in particular 
lorries and vans still exceed 40. In part I believe this is due to a lack of signage. I sometimes cycle to work and 
particularly on the hill, even worse when it is being used as an alternative to the A420, traffic behaviour is 
alarming. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 
Really this road needs a cycle path but in the absence of that this is better than nothing. 
 

(75) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Cumnor 
Hill) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

To make the villages safer for cyclists and quieter for residents. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

To make it safer for cyclists. 
 

P
age 521



                 
 

(76) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Glebe 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I live opposite the park in Cumnor with a young family, and the 30mph limit is far too quick for children potentially 
running out of the park or out of the school. Drivers regularly go over this limit and our family and local families are 
very concerned about a child getting hit by a vehicle. It must be changed as quickly as possible. 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

There are many cyclists who are constantly being pressured to pull over to allow vehicles past. We need to make 
it safe for them and not allow vehicles to try and overtake. 
 

(77) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, High 
Street) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Because there have been serious accidents in Cumnor involving school children. This could easily happen 
anywhere with a speed limit of 30-40mph. Bringing it down to 20mph could reduce the number and severity of 
accidents. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

It creates safer roads. 
 

(78) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, High 
Street) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I live in the centre of cumnor village and I’m constantly seeing people struggling to cross the road. My son also 
cycles to school so safety of children travelling to school. On this stretch of road, there is a school, shop, breakfast 
and after school club, pub, old people’s home and residential properties. It should absolutely be a 20mph! 

P
age 522



                 
 

Damage has also been caused to our property from vehicles speedy through the village, particularly HGVs which 
are using the village as a rat run 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

There has already been a death on that road 
 

(79) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, High 
Street) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I support the lowering of speed limits to 20 mph for safety and environmental reasons. In Cumnor heavy goods 
vehicles use the village as a cut through. The narrow pavements and roads combine to make travel to and from 
school potentially dangerous for school children. Slower traffic means vehicles are less likely to kill or seriously 
injure a child in the event of an accident. Due to the twisting roads and prevalence of parked cars, drivers 
generally already drive quite slowly in the village centre, but a lower speed limit would encourage those who 
speed and don’t stop at junctions or the mini round about to drive more safely. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Safer for cyclists. 
 

(80) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, 
Kimmeridge Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Child at Cumnor Primary. The narrow road passing the school needs speed reduction for child safety 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 
Through traffic ignoring the roundabout at Cumnor Road at speed has nearly caused accidents 
 

P
age 523



                 
 

(81) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Norreys) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

To make our roads safer.. especially by cumnor school the lorries hurtle along … 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Make the road safer 
 

(82) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Norreys 
road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

It will bring much needed safety, environmental and noise reduction benefits to the communities 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

It will being much needed safety improvements to this stretch of road for road users, residents and children 
crossing for school buses 
 

(83) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Sands 
Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I live I'm Cumnor with my children and it's for their safety and that of others 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Safety 
 

P
age 524



                 
 

(84) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, The 
Glebe) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

the roads need to be safer in the village of cumnor 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

would like the area to be a safer place to walk, drive etc 
 

(85) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Abingdon 
Rd) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Living on the Abingdon Rd our house shakes when lorries go past at 30mph to the point pictures fall off. This is 
similar for friends in farmoor and NH. Also, the villages have younger families than 50/60 years ago so a lot more 
chance of a youngster being hurt.  Many near misses on our road. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Such a dangerous road. So many blind corners, families wanting to walk to various places and cyclists going 
between villages.  Driving on it most days, I’m amazed there’s not more casualties. 
 

(86) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Cumnor 
Hill) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Two areas have schools and Farmoor is full of cyclists 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Very fast road and lots of cyclists 

P
age 525



                 
 

 

(87) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, Oxford 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
The section by Cumnor school is particularly dangerous for pedestrians 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

To make the road safer for cyclists, since you refuse to fund a cycle path 
 

(88) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor Cumnor 
Hill) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I'm a parent living on Cumnor Hill and it's shocking the way the children are endangered getting to Cumnor 
Primary school every day. They need a safe speed limit in the village of Cumnor and regular monitoring and 
enforcement of the limit in Cumnor and on Cumnor Hill to avoid more accidents. 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Again the safety of our children has to be prioritised over the convenience of motorists. 
 

(89) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor, High 
Street) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

For the safety of cyclists, pedestrians and, in particular, children on their way to school, I think 20mph is sufficient. 
Furthermore, in Cumnor many heavy lorries come through the village at speed, which is (a) terrifying when 
walking kids to school and (b) causes vibrations in our house. Hopefully a 20 mph speed limit will encourage such 
drivers to take more care. 
 

P
age 526



                 
 

Travel Change: No 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

For the many cyclists that use this road a reduction in speed, even for part of it would be of benefit. 
 

(90) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Bushy Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Happy to support slowing cars on cumnor hill because I wouldn't dare cycle up there I usually get off my bike! 
 
Travel Change: Other 

Yes I would both walk / cycle more. 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

I support the proposals because cars absolutely fly down eynsham road past deanfield road at well over 30mph. It 
puts me off cycling because I know people go for risky overtakes to get in front before the crossing island.itll help 
speed buses up too. I strongly suggest this speed limit on eynsham road is enforced with a speed camera on after 
the turn in to eynsham road off the b4044 cumnor hill. You would make a fortune. 
 

(91) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Dean Court 
ward,Cumnor, Stone 
Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I want the roads to be a safer space for pedestrians and cyclists and reducing the speed limits to 20 mph will help 
to achieve that. 
 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

The reduction to 30 mph will allow the school children to cross the road to the bus stops as the school bus has 
been removed. 
 

P
age 527



                 
 

(92) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Eynsham Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

As a botley resident I see children going to school & old people trying to cross the roads this is urgently needed 
 
Travel Change: Other 

Bus 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

As it is urgently needed 
 

(93) Local Cllr, (Farmoor, 
B4044) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

As a resident of Farmoor the 40mph limit through Farmoor needs to be reduced to 30mph as people regularly 
travel through the village at speeds greater than 40mph.  Residents (some elderly) have to cross the main road to 
get to two of the bus stops currently in situ, and in the absence of any zebra crossing / traffic lights this can be 
hazardous. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

This is a residential village with a high volume of traffic rat running through the village at speeds higher than 
40mph.  Many residents have to cross the road to the bus stops, lack of zebra crossing or traffic lights make this 
hazardous and difficult especially for older people. 
 

(94) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Cumnor 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I strongly believe that 20 mph is the appropriate speed for residential/built up areas. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

P
age 528



                 
 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

The road is dangerous and off putting for cyclists.  Reducing speed would be a big help. 
 

(95) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Cumnor 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Living in Farmoor the 40mph is too high. People do not slow down for roundabout or allow for children possibly 
crossing the road for bus stops. As a residential area and used as an alternative route when A34 busy or closed 
speed limit needs to be lower 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Roundabout, bus stops, people crossing main road and vehicles using it as an alternative route to A34 
 

(96) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Cumnor 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I believe this is a more appropriate limit for a built up area 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Cars travel too fast over the mini roundabout at the junction with Cumnor Road making it dangerous to pull out 
onto Eynsham Road 
 

(97) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Cumnor 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

The proposed 20mph on the B4017 is directly in front of our house. 

P
age 529



                 
 

The speed and frequency of traffic on this road has increased.  It is becoming more difficult  even to enter or leave 
our own driveways. 
 
In addition here is only a narrow footpath between the corner of Mayfield Road and the Eynsham Road.  The 
volume and speed of traffic makes walking along this path dangerous. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

It will make the approach to the roundabout safer. 
 

(98) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Meadow 
close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

These are family communities, with narrow roads, lots of kids, dogs and walker and it would be great for them to 
be even safer.  It does also help with noise reduction which makes these even better places to live. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 
Cars drive way above 40mph, bus services are on the opposite side and crossing can be difficult, noise reduction 
is a benefit, safer for all 
 

(99) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Oakes 
Lane) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

I would like to see this speed limit extended to the proposed entrance of the Red house solar farm development 
which would include the houses and businesses beyond the Mayfield Rd cut off point 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

There is a lot of traffic flow on this part of the road including cyvlists 

P
age 530



                 
 

 

(100) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, 
Eynsham Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
Traffic regularly speeding in all areas. Botley is getting more built up and therefore more hazardous to navigate 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Traffic regularly speeds way past 50mph on this stretch. No speed cameras have been seen. Very dangerous for 
the residents and  walkers/cyclists using this road 
 

(101) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Farmoor, Valley 
Farm Barns) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

The speed limit must reach and include the 4 houses in Valley Farm Barns.I have an elderly Mum, a toddler and 4 
older children.We all have experience of dangerous speeding cars and heavy stone trucks in Farmoor.Cumnor 
Road is also used as a racetrack by motorbike groups.All residents here need to cross the road to walk our dogs 
or catch a bus.In summer there are scores of young sailors also who walk from the bus on Eynsham Rd to 
Farmoor reservoir. 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Multiple accidents occur on this road because it has no space for cycles,pedestrians crossing and because the 
sun blinds early morning going east and evening going west. 
 

(102) Local Cllr, (North 
Hinksey, Conifer Close) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

20mph limits improve air quality and road safety 

P
age 531



                 
 

 
Travel Change: Other 

Both walk and cycle more 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Support for road safety reasons 
 

(103) Local Cllr, (North 
Hinksey, Hutchcomb 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

20mph is crucial for improving road safety in North Hinksey and the neighbouring villages. This is a step in the 
right direction in helping pedestrians and cyclists feel more confident using the highways network. I fully support. 
 
Travel Change: Yes - cycle more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

This should help make cyclists feel a little safer, however the B4044 Community Path is still very much needed to 
ensure people in North Hinksey can access Hill End and Valley Farm Pizza, the Care Home and other 
communities on foot or bike. 
 

(104) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (North Hinksey, 
North HInksey Lane) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
Makes it safer to walk and cycle 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Makes it safer to walk and cycle; plus it's a dangerous road with lots of lorries etc. 
 

(105) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 

P
age 532



                 
 

public, (Oxford, Eynsham 
Road) 

North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
I think cars travel far too fast along the roads in our local district 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Vehicles often exceed the existing speed limit 
 

(106) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, North 
Hinksey Lane) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Narrow pavements and cycle lanes in places mean pedestrians/bikes are often pushed out into the road (North 
Hinksey Lane). Reducing traffic speeds generally makes for a safer environment and encourages active travel for 
those that are able. 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

This road section runs through a residential area. Lower road speeds make travel for residents safer and also help 
to improve safety for cyclists travelling through from Eynsham to Oxford. 
 

(107) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Springfield 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Safer for local residents. Discourages driving and encourages cycling/walking 
 
Travel Change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

Encourages cycling 
 

(108) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 

P
age 533



                 
 

public, (Oxford, Springfield 
Road) 

Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Safety. It should help to reduce accidents. 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

As long as this includes the stretch of road around the mini roundabout, this will improve safety. 
 

(109) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, 
Hutchcomb Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 
Even small reductions can save lives. With more cars on the road it’s more important than ever for people to 
reduce speeds to reduce the number of accidents and injuries on the roads. 
 
Travel Change: Other 

I try to take alternative modes of transport to car where possible anyway. 
 
B4044 30mph – Support 

I wholeheartedly support this. My 11 year old daughter needs to cross this road daily and there are no safe 
crossings so anything that can be done to reduce speeds is a good thing. She also travels by bus along this road 
and ha so commented many times that some bus drivers go very fast and she feels unsafe, particularly as she 
often does not get a seat on the bus. 
 

(110) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Sutton, New 
Road) 

 
Cumnor 20mph – Support 
Farmoor 20mph – Support 
North Hinksey 20mph – Support 

Lowering speed on residential roads saves lives 
 
Travel Change: No 

 
B4044 30mph – Support 

It will make little difference to travel times, but should reduce issues at the roundabout 

P
age 534



                 
 

 

(111) Email response, 
(unknown) 

 
Support – We endorse the proposed 20 mph limit in Cumnor. Especially the 2 footpath exits from St. Michael’s 

Church are hazardous, we have experienced problems with traffic when crossing the road there, there is a 
downward hill on the road and even cyclists go past with much speed.  Additionally, the Cumnor Primary School is 
nearby and a danger to children and parents crossing the road to visit the shop and Post Office. 
 

(112) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Cumnor) 

 
Support – I am writing to express my support for the 20mph speed limit proposals for Cumnor and North Hinksey 

parishes. I tried to complete the survey online but it wouldn't load for me. 
 
I am writing as someone who lives in this area and drives, cycles and walks regularly. The reason for my view is 
that traffic speeds need to be reduced to increase the safety of cyclists and pedestrians and to encourage people 
to use active ways of getting around. At present many vehicles exceed the current 30 mph limit and this is 
dangerous for other users particularly where the road space is limited or where the road surface is in a bad state 
of repair. A 20mph speed limit would give a better chance or reducing traffic speeds to a level where other users 
would feel safer. Even if a driver slightly exceeds the new proposed limit they will still be travelling slower than the 
current speeds of around 35mph. 
 

(113) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley) 

 
Support – wish to contact you to provide the strongest possible support for the reduced speed limits, and to urge 

OCC to adopt these proposals. I would in fact go further, given that there has still been no progress on the B4044 
segregated path for pedestrians and cyclists. In the absence of such a path alongside the B4044, and thus the 
extreme danger posed to pedestrians and cyclists by traffic, the B4044 should have a speed limit of 20mph 
continuously from Cumnor hill to Eynsham. The 20mph limit should also be applied throughout the residential 
areas of Cumnor, Botley and Farmoor (and the rest of the county), including, for example, Cumnor Hill. 
 
A major reason for the low numbers of vulnerable road users on the B4044 is precisely because of the danger 
imposed by vehicles. The statement on the consultation web page that 'existing 30mph, 40mph & 50mph speed 
limits will remain in place, with Officers having taken the current road environment & traffic usage into account’ 
suggests that this catch 22 situation for vulnerable road users has not been taken into account. 
 
Retaining a 50mph limit on the B4044 is in conflict with both the urgent need to reduce carbon emissions, 
including by promoting sustainable transport, and OCC’s commitment to Vision Zero. If and when segregated  

P
age 535



                 
 

infrastructure for vulnerable road users is installed it may then be appropriate to review the speed limit, but up until 
that point it is impossible to see how retaining a 50mph limit is compatible with the wider objectives of the council. 
 

 

P
age 536



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Jericho & Osney 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 FEBRUARY 2023 

 

OXFORD, BINSEY LANE: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMIT  
 

Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised.  
 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of a 20mph speed limit along Oxford’s Binsey Lane as shown in 
Annex 1.  

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 
the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 

 
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 

respect of the proposals. 
 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling along Binsey Lane by 
making it safer and more attractive for vulnerable road users. 
 

 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 01 December and 06 January 

2022. A notice was published in the Oxford Times newspaper, and an email 
sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames Valley 
Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, 

countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, business 

Page 537

Agenda Item 21



            
     
 

representation groups, Oxford City Council, the local City Cllrs, and the local 
County Councillor representing the Jericho & Osney division.  

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
7. Six responses were received from statutory consultees. Thames Valley Police 

re-iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and practice regarding 20mph 

speed limits; however, on this occasion they consider their response as ‘having 
serious concerns’ although still not an outright objection. Stagecoach and 

Oxford Bus Companies had no objections. The local member, the City Council 
member, and the Oxford Pedestrian Association all support the proposals. 

 
Other Responses: 

 

8. A further 93 members of the public as well as three groups or businesses 
expressed support through the online portal. Three members of public 
expressed concern and a further three objected to the proposals.   

 
9. Concerns from the members of public were the need for traffic signals on the 

bridge near Botley Road, the inevitable lack of enforcement, and a query over 
how cyclists would be compelled to comply. Two objections centred around the 
proposals not being needed with one citing the minimal traffic flow as being a 

reason. The other objection suggested it was self-enforcing in most places and 
where it is not a belief that the limit will be ignored, that the existing NSL is 

wholly appropriate, and that it is expensive for little benefit. 
 

10. Those who responded online (103 received) were also asked whether if the 

20mph speed limit proposals were implemented, would it likely influence a 
change to their mode of travel in the area, the results of which are shown below:  

 

Travel Change Number 

Yes – walk/wheel more 45 (44%) 

Yes - cycle more 34 (33%) 

No 19 (18%) 

Other 5 (5%) 

 
11. The responses are shown in Annex 2, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 
 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

12. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 
greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.   
The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 

speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 
of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 

Page 538



            
     
 

County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 
that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  

 
13. The Police concerns are noted; however, the authority wishes to improve the 

safety for all users of the public highway along this section, and as such speed 
management is deemed to be the most appropriate methodology for doing this.  
 

14. Other objections are comparable to those expressed and considered in earlier 
similar schemes and were not seen as warranting a change in those previous 

proposals given the explicit intention of the County Council’s 20mph limit policy.  
 

 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 
 Annex 2: Consultation responses   

  
  

   
Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 
    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 

 
February 2023 

Page 539



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 540



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
(Serious) Concerns – reducing such a road from 60 to 20 

 
Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and acknowledge that 
20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be desirable for 
communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage greater 
diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 

P
age 541



                 
 

• road environment 
 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Interim Managing 
Director, (Oxford Bus 
Company) 

No objection – this one is fine. 

(3) Head of Strategic 
Development and the Built 
Environment, (Stagecoach 
Bus Company) 

No objection – In line with our general practice, I am again happy to confirm that Stagecoach has no comments or 

observations to make and offers no objection to these proposals. 

(4) County Cllr, (Jericho & 
Osney division) 

 
Support – Many of the local residents I have represented for 27 years are desperate for a speed limit here. It is a 
narrow and winding road and there are no cycle lanes of even footways, It is heavily used by pedestrians and cyclists, 
especially in the summer when people go for walks, to the pick-your-own farm, to the pub, to the golf driving range or 
to Port Meadow for swimming and picnics. The road is really dangerous at present, with cars allowed to drive at 70 
mph! Even 30 mph is too fast for this road. Please bring in 20 mph as soon as possible.  
Please can you also address the problem of enforcement of the new limit? It will be needed, especially at first. Traffic 
calming, one or two SIDs or VASs and/or other measures will be needed, please.  
I'm sure others will say that enforcement is a concern. Please don't count such comments as an objection to the 
proposal. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

P
age 542



                 
 

(5) Local Cllr, (Oxford, 
Harley Road) 

 
Support – Brilliant - will there be speed cameras to enforce it. And if so, please could you consult with local residents 

about where to put them, to be as sympathetic to the rural feel as possible. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 
(6) Local 
group/organisation, 
(Oxford Pedestrians 
Association) 

Support – Oxford Pedestrians Association strongly supports the introduction of a 20mph speed limit on Binsay Lane; 

we have been concerned about drivers speeding along here for many years. It is highly used pedestrian route with no 
pavements after the residential part of the lane. 

(7) Local 
group/organisation, 
(Oxfordshire Cycling 
Network) 

 
Support – Binsey Lane is used by pedestrians and cyclists accessing The Perch and other places on Binsey Lane. 

Also extensively by Pedal and Post, Oxford's largest cycle-based logistics firm.  
There is no footway on Binsey Lane, and the road is narrow. High vehicle speeds are not appropriate and unsafe. 
20mph would create a safer environment, and as a by product, it would become a more attractive destination. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(8) Local 
group/organisation, 
(Cyclox) 

 
Support – Cyclox supports a 20 mph speed limit across the city to reduce the severity and frequency of road 

casualties. This is one of the goals of the Vision Zero campaign. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(9) Local 
group/organisation, 
(Oxford Civic Society) 

 
Support – • Support the proposal but request that any reduced speed limit must be enforced or traffic calming 

measures put in place. 
• Binsey Lane is a gateway to Port Meadow and is potentially a wonderful resource for encouraging active travel 
and recreation. However, there is no pavement and the road is narrow making it feel very unsafe to walk or cycle 
down, especially with kids. 
• Top end of Binsey Lane (Botley Road end) is already 20mph but this is not enforced and cars regularly speed 
very dangerously down this road. 
 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

P
age 543



                 
 

 

(10) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Moulsford, Ferry 
Lane) 

 
Object – You cannot justify the cost of this project, for so little benefit. 

Binsey Lane appears to be a single track road for most of its length.  A browse with Google Streetview makes it clear 
that 20mph would be dangerously fast in places, whereas higher speeds may be perfectly safe on other stretches with 
good visibility.   That’s why NSL is appropriate, the road is quite obviously self-limiting.    Some drivers will of course 
drive too fast, and dangerously.  But these same individual drivers , for which I’d suggest ‘hooligans’ is a suitable 
descriptive term, are unlikely to take any notice whatsoever of a 20mph speed limit. 
Your statement of reasons clarified that the project arose “Following concerns raised by the local county councillor 
regarding road safety”.  It is hard to understand why you would put so much effort and expense into such a project as 
a result of just one person’s concerns, regardless of whether that person happens to be a councillor. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(11) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford) 

 
Object – there's no need to do this...it's not a fast road anyway, and 30 / 40 would be fine. 

 
Travel change: No 
 

(12) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Lamarsh) 

 
Object – It is not a thoroughfare. It has very little traffic 

 
Travel change: No 
 

(13) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley, West Way) 

 
Concerns – How are cyclists going to be enforced to keep to the new speed limit? 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(14) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Binsey 
Lane) 

 
Concerns – I have repeatedly asked for a set of timed, automated traffic lights by the bridge on Binsey Lane.  This 

would make potential collisions avoidable at a relatively low cost 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

P
age 544



                 
 

 

(15) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Hill View 
Road) 

 
Concerns – I am concerned that it will not be enforced so it wibe useful useful 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(16) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Hill View 
Road) 

 
Concerns – I go up there every day for personal reasons. While it is strictly National, there is an advisory 30 for much 

of it. I am not sure that a statutory 30 without cameras, etc. will be observed by anybody who ignores the advisory 
limit. A statutory 30, to be enforceable, will, absent street lighting, require 250 yard repeaters which could cause a 
great deal of detriment to views and vistas.  
So I would plump for an advisory 20 without repeaters to send a 'slow down' message, or if possible a 20MPH zone, if 
that can valid without repeaters. 
In the summer, parking on the verges around the green forces pedestrians into the road. I would consider some 
strategically placed humps and perhaps some bollards. 
I have encountered cattle in the road, we saw 3 pheasant this morning and many are the rabbits in the spring. Some 
livestock/wildlife hazard markers might slow people down in more picturesque fashion than speed limit repeater signs. 
The visitors' book at St Margaret's would leave one in no doubt how much a very wide range of all sorts of people 
value the 'sweet, especial rural scene' thereabouts. It is importance to the world - I was met someone up there who 
had come all the way from Tasmania. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(17) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Binsey) 

 
Support – It’s a narrow lane, with passing places which is used by pedestrians, cyclists, cars and agricultural / service 

vehicles . The entrance to Binsey lane is already a 20 zone ( I think). I fully support this proposal provided it doesn’t 
involve further urbanisation of this country lane ( pavements, street lights etc) and that signage is kept to a minimum in 
keeping with the rural ambience of this unique part of Oxford. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(18) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Support – Many pedestrians and cyclists use the lane.  This often includes dogs and children.  I would like these 

more vulnerable road users to have the greater protection of lower vehicle speeds.  This seems especially important 

P
age 545



                 
 

public, (Oxford, Binsey 
Lane) 

as the road is both narrow and bendy and has no pavement, so the road effectively functions as a shared space.  
Lower speeds at night might also protect badgers which I occasionally see on the lane. 
As a Binsey resident I am sometimes scared by the high speed of cars on the lane and am keen for Binsey lane to be 
safer for all users.  I notice the need particularly when my small grandchildren visit and walk or cycle on the lane. 
Ideally I'd also like visitors to Binsey to think more carefully about whether they need to drive to the village and I like 
the idea of making the lane safer, where the approach to Binsey on foot or by bike can be an enjoyable part of the 
experience of visiting. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(19) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Poplar 
Road) 

 
Support – As a regular cyclist down this road with a 5-year-old child in a seat, the lack of a 20mph speed limit saw 

many cars going very quickly (40 - 60mph) down Binsey Lane, around blind corners, and getting very close to cyclists 
as they overtook. A proper, and enforced, speed limit would greatly improve the road for the many cyclists ans 
pedestrians who use it regularly, while being no inconvenience to drivers. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(20) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Didcot, Slade 
Road) 

 
Support – Based on the width of the road, the types of usage that it gets, and some frightening experiences that I 

have had as a pedestrian in other remarkably similar roads in the county where this has not been done. 
 
Travel change: Other 

It would make it more attractive for me for both walking and cycling.  
 

(21) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Garsington, 
Southend) 

 
Support – At times the lane is very winding and narrow, and it can be dangerous - for cars, if two are trying to pass 

each other at once, but especially if there are pedestrians or cyclists in the mix too. 20mph is more sensible for the 
type of road that it is. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(22) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Support – My young family and me walk and cycle along this route and at times drivers go far too fast and drive 

without care and attention. 

P
age 546



                 
 

public, (Grandpont, 
Marlborough Road) 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(23) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Binsey lane) 

 
Support – This is a narrow road in a highly developed residential area leading from the Botley Road and over a 

narrow bridge to a very narrow road to Binsey.  The road is not wide enough for cars to pass each other at any speed, 
usually one must wait for the other to pass 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(24) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Marston, 
Harberton Mead) 

 
Support – Whatever the speed limit should be it definitely shouldn’t be 60. The presence of not infrequent pedestrians 

and no pavement makes it a high risk area. A low limit would alert drivers to the risk and reduce risk of death if contact 
is made 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(25) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (New Botley, 
Lamarsh Road) 

 
Support – I cycle and walk on this road which has no pavement so having a 20 mile limit would make safety sense. 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(26) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Riverside) 

 
Support – Many people myself included walk and cycle along Binsey Lane and the 20mph speed limit would improve 

safety, especially on the windier parts where driver vision is limited. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(27) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Abingdon 
Road) 

 
Support – Binsey lane is a narrow road without footpaths. It connects urban West Oxford ('Botley Road' and environs} 

with the businesses and homes of Binsey, and with the River Thames and Port Meadow, a major centre for recreation.  
It is therefore an important route for road users including the most vulnerable - pedestrians and cyclists.  A 20mph limit 
will encourage active travel, and reduce harm to vulnerable road users.  The 20mph limit will not materially impact any 
group.  Therefore I strongly support the change, and would encourage OCC to progress similar changes elsewhere at 
scale and at pace. 

P
age 547



                 
 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(28) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Alexandra 
Road) 

 
Support – Finally!! It’s been a death trap for years and it shouldn’t have taken this long! 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(29) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Alexandra 
Road) 

 
Support – I walk and run here and speeding traffic is both frightening as well as polluting. Also dangerous for animals. 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

(30) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Alexandra 
Road) 

 
Support – Binsey Lane is an important walk for Oxford residents, and for visitors to Oxford, leading to Medley Manor 

Farm pick your own and to the amenities at Binsey Village, including the Perch and St Margaret's Church. The 
countryside walk itself provides health and well being benefits. This is significantly hampered by the fact that there is 
no safe pathway for pedestrians, and I believe that the current speed limit is 60 mph. There are several bends in the 
road which impair visibility and exacerbate the danger to pedestrians. I consider that a 20 mph speed limit is essential. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(31) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Alexandra 
Road) 

 
Support – It makes sense to make this 20 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(32) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Alexandra 
Road) 

 
Support – My family often cycle down Binsey Lane and cars drive way too fast down there. It's a narrow road and the 

speed really should be limited for safety reasons. There is also no pavement for pedestrians. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(33) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Support – Sensible speed limit for narrow road - would make it safer for disabled access to Binsey too 

 

P
age 548



                 
 

public, (Oxford, Bartlemas 
Road) 

Travel change: No 
 

(34) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Binsey 
Lane) 

 
Support – We live along Binsey Lane, and walk along it frequently. During the Covid lockdowns, it provided an 

essential means to get fresh air and exercise. During good weather, we use the Lane regularly to access the river, 
Portmeadow, and Jericho. A member of our household and several of our neighbours jog along the Lane. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(35) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Binsey 
Lane) 

 
Support – I live on Binsey Lane, and cycle my bike often on the road. On more than a few occasions I've had cars 
pass dangerously close to me going far too fast 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(36) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Binsey 
Lane) 

 
Support – Lived in the lane since 1997 and it has been a death trap particularly between Botley Rd and the small 

bridge. It is a straight stretch and people speed dangerously and force pedestrians and people moving cars to get out 
of the way quickly. People get impatient on the Botley Rd and then put their foot town once they see a clear piece of 
road.  There are a lot of kids on the street. The more rural part of Binsey Lane is dangerous for pedestrians and 
cyclists as people speed and do not give way to oncoming traffic. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(37) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Binsey 
Lane) 

 
Support – No pavements and lane is used by walkers and pushchairs and cyclists. Road is also very narrow. Need 

calming measures and cameras too to enforce 20mph. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(38) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Binsey 
Lane) 

 
Support – Currently vehicles disregard all speed limits on this road and as line of sight is restricted and entrances into 

the lane are hard to spot it makes sense for vehicle drivers to be aware of the dangers and restrict their speed limits. 
 
Travel change: No 

P
age 549



                 
 

 

(39) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Binsey 
Lane) 

 
Support – Will make it safer for walkers and cycling 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
 

(40) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Binsey 
Lane) 

 
Support – I live on Binsey Lane and have young children who like to cycle and walk between Botley Road and 

Binsey. I fear for their safety due to cars driving at high speed, both at the  Botley Road end with  residential housing 
and the countryside part of the road. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(41) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Binsey 
lane) 

 
Support – Safety - too much speeding currently 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(42) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Botley 
Road) 

 
Support – I am a local resident, and I frequently walk along Binsey Lane. I strongly support a 20mph speed limit to 
make the road safer. I would like to use the road more but I am sometimes discouraged by the traffic. 
Incidentally, there is a badger corpse alongside the road at the moment, that seems to have been run over by a car. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(43) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Botley 
Road) 

 
Support – I regularly walk along Binsey Lane and it is a lane that is shared by all kinds of road users - walkers, 

cyclists, scooter users, and car drivers. With the increased use of Port Meadow for wild swimming and walking by the 
local public, the lane is being used more often. However, some cars can drive too quickly down the lane and there are 
bends and corners which can be hard to see round. A 20 mph speed limit would make the road more safe and more 
able to be shared by all road users. I would feel more confident walking along Binsey Lane and I would do so more 
regularly if there was a safe and consistent speed limit of 20 mph all the way along. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

P
age 550



                 
 

 

(44) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Boulter 
Street) 

 
Support – I have cycled on Binsey Lane many times to get to both The Perch and Port Meadow. I always thought it 

was odd that for such a popular cycle and walking route that the national speed limit applied.  
I also think that the 20mph speed limit will give the right messaging to drivers about cyclist awareness and a reminder 
of safety.  
It is such a beautiful road and there is no reason we can’t all use it safely!  
 
Travel change: Other 

It won’t change the frequency of my usage (I always cycle as I have no car or driving licence) but I will feel safer 
knowing I am not going to be overtaken at 40mph on a single track road in the dark.  
 

(45) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Boundary 
Brook Road) 

 
Support – The old limit of 60mph is insanely high for such a narrow lane that lacks pavements. 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(46) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Boundary 
Brook Road) 

 
Support – I like to walk and sometimes cycle up to St Margaret's at the top of Binary Lane and it's unsafe when 

people bomb it down the lane. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(47) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Bridge 
Street) 

 
Support – Great idea, safer for pedestrians and cyclists, road is often narrowed due to big puddles making it 

dangerous at present. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(48) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Bridge 
Street) 

 
Support – I find it dangerous to walk or cycle on Binsey Lane, because of the speed of the cars. 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

P
age 551



                 
 

(49) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Bullingdon 
Road) 

 
Support – There is no safe place for people to walk along this lane and the current speed of drivers poses a risk to 

pedestrians and people on bikes. 20mph here would support the county council to achieve it's vision zero goals. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(50) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Cowley 
Road) 

 
Support – because it's a narrow lane with no footway, and not enough room for drivers to overtake cyclists ata  safe 

speed and distance.  I would support some further traffic calming devices on this lane too. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(51) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Crescent 
Road) 

 
Support – This will make it safer for pedestrians and cyclists. 

 
Travel change: Other 

It would make me feel more confident to walk/cycle there.  
 

(52) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Dale 
Close) 

 
Support – I don't feel safe walking or cycling with my grandchildren. They live in Binsey Lane (Botley Rd end) and on 

hot days we don't go to Port Meadow to enjoy the water and space as it's too dangerous.  
What is really needed is a separate pedestrian/cyclist lane. Also the 20mph needs to be enforceable. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(53) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Duke 
Street) 

 
Support – We gave up our car when we moved to Oxford. At night, and in winter when the Thames Path can be 

treacherous, the road is our only route for walks to and around Binsey, and to The Perch. It is terribly dangerous, 
especially for my husband who is blind. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(54) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Support – Strongly support. There are no pedestrian or cycling facilities on Binsey Lane — these vulnerable users 

share the road space with cars, without any form of protection or segregation at all. Many pedestrians and cyclists use 

P
age 552



                 
 

public, (Oxford, Earl 
Street) 

this route to reach Port Meadow, and it's currently unsafe. As a result, people are encouraged to use cars instead, 
which is highly problematic. 20mph is more than enough; I'd even say 15mph is desired here. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(55) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Eynsham 
Road) 

 
Support – Binsey Lane is a rural lane that is - or should be - an appealing route for people on foot or on bikes. The 

one thing that reduces its appeal, is fast traffic. Allowing cars to travel at speeds above 20mph is a major 
discouragement to vulnerable road users, especially families with children, who should have the right to travel on this 
public highway without fears for their safety. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(56) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Harley 
Road) 

 
Support – The lower speed limit would prevent accidents as it is a very narrow road with pedestrians and cyclists 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(57) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Harley 
Road) 

 
Support – Binsey Lane is a popular walking/cycling track. Reducing the speed of heavy vehicles will improve safety of 

more vulnerable road users. 
 
Travel change: No 
 

(58) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Hayfield 
Rd) 

 
Support – Offers safety for cyclists 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(59) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Helen 
Road) 

 
Support – I regularly run on Binsey lane as our house backs onto it or walk to the farm with my children. Cars often 

drive very fast and it can be hard to avoid them. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

P
age 553



                 
 

(60) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Helen 
Road) 

 
Support – I regularly walk with my children along Binsey Lane and cars constantly drive far too fast and dangerously 

for a narrow lane with no pavement 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(61) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Henry 
Road) 

 
Support – Binsey Lane is regularly used by pedestrians and there is no pavement. There is therefore a signficant 

road safety risk if there are not strict speed limits. The risks are of course greatest in the dark which may also be when 
the pub (The Perch) has heavy traffic. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(62) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Henry 
Road) 

 
Support – Safety for children cycling on this road 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(63) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Henry 
road) 

 
Support – Cyclists and walkers often on the road and no pavement 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(64) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Hill View 
Road) 

 
Support – This is a narrow country lane with no foot path, which ends in a dead end, if the speed limit was lowered it 

would make it safer for walkers and cyclists 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
 

(65) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Hollybush 
Row) 

 
Support – Its a very dangerous road for pedestrians as it is. There is little pavement / if any. And there are plenty of 

blind corners. The current speed limit is far too high. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

P
age 554



                 
 

(66) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Kennedy 
Close) 

 
Support – I find it extremely dangerous cycling down this narrow lane when cars are speeding along. To reduce their 

speed to 20 mph would make me feel a lot safer. However just sticking up 20mph signs will be almost useless. There 
also needs to be traffic calming measures such as speed bumps and/or chicanes. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(67) As a business, 
(Oxford, Kingston Road) 

 
Support – Safety! 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(68) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, 
Marlborough Court) 

 
Support – Posting a speed reduction isn't enough -- it must be enforced in some way. My family and I walk down 

Binsey Lane all the time, and as a gateway to Port Meadow it should be a safe, community resource that promotes 
travel and recreation. Please no more Range Rovers speeding down the lane going 40! 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(69) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Marston 
Road) 

 
Support – I have been nearly killed whilst walking on this road multiple times. There are no pavements and it has 

heavy use by pedestrians, runners, and cyclists. Drivers currently like to hurtle down this road at 40 or even 50. 
Reducing the limit to something sensible will not be perfect but will at least improve matters. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(70) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Monmouth 
Road) 

 
Support – I have a boat moored at Boosoms boat yard and so regularly drive and cycle down binsey lane - it is 
narrow and drivers often drive too fast to be safe. 
 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

(71) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Support – Because I cycle that route with my family multiple times per year and the change in speed limit would 

completely alter the mentality of car drivers, making their behaviour much safer for us. 

P
age 555



                 
 

public, (Oxford, Morrell 
Avenue) 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(72) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, North 
Hinksey Lane) 

 
Support – To improve safety of walkers using Binsey Lane. 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(73) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, North 
Hinksey Lane) 

 
Support – Safer for pedestrians/cyclists/drivers 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(74) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Oatlands) 

 
Support – It will allow people to use the road without fear of injury. It is extremely dangerous now and cannot safely 

be used by pedestrians or cyclists. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(75) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Oatlands 
Road) 

 
Support – Binsey Lane is a short road with a high level of pedestrian and cyclist traffic, no footpath and restricted 
visibility. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(76) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Oatlands 
Road) 

 
Support – We live nearby and often walk or cycle on Binsey Lane with our children. Some drivers are careful and 

considerate, but others drive much too fast. The nature of the road is such that no one should be driving faster than 
20mph anyway. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(77) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
Support – Used a lot by pedestrians and cycles and vehicles drive too fast 

 

P
age 556



                 
 

public, (Oxford, Oatlands 
Road) 

Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(78) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Oatlands 
Road) 

 
Support – I regularly use Binsey Lane (I live on one of the nearby roads off the Botley Road) both walking up there 

and cycling.  The current speed limit makes it a dangerous prospect especially when cycling as you cannot just step 
up onto the verge to get out of the way. 
If the speed limit were lower I would use it more. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(79) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Plantation 
Road) 

 
Support – Great idea. Do it. 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(80) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Plater 
Drive) 

 
Support – Small lane with pedestrians, cyclists and runners. It's in town. 60 mph in centre of town is absurd. 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(81) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Riverside) 

 
Support – We walk/run/bike down Binsey Lane and it does not feel safe when cars go past at the speed they 

currently do. The lane is narrow and windy and visibility is sometimes poor 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(82) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Riverside 
Road) 

 
Support – I often cycle down Binsey Lane and fear being knocked off because cars fly down the road, way too fast for 

a road that so many adults and children walk and cycle on. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(83) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 

P
age 557



                 
 

public, (Oxford, Southfield 
Park) 

Support – Binsey Lane is currently unsafe for pedestrians and wheelchair users, because there are no pavements or 
other safe spaces to avoid fast vehicles. It is currently unsafe for cyclists, because there is not enough room for 
vehicles to overtake safely at 60 mph. 
The 20 mph speed limit is well understood across Oxford and will not impose a significant delay on motorists, but it will 
make this road safe for families visiting the village, the church, and the pub. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(84) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Springfield 
Road) 

 
Support – Safer for walkers and cyclists 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(85) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Stanley 
Close) 

 
Support – I use this road to cycle to/from Binsey 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(86) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Thames 
Street) 

 
Support – I use this road as a pedestrian and as a cyclist. It's a popular route to the Perch (despite the lack of a 

pavement). Given the high likelihood of pedestrians walking on this road, a 20 mph speed limit seems very sensible. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
 

(87) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, West 
street) 

 
Support – Safety for pedestrians and cyclists. Also it is 1mile Botley Road to the Perch so difference 60mph and 

20mph is 2mins but in reality you can’t drive at 60 anyway so realistically it will probably only make around 1min 
difference to most journeys. 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(88) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, West 
Street) 

 
Support – Drivers (inc taxi drivers going to the pub) drive far too fast down this country lane which cyclists, runners 
and walkers inc families and young people use. 
 

P
age 558



                 
 

Travel change: No 
 

(89) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, 
Woodstock Road) 

 
Support – Makes sense. Please do it. 

 
Travel change: No 
 

(90) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Abbey 
Road) 

 
Support – Many people - including children - cycle and walk down that road and so cars need to drive slowly. 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 
 

(91) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Alexandra 
Road) 

 
Support – Binsey Lane is narrow and winding, has no pavements, and is used by lots of pedestrians, runners and 

cyclists. It's never likely to be safe to do 30 mph down it and since it's not a through route, it's an obvious candidate for 
a 20 limit. 
 
Travel change: Other 

I will feel safer running and cycling down it, which I do regularly.  
 

(92) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Belvedere 
road) 

 
Support – For the safety of all road users. The road is too narrow (and busy) to have such a fast limit. Terrifying to 

walk down 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(93) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Binsey 
Lane) 

 
Support – Binsey Lane is a gateway to Port Meadow. Active travel such as walking and cycling should be 

encouraged and made safe. It is a wonderful resource for getting people out and active supporting physical and 
mental health. Reducing the speed limit will help. However, if it is not enforced or appropriate calming put in place 
then it will be fruitless. The top part (Botley Road end) of Binsey Lane is already 20mph but cars zoom down here way 
faster than 20mph. 
 
Travel change: Other 

P
age 559



                 
 

I want to say yes my family and I would definitely walk and cycle more, but ONLY IF it is actually enforced or traffic 
calming physically put in place to ACTUALLY make it safer. The priority needs to shift from car to bike/pedestrians. 
Drivers need consta  
 

(94) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Binsey 
Lane) 

 
Support – To make walking down Binsey Lane safer 
 
Travel change: No 

 

(95) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Binsey 
Lane) 

 
Support – As a local resident regularly using the lane with my young family to walk, cycle and run as well as access 
port meadow, and someone who lives right next to the bridge in Binsey Lane, I can see huge before to this reduction  
extending to the length of the road. Principally I foresee an increase in safely but also reduction in pollution and noise. 
Bit I do worry that the new limit will be ignored. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(96) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Circus 
Street) 

 
Support – I run and bike on this lane and it is narrow and unsafe for cars to be traveling more than 20mph. 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(97) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Harley) 

 
Support – It will mean less pollution and encourage walking and cyling. 

 
Travel change: No 

 

(98) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Helen 
Road) 

 
Support – No pavement on lane frequently used by children and other vulnerable people to access binsey and 

Thames path. Speed limit would mitigate dangers. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(99) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 

P
age 560



                 
 

public, (Oxford, Henry 
Road) 

Support – The Lane is regularly used by pedestrians - often with children or dogs - and by runners and cyclists. It’s an 
obvious candidate for a 20 mph speed limit, especially as it’s narrow and has poor visibility as you approach the 
bridge 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(100) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Meadow 
Lane) 

 
Support – It needs to be safer but I thinjpk it also needs raffia calming measures like speed bumps for cars but not 

bikes. 
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(101) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Oxford, Wytham 
Street) 

 
Support – I have used this road to walk to Binsey with children, and felt unsafe due to cars coming around bends at 

speed. The limit would be great for pedestrian safety, given there is no footpath along the road. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(102) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Summertown, 
Woodstock Road) 

 
Support – No comments. 

 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more 

 

(103) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (West Oxford, 
Binsey Lane) 

 
Support – People drive way too  fast down Binsey particularly visitors to the Perch . There are families with young 

children to consider 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 
 

(104) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (West Oxford, 
Harley Road) 

 
Support – I cycle to the meadow or to Jericho or the wolvercote via binsey lane at least 2-3 x per week. Sometimes 

with children. I can’t believe how fast cars and vans are allowed to drive down such a narrow road and feel very 
intimidated and worried for my children using this road which is otherwise very quiet. It’s such a short and dead end 
road - is there anything to lose by lowering the speed limit? I don’t think so. Such an obvious benefit to all for the limit 
to be lowered to 20mph. 

P
age 561



                 
 

 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(105) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Wolvercote, St 
Peter's Road) 

 
Support – Binsey Lane is something part of my running route linking Port Meadow to Botley Road and I would be 

more comfortable and safer if the speed limit was reduced on this road. 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(106) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Botley) 

 
Support – Many local walkers and cyclists use Binsey lane esp when as now and every year the riverbanks are 
flooded. Cars to the pub drive too fast and may be too young and cheerful to allow for pedestrian hazards. They will 
not stick to 20 mph but it may keep them down to 30-ish 
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more 

 

(107) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Bridge Street) 

 
Support – All roads within the ring road should be limited to 20mph 

 
Travel change: No 

 

 

P
age 562



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Shrivenham 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 FEBRUARY 2023 

 
SHRIVENHAM: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to defer a 
decision to approve the introduction of 20mph speed limits in Shrivenham as 
advertised pending further discussions to assess the acceptability of reduced 

proposals that meet the needs of all parties. 
 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Shrivenham as shown in Annexes 1 to 5.  

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 

the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 
 
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within Shrivenham by 
making them safer and more attractive. 
 

 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 05 January and 03 February 

2023. A notice was published in the Oxford Times newspaper, and an email 
sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames Valley 
Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, 

countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, Vale of White 

Page 563

Agenda Item 22



            
     
 

Horse District Council, the local District Cllrs, Shrivenham, and Watchfield 
parish councils, and the local County Councillor representing the Shrivenham 

division.  
 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 
 

7. Three statutory consultee responses were received. Thames Valley Police 

responded by re-iterating their views concerning OCC’s policy and practice 
regarding 20mph speed limits and consider their response as ‘having concerns’ 

rather than an outright objection. They highlighted the number of roads which 
are not designated as ‘public’ Highway, and as such queried the level of signing 
that would be included for vehicles exiting these roads into the new limit.  

Stagecoach Bus Company object to the proposals and submitted extensive and 
detailed comments regarding the locations where the proposals were likely to 

jeopardise their service viability. 
 
8. Stagecoach consider a 20mph limit appropriate in most areas including the 

village core and in side streets. They consider a northwards extension of the 
existing 20mph zone on High Street along Faringdon Road to just beyond the 

existing chicane is justifiable but urge that the existing 30mph limit is retained 
along the remainder of Townsend Road to the Highworth Road junction. If the 
approach taken to applying 20mph limits in Shrivenham is equally extensively 

pursued in Faringdon, Watchfield, and Kingston Bagpuize, Stagecoach advise 
they would serve notice to re-route, withdrawing the service entirely from High 

Street Watchfield, and the loop around Faringdon Town Centre.  
 

9. The OCC Public Transport Development Team’s viewpoint aligns closely with 

that of Stagecoach. The parish council support the proposals. 
 

Other Responses: 

 
10. Two members of the public submitted expressions of support and a routine 

objection was submitted by a member of the public from Witney who railed 
against the proposal in principle suggesting it was a dark day for democracy 

and the start of a dystopian future with 20mph signs akin to the ‘Z’ sign 
displayed universally across Russia.  

 
11. The responses are shown in Annex 6, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 

 
 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

12. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 

greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               
The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 
speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 

of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 
County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 

that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  
 

Page 564



            
     
 

 
13. The unfocussed objection raises no fresh pertinent points, and in essence 

challenges much of the philosophy behind the democratically agreed policy to 
promote 20 mph speed limits in communities; as such it merits no further 

consideration. However, the nature of the Stagecoach objection suggests it 
should be considered carefully. While the parish council support the proposals 
there may be merit in further discussions with the local council and member to 

assess the acceptability of reduced proposals that meet the needs of the bus 
operator. 

 
 

Bill Cotton 

Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1-5: Consultation Plans 
 Annex 6: Consultation responses   
  

   
Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 

    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 
 
February 2023

Page 565



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 566



                 
 

  

ANNEX 2

P
age 567



                 
 

  

ANNEX 3

P
age 568



                 
 

  

ANNEX 4

P
age 569



                 
 

  

ANNEX 5

P
age 570



                 
 

ANNEX 6 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns - Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 

P
age 571



                 
 

• existing traffic speeds 
• road environment 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 
I also note a number of roads are not Highway  . What level of signing will be included for vehicles exiting these roads 
into the new limit ? 
 

(2) Head of Strategic 
Development and the Built 
Environment, 
(Stagecoach Bus 
Company) 

 
Object - While we accept that there is a case for some extension of 20mph limits beyond the village centre we once 

again must highlight the effects of this on bus running time, especially when looked at cumulatively. We continue 
therefore to urge the Council to pursue a more rigorous evidence-based approach in applying this policy. 
 
[See full response in Annex 7] 

 

(3) Watchfield Parish 
Council 

Support – Watchfield PC fully supports this proposal 

(4) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Witney, Oxford 
Hill) 

 
Object – It is undemocratic, unethical, divisive and disrespectful for communities of whom can see no need to change 
the speed limits. Why is that? Because there is no such report advising that the road through the village for example is 
at 80% risk of death or serious injury if the speed limit is not changed. This consultation if anybody wants to call it that 
(clearly not) is going to undoubtedly ignore public opinion because the Councillors cannot kick the habit, they bitterly 
hate anybody that has to do an essential journey in a car.  
 
I visit the Town and drive through within the current speed limits when safe to do so to get away from the dystopian 20 
mph signs from a nearby town that look like Russian Z symbols you see in a Russian street every 100 yards where it 

P
age 572



                 
 

made a walk locally at home an utterly bitter and depressing experience knowing that these 20mph signage changes 
are a political decision and not a road safety decision. I don't take it lightly to compare the Russian Z symbol to a 
20mph sign but if the reader googles a Russian city or town what it looks like with the Z symbol in that county it is as 
comparable as the 20mph sign easily. It is regretful but the honest truth.   
 
Devastating to see Shrivenham that despite seeing zero road incidents within the Town have such a change 
needlessly taking place that the Police cannot cope with enforcing especially when local Politicians pushing for these 
changes will undoubtedly carry on going past 20mph as will emergency service personnel when not on emergency 
calls highlighting a hidden hypocrisy that will take place when the consulation ignores public opinion. If its ok for them 
it is ok for the rest of us and I hope many residents and within Oxfordshire will come with me to make a stand and that 
is to say no. No to such depressing road signs and money wasted taking away our future generations common sense. 
We will be ashamed of what horrid path this Council has chosen, the decision to ignore public opinion and rule within 
minuit management by edict with no supportive evidence of this change and one that has no loyal compliance even 
after that. This will undoubtedly depress many residents seeing how needless this was, how robbed their community is 
of having common sense as per the Highway code and is depressing for passionate motorists that can see that even 
the study Belfast University did to show that slower speeds don't reduce road incidents either, link here if the individual 
or senior management qre interested in reading. Some will laugh and some will take back these genuine points. 
www.transportxtra.com/publications/local-transport-today/news/72511/university-study-questions-impact-of-20mph-
limits-in-belfast-city-centre 
 
Shrivenham when visiting has great access for cycling and walking safely so does not make sense and urge all 
residents to write to MPs, maintain pressure on Councillors and the County Council that for as long as those in charge 
have one rule for themselves it is ok for the rest of us to decide to drive near to 30mph with competent common 
sense.  
 
Lets not forget either that this is the same County Council of whose senior official said to the Sunday Times, ""Traffic 
Filters in Oxford is going to happen definitely"" implying the scheme would go ahead whether public opinion opposed 
or unopposed leading me to my point that this is the same with the speed limit changes. This Council and their staff 
should ask this, is it worth continueing this ruinous scheme that will create further political distrust toward local 
authorities. Is it worth creating distress to residents living there to see these signs every 100 yards as comparable as 
propaganda. Future generations will be unfortunately robbed of sensible common sense and will see this for what it is. 
The Highway Code officials do not see a need to amend speed limits so cannot understand this political movement 
against the motorist. 
 

P
age 573



                 
 

I do not oppose 20mph signs by a school, town square or retirement community but I am deeply against a blanket 
speed restriction across a Town or Village when the public opinion is ignored for political propaganda purposes.  
 

(5) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Shrivenham, 
Station Road) 

Support – Lower speeds lower the risks of serious accidental injury, save on fuel, and reduce environmental pollution 

in residential areas. 

(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Shrivenham, 
Highworth Road) 

 
Support – Vehicles travelling into Shrivenham (certainly on the B4000 Highworth Road) go from the national speed 

limit straight to 30mph.  Drivers, in the main, do not even attempt to brake for the 30mph limit and are regularly doing 
in excess of 30mph well past the speed indication sign some 200m further down the road.  Drivers exiting Shrivenham 
on this road seem to think they must be doing 60mph by the time they reach the national speed limit sign.  I am an 
active member of the CSW team and we always record many speed offenders on this stretch of road.  A new school is 
being built, new access to the housing development that is currently being built, and unless some form of traffic 
calming measures and a reduction of the speed limit were to take place, this is just a serious accident waiting to 
happen. 
 

P
age 574



   
   

   
   

 

ANNEX 7

Page 575



            
     
 

  

Page 576



            
     
 

  

Page 577



            
     
 

 

Page 578



            
     
 

 

Page 579



This page is intentionally left blank



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Eynsham 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 FEBRUARY 2023 

 
SOUTH LEIGH: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised.  
 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in South Leigh as shown in Annex 1.  

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 

the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 
 

 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within South Leigh by 

making them safer and more attractive. 
 

 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 14 December 2022 and 20 
January 2023. A notice was published in the Witney & West Oxfordshire 

Gazette newspaper, and an email sent to statutory consultees & key-
stakeholders, including Thames Valley Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, 
Ambulance service, Bus operators, countywide transport, access & disabled 

peoples user groups, West Oxfordshire District Council, the local District Cllrs, 

Page 581

Agenda Item 23



            
     
 

Checkendon, and Stoke Row parish councils, and the local County Councillor 
representing the Eynsham division.  

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
7. Two responses were received from statutory consultees. Thames Valley Police 

re-iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and practice regarding 20mph 

speed limits; they consider their response as ‘having concerns’ rather than an 
outright objection. The local member supports the proposals. 

 
Other Responses: 

 

8. The parish council’s engagement prompted 12 emailed responses from 
members of the public. Seven were supportive and four objected with reasons 

including the proposals not being necessary, a waste of money, the lack of 
realistic alternative transport options, and increasing urbanisation. One 
concerned respondent supported a 20mph limit but only where housing was in 

evidence and not in rural environments. One detailed objection not included in 
the above figures was subsequently withdrawn. A single online objection was 

received, this a routine one from a member of the public from Witney who railed 
against the proposal in principle suggesting it was a dark day for democracy 
and the start of a dystopian future with 20mph signs akin to the ‘Z’ sign 

displayed universally across Russia.  
 

9. The responses are shown in Annex 2, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 

 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

10. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 
greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               

The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 
speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 

of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 
County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 
that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  

 
11. The 4 focussed objections make reasonable and detailed arguments. However, 

they are comparable to those expressed and considered in earlier similar 
schemes and were not seen as warranting a change in those previous 
proposals given the explicit intention of the County Council’s 20mph limit policy. 

The unfocussed objection raises no fresh pertinent points, and in essence 
challenges much of the philosophy behind the democratically agreed policy to 

promote 20mph speed limits in communities; as such it merits no further 
consideration. 

 

 
Bill Cotton 

Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Page 582



            
     
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 
 Annex 2: Consultation responses   

  
   

Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 
    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 
 

February 2023

Page 583



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 584



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns – Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 
• road environment 

P
age 585



                 
 

However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists 
 

(2) Local County Cllr, 
(Witney North & East 
division) 

 
Support – Other than local traffic or for access to homes and businesses, there should be little reason for vehicles to 

pass through South Leigh. As well as making the village safer, I hope this will deter vehicles from using this route as 
an alternative to more appropriate ones such as the A40. 
 

(3) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Witney, Oxford 
Hill) 

 
Object – It is undemocratic, unethical, divisive and disrespectful for communities of whom can see no need to change 

the speed limits. Why is that? Because there is no such report advising that the road through the village for example is 
at 80% risk of death or serious injury if the speed limit is not changed. This consultation if anybody wants to call it that 
(clearly not) is going to undoubtedly ignore public opinion because the Councillors cannot kick the habit, they bitterly 
hate anybody that has to do an essential journey in a car.  
 
I visit the village and drive through regularly to get away from the dystopian 20 mph signs from a neighbouring town 
that look like Russian Z symbols you see in a Russian street every 100 yards where it made a walk locally at home an 
utterly bitter and depressing experience knowing that these 20mph signage changes are a political decision and not a 
road safety decision. I don't take it lightly to compare the Russian Z symbol to a 20mph sign but if the reader googles 
a Russian city or town what it looks like with the Z symbol in that county it is as comparable as the 20mph sign easily. 
It is regretful but the honest truth.   
 
Devastating to see South Leigh that despite seeing zero road incidents within the Village have such a change 
needlessly taking place that the Police cannot cope with enforcing especially when local Politicians pushing for these 
changes will undoubtedly carry on going past 20mph as will emergency service personnel when not on emergency 
calls. If its ok for them it is ok for the rest of us and I hope many residents and within Oxfordshire will come with me to 

P
age 586



                 
 

make a stand and that is to say no. No to such depressing road signs and money wasted taking away our future 
generations common sense. We will be ashamed of what horrid path this Council has chosen, the decision to ignore 
public opinion and rule within minuit management by edict with no supportive evidence of this change and one that 
has no loyal compliance even after that. This will undoubtedly depress many residents seeing how needless this was, 
how robbed their community is of having common sense as per the Highway code and is depressing for passionate 
motorists that can see that even the study Belfast University did to show that slower speeds don't reduce road 
incidents either, link here if the individual or senior management qre interested in reading. Some will laugh and some 
will take back these genuine points. www.transportxtra.com/publications/local-transport-today/news/72511/university-
study-questions-impact-of-20mph-limits-in-belfast-city-centre 
 
South Leigh has great access for cycling and walking safely so does not make sense and urge all residents to write to 
MPs, maintain pressure on Councillors and the County Council that for as long as those in charge have one rule for 
themselves it is ok for the rest of us to decide to drive near to 30mph with competent common sense.  
 
Lets not forget either that this is the same Council of whose senior official said to the Sunday Traffic Filters in Oxford is 
going to happen definitely implying the scheme would go ahead whether public opinion opposed or unopposed 
leading me to my point that this is the same with the speed limit changes.  
 

(4) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (South Leigh), 
Church End 

 
Object – The reasons given for this proposed reduction have been given by the County Council and the Parish 

Council as to improve safety and encourage alternative forms of transport. 
 
Safety :- The use of the safety word is invariably to play on peoples fears, usually totally unfounded. In the 30 plus 
years I have lived in South Leigh there have not been any serious road traffic accidents in the village, thus there would 
appear to be no safety grounds for the introduction of this reduction is speed. In addition the existing 30mph restriction 
has sufficed for many years during which time vehicle technology has improved dramatically with improved braking 
systems, more efficient engines emitting less pollution, head up displays reducing the need for a driver to take their 
eyes off the road, and increasingly smart hazard avoidance detection. So exactly what risk assessments have been 
carried out before this proposal was suggested? Risk assessments usually look at the potential risks, ranking of risks 
identified, a review of relevant historical data and having done that consider appropriate risk mitigation to keep the risk 
“ as low as practically possible “. I doubt this sensible, professional and reasonable exercise has been carried out, 
rather it being an emotionally based proposal by those with some limited authority incapable of leaving well alone. 
 
Alternative Means of Transport : Exactly what are these magic alternative means of transport? Walking?, Cycling ?. 
We have no buses, we have no trains. Are we supposed to walk to work. For instance my work places are currently 35 

P
age 587



                 
 

miles, 50 miles and 136 miles away. We have plenty of footpaths which i have used perfectly happily for the last 30 
plus years and besides I could not walk all the way to work. Cyclists ( mostly recreational ) seem to get on fine and our 
narrow roads mean car drivers have to be patient before passing cyclists ( this apart from the latest Highway Code 
requirements ) who insist on riding two and three abreast. Just why is it that councils are hell bent on bringing the 
country to a standstill ? I use the train whenever I can, but no public transport could efficiently get me to my current 
work places of Silverstone, Milton Keynes and RAF Waddington. alternative means of transport dot exist in towns and 
cities such Oxford or London, but they simply do not exist in village communities. Look at Kirtlington who have a 20 
mph speed limit throughout the village and are currently fighting to try and save the one bus service they have whilst 
the majority of villagers continue to use their cars for the journeys. Beyond using cars for commuting to work, we have 
no shops, no post office, no bank etc in our village and so cars are necessary for getting anywhere sensibly. I would 
ask again just what are these “alternative means of transport” which would be sensible, practical , user freindly and 
economical that are being encouraged to adopt???? 
 
Other reasons given for this proposal include reduction of road noise, from 30 to 20 mph when most road noise is tyre 
noise, such a benefit is negligible.  
 
How is this proposal going to be policed ? There is currently no effort to police the existing 30 mph limit so what 
changes are there going to be in future? My journey to my work places takes me through a couple of 20 mph zones, 
there has been no attempt to enforce the new lower limit in these villages, in fact I believe it is true to say there have 
been NO prosecutions for drivers in 20 mph zones in Thames Valley in 2022. 
 
The Parish Council says having a 20mph zone will increase the chance of us having traffic calming in the village. Why 
would we want that ? we do not live in an urban environment where such things as 20mph limits and traffic calming 
may be beneficial ( and I can see very reason why such measures are sensible in roads such as North Parade in 
Oxford ). Both the imposition of the 20mph limit and traffic calming are further examples of unwanted creeping 
urbanisation into rural communities. 
 

(5) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (South Leigh) 

 
Object – Whilst we all have an interest in improving safety, particularly where there is risk is in our own environment, 

the benefit of this measure is unsubstantiated and the actual evidence, to date from installed systems, shows it to be 
ineffective as a safety measure. 
 
It would seem logical to start the process of considering a speed limit reduction with regard to the reason for doing so 
against the reasons for not. 
 

P
age 588



                 
 

The stated reasons are: 
1. Increase in road safety 
2. Promotion of alternative forms of transport 
 
Other suggest reasons 
3. Reduction of harmful emissions 
4. Eligibility for traffic calming schemes 
 
Reasons to not reduce the speed limit 
5. Where safe to do so, motorists should be able to expect to make due progress without unnecessary constraints. 
 
1/ South Leigh has no existing problem with road safety. There is almost no record of road safety related incidents in 
South Leigh. The last record I have found (2018) was of 2-3 reported incidents in Church end and 1-2 incidents in 
High Cogges – neither of which fall on the main route through the village and are both dead-ends, and unlikely to be 
related to speed (supposition). It would appear that there is no need for a maximum speed adjustment. 
   
2/ Promotion of alternative forms of transport through this mechanism would seem to be aimed at making driving 
conditions worse for motorists. As South Leigh has 1 bus a week and is sufficiently “off the beaten track” to make 
cycling an impractical choice for the majority of road users, it is hard to see how this is a benefit. The reduction in 
maximum speed limit reduces the ability to be able to overtake cyclists quickly and safely, as the overtaking speed 
differential is reduced. The provision of better cycle routes would be a much better incentive, rather that imposing the 
negative measures to penalise drivers. 
 
3/ It is unclear that reducing the maximum speed limit improves emissions – most cars are optimised for best 
performance at 57mph. Driving at lower speeds can only be achieved in lower gears and, whilst drag is reduced, 
efficiency is typically worsened.   
 
4/ Some traffic calming schemes are only permitted in “street lit” areas. South Leigh has a “Dark Skies” policy in its 
Neighbourhood Plan which excludes it from these schemes. It is suggested that imposing a lower limit may permit 
some schemes to be installed however this a poor cause, an undesirable objective and an unproven outcome. Most 
traffic calming schemes impede normal traffic flow and some deliberately introduce extra hazards.  Most schemes 
cause extra noise and pollution and some cause damage to historic and emergency vehicles. We should not have 
ambitions to introduce traffic “calming”  schemes nor impede traffic beyond causing them to comply with safe limits.  
 

P
age 589



                 
 

5/ It is extremely hard to manage in rural areas without a car. Motorists should be able to expect to make reasonable 
progress on roads where it is safe to do so. Where a speed limit is imposed it is usually a maximum and all drivers are 
required to drive safely within that limit. Setting an arbitrary limit misses the point that every driver is required to drive 
at a speed that safe for the conditions, vehicle, traffic and the environment. 
 
• If there was a need to address a road safety issue would a twenty mile an hour be an effective method of producing 
an improvement?  The only published study, from the University of Belfast (Investigating the impact of a 20 miles per 
hour speed limit intervention on road traffic collisions, casualties, speed and volume in Belfast, UK: 3 year follow-up 
outcomes of a natural experiment — Queen's University Belfast (qub.ac.uk)), on the effects of a reduction in speed 
limit from 30 to 20 concluded that there is no perceivable difference in accident rates or outcomes. 
• There is anecdotal evidence that drivers concentrate less and fail to assess hazards as well.  
• There is anecdotal evidence that pedestrians and cyclists fail to anticipate the risk from traffic, with an expectation 
that vehicles will be able to stop.  
• It is suggested that the wide spread adoption of the 20mph speed limit reduces the effectiveness of the safety that 
was formally afforded to specific high risk areas, such as at school entrances. 
• It is also recognised that imposition of “unnecessary” speed limits reduces the compliance with all speed limits. It is 
unlikely that the new speed limit will be adequately enforced (as with the existing limit) 
• Compliance with the existing speed limit would address most concerns over traffic through the village. It seems 
excessive reduce the speed limit for safe drivers because some drivers fail to observe the existing limits. 
 

(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (South Leigh) 

 
Object – Your undated proposal for a 20 mph blanket speed limit in the village of South Leigh refers in which you 

state that road safety will be improved following concerns by the South Leigh and High Cogges Parish Council 
(SLHC). 
 
The SLHC may have concerns, as do others, about road safety but what is the hard evidence and democratic 
mandate from the residents presented by the Parish Council to OCC that would justify the imposition of a blanket 20 
mph and improve road safety in the locality. 
 
I have lived in the area for 12 years and in that time I have never heard or read about collisions ,injuries and fatalities 
caused by road traffic accidents in South Leigh. So what road safety needs improving? 
 
My experience through driving regularly in and about the village is that over the course of a year narrow lanes, general 
road surface conditions, parked vehicles, walkers, cyclists, snow ice and flooding dictate the general speeds usually 

P
age 590



                 
 

nowhere near 20 mph. Over the years I will admit to seeing the odd dead squirrel or two but this hardly constitutes 
hard evidence for further speed restrictions. 
 
No doubt this year we will see substantial rises in our council tax and I am totally and strongly opposed to my money 
being wasted on erecting some pointless 30 new speed limit signs and road painting which will have no effect 
whatsoever on the road safety in South Leigh. 
 
I ask therefore that common sense prevails and these restrictions are not imposed. 
 

(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (South Leigh) 

 
Concerns – Whilst I am not against the reduction in the speed limit I think that it should only apply on roads with 

significant housing density immediately adjacent to the road - the extents of the proposed 20mph zone up Chapel 
Road and down Stanton Harcourt road extend significantly into areas where there is very limited residential 
occupation and thus even a 30mph limit would seemingly be hard to justify. 
 

(8) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (South Leigh, 
Chapel Road) 

 
Support – I wish to SUPPORT the proposed 20 mph limits for the following reasons: 

 
1. Slower traffic speeds will make our streets safer. 
2. This may deter some commuters from using our streets as rat runs, thus reducing traffic and increasing 
highway safety. 
3. While some may defy limits and go faster than 20mph in places, they already do this with 30mph. In other 
words, it’s still safer if vehicles are driven around 25 in some cases, than around 35mph (and in many cases well over 
40mph – I’ve been part of traffic speed surveys and have witnessed this). 
4. The number of children in Chapel Road under 5 years old, is now the greatest since the 1960s – another 
reason for more safety achieved through lower overall traffic speeds. 
 

(9) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (South Leigh, 
Chapel Road) 

 
Support – I would like to add my full support to the proposed 20 MPH speed limit being proposed in South Leigh. 

 
As a small village our narrow roads are the only form of access to the village facilities - village hall / playground 
playing fields / church / pub / neighbours / access to footpaths and we should be able to walk / cycle safely with …. 
children / the elderly / people with disability/ dogs / horses etc.    The roads are not just for motor vehicles and the 
village should provide safe routes for those not in motor vehicles. 
 

P
age 591



                 
 

The current situation is not safe,  as a regular walker / cycler through the village cars often have no respect for people 
on foot and drive in excess of 30MPH.. this has been proven time and again through the speed watch data. 
 
Our villagers and visitors should be able to move safely around the village without the fear of being hit by a speeding 
motor vehicle. 
The current situation  in the village it is not safe and the move to a lower limit as per other villages and towns is a 
welcome proposal. We need to protect the fabric of the village and safe easy movement is key to that. 
 
With more and more developments threatened in the wider area more traffic will be tempted to use the South Leigh 
roads adding further danger to our villagers and visitors. A lower limit will deter these “Rat Run” drivers. 
 

(10) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (South Leigh, 
Church End) 

 
Support – The village has been trying to address the issue of speeding motorists for a number of years - we have 
particular problems when the A40 is blocked and have been urging some imaginative solutions to solve the problems, 
not just of speed but rat running.  
 
We realise that this scheme will not solve the problem but is one of the legitimate tools that OCC have to try and 
address the issues.  
 
I know the Parish Council will be approaching OCC and WODC for a holistic solution. 
 
In any event and in the meantime I support the proposed 20mph limit. 
 
I should say I have seen the submission of another villager  saying "As a small village our narrow roads are the only 
form of access to the village facilities - village hall / playground playing fields / church / pub / neighbours / access to 
footpaths and we should be able to walk / cycle safely with …. children / the elderly / people with disability/ dogs / 
horses etc.    The roads are not just for motor vehicles and the village should provide safe routes for those not in 
motor vehicles.The current situation is not safe,  as a regular walker / cycler through the village cars often have no 
respect for people on foot and drive in excess of 30MPH.. this has been proven time and again through the speed 
watch data." 
I agree 
 
With more and more developments threatened in the wider area including an Anaerobic Digester more traffic will be 
tempted to use the South Leigh roads adding further danger. A lower limit will reduce that.  
 

P
age 592



                 
 

(11) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (South Leigh, 
Chapel Road) 

 
Support – I would like to add my support to the proposal for a 20mph limit through South Leigh. As a couple whose 

house stands on one of the affected roads, my wife and I know only too well exactly how busy it can be, and how fast 
some drivers come through, particularly when they’re trying to avoid the frequent delays elsewhere. These are usually 
down to problems on the A40, but issues on roads further afield can have knock-on effects. To echo a point made by 
others, our roads are also footpaths and, while many drivers show consideration, there are those who feel their need 
to get to their destination rapidly outweighs everything else. I have been shouted at by an irate driver for having the 
temerity to delay him by slowing to turn into my own drive! From my roadside point of view, anything which helps to 
make our village less attractive as a rat-run is to be welcomed. 
 

(12) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (South Leigh, 
Chapel Road) 

 
Support – Further to your request for comments for a reduction in speed limits in designated areas in South Leigh I 

am fully supportive. 
 
Having set up Speed Watch in South Leigh I have first hand knowledge of the flagrant disregard by a considerable 
number of motorists when it comes to speeding through the village. 
 
South Leigh is a close knit community that has key hubs, which all involve walking along the roads as residents. 
Whether going to the Church, the Village Hall, recreation pitch or indeed walking to the bus stop just off the A40 slip 
road speeding cars are not conducive to ensuring residents can do this safely. The village also attracts a large number 
of walkers, cyclists and horse riders and our roads need to have a speed limit that will assist in everyone doing this 
safely. 
 
Whilst I recognise the scheme will not not resolve the issue in its totality it will at least make motorists more aware and 
will also enable speed watch to reinforce awareness to those motorists that either don't care about the speed they are 
doing or unconsciously speed. 
 
Having looked at speeding over the last three years it is really important that we try and educate drivers to respect the 
village and whilst I appreciate reducing the limit to 20mph won't stop speeding entirely it will assist in reducing the 
speed of cars like it has already proven in Witney and it is another tool we can use to educate and more importantly 
ensure that everyone using the roads does so safely. 
 
When the A40 has been closed and accidents have happened the increased traffic through the village is considerable 
and the roads are not safe to be travelling at speed. (Closing the Barnard Gate Road junction into South Leigh would 
benefit the village greatly!) 

P
age 593



                 
 

 
As I sit here writing this email I have observed 15 cars doing way and above the 30mph speed limit so I am totally 
supportive of the scheme as whilst I know of no pedestrian injuries plenty of household pets and wildlife have been 
killed and in my opinion it is only a matter of time before a pedestrian could be hurt especially along Chapel Road and 
Station Road where we have a higher population including children. 
 
With continuing developments in the wider area and the possibility of an Anaerobic Digester in the village,   South 
Leigh will need to look at all solutions they can to stop rat running and speeding and this is a good starting point to 
reduce those dangers before perhaps needing to be more creative. 
 

(13) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (South Leigh) 

 
Support – I wish to record my support of a proposal to introduce 20 MPH in South Leigh, as set out in the relevant 

documents. 
 
As a member of our village SpeedWatch, I can attest that vehicles drive through or village at irresponsible speeds and 
there will, inevitably, be a nasty accident one day. 
 
We have narrow roads, some single track, blind corners and elderly and very young residents. In addition, horses 
often come through the village. 
 
The reduced speed limit will go some way to making or village a little safer. 
 

(14) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (South Leigh) 

 
Support – We support the proposed 20mph through the village as indicated on the plan.  However we are not in 

favour of traffic calming.  Don’t feel it is necessary, but would support more consideration being given to walkers 
through the village.  There are few footpaths and it is not always possible to walk on the verges. 
 

 

P
age 594



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Didcot East & Hagbourne 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 FEBRUARY 2023 

 
SOUTH MORETON: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised.  
 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in South Moreton as shown in Annexes 1 

to 5. 

 

 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 
the County Council’s 20 mph Speed Limit Project 

 
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 

respect of the proposals. 
 

 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within South Moreton 
by making them safer and more attractive. 
 
 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 14 December 2022 and 20 

January 2023. A notice was published in the Oxfordshire Herald Series 
newspaper, and an email sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, 
including Thames Valley Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, 

Bus operators, countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, 
South Oxfordshire District Council, the local District Cllrs, South Moreton, North 

Page 595

Agenda Item 24



            
     
 

Moreton, and Aston Tirrold and Upthorpe parish councils, and the local County 
Councillor representing the Didcot East & Hagbourne division.  

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
7. Two responses were received from statutory consultees. Thames Valley Police 

re-iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and practice regarding 20mph 

speed limits; they consider their response as ‘having concerns’ rather than an 
outright objection. The parish council support the proposals and also report 

unanimous resident support at the parish meeting. 
 

Other Responses: 

 
8. Seven online responses were received from members of the public, 6 

expressed support; the single objection was a routine one from a member of 
the public from Witney who railed against the proposal in principle suggesting 
it was a dark day for democracy and the start of a dystopian future with 20 signs 

akin to the ‘Z’ sign displayed universally across Russia.  
 

9. The responses are shown in Annex 6, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 

 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

10. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 
greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               

The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 
speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 

of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 
County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 
that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  

 
11. The sole objection is unfocussed and raises no fresh pertinent points; in 

essence it challenges much of the philosophy behind the democratically agreed 
policy to promote 20 mph speed limits in communities; as such i t merits no 
further consideration. 

 
 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1-5: Consultation Plans 
 Annex 6: Consultation responses   

  
   
Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 

    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 
 

February 2023

Page 596



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 597



                 
 

  

ANNEX 2

P
age 598



                 
 

 

ANNEX 3

P
age 599



                 
 

  

ANNEX 4

P
age 600



                 
 

 

ANNEX 5

P
age 601



                 
 

ANNEX 6 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns - Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 

P
age 602



                 
 

• road environment 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) South Moreton Parish 
Council 

 
Support – Following a very successful parish meeting with a unanimous vote from residents for a reduction in the 

speed limit the Parish Council fully support this proposal. The results of the Parish Plan also support the need for 
traffic calming. 
 

(3) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Witney, Oxford 
Hill) 

 
Object – There is no need for South Moreton to have its Village changed from 30mph to 20mph. It is undemocratic, 

unethical, divisive and disrespectful for communities of whom can see no need to change the speed limits. Why is 
that? Because there is no such report advising that the road through the Villages, Cities or Towns for example is at 
80% risk of death or serious injury if the speed limit is not changed. This consultation if anybody wants to call it that 
(clearly not) is going to undoubtedly ignore public opinion like Witneys because the Councillors cannot kick the habit, 
they appear to bitterly hate anybody that has to do an essential journey in a car. There are other ethical and more 
sensible approaches to cycle and walk more. For example increasing public path space to signal where a pedestrian 
and cyclist can have their own lane including encouragement notices on local notice boards. 
 
20mph limits are as depressing as the distress of the dystopian 20 mph signs from a nearby Town that are as 
comparable as Russian Z symbols you see in a Russian street every 100 yards where it made a walk locally at home 
a utterly bitter and depressing experience knowing that these 20mph signage changes are a political decision and not 
a road safety decision. A political decision that has no public support and has built residential resistance (civilly 
making the points why they should be changed back are taking place as I write this). I don't take it lightly to compare 
the Russian Z symbol to a 20mph sign but if the reader googles a Russian City or Town and what it looks like with the 
Z symbol in that county it is as comparable as the 20mph sign easily shown every 100 yards or less. It is regretful but 

P
age 603



                 
 

the honest truth especially as these 20mph signs are within even dead end streets that have no through roads as well 
making it even more frustrating.   
 
I hope many residents and within Oxfordshire will come with me to make a stand and that is to say no. No to such 
depressing road signs and money wasted taking away our future generations common sense, personal responsibility 
and the basic human right to choose how we cycle, walk and drive to places. We will be ashamed of what horrid path 
this Council has chosen, the decision to ignore public opinion and rule within minuit management by edict with no 
supportive evidence of this change and one that has no loyal compliance even after that. This will undoubtedly 
depress many residents psychologically seeing how needless this was, how robbed their community is of having 
common sense and a sense of personal responsibility as per the Highway code and is depressing for passionate 
motorists that can see that even the study Belfast University did to show that slower speeds don't reduce road 
incidents either, link here if the individual or senior management are interested in reading. Some will sadly ignore this 
objection to the proposal but some I hope will take back these genuine points to senior bosses of whom are trying to 
fight against this nonsenical anti-car movement. www.transportxtra.com/publications/local-transport-
today/news/72511/university-study-questions-impact-of-20mph-limits-in-belfast-city-centre 
 
Lets not forget either that this is the same County Council of whose senior official said to the Sunday Times, ""Traffic 
Filters in Oxford is going to happen definitely"" implying the scheme would go ahead whether public opinion opposed 
or unopposed leading me to my point that this is the same with the speed limit changes. This Council and their staff 
should ask this, is it worth continueing this ruinous scheme that will create further political distrust toward local 
authorities. Is it worth creating distress to residents living there to see these signs every 100 yards as comparable as 
propaganda. Future generations will be unfortunately robbed of sensible common sense and will see this for what it is. 
The Highway Code officials do not see a need to amend speed limits so cannot understand this political movement 
against the motorist. Why have we got a Council that has been voted in to attack the Motorist? If this is because of a 
personal experience then we are living in very dangerous territory democratically.  
 
Is this healthy for a car and the pedestrian to remain at 20mph? No because it does not matter if your driving 20mph 
or 30mph the emissions remain the same, the air does not get any cleaner in fact because you are slowing down 
traffic you are simply making the air worse. At 30mph emission fumes retreat a lot quickly especially on a straight road 
where somebody does not need to drive slower especially when there is no obstacle to hit. Even Councillors know that 
despite pushing for this 20mph crusade (apparently prioritising signage instead of road surfacing improvements from 
what I been advised within the industry). Road accidents will not be eradicated so the ideology thinking we will 
eradicate road incidents/fatalities I am afraid are kidding themselves. 
 

P
age 604



                 
 

I do not oppose 20mph signs by a School, Town Square or Retirement Community within the road of a settlement but 
I am deeply against a blanket speed restriction across a Town, City or Village when the public opinion is ignored for 
political purposes. This creates mistrust in local politics where even sensible people will be asking like they did in other 
national scandals "Why should the public listening to their Council or on the News do things when people working 
within their Council are not prepared to listen to their Communities?" 
 

(4) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (South Moreton, 
Crown Lane) 

 
Support – My strong support for this scheme arises principally because a reduced speed limit (20 mph) is required to 

improve the safety of all High Street road-users where on-road car parking reduces visibility and is commonly a 
nuisance. 
 

(5) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (South Moreton, 
High Street) 

 
Support – Living in South Moreton, we are very aware of the amount and speed of the traffic using the High Street 

and the 20mph limit will help control this. 
 

(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (South Moreton, 
High Street) 

 
Support – South Moreton is a small village with narrow roads and a well-attended primary school in the centre.  

Having lived in the village for more than 20 years I can confirm that we experience traffic speeding through the village 
on a regular basis. We seem to be a rat-run between the Cholsey area and Tesco at Didcot.  Parking at school drop-
off time is already a  nightmare, and a 20 mph limit may encourage more parents to walk their children to school from 
the greater distance - easing congestion.  High Street also has no street lights, which is not great for pedestrians, and 
a 20mph limit would also make the village safer in the evenings and in winter.  I fully support this proposal. 
 

(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (South Moreton, 
High Street) 

Support – It will be safer for crossing the road at night. 

(8) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (South Moreton, 
High Street) 

 
Support – Because I believe that vehicles travel too quickly down South Moreton High Street and the speed limit 

needs to be reduced. 
 

 

 
 

P
age 605



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Shrivenham 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 FEBRUARY 2023 

 
SPARSHOLT & WESTCOT: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised.  
 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Sparsholt and Westcot as shown in 
Annex 1.  

 

 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 
the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 

 
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 

respect of the proposals. 
 

 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within Sparsholt and 
Westcot by making them safer and more attractive. 
 
 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 14 December 2022 and 20 

January 2023. A notice was published in the Oxfordshire Herald Series 
newspaper, and an email sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, 
including Thames Valley Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, 

Bus operators, countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, 
Vale of White Horse District Council, the local District Cllrs, Sparsholt, and 

Page 607

Agenda Item 25



            
     
 

Childrey parish councils, and the local County Councillor representing the 
Shrivenham division.  

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
7. The sole statutory consultee response was from Thames Valley Police who re-

iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and practice regarding 20mph 

speed limits; they consider their response as ‘having concerns’ rather than an 
outright objection.  

 
Other Responses: 

 

8. A single online objection was received, this a routine unfocussed one from a 
member of the public from Witney who railed against the proposal in principle 

suggesting it was a dark day for democracy and the start of a dystopian future 
with 20mph signs akin to the ‘Z’ sign displayed universally across Russia.  

 
9. The responses are shown in Annex 2, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 

 
 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

10. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 

greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               
The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 
speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 

of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 
County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 

that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  
 
11. The unfocussed objection raises no fresh pertinent points, and in essence 

challenges much of the philosophy behind the democratically agreed policy to 
promote 20 mph speed limits in communities; as such it merits no further 

consideration.  
 

 

Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 
 Annex 2: Consultation responses   

  
   

Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 
    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 
 

February 2023

Page 608



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 609



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns - Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 

P
age 610



                 
 

• road environment 
 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Witney, Oxford 
Hill) 

 
Object – No need for Sparsholt and Westcot to have the speed changed to 20mph. Zero risk neighbourhood and a 

pleasure to have driven through. 
 
It is undemocratic, unethical, divisive and disrespectful for communities of whom can see no need to change the 
speed limits. Why is that? Because there is no such report advising that the road through the Villages, Cities or Towns 
for example is at 80% risk of death or serious injury if the speed limit is not changed. This consultation if anybody 
wants to call it that (clearly not) is going to undoubtedly ignore public opinion like Witneys because the Councillors 
cannot kick the habit, they appear to bitterly hate anybody that has to do an essential journey in a car. There are other 
ethical and more sensible approaches to cycle and walk more. For example increasing public path space to signal 
where a pedestrian and cyclist can have their own lane including encouragement notices on local notice boards. 
 
20mph limits are as depressing as the distress of the dystopian 20 mph signs from a nearby Town that are as 
comparable as Russian Z symbols you see in a Russian street every 100 yards where it made a walk locally at home 
a utterly bitter and depressing experience knowing that these 20mph signage changes are a political decision and not 
a road safety decision. A political decision that has no public support and has built residential resistance (civilly 
making the points why they should be changed back are taking place as I write this). I don't take it lightly to compare 
the Russian Z symbol to a 20mph sign but if the reader googles a Russian City or Town and what it looks like with the 
Z symbol in that county it is as comparable as the 20mph sign easily shown every 100 yards or less. It is regretful but 
the honest truth especially as these 20mph signs are within even dead end streets that have no through roads as well 
making it even more frustrating but the Council officials reading this would take pleasure reading that unfortunately. 

P
age 611



                 
 

 
I hope many residents and within Oxfordshire will come with me to make a stand and that is to say no. No to such 
depressing road signs and money wasted taking away our future generations common sense, personal responsibility 
and the basic human right to choose how we cycle, walk and drive to places. We will be ashamed of what horrid path 
this Council has chosen, the decision to ignore public opinion and rule within minuit management by edict with no 
supportive evidence of this change and one that has no loyal compliance even after that. I had a response once that 
contacted once  I asked for the 70% objection report of Witneys and had quite a petty reply to me. This will 
undoubtedly depress many residents psychologically seeing how needless this was, how robbed their community is of 
having common sense and a sense of personal responsibility as per the Highway code and is depressing for 
passionate motorists that can see that even the study Belfast University did to show that slower speeds don't reduce 
road incidents either, link here if the individual or senior management are interested in reading. Some will sadly ignore 
this objection to the proposal but some I hope will take back these genuine points to senior bosses of whom are trying 
to fight against this nonsenical anti-car movement. www.transportxtra.com/publications/local-transport-
today/news/72511/university-study-questions-impact-of-20mph-limits-in-belfast-city-centre 
 
Lets not forget either that this is the same County Council of whose senior official said to the Sunday Times, ""Traffic 
Filters in Oxford is going to happen definitely"" implying the scheme would go ahead whether public opinion opposed 
or unopposed leading me to my point that this is the same with the speed limit changes. This Council and their staff 
should ask this, is it worth continueing this ruinous scheme that will create further political distrust toward local 
authorities. Is it worth creating distress to residents living there to see these signs every 100 yards as comparable as 
propaganda seen in Russia. Future generations will be unfortunately robbed of sensible common sense and will see 
this for what it is. The Highway Code officials do not see a need to amend speed limits so cannot understand this 
political movement against the motorist. Why have we got a Council that has been voted in to attack the Motorist? If 
this is because of a personal experience from an Official then we are living in very dangerous territory democratically.  
 
Is this healthy for a car and the pedestrian to remain at 20mph? No because it does not matter if your driving 20mph 
or 30mph the emissions remain the same, the air does not get any cleaner in fact because you are slowing down 
traffic you are simply making the air worse. At 30mph emission fumes retreat a lot quickly especially on a straight road 
where somebody does not need to dive slower especially when there is no obstacle to hit. Even Councillors know that 
despite pushing for this 20mph crusade (apparently prioritising signage instead of road surfacing improvements from 
what I been advised within the industry). Road accidents will not be eradicated so the ideology thinking we will 
eradicate road incidents/fatalities I am afraid are kidding themselves. 
 
I do not oppose 20mph signs by a School, Town Square or Retirement Community within the road of a settlement but 
I am deeply against a blanket speed restriction across a Town, City or Village when the public opinion is ignored for 

P
age 612



                 
 

political purposes. This creates mistrust in local politics where even sensible people will be asking like they did in other 
national scandals "Why should the public listening to their Council or on the News do things when people working 
within their Council are not prepared to listen to their Communities?" 
 

 

P
age 613



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Hendreds and Harwell 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 FEBRUARY 2023 

 
STEVENTON: PROPOSED 20MPH & 40MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to defer a 
decision to approve the following proposals as advertised pending further 
discussions to assess the acceptability of reduced proposals that meet the 

needs of all parties: 
 

a. Village wide 20mph speed limit, and 
b. 40mph on the B4017 High Street 

 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed & 40mph limits in Steventon as shown in Annexes 

1 to 5. 

 

3. The current temporary 20mph & 40mph speed limits in place on the B4017 High 
Street which were brought in due to ongoing structural issues with the bridge 
are proposed to be incorporated into the wider proposals as a permanent 

measure. 
 

 

Financial Implications  
 

4. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 
the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 

 
 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

5. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 

respect of the proposals. 
 

 

Sustainability Implications 
 

6. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within Steventon by 
making them safer and more attractive. 

Page 615

Agenda Item 26



            
     
 

 
 

Formal consultation  
 

7. Formal consultation was carried out between 23 November and 30 December 
2022. A notice was published in the Oxfordshire Herald Series newspaper, and 
an email sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including Thames 

Valley Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus operators, 
countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, Vale of White 

Horse District Council, the local District Cllrs, Steventon, and Milton parish 
councils, and the local County Councillor representing the Hendreds & Harwell, 
and the Sutton Courtenay & Marcham divisions.  

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
8. Three responses were received from statutory consultees. Thames Valley 

Police re-iterated their views concerning OCC’s policy and practice regarding 

20mph speed limits; they consider their response as ‘having concerns’ rather 
than an outright objection. Stagecoach Bus Company do not operate services 

in Steventon and consider their comments as informative’; they consider 20mph 
limits to be appropriate in the central area but suggest the proposed extensions 
into areas with no housing do not meet the terms of the Stockholm Agreement. 

 
9. Oxford Bus Company object to the proposals and support the arguments made 

by Stagecoach in their response. They support the proposed 20mph limits 
being applied for residential side streets and also support the proposal to 
extend the existing 20mph section over the rail crossing in Steventon through 

the High Street up to the junction with The Green.  
 

10. However, they object to the proposed 20mph limit on Abingdon Road between 
the junction with Hanney Road and the Northern edge of the village as it is 
600m with no active frontages and with a separate pedestrian footway. Many 

bus users along this route make relatively long journeys and so protecting and 
improving bus journey time is paramount, to ensure the service remains 

relevant and allows the high levels of development planned - and in many cases 
already happening - in South Oxfordshire to take place without leading to a 
corresponding increase in private motor traffic. 

 
11. They also object to the proposed implementation of a 20mph limit more than 

800m in length on Hanney Road which has no active frontages and has a 
separate pedestrian footway. The service on this route, made feasible by s.106 
funding seeks to provide a faster bus link between Wantage and Didcot than 

was previously possible.  There is a significant and growing flow from Wantage 
and Grove to Didcot for employment reasons, both for jobs at Milton Park and 

to access rail services to Reading and London, in which the rail operator has 
made great strides to speed up in recent years. It is therefore important to 
protect journey times on this corridor and to implement such an excessive 

length of 20mph restriction, which does not appear to be justified by the 
rationale as stated in the Stockholm Declaration. We believe that the current 

proposals would have an adverse impact on the attractiveness of the service 

Page 616



            
     
 

and reduce the possibility of it reaching commercial viability over the medium 
term, once s106 funds currently supporting the route have been exhausted. 
Other Responses: 

 

12. Sixteen online responses were received during the course of the consultation, 
and these are summarised in the table below:  
 

Proposal Object Concerns Support 
No opinion/ 

objection 
Total 

20mph 2 (12.5%) 2 (12.5%) 12 (75%) - 16 

40mph  3 (19%) 5 (31%) 8 (50%) - 16 

 
13. 12 respondents expressing support, 2 with concerns and 2 objections. Negative 

comments included 20 limits not being required in the High St and the majority 
of major roads, congestion and pollution concerns, and the preference for better 

enforcement of existing limits. Also, that the proposals will not be effective in 
reducing speeds and will not prompt a change to more sustainable travel. A 
member of the public living a distance away submitted their standard objection 

wording that suggested the proposals to be unnecessary and potentially 
hazardous including the danger from cyclists overtaking cars adhering to the 

proposed limits. 
 

14. Those who responded online, were also asked whether if the 20mph speed limit 

proposals were implemented, would it likely influence a change to their mode 
of travel in the area, the results of which are shown below: 

 

Travel Change Number 

Yes – walk/wheel more 4 (25%) 

Yes - cycle more 4 (25%) 

No 8 (50%) 

 
15. The responses are shown in Annex 6, and copies of the original responses are 

available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 

 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

16. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 
greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               

The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 
speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 
of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 

County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 
that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  

 
17. The objections and concerns from the members of the public are comparable 

to those expressed and considered in earlier similar schemes and were not 

Page 617



            
     
 

seen as warranting a change in those previous proposals given the explicit 
intention of the County Council’s democratically agreed 20 mph limit policy.  

However, the nature of both major bus company’s objection and concerns 
suggests they should be considered carefully. There may be merit in further 

discussions with the local council and member to assess the acceptability of 
reduced proposals that meet the needs of the bus operator. 
 

 
Bill Cotton 

Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1-5: Consultation Plans 

 Annex 6: Consultation responses   
  

   
Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 
    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 

 
February 2023

Page 618



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 619



                 
 

  

ANNEX 2

P
age 620



                 
 

 

ANNEX 3

P
age 621



                 
 

  

ANNEX 4

P
age 622



                 
 

 

ANNEX 5

P
age 623



                 
 

ANNEX 6 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns - Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 

P
age 624



                 
 

• existing traffic speeds 
• road environment 
 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Interim Managing 
Director, (Oxford Bus 
Company) 

 
Object – We understand that Stagecoach has already responded giving extensive context to bus services in 

Steventon and their development in recent years. We will not repeat these here other than to say that we support the 
arguments made. 
 
We are supportive of the proposed 20mph limits being applied for residential side streets which are not bus routes. 
 
We are also supportive of the proposal to extend the existing 20mph section over the rail crossing in Steventon 
through the High Street up to the junction with The Green. There are a number of active frontages in this area such as 
the Co-Op store and two public houses, which increase the level of mixing between motorised traffic and more 
vulnerable road users. Therefore, we support the proposed implementation of a 20mph limit in this area. 
 
However, we wish to object to the proposed implementation of a 20mph limit on Abingdon Road between the junction 
with Hanney Road and the Northern edge of the village. This is a long section of road some 600m long, with no active 
frontages and with separate pedestrian footway in place. This road is served by 3 buses per hour in the form of the X2 
route, one of the fastest growing bus routes in Oxfordshire and one which forms a key role in supporting the science 
vale economy in south Oxfordshire, linking Abingdon, Steventon and Drayton to the rail heads at Oxford and Didcot 
and to the major employment centres at Oxford city centre and Milton Park. Many users of this route make relatively 
long journeys and so protecting and improving bus journey time is paramount, to ensure the service remains relevant 

P
age 625



                 
 

and allows the high levels of development planned - and in many cases already happening - in South Oxfordshire to 
take place without leading to a corresponding increase in private motor traffic. 
 
We also wish to object to the proposed implementation of a 20mph limit more than 800m in length on Hanney Road. 
Again this section of has no active frontages and has a separate pedestrian footway in place. After a gap of almost a 
decade, we successfully re-established a bus service on this road in early 2021 with the commencement of the half 
hourly X36 service between Wantage and Didcot, a development that was made possible by the use of s106 funds by 
Oxfordshire County Council. One of the key aims in establishing this service was to provide a faster bus link between 
Wantage and Didcot than was previously possible using pre-existing bus services, as generally these diverted via 
Harwell Campus and so did not offer attractive end-to-end journey times against private motor vehicles.  There is a 
significant and growing flow from Wantage and Grove to Didcot for employment reasons, both for jobs at Milton Park 
and to access rail services to Reading and London, in which the rail operator has made great strides to speed up in 
recent years. It is therefore important to protect journey times on this corridor and to implement such an excessive 
length of 20mph restriction, which does not appear to be justified by the rationale as stated in the Stockholm 
Declaration. It is our conjecture that proceeding to implement the 20mph scheme as proposed would have a material 
adverse impact on the attractiveness of the X36 and would materially reduce  the possibility of this route reaching 
commercial viability over the medium term, once s106 funds currently supporting the route have been exhausted. 
 

(3) Head of Strategic 
Development and the Built 
Environment, 
(Stagecoach Bus 
Company) 

 
No objection – These comments should be read as an informative.  

 
Steventon is a substantial settlement that has seen significant consolidation in recent years. It benefits from a 
relatively high level of bus service both in terms of the level of connectivity, journey time and frequency on offer - a 
rather privileged position. In line with the County's own policies and the Science Vale Transport strategy - which 
places substantial weight on improving the options to reduce the exceptionally high car dependence of this fast-
developing part of the County - these services have been progressively improved, partly with County Council financial 
support.  
 
This is a part of the County where the Council can point to some of the best outcomes of policy seeking to create a 
substantial improvement in bus services. Indeed, we would say that the Science Vale area ought to be considered a 
national exemplar of coordinated bus network improvements in support of high levels of employment and population 
growth, with a view to damping dependency on car use and achieving wider mode shift. 
 
Stagecoach is not an operator of any of the services in Steventon itself since Jan 2022. However, we are keen to 
ensure that the Council as a matter of principle, pays full regard to the way in which this policy is implemented across 

P
age 626



                 
 

the County with a view to ensuring that there are no unnecessary or undue negative impacts on the ability of bus 
operators to provide relevant bus services that can be economically sustained in the future. We trust that the Council 
will pay particular regard to representations made by the current operator of the bus services in Steventon. 
 
We would say that the proposals are extensive. Relatively long stretches of bus route are involved. These routes 
operate regularly, magnifying the potential impact as buses pass through the area multiple times per hour on a given 
route. 
 
While the historic core of the village has an intimate form and is already in part subject to a 20mph limit, this contrasts 
strongly with the settlement form and character further north. There are extensive stretches proposed for 20mph limits 
that do not even involve direct frontage access to properties, which are set well back from the carriageway. The roads 
are straight an in the case of Abingdon Road in particular relatively wide (it was a former trunk road). Forward visibility 
is therefore generally very good.  
 
Looking at the adopted "Stockholm Declaration" on which the Council's policy is based, it is unclear that large 
amounts of "planned mixing" take place along these stretches as there are few if any commercial premises or major 
services accessible along them. Indeed, there are not even formal pedestrian crossings. This is strong circumstantial 
evidence that the Council has not to date been of the view that managing conflicts between significant numbers of 
active travel modes and vehicular traffic has been a high priority. It is also not clear how easy the limits would be to 
self-enforce. Speed cushions on Hanney Road to help maintain a 30mph limit in place today indicate this strongly. 
Thus, the effectiveness of the proposals along these stretches raises some questions. 
 
Especially when considered in combination with Abingdon, Grove, Drayton and other settlements through which these 
longer-distance bus services pass, in our analysis the cumulative impacts of this approach if replicated elsewhere 
would be likely to have a material impact on bus operating economics. 
 
We operated through Steventon until Jan 2022. Were we still operating we would urge that 30 mph limits were 
retained on Abingdon Road and Hanney Road north and west of the junction of Abingdon Road and Hanney Road.  
 
We recognise that pred and cycle facilities are relatively poor, though footways  do exist. It is regrettable that despite 
substantial residential development consented since 2012 the opportunity was not taken by the Council to seek 
upgrades to off-carriageway pedestrian and cycle provision along these roads. However it is evident that space exists 
for improved facilities to be delivered. That said key walking and cycling routes to the Primary school cross rather than 
pass along Hanney Road, and on Abingdon Road for a significant distance it would be more logical to take the 
shortest road along the edge of the Green west of Abingdon Road. 

P
age 627



                 
 

 
In line with these comments, we therefore would urge the Council to pay especially careful regard to the 
representations made by the bus operators directly concerned to ensure that an appropriate balance is achieved, and 
that the policy is effectively achieved, without disproportionate negative impacts on the future delivery of bus services 
on the corridors concerned, undermining the achievement of national and County Council policy concerning public 
transport. 
 

(4) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Moulsford, Ferry 
Lane) 

 
20mph - Object     

The 20mph proposals are in nobody's interest.  
 
As a motorist I always strive to strictly observe 20mph limits just as I observe other limits, but it usually leads to a very 
unpleasant driving experience owing to tailgaters, and often leads to dangerous overtakes by less patient drivers.  
 
As a pedestrian, when stepping into or crossing a road I certainly won't simply assume that oncoming traffic is 
crawling along at 20mph, just because there's a 20mph sign. Most traffic will be going much faster and therefor there 
is absolutely no benefit to the pedestrians - we still have to treat all traffic as travelling at similar speeds to a 30mph 
limit. Even worse, just occasionally, a vehicle will turn out to be actually driving at 20mph thereby causing me to wait 
longer for it to pass, before I can safely cross behind it.  
 
Regarding speed limit TROs, they have no legal significance for cyclists, yet many reasonably fit cyclists often exceed 
20mph. This will give rise to the bizarre situation whereby those few motorists who actually observe the limit could find 
ourselves tailgated by impatient cyclists and when assisted by a slight gradient, perhaps even overtaken by cyclists - 
which is highly unlikely to be a safe manoeuvre. It may also give rise to a further temptation for cyclists to illegally ride 
on the footway, if it allows them to get past 20mph traffic more easily.     
 
Travel change: No     

 
40mph - Object     

This proposals for 20mph limits are in nobody's interest.  
 
As a motorist I always strive to strictly observe 20mph limits just as I observe other limits, but it usually leads to a very 
unpleasant driving experience owing to tailgaters, and often leads to dangerous overtakes by less patient drivers.  
 
As a pedestrian, when stepping into or crossing a road I certainly won't simply assume that oncoming traffic is 

P
age 628



                 
 

crawling along at 20mph, just because there's a 20mph sign. Most traffic will be going much faster and therefor there 
is absolutely no benefit to pedestrians - we still have to treat all traffic as travelling at similar speeds to a 30mph limit. 
Even worse, just occasionally, a vehicle will turn out to be actually driving at 20mph thereby causing me to wait longer 
for it to pass, before I can safely cross behind it.  
 
An even more nightmarish outcome will be that 20mph limits instil a sense of entitlement to pedestrians, especially 
children,  who may be unaware of the Highway Code.  Contrary to urban myth, HC never confers ‘right of way’ to 
anybody, even to pedestrians crossing in front of  traffic subjected to specific speed limits.  In the event of conflict the  
driver may be prosecuted, but the pedestrian will still be injured, or worse. 
 
Regarding speed limit TROs in general they have no legal significance for cyclists, yet many reasonably fit cyclists 
often exceed 20mph. This will give rise to the bizarre situation whereby those few motorists who actually observe the 
limit could find ourselves tailgated by impatient cyclists and when assisted by a slight gradient, perhaps even 
overtaken by cyclists - which is highly unlikely to be a safe manoeuvre. It may also give rise to a further temptation for 
cyclists to illegally ride on the footway, if it allows them to get past 20mph traffic more easily. 
 

(5) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Drayton, 
Steventon) 

 
20mph - Object     

This limit is too slow for the main road. I think it will cause extra congestion and pollution. I understand and agree with 
the lower limit for side/estate roads from a safety point of view.      
 
Travel change: No     

 
40mph - Support    

It slows the traffic before it gets to the village 
 

(6) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Steventon, The 
Causeway) 

 
20mph - Concerns     

20 in the residential is ok but not on the high Street 30 is fine.      
 
Travel change: No     

 
40mph - Object     
The national speedlight is fine going up the hill. Your spending millions to speed up buses at the top of the hill during 
rush hours so why slow them down in other places? 

P
age 629



                 
 

 

(7) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Steventon, Joyce 
Way) 

 
20mph - Concerns     

I think the 30mph limit is adequate for the majority of the main village roads - reducing the speed limit is unlikely to 
alter the behaviour of motorists passing through who drive far too fast already  (better enforcement of the current 
speed limit would be more effective for this) and I fear it will make traffic congestion even worse. I can’t see how 
altering the speed limit is going to have any impact on the use of public transport. My experience in living or working in 
other areas is that reducing the speed limit to 20mph has little positive impact.      
 
Travel change: No     

 
40mph - Concerns     

I think this is too fast a speed limit and support the speed limit remaining at 30mph for the majority of Steventon’s main 
roads 
 

(8) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Steventon, 
Abingdon, The Green) 

 
20mph - Support    

As a long term resident of Steventon (over 35 Years), I am concerned about the steadily increasing volume of traffic, 
particularly the extraordinary high number of HGVs using village roads - made more  significant  due to the location of 
the major logistics depot on the Hanney Road on the outskirts of Steventon. These commercial vehicles are of a such 
a size and the weight that they are damaging the structure of road surfaces, which is turn is causing: 
 
- Potential/actual damage to private cars (tyres/ suspension etc.) 
- Trip hazards for pedestrians when crossing roads, as well as  danger for cyclists from potholes  
- Increased pollution/ deteriorating air quality, which is particularly noticeable at the road junctions  
- Difficulty in crossing extremely busy roads for parents with buggies and toddlers, the elderly  and dog walkers, 
particularly in rush hour/during school runs  
  
These problems are exacerbated, whenever there are delays /accidents on the A34 and vehicles attempt to by-pass 
the incident by driving through the village.  
 
Furthermore the excessive speed of vehicles driving through the village is a significant problem, with drivers failing to 
keep to the existing 30mph limit.    
 
The impact of above is clear and evidenced by the pressing  need for a major structural overhaul of the road bridge 

P
age 630



                 
 

spanning the railway - itself a gateway to the West and South West  and an arterial route, which is an important part of 
the UK's national transport infrastructur.  
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more     

 
40mph - Object     

Because evidence shows that drivers regularly 'drift' above the statutory speed limit whatever that is , so that means in 
our village they are actually  driving  at 45+ over the limit and as evidence shows higher speeds translates to higher 
incidents and  life changing  impacts to all parties, including serious injury and fatalities 
 

(9) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Steventon, Mere 
Dyke Road) 

 
20mph - Support     

Will hopefully create a much nicer and safer environment to encourage active travel     
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more     

 
40mph - Concerns     

Would much rather see it reduced to 30mph - speeds coming in from Steventon Lights (and Hanney Road although 
this is currently 50mph I think) are very high so would be much safer to reduce to 30mph. 
 

(10) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Steventon, 
Steventon Hill) 

 
20mph - Support     

The danger & noise from speeding vehicles consistently disturbs and threatens the lives of the residents of Steventon. 
The HGVs that drive through the village are noisy - more so, the faster they go.  Cars and motorcycles regularly speed 
through the village- changing the speed limit won’t stop these, but will hopefully make them think. 
Lowering the speed limit will reduce pollution & will improve the lives of residents. 
Please take a very close look at the number & size of the LGVs & HGVs that use Steventon’s roads in high numbers. 
There needs to be action taken to reduce the size & number of vehicles allowed to use Steventon - the pathways are 
narrow & lives are endangered on a daily basis. Steventon should not have to put up with the big heavy, dangerous 
lorries travelling through it. We have had enough.      
 
Travel change: No     

 
40mph - Concerns     

P
age 631



                 
 

It should be 30. Slow the drivers down before they get to the 20. Drivers regularly speed down the hill. Signs are 
needed to warn about the speed limit change.) 
 

(11) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Steventon, The 
Hill) 

 
20mph - Support    

I walk along the pavements of Steventon every single day.  They are narrow in places and I would feel much safer if 
the speed limit was lowered. The roads through Steventon are inappropriately used by Heavy Goods vehicles, tipper 
trucks, scaffolding lorries - very few of these are travelling slower than the high 20s and above.  Everyone will be safer 
if the speed limit gets reduced to 20mph.  Something should also be done about the high number of HGVs etc using a 
village's roads.  Their continued use of the roads is endangering the lives of the residents of Steventon.     
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more     

 
40mph - Concerns     

I think it might be better if the speed limit was 30mph coming down the hill into Steventon.  You would have more 
chance of people slowing down before the bridge to 20mph.  We also really need signs that say "New Speed limit 
ahead" or similar to warn people that the speed limit is going down to 20 
 

(12) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Steventon, High 
Street) 

 
20mph - Support     

Excellent and welcomed plan of action. There is far too much speeding in the village. Heavy speeding vehicles on the 
High Street cause my house to vibrate.     
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more     

 
40mph - Concerns     

Should only be 30mph.  40mph is too fast for a small village. 
 

(13) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Steventon, Field 
Gardens) 

 
20mph - Support     
There is a material need to reduce the speed of drivers passing through the village.  Drivers passing through the 
village at a slower pace will be more inclined to stop for pedestrians at the zebra crossing.  They routinely do not.     
 
Travel change: No     

 

P
age 632



                 
 

 
40mph - Support     

The higher speed trevelled down the hill towards the village certainly influence the rate at which people enter the 
village, especially when there is little traffic.  A reduced speed limit will help mitigate risks 
 

(14) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Steventon, High 
Street) 

 
20mph - Support     

* To slow down the speed of traffic generally through Steventon and particularly along the High Street where there is a 
pedestrian crossing at which motorists frequently don't stop for pedestrians. 
* To make it safer for pedestrians and cyclists through the village. 
* To slow down the large number of HGVs which pass through the village going to and from the storage depot in the 
Hanney Road.     
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more     

 
40mph - Support     

40 mph on Steventon Hill would slow down traffic coming  into the village and combined with 20 mph through the 
village make Steventon a safer and more pleasant place for all road users and residents. 
 

(15) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Steventon, 
Milbank Way) 

 
20mph - Support     

Traffic through the village is very heavy. Pavements are narrow, and large vehicles (HGVs and buses) cause quite a 
side draft to pedestrians and cyclists. 
There is currently an issue with speeding in the village - as a member of the community speed watch group, I regularly 
record vehicles at well over the current 30mph speed limit, including near to the 2 zebra crossings.      
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more     

 
40mph - Support     

The temporary 40mph currently on the hill has seen traffic slow down better before entering the village at the bridge. 
This should be made permanent 
 

(16) Local 
Resident/Member of 

 
20mph - Support     

P
age 633



                 
 

public, (Steventon, Prior 
Crescent) 

Too many idiots speeding/ hurtling down Steventon Hill - dangerous to everyone as they approach the zebra crossing 
by the Co-Op     
 
Travel change: Yes - cycle more     

 
40mph - Support     

40mph is perfectly fine, and readies drivers for 20mph zone further along 
 

(17) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Steventon, Castle 
Street) 

 
20mph - Support     

There are a lot of inconsiderate drivers who do not observe the current 30mph,  ignore speed signs and have no 
respect for pedestrian crossings. In addition there are a large number of HGV movements through the village.     
 
Travel change: No     

 
40mph - Support     

The current 40mph entry to the village is working. 
 

(18) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Steventon, High 
Street) 

 
20mph - Support    

Excessive noise and vibrations from cars and HGVs in particular     
 
Travel change: No     

 
40mph - Support    
It will reduce the speed of vehicles entering the village 
 

(19) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public(Steventon, 
Oxfordshire, Hanney 
Road ) 

 
20mph - Support     

I live and work on the Hanney Road in Steventon of which people think is a race track. I would love to see this road 
reduced to a 20mph speed limit.      
 
Travel change: Yes – walk/wheel more     

 
40mph - Support     

P
age 634



                 
 

The road is to fast for more than 40 mph   People use it way to fast  
 

 
 

P
age 635



T
his page is intentionally left blank



   
   

   
   

Divisions affected: Ploughley 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT –  
23 FEBRUARY 2023 

 
STRATTON AUDLEY: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS  

 
Report by Corporate Director, Environment and Place 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1. The Cabinet Member for Highway Management is RECOMMENDED to 
approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits as advertised.  
 

 

Executive summary 

 

2. The report presents responses to a statutory consultation on the proposed 
introduction of 20mph speed limits in Stratton Audley as shown in Annex 1.  

 
 

Financial Implications  
 

3. Funding for consultation and the proposals themselves has been provided by 

the County Council’s 20mph Speed Limit Project 
 

 

Equality and Inclusion Implications 
 

4. No implications in respect of equalities or inclusion have been identified in 
respect of the proposals. 

 
 

Sustainability Implications 
 

5. The proposals would help encourage walking and cycling within Stratton Audley 
by making them safer and more attractive. 
 
 

Formal consultation  
 

6. Formal consultation was carried out between 15 December 2022 and 20 

January 2023. A notice was published in the Bicester Advertiser newspaper, 
and an email sent to statutory consultees & key-stakeholders, including 

Thames Valley Police, the Fire & Rescue Service, Ambulance service, Bus 
operators, countywide transport, access & disabled peoples user groups, 
Cherwell District Council, the local District Cllrs, and Stratton Audley parish 

council, and the local County Councillor representing the Ploughley division.  

Page 637

Agenda Item 27



            
     
 

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 

 
7. Two responses were received from statutory consultees; Thames Valley Police 

responded by re-iterating their views concerning OCC’s policy and practice 
regarding 20mph speed limits and consider their response as ‘having concerns’ 
rather than an outright objection. Cherwell District Council confirmed that they 

had no observations to make.  
 

Other Responses: 

 
8. Two members of the public responded with one objection and one expression 

of concern. The concern focussed on the proposals being unnecessary and a 
waste of money. The objector had similar views and claimed that the parish 

council had assumed that the 60% who did not respond to their consultations 
were in support; the objector also claimed they knew of no one outside the 
parish council who sought the proposals.   

 
9. The responses are shown in Annex 2, and copies of the original submissions 

are available for inspection by County Councillors. 
 
 

Officer response to objections/concerns 
 

10. The main purpose of the scheme is to improve road safety and encourage 
greater use of active travel by reducing speeds; this will also reduce accidents.               
The aim of reducing speed limits is to change driver’s mindsets to make 

speeding socially unacceptable and make more environmentally friendly modes 
of travel such as walking and cycling more attractive – and also reduce the 

County’s carbon footprint. This forms part of a countywide programme of works 
that seeks to deliver ‘a safer place with a safer pace’.  

 

11. The objections and concerns are comparable to those expressed and 
considered in earlier similar schemes and were not seen as warranting a 

change in those previous proposals given the explicit intention of the County 
Council’s 20mph limit policy. However, the objectors claim regarding the parish 
council representation of the community, although anecdotal, are worthy of 

note. 
 

 
Bill Cotton 
Corporate Director, Environment and Place 
 

Annexes Annex 1: Consultation Plan 

 Annex 2: Consultation responses   
  
   

Contact Officers:  Tim Shickle 07920 591545 
    Geoff Barrell 07392 318869 

 
February 2023

Page 638



          
  

 

ANNEX 1

P
age 639



                 
 

ANNEX 2 
 

RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

(1) Traffic Management 
Officer, (Thames Valley 
Police) 

 
Concerns - Thames Valley Police welcome the opportunity to engage on plans for road safety improvement and 

acknowledge that 20mph limits can be a useful tool in road safety. There are other reasons 20mph limits may be 
desirable for communities, such as environmental concerns, and creating a shared space environment to encourage 
greater diversity of road users. 
 
Compliance with 20mph limits is a challenging issue as there is a difference between the achievable results of the 
various available schemes. For example a sign-only scheme will only have a limited effect on the mean speeds, as 
opposed to other schemes that influence the road environment, which is recognised as being key to achieving 
compliance. If a speed limit is set too low and is ignored then this could result in the vulnerable road user being less 
safe. It can also cause a dis-proportionate number of drivers to criminalise themselves and could bring the system of 
speed limits into disrepute. 
 
Thames Valley Police have no policy to enforce based on arbitrary speed limits alone but will enforce based on threat 
of harm, risk and resourcing. 20mph limits are not excluded from this and will be enforced where appropriate. There 
should be no expectation that the police would be able to provide regular enforcement if a speed limit is set too low as 
this could result in an unreasonable additional demand on police resources and there are no additional resources 
available to support extra enforcement. Messages from partners that police will not enforce need to be discouraged. 
Such messaging can encourage non-compliance and should be avoided. 
 
The policy of Thames Valley Police is to use sound practical and realistic criteria (Setting local speed limits - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)) when responding to Highway Authorities in an effort to promote consistency and to reduce the burden 
of constant and unnecessary enforcement. The advice shown in Circular Roads 1/2013 states.  
 
The key factors that should be taken into account in any decisions on local speed limits are: 
• history of collisions 
• road geometry and engineering 
• road function 
• composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of vulnerable road users) 
• existing traffic speeds 

P
age 640



                 
 

• road environment 
However I recognise Oxfordshire County Council now have their own Policy for Setting Speed Limits and I expect full 
compliance of that policy going forward in relation to both monitoring , future engineering and self-enforcement 
through Community Speed Watch .  
 
Our stance remains that primarily 20 mph speed limits and zones should be self-enforcing  
 
Speed limits should be considered as part of a package of measures to manage vehicle speeds and improve road 
safety. Changes to the highway (for example through narrowing, providing vertical traffic calming or re-aligning the 
road) may be required to encourage lower speeds in addition to any change in speed limit. Though these may be 
more expensive, they are more likely to be successful in the long term in achieving lower speeds without the need for 
increased police enforcement to penalise substantial numbers of motorists. 
 

(2) Cherwell District 
Council, (Development 
Management) 

No objection – The Council has no observations to make in respect of the proposal. 

(3) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Stratton Audley, 
Mill Lane) 

 
Object – The roads in the village are not best managed by speed limits, it is just an obsession of the parish council 
members who sent out a survey to residents and when less than half responded, rather than assume the 60% who 
didn't respond were happy with the status quo took the view that they must be supportive and therefore there was 
'overwhelming support'.  I don't know anyone in the village (outside the parish council) that want a 20mph speed limit.  
There are parts of the village where it is difficult to do more than 15mph because of road width, bends, parked cars etc 
and there are other parts where the current 30mph is unnecessary.   We do not have an issue with speeding motorists 
generally (just one or two specifically who will ignore any new limits anyway) and the only accidents I am aware of 
were further outside the village and caused by the icy conditions. Money would be better spent fixing potholes but if 
you insist on spending our taxes on signage, warning of horses would be more effective. 
 

(4) Local 
Resident/Member of 
public, (Stratton Audley, 
Cavendish Place) 

 
Concerns – It is unnecessary - the layout of SA means that village speeds are low, as independently measured for 

the Parish Council only last year. I would prefer money to be spent to better effect elsewhere. 
 

 

P
age 641



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes
	 Statements submitted for 26th January 2023

	5 Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP)
	Divisions Affected – Abingdon East, Abingdon North, Abingdon South, Sutton Courtenay and Marcham, Kennington and Radley, Berinsfield and Garsington
	CMD Highway Management – 23 FEBRUARY 2023
	Abingdon Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP)
	Report by Bill Cotton, Corporate Director for Environment and Place
	RECOMMENDATION
	Executive Summary
	Introduction
	Abingdon LCWIP Content
	Corporate Policies and Priorities
	Financial Implications
	Legal Implications
	Staff Implications
	Equality & Inclusion Implications
	Sustainability Implications
	Risk Management
	Consultation and engagement
	Annex 1 - Abingdon LCWIP
	Abingdon LCWIP - Main document (report)
	Executive summary
	1 Introduction
	1.1 Purpose of the LCWIP
	1.2 Policy context
	1.2.1 National policy context
	1.2.2 Local policy context
	Relationship with Local Transport and Connectivity Plan (LTCP)
	Relationship with other walking and cycling strategies
	Relationship with Supplementary Planning Documents


	1.3 Governance and co-production arrangements
	1.4 Methodology for development of the LCWIP
	1.4.1 Determining scope
	1.4.2 Gathering information
	1.4.3 Network planning for walking and cycling
	1.4.4 Prioritising improvements

	1.5 Application and review of the LCWIP
	1.5.1 Application
	1.5.2 Review


	2 Context
	2.1 Overview of the local area
	2.2 Geographical scope of the LCWIP
	2.3 Background information and data
	2.3.1 Abingdon Liveable Streets proposals
	2.3.2 Location of significant trip generators
	2.3.3 Census 2011 travel to work data
	2.3.4 Propensity to Cycle Tool (PCT)
	PCT commuting data (Census 2011 Cycling scenario)
	PCT commuting data (Ebikes scenario)
	PCT school travel data (School Census 2011 scenario)
	PCT school travel data (Go Dutch scenario)

	2.3.5 Rapid Cycleway Prioritisation Tool
	2.3.6 Strava Global Heatmap
	2.3.7 CycleStreets low traffic neighbourhoods and modal filters mapping tool
	2.3.8 Traffic data
	2.3.9 Collision data
	2.3.10 Air quality data
	2.3.11 Active Lives Survey
	2.3.12 National Travel Survey
	2.3.13 Perception of existing facilities
	2.3.14 Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD)


	3 Abingdon walking and cycling network
	3.1 Network map
	3.2 Route classification
	3.3 Core Walking Zone (CWZ)
	3.4 Audit of current conditions on the network

	4 Walking and cycling infrastructure improvements
	4.1 Proposed improvements
	4.2 Prioritisation of proposals

	Glossary of terms and abbreviations
	References

	appendices
	appendix_label_A
	Abingdon LCWIP Appendix A - Geographical Scope Map
	appendix_label_B
	Abingdon LCWIP Appendix B -  Local Trip Generators Map
	appendix_label_C
	Abingdon LCWIP Appendix C - Network Map
	appendix_label_D
	Abingdon LCWIP Appendix D - Core Walking Zone Map
	appendix_label_E
	Abingdon LCWIP Appendix E - Primary Route Audit Log
	route_audit_log

	appendix_label_F
	Abingdon LCWIP Appendix F - Primary Routes Current Cycling Level of Service (CLoS) Map
	appendix_label_G
	Abingdon LCWIP Appendix G - Programme of Walking and Cycling Infrastructure Improvements
	abingdon_lcwip_programme

	appendix_label_H
	Abingdon LCWIP Appendix H - Proposal Maps
	abingdon_lcwip_proposals_overview
	abingdon_lcwip_proposals_central
	abingdon_lcwip_proposals_east
	abingdon_lcwip_proposals_north
	abingdon_lcwip_proposals_west
	abingdon_lcwip_proposals_southwest
	abingdon_lcwip_proposals_radley
	abingdon_lcwip_proposals_wootton
	abingdon_lcwip_proposals_thames



	Annex 2 - Consultation Outcomes Report
	Annex 3 - Equalities Impact Assessment
	Section 1: Summary details
	Section 2: Detail of proposal
	Section 3: Impact Assessment - Protected Characteristics
	Section 3: Impact Assessment - Additional Community Impacts
	Section 3: Impact Assessment - Additional Wider Impacts
	Section 4: Review

	Annex 4 - Climate Impact Assessment

	6 Abingdon - B4017 Wootton Road - proposed toucan crossing
	7 Radley - Kennington Road and Whites Lane - proposed pedestrian and cycle crossings and shared use footway / cycle track
	8 Bicester - Dunkins Close - proposed residents permit parking scheme
	9 Littlemore - Oxford Road - proposed bus stop clearway
	10 Long Hanborough - Regent Drive
	11 Banbury - Bretch Hill - proposed waiting restrictions and 20mph speed limit
	12 Abingdon - proposed 20mph and 30mph speed limits
	13 Chilton: 20mph speed limit
	14 Cumnor (including Farmoor): proposed 20mph and 30mph speed limits
	15 Faringdon - proposed 20mph speed limit
	16 Hanborough: Church Hanborough - Proposed 20 mph Speed Limits
	17 Kidlington - proposed 20mph speed limit
	18 Kingston Lisle and Fawler - proposed 20mph speed limit
	19 Milton under Wychwood - proposed 20mph speed limit
	20 North Hinksey - proposed 20mph speed limit
	21 Oxford: Binsey Lane - proposed extension of 20mph speed limit
	22 Shrivenham  - proposed 20mph speed limit
	23 South Leigh - proposed 20mph speed limit
	24 South Moreton - proposed 20mph speed limit
	25 Sparsholt and Westcot - proposed 20mph speed limit
	26 Steventon - proposed 20mph speed limit
	27 Stratton Audley - proposed 20mph speed limit



